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RTL Television's Alarm fur Cobra 11, Germany's

most popular action series, has baecome a hit format
in some 140 countries around the globa. Since 2012,
it has been one of the signature series of the

newly launched action channel, Big RTL Thrill. in India
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RTL GROUP

THOMAS RABE

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In 2012, RTL Group delivered solid financial resulits.
Revenue grew by 4.0 per cent to aimost
€6 billion and EBITA agam exceeded €1 billion.
RTL Group achieved these results despite
increasingly challenging conditions in some of the
core European TV advertising markets.
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The Board focused on discussing the transformation
of the TV industry, the opportunities and challenges
ansing from the growing non-lingar TV consumpticn,
multiscreen services for deeper audience engagement,
and technology-dnven services for advertising clients
This was In additan 1o Its ongoing responsibilites, such
as reviewing financtal and operating performance
budgets, investment proposals, and the Group's
strategy RTL Group's new Executve Committee —
consisting of Co-CEOs Anke Schaferkordt and
Guillaume de Posch, and CFO Elmar Heggen - has
defined, together with the management teams in the
vanous profit centres, a clear strategy for RTL Group
We see significant growth potential in three arsas
broadcast, content, and digital Fust we will optirmise
and develop cur existng TV and radie broadcast
businesses Investing in our broadcast business s
nvesting in growth That's why, in 2012, RTL Group
launched five new TV channels The 8ig RTL Thril
channel launch in India 15 RTL Group's first broad-
casting venture outside of Europe

Secondly we will develop and acquire intellectual prop-
erty, and expand capabilites in our existng content
business Creatvity remains key in the TV business
RTL Group's production arm, FremantleMedia, 1s cne
of the largest global producers of content, and repre-
sents cne of the most important growth platforms for
the entre Group FremantleMedia has a global and
scalable business model, and its new managament
team has placed a clear emphasis on fueling its crea-
tive pipeline, developing new formats and bulding
brands, acrass a range of genres

Thirdly we will build sustanabls new digetal business
models with a strong cross-platform presence on all
devices and screens Further expansion of RTL Group’s
cigrtal businesses, from catch-up TV services, mobile
apphcations, online wideo advertising and thematic
websites, to the first Youtube-funded niche channels,
all play a major role here Professionally produced wideo
content I1s, and remains, the major driver for new digital
senvices, devices and screens — and this 1s RTL Group's
core competence

2012 also saw several changes to the composition of
the Boarg of Directors Gerhard Zeiler decided to leave
the company, effective 18 Apnl 2012 On behalf of the
Board, | would like to thank him for his great achieve-
ments over the years, and for the smocth handaver of
responsibiities 1o the new Executive Commitiee

In Apnl 2012, the Annual General Meeting of RTL Group
elected Bernd Kundrun and Rolf Schmidt-Holtz as new
members of the Board of Directors Both have exten-
sive expenence n the media industry

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

“In particular we reviewed the
opportunities and challenges
arising from the growing
non-linear TV consumption,
multiscreen services for deeper
audience engagement, and
technology-driven services for

advertising clients.”

My sincere gratitude also goes to Siegfned Luther, my
predecessor as Charman of the Board of Directors of
RTL Group Siegfried Luther 1s one of the founding
fathers of ioday's RTL Group And finally, | would like
to thank Gunther Gruger, who stepped down from
RTL Group's Board of Dwectors foltowing his retire-
ment from Bertelsmann

On 31 January 2013, the Board of Directors of
RTL Group was informed that Bertelsmann is consid-
enng a reduction of its shareholding in RTL Group
through a capital market transaction, while mantain-
ing a qualfied maponty of approxmately 75 per cent
The Board of Directors understands that a final deci-
sion will depend on a number of conditions, iIncluding
a favourable capital market environment There can
consequently be no assurance as to if, when, or on
what conditions Bertelsmann will offer part of its
shareholding n RTL Group

RTL Group's solid operatonal performance and its
clear-cut strategy provide us with the necessary tail-
wind to further develop RTL Group as Europe’s lead-
ing entertanment network But ultimately, it's our
people who Inspire and inform our viewers, and who
create meaningiul and professional content — day
after day My thanks go to everyone who contributed
to a successful 2012 - I'm looking forward to contin-
uing RTL Group's unique success story in this spint
and invite you to accompany us on this journey

THOMAS RABE

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RTL GROUP
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CHIEF EXECUTIVES' REPORT

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

CO-CED OF RTL GROUP

On 19 April 2012, Anke Schaferkordt and Guillaume de Posch took over as Co-CEOs
of RTL Group. In a message to all RTL Group employees, they wrote on that
day: “Our Group Is In great shape, and we can rely on highly creative, skilled and
motivated employees. We all share the same passion: we love television,
production and radio. And we know that this passion will help to iead our strong,
creative and diverse entertainment network into the next phase of its development.”

We met the Co-CEOs to review RTL Group’s performance in 2012,
and to discuss the Group’s strategy.

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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How did RTL Group perform in 20122

Anke Schiferkordt RTL Group has once agan demonstrated
that it can operate successfully even in a very challenging eco-
nomic erviranment For the third consecutive year, our EBITA
exceeded € 1 bikon Qur EBITA margin was very healthy at 18 ¢
per cent, with all of our main broadcast aperations reporting
strong doublse-digit margins, of between 16 1 and 29 3 per cent
In our most smportant markets, Germany and France, our fami-
les of TV channels continued to gan advertising market share

This ongoing success Is based on RTL Group's untque set-up
we are the only pan-European free-TV group with a worldwice
content production powerhouse We have leading market posi-
tions n the countries we operate n, strong brands, and a
healthy financial position RTL Group has generated close to €1
bilion of cash flow almost every year since 2007

Guillaume de Posch Based on our strong financials, we stepped
up our nvestments and inihiatives N our three strategic fields of
broadcast, content and digital Dunng 2012, RTL Group suc-
cessiully launched five new TV channels n five countnes We are
also bulding a strong and rapidly growing presence in non-linear
TV and explonng the field of cnling video networks, with our first
Youtube-funded channels, produced by FremantleMedia

Our expertise in content and creatmty has already proven to be
a competitive advantage for the non-knear TV world as audienc-
es are attracted by hit formats and established brands, across
all screens and devices And for the viewers, "nothing beats
free” This 15 why RTL Group 15 well positioned to develop a
leading position in high-growth markets such as online video
advertising

Why was the economic environment challenging in 20127
Gutltaume de Posch Throughout 2012, the European TV advertis-
Ing markets clearly reflected local macro-economic develop-
ments while the German TV advertising market was slightly up,
the French, Dutch and Belgian markets were estimated to be
down year-on-year, with a significant slowdown over the sec-
ond half of the year The markets in Spain, Hungary and Croatia
continued to sea a more pronounced decline

Anke Schiferkordt That's why it's so important to have diversi-
fied revenue streams and geographic footprint 43 per cent of
RTL Group's revenue onginates from a broad range of non-
advertising actmties such as content production, nghts trading,
teleshopping, e-cormmerce, and merchandising This adds a lot
of stability to our Group

Let's have a closer look at RTL Group's main operations.
How did the German TV business, the Group's largest
profit centre, perforrmn in 2012?

Anke Schiferkordt In 2012, Mediengruppe RTi. Deutschland
continued to outperform the German TV advertising market and
increased its combined net share - including RTL Il - to 44 4
per cent Overall revenue of the profit centre grew by 3 7 per
cent, mainly driven by higher TV advertising revenue from our
two main channels, RTL Telewision and Vox Due to ongaing
cost control measures, EBITA increased strongly by 98 per
cent to €581 milkon - this was the umit's best ever full-year
operating profit

Did it also continue to gain audience share?

Anke Schiferkordt With a combined average audience share of
33 7 per cent in the key 14 to 49 target group, Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland remained 5 9 percentage points ahead of its
main commeraial competstor ProSiebenSatt And RTL Telewision
remained viewers' number-cne choice for the 20" consecu-
tive year

However, RTL Telewsion's audience share did not stay at
the record levels of the years 2010 and 2011 But we broadly
anticipated this market development

First, the 2012 ratings were affected by major sporting events,
including the Euro 2012 football championship and the Surmrmer
Otympics, both shown by public broadcasters This s a well-
known effect to us In addition, 2012 also saw an accelerated
fragmentatron of the TV landscape, with the launch of new
channgls and the switch-off of analogue satellte broadcasting,
resuling 1 audience share losses for all of the three biggest
commercial TV channels At the same time, niche channels —

“Based on our strong financials, we stepped up our investments
and initiatives in our three strategic fields of broadcast,
content and digital. During 2012, RTL Group successfully launched
five new TV channels in five countries. We are also
building a strong and rapidly growing presence in non-linear TV.”

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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“Our ongoing success is based on RTL Group’s unique set-up:
we are the only pan-European free-TV group
with a worldwide content production powerhouse.”

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

those with an audience share bslow 2 0 per cent In the target
group — increased ther combined audience share by 2 3 per-
centage points

In Apnl 2012 RTL Group also launched a new free-TV
channel in Germany - RTL Nitro Are you happy with the
channel's performance to date?

Anke Schiferkordt Very much so RTL Nitro has been the most
successful channel launch in Germany in recent years In De-
cember 2012, 1t already scored an audience share of O 7 per
cent among young viewers — gther free-TV channels needed
two years or more to do so

And as the market continues to fragment further, we know we
have to fragment ourselves With RTL Nitro we've built an offer-
Ing that complements our other channels in Germany, and the
market as a whole

Was Groupe M6 also affected by fragmentation?
Guillaume de Posch Groupe M6 was agan the only French media
group to Increase s total audience share year-on-year, in an
environment marked by ongoing audience fragmentation As a
rasult of this strong performance, the combined total audience
share of Groupe M6 grew to 15 5 per cent

In the key commercial target group, MB remaned the second
most popular channel in France and continued to reduce the
gap to the market leader, TF1 Cver the past ten years, this gap
has reduced signficantty, from 16 € to 8 5 percentage ponts

M6E invested n the broadcasting rights for the Euro 2012
football championship Did this pay off?

Gullaume de Posch M6 arred ten of the 31 matches of the Euro
2012 football championshtp and scored excellent ratings The
France vs Sweden match was watched by 12 2 milion wiewers,
the channel's second-highest ratings ever, while the Ukraine vs
France match was the third best audience ever for M6 These
were two of the ten most-watched shows on French TV in 2012

EBITA of Groupe M6 decreased to €224 millon as a result of
lower advertising revenue and the significant programming in-
vestment in Euro 2012 But let's not forget, M6 also acquired
the nghts for ive matches in the next Euro tournament in 2016
- and this will take place in France

This alsc demanstrates that we make significant investrments in
our core business because we strongly believe they will pay off
In the medium and long term The launch of the new family en-
tertanment channel 6ter 1s another example

Looking at RTL Group's content business Why did
FremantleMedia’s revenue Increase so strongly in 20127
Guitaume de Pgsch FremantieMedia posted a significant increase
in revenue, of 19 7 per cent This was dnven by three key fac-
tors organic growth in the US, UK, Germany and Asia-Pacific,
exchange rate effects — a stronger US dollar and Brntish pound
aganst the Euro - and recharges without margin to thurd parties
for certain production contracts in the United States

Despita this revenue growth, FremantleMedia's EBITA — which
was affected by positive and negative one-off effects in 2012 -
was slightly down to €138 milkon, manly due to the loss of
some programming, such as Masterchef Australia, and also due
to contnued pressure from broadcasters on margins

What about the broadcast families in the Netherlands
and Belgium?

Gullaume de Posch Cur broadcast cperations in the Netherands
and Belgium remained clear audience and advertising market
leaders, and agasn generated solid levels of profitability And the
same Is true for our French radio family

Turming to RTL Group's strategy What are your plans for
the future growth of the Group?

Anke Schiferkordt Directly afier taking over as jont CEQs of
RTL Group i mid-April 2012, we conducted a comprehensive
review of our corporate strategy

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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“The digital transformation of the TV industry is hugely
important for us at RTL Group - simply because we want to be wherever
our viewers are. The value of our established TV formats
and brands is key to building new business models with a strong
presence across all digital devices and screens.”

ANKE SCHAFERKDRDT

Together with thg management teams in our cperations we
have defined three main investment areas broadcast, content,
and digitat Regarding the broadcast business, our man goal
15 to optimise and develop the existing operations and to invest
for growth This includes launching new channels such as
RTL Nitro, 6ter and RTL Telekids, and increasing distribution
ravenue from platform operators Wa see the opporturity to de-
velop a farr revenue share for cur brands and programmes from
the major distribution platforms — cable network operators, sat-
ellite companies and internet TV providers

Guillaume de Posch Selective geographical expansion in high-
growth regions also remains on RTL Group’s agenda All of us
agreed n our first meeting that we will continue trying to expand
our footprint in broadcasting — but selectively In Novemmber
2012, RTL Group launched s first TV channel outside Eurcpe,
Big RTL Thrill, n India The action entertainmeant charnel target-
ed at male audiences 15 part of a 50/50 joint venture with
Reliance Broadcast Network, and the imtial feedback from wew-
&rs 15 promising

As for content, we will further develop and acquire intellectual
property and exploitation capabilities in areas such as general
entertainment, US drama, kids enteramment, gaming and on-
tine video networks FremantteMedia will be key for this strate-
gic goal, and we'll continue growang our content arm through a
combination of organic growth and acquisibon

In July 2012, Cécile Frot-Coutaz took over from Tony
Cohen as CEO of FremantleMedia. Has this changed the
strategy of RTL Group’s production arm?

Guillaume de Posch First, I'd ke to thank Tony Cohen for his out-
standing achievements He transformed FremantledMedia from a
collection of indwdual entities nto a globa! content power-
house | asked Cécile Frot-Coutaz to take over as CEO

After being with the group for 17 years, she has the wision
and leadership needed to further grow FremantleMedia She
brngs expertise and drive from the US — the largest TV market

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

in the world - and combines her creative skills as a producer
with a sharp business perspective Under her leadership,
FremantieMedia’s new management team has swiftly put a clear
focus on fueling the company’s creatve pipeline, developing new
formats and bullding brands, across a broad range of genres,
while mamtaining market feadership inits core business areas

‘Digital transformation’ remains a widely discussed
topic in the media business. What are your plans for the
digrtal world?

Anke Schaferkordt First of all, TV 1s already an all-digital business
with very strong fundamentals New technology has always im-
proved the TV viewing experence Today's TV sets are bigger,
thinner and — thanks to HD - sharper than ever before And they
continue to take centre stage in people’s kving rooms

The digital transformation of the TV industry 1s hugely important
for us at RTL Group — simply because we want to be wherever
our viewers are The value of our established TV formats and
brands s key to bulldng new business models with a sirang
presence across all digital dewvices and screens

And so we have analysed in detaill current trends in non-linear
wvideo, online and mobile advertising, content verticals and new
onlng business moadels, such as gaming Our own estimates
suggest overall TV consumption will continue to grow By 2015
we beleve non-linear viewing could represent 10 per cent of
total viewing time in Western Europe

Based on these strengtins, RTL Group has many growth oppor-
unities in the digital media world In recent years, we have suc-
cessfully built and expanded cur wideo-on-demand services
Dnven by our big entertainment shows and strong brands, our
netwark of websites and catch-up TV servicas generated 2 4
billlon videg views 1n 2012 In addition, the Youtube channels
from FremantlsMedia have registered 4 5 billion hits, making
them glabal entertainment destinations

Guillaume de Posch Tius growth of non-linear 1s drnven by a
significant viewing shift onfine, from movies to TV episodes




Therefore, we have to actively shape this business and leverage
our strong brands Secunng nghts, being avalable on all
screens and measunng all viewing, anc also stronger collabora-
tion across RTL Group - these are the main responses the
management teams from Corporate and the profit centres are
currently discussing and working ¢n

We will clearly remain a content company, but we are also
actively buillding our capabilities in both technology and online
advertising sales The acquisition of Videosinp 1s a good exam-
ple — #'s the Netherland’s leading online wdeo advertising
network, which generated 1 3 billon video views and delivered
392 muion ads in 2012

So advertising will also be RTL Group's main revenue
source in the online world?

Anke Schiferkordt The majorty of our on-demand services, such
as RTL Now and M6 Replay, are free to the consumer, financed
through advertising - as wath our man TV operations But the
rapid development of new technologies alsc means we can
adapt the way we sell advertising on these new platforms
Undoubtedty, the 30-second TV commerctal will remain indis-
pensable, for it reaches mass audiences In a very short time
span But we will also develop new, complementary forms of
advertising targeted at indmidual viewers This s a long-term
aspiration, but we're confident that technology will Increasingly
allow it In parallel, we are already explenng other sources of
revenue from on-demand, such as transaction and sub-
scnption-funded senices

GHIEF EXECUTIVES® REPORT

What is your cutlook for 2013?

Gwllaume de Pasch Looking to 2013, economic condiions re-
main challenging, in ine with local market conditions, and visi-
biity continues to be imited Facing this envronment, we have
a clear focus on mantaning our teadership positons and
achieving our financial targets, while pursusng opportunities in
broadcasting, content and digital which will develop the busi-
ness further in future years

Finally, at the end of January 2013, it was announced
that Bertelsmann i1s considering a reduction of

its shareholding in RTL Group What 1s your view?

Anke Schiferkerdt. We welcome that Bertelsmann has clearly
expressed 1t will remain a committed and supportive majonty
sharehoider of RTL Group, beliewing in the future growth pros-
pects of our company And indeed In recent years our results
have repeatedly demonstrated that RTL Group I1s a very attrac-
tive business, generating value for cur shareholders

Above &ll, we have dedicated employees and expenenced man-
agement teams In our business, people are the mast important
asset They make the difference In other words therr creatiaty,
motivation and passion for programming are the reason we are
in great shape today

Guillaume de Posch Based on these strengths, we have defined
a clear strategy to continue our suUCcess story, as we explan in
more detall In this Annual Report We are happy that both our
majority shareholder and Board of Directors clearly support our
strategy to pursue these opperturities

“Looking to 2013, economic conditions remain challenging.
Facing this environment, we have a clear focus on maintaining our
leadership positions and achieving our financial targets,
while pursuing opportunities in broadcast, content and digital.”

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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PROFIT GENTRES

AT A GLANCE

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland

2012

2011

Revenue €1,882m €1,912m
EBITA €581m €529m
Advertising market share 44 4% 437%
Audience share* 337% 350%
Targei 14-49

FremantleMedia

2012 2011
Revenue €1,711m €1,429m
EBITA €138m €143m
RTL Belgium

2012 2011
Revenue €210m €216m
EBITA €45m €46m
Advertising market share 71 5% 710%
Audience share* 36 3% 378%

Targe! shoppers 18-54 (17-23h)

RTL GROUP

ANNUAL REPDRT 2012

Groupe M6

2012 2011
Revenue €1,38Tm €1,421m
EBITA €224m €249m
Advertising market share 24 0% 234%
Audience share* 229% 230%

Target housewivas < 50 {including digital channals)

RTL Nederland

2012 2011
Revenue €431m €491m
EBITA €97m €134m
Advertising market share 473% 47 7%
Audience share* 32.3% 2%

Target 20-49(18-24h)

RTL Radio {France)

2012 2011
Revenue €180m €184m
EBITA €30m €30m
Advertising market share 26.1% 26 4%
Audience share* 183% 192%

Target 13~




RTL Klub
2012 2011
Revenue €101m €99m
EBITA €9m €15m
Advertising market share 54.0%" 47 9%
Audience share 37.3% 07%
Target 18-49 (pnme ime}  Including seven cable channels
RTL Hrvaiska
2012 2011
Revenue €31m €37m
EBITA €(9)m €0m
Advertising market share 36 8% 409%
Audience share* 24 3% 255%
Target 18-49 (inciuching cigrtal channe! RTL 2)
RTL Radio Deutschiand
2012 2011
EBITA €12m €11m

PROFIT CENTRES AT A GLANCE

Grupo Antena 3

2012 2011
EBITA (Group contribution) €6m €20m
Advertising market share 352% 05%
Audience share* 192% 184%

Target 1654 (including digetal channe!s but exciuding La Sexta)

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Peter Kloeppet
interviews
Yasser Aqafatl.
September 1993
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X Faktor mentor Peter Geszt (nght)
with candidate Gergd Olah
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

RTL KLUB

GROWING
UP IN
HUNGARY

Last year, RTL Klub started a family, acquinng
seven cable channels sn the highly competitive
Hunganan TV market of over 100 channels

In 2012, the family's growing up, and one of
them has become RTL Il

“Launching a new channel is always a nsk,” says Dirk
Gerkens, CEQ of RTL Klub, ‘but awareness of the RTL
brand Is very strong in Hungary, and of course, distrtbu-
tion was already in place " As was content, with spin-offs
and some programming mowving frem RTL Klub, such as
the popular Who Wants To Be A Milhonare and Helr
Hetes {Seven Days), as well as spin-offs from X Faktor
RTL ll, wath 1its more female, shghtly urban focus, only
launched on 1 Octokter 2012, yet has already had some
days above the 2 per cent all-day average Dirk Gerkens
was targeting for the end of year one *We're not notice-
ably taking wewers from RTL Klub, we're taking them
from our direct competitors and the rest of the market,”
he says “We want to start to take the lead in the second
dmmsicn of cable channels " He's looking to spring's re-
wvised programme gnd and the company’s own scrpted
reality productions to cement this position

By second dmsicn, Dirk Gerkens means those around
the 2 per cent audience mark The leading dwision of
cable channels betongs (o RTL Klub's other acquistions,
Cool and Film Plusz, both doing well at around the S or 6
per cent mark “The main increase was Coal," he says,
“which became clearly the third channel, ahead of the
public broadcaster MTVY™ In all, RTL Klub's peortiche of
cable channels increased 1ts all-day average from 10 4
per cent of the market, to 12 3 per cent, In the target 18
to 449 age group

Advertising sales benefit from the innovative ‘mirror ad
break', where the same ads run at the same time across
Cool, Film Plusz and RTL i, creating the third biggest ad-
verhising offer on the market “This idea 1s something we've
learnt from our colleagues in Span and Croatia,” says Dirk
Gerkens, “In fact RTL Group as a whole is a fantastic res-
ervoir for Ideas, and its great to exchange information with
people who have run a family of channels for years ”

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

RTL BELGIUM

GLUB RTL'S NEW
‘CHANNEL WITHIN
A GHANNEL

As far back as 1995, Club RTL 1in
Belgium began positioning itself as just
as much a children’s channel as a
men’s channel. Eighteen years on,
Club RTL still enjoys excellent viewer
ratings for the 18 to 54-year-old
predominantly male demographaic, but also
takes 1ts growing fan base among 4 to
l0-year-olds very seriously.

In recent menths, Club RTL has baen reasserting its lead-
Ing positiont among male viewers, with new formats such
as Sceénes de Cnmes and the staple diet of new fims,
popular senes such as CS/ Miami, CSI NY and CS! Las
Vegas moving from Plug RTL, and improved sports
coverage Club RTUs market share has increased sigrfi-
canily as a result

So what about the kids? Well, in March 2012, Club RTL
launched Kidz RTL — a 'channe! within a channel' exclu-
svely for these younger generations The channel's staple
formats for kids remain, with Disney and Studio 100 pro-
ductions that include Lutin Plop, Fred et Samson, and
Mega Mindy now arnng between 06 30 and (09 30 on
weekdays, and up to 15 00 on Saturdays

In a move that may delight audiences both young and
old, and do no harm toits positioning with male viewars,
Club RTL also secured the exclusive nghts to UEFA
Champions League coverage from 2012 to 2015, to add
to their Europa League coverage

A new corporate design helps viewers differentiate be-
tween Club RTL and Kidz RTL as one switches to the
other on the same channel 1t’s a shrewd move, and part
of RTL Belgum's strategy to make Club RTL a channel
with more personalily punch and dynamism for its adult
viewers — without compromising its ever-growing popu-
lanty among the youngsters
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FRANCE'S FIRST
REALITY SHOW

heavily criticised,

but then copied — Loft Story

1 MARCH 1987:

the day
ME launched
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GROUPE M6

g 10 rmark the|

On 1 March 2012, M6 celebrated its 25th anniversary Once labelled “the one channel
too many” or “the little channel”, it has proved wrong everybody who predicted it wouldn't
last 1t has grown to become France'’s third most watched TV channel and the only
one to iIncrease its total audience share in 2012 Despite this, resting on its laurels 1s not on
the agenda, as Thomas Valentin, Deputy CEQ of Groupe M6, explains
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To mark rts 25th anmiversary, M6 became France's third
most popular channel How did it achieve this?

In the last five years the new DTT channels gained 16 points
market share Qur main competitor TF1 has lost eight points,
while M6 remamned stable and became the
third national channel in the process | beleve
M6 successfully countered fragmentation
because we constantly reinvent curselves
and stand out from the competition For
instance, we launched very successful pro-
grammes, such as Scenes de Ménages and
Le 19h45 - our everung news show nobody
beleved in at first Today M6 symbolises
‘Feel Good TV', which 1s a type of TV that
conveys positive values viewers feel comiort-
able with In this day and age that's what
they are loaking for

“We gradually
reduced the gap

Some shows are the same age as the channel

What's their longevity secret?

We strongly believe 1n the power of brands A channel or a TV
show I1s a brand you need tc develop, nurture and position In
viewers' minds — while constantly adapting it
Capital, Turbo, E=M6 and Zone Interdite are
20 years old or over These are durable
brands based on simple concepts They en-
Joy a strong identity and have the power to
avoke relevant images in pecple’s minds In-
terestingly, most of them were created from
scratch by novices in the TV business Today
we continue to bank on new talent and o
pays off remarkably

Did you expect UAmour est dans le pre,
Top Chef and Scenes de Menages to

be such hits? Were you surpnsed when

In March 2012, you said in the press that other shows flopped?

over ine years, no
M6 was still in a development stage - - Wa launch only programmes we believe In
Could you explamn? onIY_ by WInnlng So yes, flops are a surprise However, | have
The ability to adapt to new consumption ‘audience races’ to admit that we didn’t expect L/Amour est
patterns is key in this industry So we're still but by Winning dans le pre to become the channel's most-

bullding the M6 house We keep enrnching
our programme gnd, creating interactive
tools to develop viewer loyalty, and warking
on ganing market share We invest in con-
JAent and pay particular attention to the
qualty of our programmes Today our
access prime time 1s domng very well, but we put in a huge
amount of effort Next, we'd ke to improve our lunchtime
and prime time ratings

Do you think M6 can still Increase its ratings in spite of the
ongoing fragmentation?

Cespite grewing competition M6 confirmed its ranking as
France's third channel in 2012 It was also ths only major ¢chan-
nel to post growth, and even ackueved its best year since 2007
Two of the channef's programmes entered the country's top 10
most-watched programmes of 2012, when in 2011 we didn't
even make it into the top 100 Teday in an audiowsual land-
scape of 25 free TV stations, our family of channels = M&, W9
and 6ter, which we launched in December 2042 — i1s well-posi-
toned to face fragmentation

M6 has come a long way What do you remember from all
these years?

Audacity and creatwity Today we are still driven by these two
adjectives that faithfully describe M6 The position we have
secured in the French audiovisual landscape Is unique Surveys
have shown that M6 1s one of the top four brands in France and
the number one entertainment brand We launched M6 in 1987
tn very difficult conditions The first month our total audience
share was 03 per cent, whie direct competitor TF1's was
42 per cent We gradually reduced the gap over the years, not
only by winning ‘audience races’ but by winning viewers' hearts
What started as one channel 25 years ago 1s now one of
Europe’s most diversified entertanment groups

Despite the difficulties, what motivated you to stay on
board? Is the motivation different today?

The channel's top pnonties continue to be surprise, innovate
and satisfy viewers’ expectations The only difference today I1s
the market we operate In It changed, especially with the armval
of the mnternet What we did for one channel then, we now do
for 12, on linear but also on non-lingar TV

viewers’ hearts.”

THOMAS VALENTIN,
DEPUTY CEQ OF GROUPE M6

watched show [t 13 doing better season after
season, and the same goes for the other
flagship shows Why? Maybe because wew-
ers need to know where they are at, strong
brands inspire trust Most of these shows are
created to be waiched by the whole family,
making them efficient crowd pullers

Is counterprogramming still the mainstay of M6’s ratings
success? Will you use it to become number two?

Dunng the first 15 to 20 years, counterprogramming indeed
played a major role We have since shifted towards creating a
unigue offer based on values that are different from those of the
other channels but on a par with what a co-leader would offer
This 1s why we also decided to broadcast major foctball compe-
titions despite their poor return on nvestment They are events
M6 can't afford to muss as they bring pecople together

KEY DATES

* 1 March 1987 M6 s launched

* 1992 It starts making a profit and becomes a “Groupe™
the year after
* 1996 First onkine presence with M6 fr
* 1908 M6 ranks second national channel with
wewers under 50
» 2000 M6 Web 1s set up
» 2001 Broadeast of first gver reality senes in France
Loft Story = MB 15 heavily cnlicised but then copied
» 2005 M§6 enters the motle phone market with
M5 Mobile oy Crange
» 2006 First season of L'Amour est dans e pre
(The Farmer Wants A Wife)
* 2008 Launch of catch-up TV service M6 Replay

and first broadcast of Un diner presque parfart
{Come Dine With Me)

» 2009 Le 19h45 and Scenes de Menages hit the screens
* 2010 |-Phone and I-Pad apphcations avatable
» 2012 MG becomes third channel with viewers

aged 4 and above and the first French channel
to release a second screen app
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GRUPO ANTENA 3

ANTENA 3
AND LA SEXTA
MERGE

...

e
s (.©

B ol

Spanish broadcasters Grupo

LT

Antena 3 and La Sexta merged
in October 2012 to create

a family of eight channels.

The merger significantly enhances
Grupo Antena 3's already impres-
sive portfolio, which includes a
strong presence in radie, cinema
and advertising. RTL Group owns
a 20.5 per cent stake in Grupo
Antena 3, whose new family of
channels — Antena 3, La Sexta,
Neox, Nova, Nitro, Xplora, La
Sexta 3 Todo Cine, with Gol TV on
a lease basis — provides a com—
prehensive and varied offer for

Spanish viewers and advertisers

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

BIG RTL

Big RTL Thnill launched on 5 November 2012 in India,
signalling RTL Group's first steps into the Incdian
broadcasting market The ‘ulimate action destination’
channel airs currently in the Uttar Pradesh state,

as well as in Mumbai and Delh, featuning internattonal
content dubbed in Hindi

Andreas Rudas, Exacutive Vice President Regional Opera-
tions and Business Development CEE and Asia, sess the
move as exciting for RTL Group *The Asian market repre-
sents very promising growth opportunities for us We're
bnnging male viewers mainly agad 15 to 44 high-guality con-
tent — and our partnership with Rellance Broadcast Network
will help ensure Big RTL Thrll becomes a strong new brand
for the Indian market We wanted a robust local partner, and
Relance Broadcast Network 1s a big entertainment group
with an expenenced management team that can support cur
expansion into a whole new continent of possibilities and op-
portunriies india has the largest young population in the
world — half of its 1 2 bilion population 1s aged under 30 *
By RTL Thnll provides edge-of-your-seat entertainment,
with content from around the warld Realty shows, action
sanes, wrestling, extreme sports, game shows and movies —
exclusive to the channel and never seen before on Indian TV
Tarun Katial, CEQ of Reliance Broadcast Network, explains
how the new channel fills an important gap In the market
“Big RTL Thrll comes as an answer to the Indan male's
quest for action entertainment The product 1s world class,
served in Mind), and has been designed to fill a void in the
market With the launch of thus channel, Reliance Broadcast
Network strengthens its position in the market, providing ad-
vertisers with an offering unmatched in the region We are
happy 1o have our partner, RTL Group, with us in this enter-
tainment revolution *

Big RTL Thrit currently reaches approximatety 25 million
households, complements the growth and success of Reli-
ance Broadcast Network's number one Indian radio network
— 927 Big FM — and takes the company’s total channel
count across India to seven



On 1 Apnl 2012, RTL Nitro launched
in Germany MIt's a broad, pure
entertainment channel, but skewed
more towards the interests

of a male audience than either

RTL Television or Vox

“Qur USP 15 to offer the widest vanety
of entertainment for men - cnme, acuon,
comedy, drama, documentanes and
magazines,” says head of ¢hannel, Olver

Schablitzk, “As the market fragments
stil further, we know we have to fragment
ourselves, and we've bullt an offenng that
complemenis the other Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschiand channels, as well as
the market "

RTL Nitro broadcasts free, in a market
inhabited by 80 other free channels, so
initial expectations weren't too high, but
it has started very well “From day one
ratings were good and after five weeks

RTL Mitro airs
the whole series
of Breaking Bad

we had our first day with a 1 Q per cent
share of the relevant target group.” says
Oliver Schabiitzki  After eight months, by
Noverniber 2012, the monthly share had
already reached 07 per cent of the 14
to 49 age group, and 08 per cent of
20 to 59-year-old men This 1s much bet-
ter and faster than competitor channel
launches of the past ten years — even suc-
cessful channels have taken two years to
reach that “There was a potential boost
with analogue switch off at the end of
April, as people bought digital and found
new channels,” he says, "and of course
we’ve had tremendous cross-promation-
al support from the other channels of
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand ”

The channel boasts almost fully Independ-
ent programming, with TV premieres of
shows not ared on tigger channels
“There's a dedcated night for comedy
and sricom,” says Oliver Schabbitzki, *and
our big hit 1s Modern Family, which hadn't
found its way to the German market, so
we had the exclusive premiere * There are
also ¢nme nights, where action senes
Chase 1s daing well, and shows from the
£S5 franchise are popular The channel
has taken a different tack for daytme TV
too, showng classic serials such as
Krught Rider and Walker Texas Ranger -
this has also proved a hit with audiences

And there's plenty of attractive program-
mng due for 2013 “We have the whole
senes of Breakng Bad,” says Oliver
Schabiitzk, “which | hope will become our
signature senes Plus more sci-fi, comedy
in My Name Is Earl, and a senes of Derren
Brown specials " With excellent early rat-
Ings, good feedback from viewers, and
being marketed afongside the whole RTL
family, Cliver Schablitzki 1s optimistic that
2013 will be a good year for RTL Nitro’s
advertising revenue, too
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‘Yvonne
Coldeweijer aka
RTL Telekuds
presenter, Keet

-

RTL RADIO {FRANGE)

RTL Matin
presenter,
Laurent Bazin,
in the studio

NEW PERSONALITIES,
IMPROVED FIGURES

In September 2012, RTL Radio in France changed the presenters of its three flagship
news shows simultaneously, for the first time In its lustory When the audience figures for
September/October were released, the station had registered its best season debut

for ten years, with a cumulated audience of 6,462,000 listeners By the time December's
figures came out, they'd added 405,000 new histeners Even for a leader, it seems,

it pays to keep things fresh

“It wasn't an easy decision to make, changing
the three main news shows," admits Chnstopher
Baldell, CEO of RTL Group's French racdio sta-
tons “Radia hsteners are creatures of habit ~ they
stick to ther favourite station, so any changes
must be accepted But we felt a new dynamic
was required "

Vincent Parizot, the morning anchor for four sea-
sons moved to the lunchtime slot ATL Mid, while
his place on RTL Matin was taken by Laurent
Bazin The evening show RTL Sowr 1s now pre-
sented by Marc-Olivier Fogiel “The morning job s
very demanding and can be exhausting,” explains
Baldell, “so for Vincent Panzot it's a nice change
of pace and hg 1s working well with co-presenter
Eksabeth Martichoux, with me to chat to the lis-
teners who callin ™

The morning show 1s radio’s pnme time, and lis-
teners expect to start the day enlightened by the
news, analysis and insight alongside the occa-
sional recreatonal moment “Laurent Bazm has
brought the nght mix, and sets the nght tone,”
confirms Chnstopher Baldell, "whereas for the
evening show, Marc-Olivier Fogeel, previously an
interviewer with us, was hosting a show else-
where We decided 1t was tme he came back,
he's a fierce competitor, negotiating exclusive in-
terviews and scoops, the character we need at
that time of day”

Many of the station's interinking shows have also
been refreshed in recent years, and each show
leads naturally into the next, creating a snowball ef-
fect in attracting listeners Aside from the exceflent

figures, the station's own research shows that
listeners wholeheartedly approve of the changes —
even competitors have gone on record to note
the success

The ratings are good for the radio group’s other
stations, oo RTL 2, the ‘adult’ music station s the
only one N its genre ganing audience numbers ‘it
has maintained a consistent format for many years
in pop/rock, whereas competitors keep changing,”
notes Baldel, “and it follows a good strategy of
events such as concerts and roadshows around
the country, going out to meet listeners "

Fun Radio has also mantaned its market share
by offering a clear positioning, offering young
adults the best dance music “It's the only station
focused iotally on dance, which s growing intc a
mainstream category,” says Christopher Baldell,
“It has a very popular and hvely morning show, a
good event strategy including & big annual con-
cert in Bercy, and 1t also has a dynamic strategy
for malkang the most of social networks and app
downloads *

Hawving three successful stations clearly benefits
the radio group as a whole in advertising sales
‘radio has performed better than other media,”
according to Baldelt, “and our sales house has
done a good |ob of capitalising on the ratings "
Other than back office synergies and an inherent
element of brand awareness, the stations don't
necessanly capitalise on each others' success
*Each station has its own independent pro-
gramming and 1ts own distinct identity,” explains
Chnstopher Baldelli
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RTL RADIO {FRANCE)

REELIN’

IN THE YEARS

On 22 May 2013, fans of the RTL Radic show Les Nocturnes will switch on around
midnight and settle in for the night to enjoy Georges Lang's selection of

music

Nothing unusual there, you might thaink? And definitely nothing unusual

for those fans who've been listening for 40 years. Because Georges’
show first aired on RTL Radio in May 1973. We met him to test his memory.

Georges Lang,
prepanng for
the mght shift

How did it all start, Georges?

| grew up in Metz and to earn some money | used to babysit for
Amencan military families Except | didn't really babysit | used
1o get the kids to bed early so | could listen to ther parents’
records - The Platters, |azz, biues, Ray Charles, he was my 1dol
- | coutdn't afford my own records, and where could | buy such
fantastic music, anyway”?

How did that lead to a radio career?

Well, I just wanted to work 1n music First | tned to play the
guitar, but was no good | started to study phitosophy as well,
but that was no use 1 longed to be n music, so | listened all
the tme to the radio, prrate radio, the English DJs on Radio
Luxembourg playing the Beatles and the Animals | said to my
best frend 'one day | will do radio’ | said to the radio, to the DJs
| was listening to, 'one day | will da this, for longer than you'
And how did you get your chance?

| came to RTL in Paris and asked for a job They sent me back
to Luxembourg to make a demo, and said one day they'd call

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

me | didn't think they would, but when thay went to 24-hour
broadcasting they said | could do a right slot at 3am I did a
show in November 1871 | didn’t imagine 1'd be there for long,
{ was Just happy to have a job And from there we get to Les
Nocturnes 1973

What did you play?

They let me do a different kind of radio  Classic rock was guite
new |'d play things Ike a whote side of Dark Side Of The Moon
—magne that, 16 minutes long But I'd spent time in Califor-
mia and discovered fresform radio — that 1S, where the DJs
have complete control over what they play — my mentaor was
Jim Ladd of KLOS in Los Angeles | choose a record, then one
leads to the next, and so on | can't explain it it just works
So you were brninging new matenal to French ears?

We brought them Elton John and Dawd Bowe for the first
time We were pioneers And | had a lot of frends and con-
nections In the States who were sending me music It was
an exciting tme  Now all these stars come on as guests —




Elten, Roger Waters, Rod Stewart — they’ve become good
friends, too

Are you still just as excited?

Oh yes I'm passionate about it You couldn't do it for so
long without that | love the night show, being alone In the
studio, but knowng the listeners are there, and maybe
they’re alone tog, but I'm ther refuge | know they're there,
too, as with the internet, we now get lots of immediate feed-
back | read it all, though1 don’t mention pecple on ar

Do you get lots of mail as well?

Yes, | keep 1t all People who telf me they’ve been listening
since the 70s They give detalls, too, which confims i 1
true And even listeners In the US wa the internet, how about
that? But new, young listeners as well — you don't need the
radio under the bedcovers now, they lsten to me on ther
phones They can histen to my old stuff and they’ll hear the
fundamentals of music, and understand today's music even
better

So the music 1s bnnging 1n young hsteners too?

That's what 1t's all about, the music | say on ar 'Nocturnes
The music, you and me ’ The music 1s the most interesting
part of the show, not me! But | do like it when we get out
on the road and do specials New York and LA are fun, but |
ke going to Lyon, Nancy, Clermont-Ferrand and meetng
the listeners

“Georges’ long-standing
success is based on
the wonderful relationship
he has with listeners.”

CHRISTOPHER BALDELLI,
CEQ OF RTL RADIO (FRANCE)

it's time to let Georges go, but Just tme for the CEO of
RTL Group's French radio stations, Christopher Baldell, to
add his views "Georges 1s & very well-known music expert
This 1s good for RTL Radio But more important is that might-
tme racko can be very emotive Maybe people are at hormne
alone, or drving through the night Georges' long-standing
success 1S based on the wonderful relationship he has with
those listeners "

DR )

.

In Bavana, Antenne Bayern continues .
to lead the field as Germany’s most

popular commercial radio station — with .
more than four million hsteners a day

In July the statton became the first single .
radio station in Germany's history to pass

the 1 3 miflion histeners per hour mark

- a remarkable achievement for what 1s

essentially a regional station

Also in 2012, Antenne Bayern’s audience share
of listeners aged 10 or over was 27 7 per cent,
compared with 19 4 per cent in 2011

Much of this success 15 attnbuted to some
re-giructunng and fine-tuning With the clam
“Wir leben Bayern - Wir lieben die Hits”, the
station's shows directly address the Bavanan
audience, and by doing so have attracted more
isteners For example, several 'Wir leben Bay-
ern’ songs were written especially, and offered to
listeners by the station, and created quite a buzz
Even Bavana's prme minister Horst Seshofer —a
Facebook proneer in German politics — ex-
pressed his love for one of the versions and
added it to his playlist

Antenne Bayern also became the first station to
offer ‘real-time traffic measunng’ This iImmensely
popular feature gives listeners menute by minute
drnve-tme updates an the traffic situation, and
details of how long they can expect to sit in traffic
across the regon dunng rush hour Through
phone-ins they can identify and share information .
about commuting problems as they happen
Listeners stuck « a traffic jam can even ask
Antenne Bayern to send the ‘Stauschrauber' traf- *
fic helicopter to get them out of the traffic chaos

As well as top performer Anienne Bayern, *
RTL Group has 18 other radio holdings in 11
states across Germany, and 1s the largest com-
rmerctal radio group In Germany Every day, al-
most 28 milicn people in Germany listen to cne
of RTLs radto stations

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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39KM°
FREE-FALL

Y
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Jumping into free-fall from

39km up in the atmosphere
in his ballocon capsule
‘Red Bull Stratos',
Felix Baumgartner broxe the
record for skydiving —
and the sound harrier

the process.
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Tl broadcast, N-TV's audience share i
"+ |peaked at 27.9 per oent of [,

|14 10 49-year-olds, while the & !
{c:_ha_rmel'_s online and mokile sites
“also recorded excellent ratings.

7.1 MILLION
VIEWERS

The eveni's exclusive TV partner in Germany, N-TV,
attracted up to 7.1 milhlon viewers for its ive
nroadcast of the cvenl - breaking records of 1ts own.
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FREMANTLEMEDIA

THE
SUCCESS

STORY
CONTINUES

New faces to the judging panels of the world’s top two talent formats, maybe,

but certainly no strangers ta the music industry and the celebrity spotlight.

The X Factor and American ldol have brought yet more established star power to their
judging panels, keeping things fresh and exciting for their armies of avid fans.

How established? How big? Well, let’'s start with The X Factor
bringing none other than Britney Spears to the panel, along with
heir to the pop queen throne, Demi Lovatc. They joined Antonio

‘L.A." Reid and Simon Cowell for the show’s second season. Britney
spears is one of pop’s most celebrated and successful icons,

with five albums going straight to number cne in the Billboard charts,
24 top-40 singles, and album sales fast appreaching 100 million.
Cécile Frot-Coutaz, CEQ of Fremantle Media and previously

The X Factor’'s Executive Producer, had this to say when Britney
agreed to the second season: “She’s the ultimate pop icon, and I'm
thrilled she’1l be joining us. She's already shown the world what

the ¥ factor is, and how to sustain it in an incredible career.”
Simon Cowell, the format’s mainstay in the UK and now in the US,
couid ooly agree, saying: "Britney is one of the biggest stars in the
world — she's talented and fascinating, and I believe she can spot

the X tactor in people.”

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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8.3 MILLION
VIEWERS ON AVERAGE
IN THE US

Hosts Khloe Kardaskian

and Mario Lopez
chat to a contestant on

- - the United States”
T fTd L’_ Y popular The X Factor show
. ".g? ~ /
— g Y S
N R .
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For her performance an
the show. Demi Lovaio
won the accolade for bast
celebrity judge at the 39th
Paopie's Choice Awards.

Dem' Lovato is fast becoming a
world star, too. An accomplished
singer and actress, Demi’s career
began when she was just 10 years old,
and as Cécile Frot-Couwtaz explains:
“Her ambiticon and drive establish
her as one of the most popular young
artists today.”

Together, Britney and Demi gave

The X Factor’s huge audience

an exciting addition to the panel

— refreshing its dynamic and
complementing other enhancements

to the show in preparation for

the new season,
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So how could American Idol match that? How about five-
time Grammy-winning global superstar Mariah Carey?
She joined the judges panel for the format's return to
US screens for its 12th season in January 2013.
Mariah Carey nas sold more than 200 million albums
worldwide, and has achieved more rumber one songs than
any solo artist in history. Her 18 Billboard number
ones — of which she wrote all but one — put her on a par
with the Beatles in US chart success.
"As a singer, songwriter and producer, it's going to
be fun and rewarding to help find new talent and give
something back with American Ideoi,” says Carey.
“I can’t walt to channel my creative energy as part
of this massive global phenomenon.” Creator of the
Idol format and the show's Executive Producer, Simon
Fuller, is equally excited: “For this season, we
have one of the world’s greatest ever female singers
on our show. Mariah defines the term *idol’ and will
inspire every singer who has the honour of performing
in front of her.”
country star Keith Urban ang pop sensation
Nickiﬂﬂh1aj will be sitting on the judges panel with
Mariah Carey. Together they join lifelonq industry
player Randy Jackson, who has been on the American
Tdol panel since its debut series in 2002,

suggESS E American Idol has been the top entertainment

programme among total viewers for nine ceonsecutive

STORY |
1 CONTINUES |
b . f"

seasons. No other entity has ever created as
many hit-making artists and best-selling albums and
singles. The show's alumni have created an astonishing

345 Billboard number ones in its first ten years.
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FREMANTLEMEDIA

Cécile Frot-Coutaz became new CEO of FremantleMedia, taking up her appomntment
n London on 1 July 2012, mowving from her previous position runming
FremantleMedia North Amenca A new amval at the helm of any major business often creates the
opportunity to take stock and assess where the business stands in the competitive landscape
Here she discusses exactly what her new role involves

“Well I've been here 17 years,” Cecile Frot-
Coutaz ponis out, ' so the company 1sn't
new to me, nor the successes and chal-
lenges But for the last 12 years I've been
focusing on the US, therefore I've spent
these Iniyal months In London gairing a
clear understanding of the global picture
of our business " It's a complete different
role, too, moving from the very hands-on
operational iInvolvement of executive pro-
ducing some of the biggest shaws on US
telewision, such as Amencan Idol, and The
X Factor, to a senior corporate position
dealng with company structures and
management *“The US shows are still my
babigs, but now I'm going back to my
business strategy roots,” says the former
management consultant and MBA gradu-
ate of the Insead business school

So, what s the global picture of
FremantleMedia? “It's just that, we are
global - there are very few companies like
ours, which 1§ incredibly excting,” she
explains “We are global in our approach
to production and we're also starting to
use our worldwide presence to further our

development efforts We have seen the
emergence of the format business, and
we are a maor player, with big talent
shows and game shows We have a very
large amount of number one shows
arcund the world, which means we pro-
duce and manage some big brands *

Where 15 the business going? “The chal-
lenge for me ts answenng that question,
and also, where the next big show 1s com-
ing from,” explains Frot-Coutaz, “We're
now at a place where the business has

matured As the bigger shows have been
s0 successful we've had fewer new
launchas But the kinds of shows that
work today are not the same kinds of
shows that were working ten years agoe
The future 15 a combination of canng for
the shows we have, while broadening our
scope by scaling up our Investment n de-
velopment and dwersification Ito some
new genres "

This 1s why the company has created the
new role of Director of Global Entertan-
ment Development which s held by
Rob Clark — in effect a *Head of Pipeling’ -
to prnontise and manage the resources
and investment needed to ensure the
company creates new brands across a
broad range of genres The remit 15 to
develop big, broad entertanment, family
wviewing shows around the world “Drama
1s making a comeback,” says Ceclle Frot-
Coutaz "Histoncally it's been a big part
of our business in certan temtores, and
I'm ambxtious for us to be more prominent
in this, whether through acquisition or
organic growth ” At the same time, the

“The media landscape is fragmenting, and | want
to really focus on what digital means for us, and position
ourselves for the transformation to digital.”
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vanous production companies will con-
tinue to develop tocal content for ther
local markets

Another area to concentrate on is digital
New technologies, new platforms and
new digital audiences open up enormous
cpportunities for a content production
company “The meda landscape 1s frag-
menting, and | want to really focus on
what digital means for us, and position
ourselves for the transformation to digital ®
Frot-Coutaz expands on this point “What
used to be a TV audience Is now very dif-
ferant Many people stil connect with the
shows, but in a different way We need to
look at thus as a whole - the second
screen actvity, social networks, Youtube
channels - all stil very linked to the brand,
and this has to go hand in hand dunng
development "

That’s the logic behind the creation of a
new Digital & Branded Entertanment divi-
sion, a major reorganisation n the compa-
ny's structure “We have buitt formidable
experbise in extending our market-leading
brands both on and beyond the televiston
screen, through licensing, sponsorship,

“It's about telling
stories. It’s
TV. And that’s
what we do.”

digital actvities and other valuable com-
mercial ancidlaries,” says FremantleMedta’s
CED., 'By fransfemng these skilfs into our
local production businesses, we create a
far more direct and seamless integration
between our production efforts and the
cormmercial actvty surrounding our hit
shows "

“The next decade will be qude transforma-
tional for our company,” Cécle Frot-
Coutaz sums up “Technology Is opering
up SO many avenues, It gves us options
and opportunities  But underneath it all,
it’s still about narratve-based wideo enter-
tainment, it's about teling stones it's TV
And that’s what we do "

GRUPO ANTENA 3

THE SHOW
WITH THE
MULTI-FACETED
STARS

In a completely new reality format,
well-known personalities
transform themselves into other
celebrities in Antena 3’'s hit talent
show, Tu cara me suena {Your Face

Sounds Familiar).

Antena 3 broadcast season two from Qctober 2012 up un-
til February 2013 On Monday evenings Tu cara me suena
was the most-watched programme on Spanish TV as well
as the most-talked-about on social networks An average
22 per cent of total viewers tuned in weekly, which repre-
sents an increase of 3 percentage points and 430,000
viewers compared o season one

The unique concept of the show contnbutes highly to its
ratings success Every week, well-known perscnalities
have to iImpersonate other famous celebnties and perform
lve Eight participants — four males and four females, take
up the challenge to become Lady Gaga, Justin Bieber, EI-
ton John or Michael Jackson for one evening A jury of four
as well as the audience rate the performances The week's
winner 1s awarded a €3,000 cash pnze donated to chanty
In October 2012, the show, which 1s now travelling to the
rest of the world, was voted ‘Best Competition Realty For-
mat’ at the C21/Frapa International Formats Awards 2012

Actor and TV presenter,
Arturo Valls
mmpersonates Shakira
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45

INALINOG 1S¥20voud

viisig



THE YEAR {N REVIEW

GROUPE M6

SEAL
THE DEAL

In April 2012

Groupe Mé announced
its deal with UEFA
to secure television
broadcast rights
for the hugely
popular football
tournaments, Euro

2012 and Euro 201&.

4
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SCORING
HIGH

M5 showed ten of the Euro 2012
tournament games held in
Poland and the Ukraine.
The 12.2 million viewers who
tuned in to waich France's
maich againsi Sweden was MG's
second-highest ratings ever. and

the third largest audience of the
year ameng any channsl,

Mé will also show
*11 qames from the 2016
tournament. N& viewers

will be hoping for

a home advantage —

Euro 2016 is to be

held in France.
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RTL HRVATSKA

s H RTL Televizyja re-conquered Croatian
pnme time TV in autumn 201 2, thanks to
G the success of new Turkish drama

senes Sulgymanvelidéanstvern (The Mag-

nificent Century) Ainng the history-
nspired love story, RTL Telewizija edged
ESS past s closest nval Novain

the pnme time viewing figures

Sulgiman achieved a 28 5 per cent audience
share among viewers aged 18 to 49 for iis
very first instalment on 27 August, and con-
tnued to grab wiewers’ imagmations from
then on It was the most-watched pro-
gramma on Croatian TV screens most days,
and peaked with an audience share of 40 per
cent on 16 December, having an average of
31 2 per cent since it first broadcast The
Croatian press has labelled the seres ‘the TV
phenomenon of 2012

In September, RTL Televizja faunched its
next tactical move to stay top of the ratings
with the second season of locally produced
daly prime tme drama senes Ruza Vietrova,
new episodes of daly favountes Galfeo and
Farridy Affars, and the redesigned magazine
format, Exkluziv Tabloid

Halit Ergeng 1s
Suleyman
The Magmificent
Century
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GROUPE M6

Buriding on the storming success of
Laes Ch'hs a thiza and Les Ch'tis

Font du Ski, W9's hit format took the
crazy gang from France’s Nord-Pas-
de-Calais region on its third adventure
in late 2012 = this ime off to the
famous Greek party 1sland, Mykonos
Each of the Ch’tis has their specialist
party-related skifl Among them

are DJs, bartenders, dancers and
warters, all looking for good times in
exotic party capitals of the world

under 50 as 2012 came to a’Close
Les Ch'tis' third season, four new”pe

intngue and unforgettable situations for
viewers to enjoy The show achieved
record ratings, attractng up to a millon
VIEBWETS In access pnme tme on DTT, and
becoming the programme: most watched
by 15 to 24-year-olds, with an average
audience share of 22 per cent

W9 recently introduced a similar format,
anng tts first season in late 2012 Les
Marseillais & Miami takes another group of
party professionals to unfamibiar terntory
and unleashes them — this time from the
South of France to the party capital of
Amenca’s East Coast It's proving to be
similarly popular, with the Marselllais as
hot-blooded, talkatve and styish as the
Miami set What Miarm will make of them
IS anyone's guess, but they're a hit with
W9 viewers, atiracting 16 4 per cent of
the 15 t0 24 year-old audience
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For seven days, the star’s
fans could vote for their
favourite songs and get

a chance to win a complete
set of her albums.

Belgium's Radio Contact loves its music, and helps
its music-loving audience get closer to the
stars that create it Summer 2012 saw the station offer
its enthusiast histeners special in-depth
programnnng on one major star, and a umque
mobile phone package for another

Long-standing gqueen of pop Madonna’'s world
tour rolled into Brussels on 12 July 2012,
so Radio Contact moved i1ts team intc the
Stade Roi Baudouin to take those without
tickets closer to the experience. The night
involved live broadcasts of Madonna's show,
plus three 100 per cent Madonna playl:ist
sets prepared by top DJs to keep the fans
happy well into the night. And it didn’'t
stop there - for the next seven days, the
star’s fans could vote for their favourite
songs and get a chance to win a complete set
of her albums

Earlier, ain June 2012, Radio Contact’s
mobile phone offering, Contact mobile, cre-
ated a unique new package 1in collabora-
tion with internationally renowned house
DJ Bob Sinclar. The ready-to-use, all-in-
one l18-month package included a touch-screen
Samsung Galaxy Y phone, a Contact =zim card
with €5 calling credit, and a free download
of Sinclar‘s latest album Pisco Crash, which
reprises some of his classic hits. A unique
way to get music fans closer to the artists
they love

Madaonna entertaing fans
at Stade Rol Baudouin,
with Radio Contact in attendance
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French hit senes L'Amour est dans le pre aired the final
episode of its seventh senes on M6 on 1 October 2012,
attracting 6 7 million viewers and a total audience
share of 26 9 per cent That’s a new ‘wrap-up’ episode
high for this unique and hugely popular senes

But such an impressive share is no ong-off — the docu-reality
show charting rural folks' search for love and Iife-partners re-
corded 6 4 million viewers on average across the season, mak-
Ing lucky number seven its bast since the senes began n 2006

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

It was the most-watched pregramme on French television for
the third summer In a row

So what makes L'Amour est dans le pré (The Famer Wants A
Wifa) such a phenomenon? M6 Programme Director Biiane
Gadfroid may have the answer “The participants are truly au-
thentic There's no scnpting, and in this ¢ase reality 1s far more
powerful than fiction Also, the people aren't there to get ther
faces on TV - but genuinely to find love, as 37 couples, 12 wed-
dings and 24 babies suggests'’™

it has also been a great success digrally In its seventh season,
with 16 million catch-up videcs watched online across all serv-
wces, and 17 million website views




‘l

FREMANTLEMEDIA

GOING PLAGES
WITH THE KIDS

Having identified a gap 1n the market, FremantleMedia
decided to increase its investment in children’s
programming, and three years ago created a new
Kids & Family Entertainment division Now, with more than
15 titles in production globally, the division 1s one of the
leading independent producers and distnbutors in the sector

"When we started the Kids & Family Entertainment division, our goal
was to join forces with leading broadcasters and producers of kids’
content in order 10 inspire, transform, challenge and stmulate our
young audiences,” explains Sander Schwartz, President, Kids &
Family Entertamment at FremantieMedia

The dmision’s growing portfolo of content spans four key genres
preschool, kids' comedy, acton/adventure and tween/teen It works
with a number of producers, broadcasters, and oy comparues
around the world including Fresh TV, DHX Media, BBC Children's,
Nickelodeon, Cartoon Network, Disney and Mattel

"We have made a good deal of progress in a short time in the sourc-
ing of products and in mantaimng high qualty,” says Cécile Frot-
Coutaz, FremantieMedia CEQ, “and Tree Fu Torn 1s a key brand ™
Tree Fu Tom, a co-production with the BBC, is one of the division’s
biggest successes to date The entertaining show bnngs pre-school
children into nts stones with interactive physical actwty, and was
CBeebles’ wghest rated programme of 2012 for children aged four to
six {by highest occurrence, excluding special events) Senes two has
already been commissioned FremantleMedia has to date sold the
show to more than 50 terntories globally, and launched a major
Icensing and merchandise campaign in the UK, the brand's invtial
termtory There's a master toy deal with Giochr Prezios), with a rangé
of Tree Fu Tom toys launching from spring 2013, and further product
development with over 20 licensing partners already signed, includ-
ing puthshing, apparel, stationery, accessones, textiles, furniture and
more The DVD was also a top seller in the UK in 2012 Now the Kids
& Family Entertanment diwvision has signed a fong-term deal with
BBC Children’s to co-davelop and co-produce a sequence of new
shows for children of all ages over the next five years

David Ellender, CEQ ¢t FremantleMedia International and Kids, add-
ed “The deal with BBC Children’s 1s a tandmark in our kids' strategy
and a real game changer in that it's a first for BBC Children's and a
fantastic opportunity to create inspinng and innovative programming
for the UK and international broadcasters ™ Another BBC collabora-
tion, Wizards vs Alens, created by acclamed Doctor Who producer
and writer Russell T Dawvies and Doctor Who wniter Phil Ford, was al-
50 a stand-out success as CBBC's number two new show of 2012
for chidren six to twelve The show has been sold to over 50 ternto-
nes to date and debuts in the US in the summer

The energetic
acorn sprita, Twigs,
from Tree Fu Tom

MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

BOOST

ENGE
AUDE VOX

7’

A strong selection of senes for daytime
viewers has seen Vox's audience

figures nse steadily in 2012 This has
contnbuted significantly to Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland establishing a six
percentage point lead over its closest
nvals, with & 33 7 per cent share of

the 14 to 49-year-old viewing demographic

An inection of dogutanment’ formats has
been ntroduced ta keep things fresh and en-
ticing throughout daytime on Vox — among
them Shoppmng Queen and Verklag mich doch!
The series formats wera especially popular,
with daytime favounte Verklag mich doch
attracting 1 01 million viewers aged over three
yaars on 5 QOctober Shopping Queen and
Mieten, Kaufen, Wohnen were also consistent-
ly strong performers

In 2012, Vox's daytme ratings increased to
7 3 per cent in the main target group of 14 to
49-year-olds, from 4 4 per centin 2011 Pro-
gramme audience shares for 2012 In this

group were as follows

» 4 Hochzeiten und emne Traumresse
up to 10 5 per cent

» Shopping Queen up to 12 0 per cent

*» Hilf mur doch up to 13 2 per cent

» Verklag mich doch® up to 16 1 per cent
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In August 2012, Super RTL unveiled its plans to
continue its 15-year leadership of the children’s TV
sector in Germany Once agam, it's all about
foresight, and keeping things fresh and exciting

The flagship of Super RTLs plans for the 2012 season was
undoubtedly US senes Once Upon A Time, with its classic
fary-tale storyteling approach to tackling modern-day 1ssues
A huge hit with adults and children in the US, the modern
fabie farmat is perfectly suited to Super RTL's audience

While Super RTL may entertain children and ther parents, the
channel will not entertain complacency, and embarked on its

The cast of Once
Lpen A Tima,
the hit US series
with a fairy

story approach
to tackling
moderm issues

biggest marketing campaign yet to support the launch of
Once Upon A Time The cross-media campaign included
billbocards and cinema screen adverts But perhaps the most
nspinng stunt invoived three fary-tale characters - Prince
Charming, Snow White and the evil Queen — wisiting central
train stations in several big German cities and handing out red
apples with the senes logo lasered onto them

Once Upon A Time first ared on 12 Septermber 2012 at
2015 And |ust like fary tales, we have a happy ending, as
the show was popular with children, but aiso achieved an
average of 4 1 per cent of the commercial target group of 14
to 49-year-olds
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MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

REPORTING ON THE BATTLE
FOR THE WHITE HOUSE

News channels

N-TV and

CNN International,
and German daily
newspaper Die Welt
teamed up in

2012 to once again
offer German viewers
comprehensive
cross-media
coverage of the
world’s biggest
pelitical event —
the US election.

RTL GROUP

Ag 1 2008. the channels pooled :hew US electior
experlise to report o Obama and Romney's
campaigrs throughout an exciting and intviguing
run-up 1o the decding day. 6 November 2012.
While CNN guaranteed unrvalled and diect
access to US politics, N-TV and Garman dany
Die Weit analysed and reported on even:is’
mplcations i a German and wider European
context. With such as {ast-paced and cortinu-
ously changing news sicry, N-TV was deally
placed to process and nrepars the latest inior-
malon ior hroadcast. To complement N-TV's
coverage. a jont US election tlog was launched
i August. where experts rom Dig Weft, CNN
anc N-TV furtrer analyzed ard tried to predict
the November outcome.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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The team of experis compnised N-TVY prezenter
and esconomic policy expert Isahelle Korrer,
CNN Internaticnal’s Genmany  corresponcient
Fredenck Pleitgen. and head ¢ Dre Weit's nter-
national gesk. Clemans Wergm,

On election day, Bertelsmann's epresentative
oifice. Unier den Linden 1 in Berlin, became the
German-Aimerican election headguarters, ofier-
ing in-clepth coverage of evenis unfolding
across tne LS. wath Iive ieeds from swing states
and wey batlegrounds, plus n-depth nterviews
with high-profile gues:s and exper:s from poli-
ucs, business and society. This jont production
was hosted by Chestoph Teuner iom N-TV and
Peter Kloeppel of RTL Telev:sion.




RTL NEDERLAND

In September 2012, RTL Nederland
announced the creation of itsa

fourth business unit, after Television,

Digital, and Ventures: Live
Entertainment. The new unit as led
by René Smit {(right), who reports to
Matthias Scholten (left),

RTL Nederland‘’s Content Director.

At RTL Nederland a TV brand's life span can
start before the show 15 broadcast, and con-
tinues after the season ts over “We call that
the total experience,” says Rene Smit “We
constantly try to explare our formats in depth
and enrich them, making sure consumers get
an all-round experence "

With 1its family of channels and s strong
krands, RTL Nederland reaches many target
groups, and develops music, theatre and oth-
er Iive events for them These can be small
seminars for RTL £, nght up to much bigger
shows such as The Voice Of Holland con-
certs, the Al You Need Is Love concerts,
GTST Iive and Sunday Sessions

The dea behind this new urut was to group
all of RTL Nederlang's kve entertanment
actmties under one roof Matthias Schalten
comments “Live entertanment actvites are
becoming more and maore 1mportant for
RTL Nsderland and the market 1s moving
fast Consumers are spending less, so you
need to have a strong offer in order to attract
them We are well positioned to renvigorate
the market thanks to our combination of
appealing brands, major talents and market-
ing force ™

The possibilities offered to advertisers by the
Live Entertanment unit are endless Via the
unit's five concepts, advertisers get talor-
made services and a unigue display platform
for thewr products, bnnging them closer to
consumers than ever

* RTL LETZEBUERG

" ONLY
“THEVOICE
MATTERS

Organised by RTL Tele Létzebuerg and Eldoradio,
instant success The One I1s a talent show with

a difference Unlike other talent show formats, the
audience never saw any of the performers or knew
anything about them And netther did the judges

at first - all participants were chosen from audition
and took part in the show's preliminary rounds under
pseudonyms, and based solely on their voices

As Steve Schmit, Pregramme Drrector at RTL Letzebuerg,
explains, this fresh appreach to the talent show concept
camiines the strengths of the three key media — telewision,
radio and the internet “We felt that playing on the anonym-
ity of the singers would help create buzz around the radio
and the internet The whole of Luxembourg will be asking
themselves who 15 behind the voices ™ The show also had
its own smartphone app, so fans could download and lis-
ten to the contestants' performances, and vote for them by
SMS

And of course, as the anonymous candidates progressed,
the TV show aspect of the competiion merely increased
the ntngue  Only when the finalists parformed therr second
song in the grand finale, could audences see what they
looked ke

Eight singers sang therr way 1o the final round, which took
place at Luxembourg’s biggest concert venue, the Rock-
hal, in June 2012, where therr faces were finally revealed
Ive on RTL Tele Letzebuerg The only male in tha final
eight, Armand Thies, an employee of Luxembourg's nation-
al ratway, CFL, won the competition under his pseudonym
Willy Stone, with 18 37 per cent of the public's votes

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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DREAM TEAM

Taking a seat, the presenters of
Belgium’s Got Talent, Jean-
Michel Zecca and Jule Taton,
flanked by jury members
Maureen Dor, Carlos Vaguera,
and Paul Ambach

RTL BELGIUM
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“With Belgium’ s Got Talent
RTL Belgium is followmg
the market’s natural evolutmn
and contmumg with the .-
progressive entertamment
policy that makes RTL-TVI's
a hit with viewers.”

PHILIPPE DELUSINNE,
CEQ QOF RTL BELGIUM
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1055 -—
SPREERADIO -

smartphone
listeners

can send n
ngws photos
and wdeo

RTL GROUP — NEW APPS FOR 2012

RTL INSIDE
offers exclusve
Ive pregramme

nformation

104.6 ATL

listeners can
get alf sorts of
agditignak
X fun on ther app

RTL NIEUWS 365

The regulary upgdated
and interactve

digital newspaper from
ATL Nieuws 365
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The advent of smartphones and tablets has changed many things iniife And for TV fans and TV companies - the
consumers and the prowiders of TV content - these devices simply bnng them even closer together Apps
provide TV viewers with live streamed entertainment, news and information, and interactive additions to their favounte
shows Shows they can now view anywhere. Here are some of the latest launches from around RTL Group

RTL INSIDE

A free app for I-OS and Android smartphones and tablets,
transforming the dewices into handy 'second screens’ for in-
teraction wath RTL Telewision programmes RTL Inside features
exclusive live information about the programme running on TV,
video clips, and bullt-in interactwvty with several social net-
warks RTL Inside 1s also an attractive option for advertisers
looking to extend their reach across all platforms

N-TV

In 2012, the N-TV app family welcomed a new member,
the news app for Android tablets Across all platforms, com-
pnsing N-TV apps as well as 1ts mobie pages, N-TV reached a
monthly average of 195 9 millon page iImprassions in the year,
an increase of 63 5 per cent ¢n 2011 The highest month was
in October, with 220 million page impressions and 3 2 mobile
video views

105 5 SPREERADIO

A new app that puis smartphone ksteners at the heart of
Ive broadcasting, allowing them to send in news items,
traffic information, celebnty-spotting, and shared photos and
videos And as ever, they can hsten to ‘the best songs of
all tme, anytime and anywhere’ on ive broadcast, or choose
ther favountes from the app's 1970s, 80s or classic hits
playhsts — around the clock and urinterrupted

104.6 RTL

The new 104 6 RTL app showcases the unique ‘RTL Comedy
Alarm’, which wakes fsteners to station favountes such
as Amo und die Morgencrew, Der Klene Nis (Little Nis),
Burhahn, and Angie Merke! The app also features pictures of
the shows, and prowdes users with additional matenal on all
concerts and events organised by 104 6 RTL Listeners can
also delve into backstage insights on the 104 6 RTL photo
wall, and have access to backstage interviews of the concert
senes Stars for free

¥
M6 FOR I-PAD
With almost 1,100,000 downloads up to December 2012, this
free app was the most popular across all categones It offers
24/7 Iive streaming of the channel, plus catch-up service M6
Replay featunng the ‘Devant ma TV' second screen option,
and borus videos Its success follows the I-Phone and |-Pod
Touch versions, which have already passed the three million
downloads mark

RTL NIEUWS 365
Launched in January 2012, the RTL Nieuws |-Pad app gives
Dutch users comprehensive access to RTL Nreuws, RTL Sport
and RTL Boufevard This interactive ‘digital newspaper” is con-
tinuously updated and offers regular features across its many
sections

WIE IS TIM?

The Wie 1s Tim? (Who Is Tim?) app helped fans of the daily
scap Goede Tiden, Slechta Tiden bridge the summer break
App users were challenged to discover the true identity of a
new character caled Tim, with the help of notes, wideos,
games and hidden content The app was downloaded
120,000 tmes n 1its first week and became the number one
free app in the Dutch App Store To date it has been down-
loaded more than 280,000 tmes

i
RTL-TVI, CLUB RTL AND PLUG RTL
FOR THE TABLET USER

Second screen apps for the growing number of people watch-
ing TV while surfing the net, inking channel content, online
searches and social networks more easlly Launched initially
for I-Pad with 80,000 downloads in 2012, these are now also
avallable with new features for smariphone users, broadening
the three channels’ reach even further RTL Belgium was the
first in Belgium to offer its viewers the chance to comment and
chat on social media on all of s shows, rather than just
special event programmes

ANTENA 3'S LIVE XBOX APP
Access {0 Antena 3's extensive catalogue of programmes
as Iive broadcasts or on-demand - either free, or through
additional subscnption options — plus extra functionalty and
intuitive navigation wa the ‘Yanect for Xbox 360" feature Users
can also connect with therr Facebook friends to share which
episodes they are watching or have watched

OTHER DIGITAL SERVICES
M6 REPLAY LEADS
THE FRENCH CATCH-UP TV MARKET

With 180,400 daily users, M6 Replay has a 24 per cent mar-
ket share among catch-up TV users on IPTV - amounting to
741,300 users in all - and a 23 4 per cent share of the total
number of wdecs watched In fact, M6 Replay has an average
209 per cent market share of total daly audience and the
longest viewing times per viewer ameng traditional channels'
services an average of 76 minutes a day

Since the beginning of 2012, Groupe M6 video offerings have
generated more thar 800 milllon video views across all screens
- 65 per cent of them on TV, mobile and tablets

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

Convergence has been a mantra in the technology world
for many years now What it meant, in reality, was
that one day we nught video-chat on a new device like a
tablet, watch TV on our computers and shop on our
phones Might it be that we will be watching TV content
on, well, our TV sets?

- - M
£Yes, ‘j:i 'ﬁg ?Z .”*,says Marc Schroder, . Since 2010, Medengruppe RTL Deutsch-
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“The rext step,” says Marc Schroder,
“was 1o look at what adjacent content we
could brnng to HbbTV, and we launched
Kochbar, especially for those who view
I TV in ther katchen ” Vox ars many shows
based on cooking, and Kochbar 1s a com-
i munity and website with over 380,000
recipes, and synchron:sed with Vox, pro-
. VldBS‘thB» recipes used on the TV shows
v_ - But says Marc Schroder, “the real “killer
JE R hpp for the tug scrgen 1§ obviously video
AT %g;uent‘ Bnng:l‘ngiou_g\po@temt' back to'the

ERNSA SR ¥ ad‘d;tjomal‘reaqg and,

viewing tme that PC offers, but stil in
broadcast quality ” Since Decermber 2012,
the on-demand services RTL Now, Vox
Now and Super RTL Now have been part
of the HD Plus Replay offer run by satelite
operator SES, so wiewers c¢an catch up
with programmes they missed “We want
to reach viewers everywhere, at all imes,”
says Marc Schroder “Audiences are al-
ready using our on-demand senvices on
computers, smariphones and tablets
Now we are: bnmglng them back to the TV
' screen in TV gua]lty Ancther product 1s

Chpfish Music, gving wiewers access to
50,000 onginal music videos on Ciipfish de,
but through a TV screen, so viewers ¢can
create ther own TV music programme —
good news since MTV 15 avalable only on
a pay basis in Germany since 2011

As for the future? “Look at the numbers,”
says Marc Schrbder (see bubble) "H's a
it ike HD TV, people had the devices be-
fore the service became widespread This
I1s much the same And RTLs:prepared to
be the Leason people’ s,bouldi use herr

;connectelewa TN } y,, w

#"'n
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GROUPE M6

i
CAUCHEMAR EN
CUISINE

¢ REVEA SLAREPLAY

Viewers with W9
and M6 second scraen
apps can
choose their device
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In the dightal era, watching television is no longer
solely about sitting watching a TV set Today, viewers
can become more deeply engaged with TV pro-
grammes, using the intemet and soctal networks.
As digital forerunners in France, M6 Web 15 part

of this evelution, and has developed many tools
aimed at enhancing viewer’s televisual expenence

At the end of 2012, M6 Web made social TV a reality with
‘Devant ma TV, a second-screen senace that's become
part of s catch-up TV platform Managing Director of M6
Web, Vatery Gerfaud, explans "Multitasking while watch-
ng TV s undoubtedly on the nse, so we can erther just let
it happen, or take a more proactive approach For exam-
ple, we provide wewers with exclusive additonal informa-
tion, and develop interactive features such as surveys or
voting That's ‘Devant ma TV' in a nutshell ennching the
programme with a new content dimension * Christian
Bombrun, Deputy Managing Director of M6 Web, adds
“Lisers like the interactive tools and social functions They
can watch a show on TV and follow the social events
linked to it on a mobile, comment on the programmes in
real-tima, chat with frnends on Facebook or Twitter and
share content and recommend programmes ™

The next step, eagerly awaited by television professionals,
1s for the second screen to nfluence the main screen
According to Gerfaud “This has a lot of potential, and could
also generate revenue Nevertheless, we can only create
new advertising opportunities by pamanly offenng qualty
content to our viewers " ‘Devant ma TV also enhances mo-
ity With ther media synced, viewers can start watching a
programme on TV, pausea and pick ot up later on thetr smart-
phone from exactly the moment they stopped watching,
and finish watching 1t even later on their tablet

M6 Web ennches TV i other ways, too Each show 1s
availlable on catch-up and has its own website, and most
have a Facebook page as well Over six milion people
have liked’ one of Groupe M6’s Facebook pages ‘Some
shows have more fans than the channel tself — Scénes de
Menages has two milkon Facebook fans compared to the
channel's one million,” says Bombrun “There are several
soclal interactions with shows - viewers can become a fan
on Facebook, follow its presenters on Twitter, or comment
on the show live on Twitter Talent and reakty shows are
the most active on Twitter, whereas Facebock 1s more
poputar with shows where viewers’ attachment 15 very
strang and long term, such as Scénes de Menages ™
Soon, ennched advertising will make its debut on the plat-
form According to Gerfaud “We can synchronise an in-
teractive advent on the second screen exactly with what's
happening on the main screen ™ Bombrun adds “With this
option, adverts become interactve in all modes of view-
ing " Groupe M6 launched the first complete online wdeo
package in France in October 2009, with some content
free and some paid for In 2012 along, free content from

MB Replay and W2 Replay, along with backstage
wvideos (M6 Bonus) and news from MSN Actu, represented
over 600 rmillon wideos streamed “These are our anti-
piracy tools,” says Gerfaud *When Megaupload was shut
down, views on our Replay service increased,” adds Born-
brun According to Mediamétne, the number of online wid-
eo viewers grew by 17 2 per cent from July 2011 to July
2012 In addition, 76 per cent of internat users in France
watched wideo content when onling - a figure thal's con-
stantly Increasing M6 Web doesn't see any danger for Iive
TV however Gerfaud explains “The time spent on Replay
15 only about 3 or 4 per cent ¢f that spent watching ME,
but we know this will grow 1n the future We will avoid can-
rubahsation if we continue to value non-hingar consumption
as much as linear, botn for wewers and advertisers "

M6 second screen app users
can post ther views and comments,
and respond to athers

“We can synchronise
an interactive
advert on the second
screen exactly with
what’s happening
on the main screen.”

VALERY GERFAUD,
MANAGING DIRECTOR OF M6 WEB
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

In a pre-digital world, FremantleMedia tumed creative ideas into successful shows that reached viewers on
Just one screen - the telewiston In today's digital landscape, the company transforms its content
into outstanding and inspinng entertainment brands, both on and beyond the TV screen, touching many
different audiences across a multitude of media platforms FremantleMedia 1s capitalising on
the new digital world in many ways, and cumrently focuses its digital activity into three key strands

EXTEND
Extending successful programme
brands cnline

An online presence can create many new opportunities for a
successful TV show In the UK, both The X Factor and Got Tafent
Youtuba channels have chatked up well over a billion hits, making
them global rather than national sensations At the same tme
they create new revenue strearms — clips of the UK X Factor
viewed In Germany are monetised, for Instance Nowadays, there
15 a distinct change in approach — developing soctal media
strategies and planning digital extensions are actually part and
parcel of the nital TV format Initially the company was looking to
monetse shows on onling platforms, whereas now, ncreasingly,
digital platforms are becoming a way to acquire new audiences
Family Feud, the long-running American game show, 1s a good
example In 2010, with a new host, an entertaming comedian,
clips posted on Youtube often weni wral, recruiting an entirely
new, young male auctence In parallel, the company launched a
game verston of the show on Facebook and |-Pad (and now on
the Android platform) As well as being profitable and successiul
ventures in therr own night, the games have increased TV ratings
among the show's heartland, older, female audience - in effect
making money while attracting and retaining audiences

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPOAT 2012

DISTRIBUTE
Applying the company’s distnibution skills
in a multi-platform world

FremantieMedia’s Enterprises arm 1s a well-posiioned and net-
worked global distrizutor, and makes a strong partner for new
meda content producers looking to distrbute across onfne,
mobile and inear platforms FremantleMedia Enterpnses now has
the international distribution nghts for Hulu, the US online wdeo
service, which ts now producing its own onginal content Similar-
ly, new studios launching expressly as multi-platform producers,
such as Vuguru, are looking to FremantleMedia Enterprises’
distnbution expertise This 1s the expansion of the distnbution
busingss into a mutt-platform world Good examples are the
company's long cantent becoming avallable on I-Tunes and Love
Film and, as a founding partner, FremantleMedia Enterpnses
putting over 100 hours of content into Netflix UK

Global
populanty:
The Youtube
channel for
The X Factor
n the UK

has generated
more than
one billlon
video views




CREATE
Creating enginal contentsmihiatives
for new platforms

The third leg of FremantleMedia’s new media actiwty s ta create
new content distrbuted exclusively through online platforms such
as Youtube This differs from the extension of TV formats to
Youtube, in that the company 15 generating completely onginal
content for an entirely online audience This creates more oppor-
tunities for consumers to benefit from programming delivered
over the internet FremantleMedia's content creators can adapt
therr skills to different platforms, but also develop ther knowledge
and expertise in cther areas such as marketing, as there 1s no
broadcaster 'The Pet Collective’, launched in May 2012, was the
company’s first ever Youtube-only channel It started with over
seven different anginal shart-form senes offenng more than 20
hours of tips, stones and entertainment revolving around pets
FremantleMedia company Radical Media then launched "THNKR'
on Youtube 1 July, joined In Novermnber by two onginal content
channels from FremantteMedia's German subsidiary UFA ‘eNtR
Berlin' (urban lifestyls} and ‘Trigger” {cnme}

RTL GROUP
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Berhin - Tag & Nacht has enjoyed

a fantastic flounsh following its

slow start in late 2011 It has also
given its avid viewers a successful
side-senes, and led by example when
it comes to getting the best results
from using social media Over

2 5 miflion Facebook fans says it all

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand's hit show
ont RTL Il follows an extraordinary group of
people shanng a flat in Berin — the city
they really love Cross-media success

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPDRT 2012

aside, the show soon picked up pace after
a few weeks and took its average market
share from 4 6 per cent In September
2011 to 9 t per cent among viewers aged
14 to 48 dunng December 2011

But perhaps the main reason for its fast-
growing share cf viewers ever since (s 1ts
clever links with other media ~ in particular
social networking website Facebook, plus
catch-up TV and 1ts own online presence
This forward-thinking strategy has even
extended to integrating the show's Face-
book actmity with the plot of the show

Beriin — Yag & Nachts
Facebook page
1S an ntegral part of
the show and key
to fans’ interaction

ared on RTL I} Bertin — Tag & Nacht char-
acters post comments on Facebook, and
upioad photos and wvideos as part of the
tast-paced storyling In fact in November,
the flatmates tune 1n to RTL #'s transmis-
sion of the hit fim Dwrty Dancing for therr
own dance paty, and viewers can [oin
the action wa live stream on Biid de and
RTL2 de, in another example of cross-
media entertainment

Jochen Starke, CEO RTL Il, says, “The
show's raiings maxe it clear that our
onfine actwvities are the perfect loyalty tool,




especialy among younger wviewers
Fans can use Facebook and the RTL Il
Mediathek to get more information and
share ther thoughts about the latest
events n the senes Berln — Tag &
Nacht's anline community 1s cructal 1o
the show's success — and it’s still grow-
ng * In Decermber 2012 the format was
attracting an average market share of
13 2 per cent of the 14 to 49-year-old
audience group, and an impressive 24 8
per cent of 14 to 29-year-olds

This success has In many ways allowed
the freedom to create Koln 50667, a
spin-off that began arng on RTL Il in
January 2013 Berfn - Tag & Nacht
character Melke Weber leaves Berlin for
Cologne and falls for bar owner Alex
Kowalski, causing a str among his
fnends and family Simifar cross-media
promotion earned Koin 50667 300,000
Facebock fans before the show even
premiered

O@!’a;

“Berlin - Tag &
Nacht’s online
community is crucial
to the show's
success — and it’s
still growing.”

JOCHEN STARKE, CED OF RTL U

2 Fans of Berfin ~ Tag & Nacht
' can use the show’s
T app to chat with other fans
A on the show’s

cormmentary page

RTL NEDERLAND

RECIPE
FOR SUCCESS:
ADD

t] videostrip

In October 2012, RTL Nederland acquired Videostnp, the country’s
iggest online video advertising network, thus strengthening the
company's position in the digital advertising market

“The clever thing about Videostnp,” says Arng Otto, RTL Nederland's
Managing Director of Digital, “i1s that it's not smply a video ad sales net-
work, but also a syndication network " Videostnip 1s behind the large-
scale distnbution of wdeo content to many sites, partners and platforms,
also controfing the advertising on the syndicated network ‘This creates
reach, which agawn strengthens our posstion in the advertising market,”
says Otto, “and we controf ad sales in our own content, rather than deal-
ing with third parties "

Syndication 1s used mainly for short-farm content, and this s where
Videostnp's technology allows RTL Nederland to distnbute its content
through many other publishers, while maintairing ad sales “We are try-
ing to put technelogy much more at the heart of the business,” explans
Arno Ctto, “In a wision of digital transformation it’s Iike the yin and yang
the technology complements the creatve In this way, Videostnp stays at
the forefront of new developments ” One of these developments 15 how
the automated real-time bidding used In cnline advertising might work 1n
video content

The long-form content i1s still presented on RTL platforms, but agan,
controling ad sales 15 fundamental to holding on to revenue share The
difference being, that whie the TV business has two major competitors,
in the digital world there are at least 30 competitors “Videostnp adds the
expenence and technological know-how to davelop these areas Wa get
Videostnp's ad share next to ours, we get full service and bnng 1n reve-
nue from day ong Last but not least we control ad sales on our own
content,” says Arno Otto, “allin all, Videostnp is a nice catch for RTL *
“In addition to advertising, the next challenge and trend 1s monetising
paid-for content,” says Arno Otto, “pecple will pay for pre-view ad-free
content - for example, paying €1 30 to see the next episode of the
popular soap Good Times - Bad Times befare it ars — so this 18 an
additional revenue model we're workingon "

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPOAT 2012
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RED CARPET

GOUDEN TELEVIZIER-RING

THE VOICE
OF HOLLAND

Dutch viewers awarded RTL 4's

The Volce OF Holland the '2012 Gouden
Televizier-Ring' for Best TV Programma.
Pictured from left to right: Erland
Galjaard. Director of Pragrameing at

RTL Nederland with the show's presentars
Wendy van Dijk. Martiin Krabbé and
Winston Gerschianowitz
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MOST INFLUENTIAL PERSONAUITY

| DIRK GERKENS

Hunganan communication
magazine Marketing & Media
elected the CEQ of RTL Klub

maost influential person in
the Hungarian meda ndustry
out of 50 personaktos

DEUTSCHER FERNSEHPREIS

DENNIS LIS
COVER MY SON

Vox music docurnentary, Cover My Song, presented by rapper
Dennis Ligk aka Denyo (nght) won “‘Best Documentary/Docutainment’
at the 2012 *German Television Awands’ Astnd Quentell (jeft),
Managmng Director of Sony Picturea Film and TV Production and Vox
aditor-in-chief Kai Sturm (centre) were honoured alongside Lisk

74  RTL GRODP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

LOUISE WEISS PRIZE AND PRIX VARENNE

GWENDOLINE DEBONO

ATL Radic's Gwendoline Debono (24)
was awarded the ‘Lowise Waiss Pnze

{or European Journallsm' in the

*Young Talent' category for her report
Greek Cnses, The Extrerne Right Ambush
She also won the ‘Pnx Varenne'

for her coverage of the war in Syria.

DEUTSCHER RADIOPREIS

ARNO MOLLER

Amo Muller {pictured with actor
Ginther Mana Halmer at his nght),
104 & ATL. Program Director and
anchomman, was awearded g
‘Lifetime Achievement for
Prasenting” award at the German
Radw Awards n Hamburg

RTL GROUP STARS
ONCE AGAIN GRACED
RED CARPETS TO RECEIVE
PRESTIGIOUS AWARDS.
HERE ARE SOME
OF THE PROUDEST
MOMENTS OF 2012.

JULIANE BARTEL MEDIA AWARD

JENKE VON

WILMSDORFF

The reporter for Extra - Das RTL-Magazin

was prasanted with the ‘Juliana Bartel Madia Award”

He was honoured for tes weskdy series

Das Jenke-Expenment; Jenke als effeinernehende Mutter
{The Jenke Experiment Jenke As A Single Mother)




DEUTSCHER FERNSEHPREIS

STERN TV

The ry at the German Television
Awards voted RTL Television's
weekly magazme show Stern TV
‘Best Information Programme’ Host
Steffan Hallaschka was
accompaniad by wife Anne-Kathnn
Gottschiing to accept the pnze

amm e

MEDIA COMPANY OF THE YEAR

RTL NEDERLAND

RTL Nedertanct won the ‘Media
Company of the Year" award

at the Broadcast Business Event
CEQ Bert Habaets {left) accepted
the pnze from Hilversum mayor,

Preter Brosrtjes (rdght)

RED CARPEY

WIRTSCHAFTSWOCHE “HALL OF FAME

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

In March 2012, RTL Group's Co-CEQ was

inducted Into Wirtschaftswoche's 'Hall of Fame’

in Berlin Former Young & Rubicam boas.

Ingo Krauss (left) was honoured alongside
Schitferkordt Both received the award from Roland
Tichy {nght) editor-m-ctuef Wirtschaftswoche

HILDEGARD VON BINGEN AWARD

ANTONIA RADOS

Antonia Rados, Mediengruppe

HTL Dautschiand’s chief forengn comespondent
since 2009, recaved the prestigious
'Hildegard von Bingen Award’ for her reporting
from war-tormn and cnsis araas

KRESS' PRODUCER RANKING

GRUNDY LIGHT
ENTERTAINMENT

Grundy Light Entertanment,
headed by Ute Brernat, topped
media Induatry magazine Krass'
producer ranking as the most
successful programme supplier
to German televison, for

the sixth consecutive year

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Marelle Hoppner Wolfram Kons,

Nazan Eckes and Raul Richter

were on hand to help raise

| arecord €8 8 miflion at the 2012
RTL Spendenmarathon

RTL Klub’s news anchor,
Anténia Erds (centre),
organised events for her
diabetes foundation Egy
Csepp Figyelem (Ore Drop Of
Notice) to raise
awareness in Hungary

At RTL Group we don't just talk about making a difference,
we put our words into action. We believe making a real difference, by giving back
together, helps make the world a better place for everyone.
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Actress and director Zabou Breiman chats to the
Nyangatom Ethiopian tribes peaple m documentary Rendez-vous en
commission at the FNRS, Terre Incannue, broadcast on RTL-TVH
thanks everyone for raising a record
€8 4 mi1llion at Té&lévie 2012

Araéne Burny, Chairman of the Télévie

TS —

104 6 RTL Berlin's Gerlinde Janicke (nght) and
Thomas Koschwitz (2nd from night) helped
listeners collect €90,000 and warm clothes for
Berlin's homeless

RTL Radio France
employees took
part in the annual
La Parisienne
women-only charity
run in Paris
with the aim of
raising money for
cancer charities

Chanty Cé& Ke Du Bonheur gets help from M6 s Valéne Damidot
and her DECQ tean refurbishing a children’s hosprtal

staff at RTL Group headguarters had the chance
to try out the environmentally friendly Renault Twizy
during RTL Group's 5th environMINDday
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In Luxembourg, the Teléwie Dream Team' organised
a football match to raise money for Teléwe 2012

Spain’s Antena 3 Una gota una vida (A Drop, A Life)
foundation raised over €£185,000 to provide clean water
to children in Senegal

Low-emlss10n scooters
ready for testing by
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland
employees on environMINDday.

T — Claude Schrut {I’Ighﬂ hands over the €12,000
Singer Joey Kelly {left) cetebrates rassing raised dunng Super RTL's 5th Togge Kinder

helfen Kindern campaign, for German
€120,000, and brealung 2 Guinness world record,
with Spendenmarathon host Wolfram Kons food chanty Bundesverband Deutsche Tafel

Télévie 2012 raised a record amount for Celebrity Wir helfen Kindern mentor, comedian Mano Barth,
seientific research 1n Belgium and Luxembourg entertains kids at tha RTL Children’s House n Berlin

T ————
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

GORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY
COUNCIL
AT RTL GROUP,
WE CARE

MESSAGE FROM
ROMAIN MANNELLI

Chairman of the

RTL Group Corporate Responsibility Council {CRC)

In recent years, consurmers, the media,
governments and NGOs have all raised
the expectation for companies to act
as better corporate citizens, cailng
on them to be mare socially and enw-
ronmentally responsible, and practise
greater transparency In lght of this,
we launched our CRC in March 2012
with the aim of advancing environmen-
tal, social and governance matters at
RTL Group Among many other things,
it's the Job of the Council to monitor
and coordinate our efforts, and foster a
common understanding of corporate
responsibility, and of course ensure we
comply with ali reguiations

Embracing corporate  respensibility
stands 1n contrast to the widsely articu-
lated view that TV has a negatwve impact
on society As both an opinion former and
information provider, we are aware of the
special relationship between the media
business and society That's why we are
committed to providing our audiences

with high quality content, accessible to
everyone We also acknowledge that, as
one of Europe's foremast media organi-
sations, RTl. Group 15 1n an excellent
position 1o help raise manay tor chanty,
promote good causes and heghten
awareness of important issues around
the world And although BTL Group s
not a major polluter, we are aware of our
energy consumption and take steps to
mirimise our environmental impack

The Ceounct compnses eight repre-
sentatives from RTL Group's Corporate
Centre, with expertise In the different
areas the CRC deals with - such as
ernwvironmental  protection, ethics and
compliance, dwversty and corporate
governance, and ther imphcatons on
human resources, Investor relations and
communications

We have so many great intiatives at dif-
ferent levels in the Group, and at vanous
locations Therefore our focus in 2013 will
be to bnng all these actmvities together
and provide a clear vew of where we
stand with regards to corporate responsi-
bility The idea 1s also to create a platform
for exchanging knowledge and sharing
best practice throughout the Group's de-
centrahsed operations, rather than dictate
from the Corporate Centre This way we
can faciitate co-operation between our
profit centres and ensure the long-term
development of corporate responsibilty
initiatives throughout the whole Group

“We launched our CRC in March 2012 with the aim of advancing
environmental, social and governance matters at RTL Group.”

ROMAIN MANNELLE,

GCHAIRMAN, RTL GROUP CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY COUNCIL
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CARING FOR THE
CHILDREN OF THE WORLD

Every day, approximately 19,000 children
around the world die from preventable
dissases through lack of vaccinations,
mosquite nets or clean water We be-
leve this figure should be zero That's
why RTL 4’s RTL Boufevard hosted an
action week for the Unicef campagn
‘We Gaan Voor Null' (Befieve In Zero)
Special reports revealed child mortality,
how Unicef 1s fighting it, and the difficul-
ties they face Presenter Albert Verlinde
travelled to zn emergency aid warehouse
in Denmark with Uricef ambassador
Manique van de Ven, while the channel
showed spectal broadcasts on Life 4
You and Koffietyd, and launched an
appeal where each SMS received paid
for five child measles vaccinations

Chidren were also at the heart of
Super RTLs fitth annual ‘Toggo Kinder
helfen Kindern' campagn  Germany's
most watched kids and family channel
encouraged youngsters to donate toys
to the underprvieged at Chnstmas
Over 10,000 parcels were receved,
sorted and redistnbuted to needy Ger-
man famites through Bundesverband
Deutsche Tafel, the food bank chanty,
who also recewed a donation of
€12,000, after Super RTL pledged one
euro for every toy parcel collected
Super RTL Managing Owector Claude
Schmit, who presented the cheque at
the Medeengruppe RTL Deutschland
headquarters, commented “We are
delighted with the high number of par-
tcipants, as 1t enables us to bring joy
to many children agan this year”

SIDACTION

Trus year Groupe M6 agamn helped S
daction in ther fight against Ads For a
wask In March 2012 they opened the
arwaves 1o Sidaction’s awareness cam-
paign, helping raise funds through both
TV spots and muttimedia platforms Wg
helped out toc, broadcasting an edition
of the home improvement programme
D&CO featunng the *Amis du bus des
femmes’, a sex-workers support asso-
ctation backed by Sidaction, and others

COMMIT AWARDS

The RTL. Commit Awards for Integration
celgbrated therr fifth year with 220 stu-
dents tackling the theme ‘We under-
stand each other?' Winners included
Thabea-Chnstin Schultz, 17, for her film
1000 Gedanken - ein Ziel (1,000 Ideas
- One Goal), depicting multicultural Iife at
her Berlin school, for which she receved
a non-cash prize and an internship at a
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland com-
pany Claas Relotius and Mareike Muller
also won in the Young Journahsts cate-
gory, for Luftschioss Europa (Europe,
Castle In The A} which explored the
Ives of Afncan refugess n southern
Span The awards were presented at
a ceremony at RTL Television studios
In Berin RTL Telewision edtor-in-chief
Peter Kloeppel was delighted “We were
very pleased so many students an-
swered our call for creative ideas about
integration again this year They subrmit-
ted works of amazing quality "
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Matthias Sammer, Sporting Director
of FC Bayern Munchen, s an RTL -
Wir helfen Kindern celebrity mentor

.
Bons Miletic from RTL Telewizya
in Croatia helps children through the
Be my fnend’ campaign

Andrea Berg (left)

and Wolfram Kons see how the

€1 million RTL = Wir

helfen Kindern donation helped
extend the Stups children’s

centre in Krefeld




GORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

M& Missiecn
Handicap
organised the
Agilaty
Cchallenge
during ‘Disabled
Workers Week'
with the help
of a Paralympic
table tennis
champion

“We are delighted with the high
number of participants, as
it enables us to bring joy to many
children again this year.”

CLAUDE SCHMIT, SUPER RTL MANAGING DIRECTOR

Radio Hamburg gave Iisteners the
chance to donate money to help Germany's
maost vulnerable children

RTL SPENDENMARATHON

The Wir helfen Kindern
foundetion’'s 17th
RTL Spendenmarathon saw
celebrities and the public help
raise €8.8 million, the biggest
total ever. Host, and
RTL Television's Charity
Director, Wolfram Kons, said:
“Today’s record means
a great deal to us. It shows
trust in us has grown.
I wholeheartedly thank all
who'wve supported us.”

105 § Spreeradic auctioned celebnty items to support the
Kinderkiiche Bertin-Moabrt children's rehef kitchen

RTL Group employees
trying out the Twizy e-car
Reporters from the Afnican Sium Journal vistted RTL Nieuws on environMINDday
! to learn from ther Dutch colleagues

=
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NO HANDICAP

In 2012, Groupe M6 once agamn cele-
brated dversity by opening 1ts doors 10
welcome disabled job seekers dunng
Disabled Workers Week, as part of its
professional expenence day ‘Un Jour, un
metier en action’ In addition to raising
employee awareness, of the 70 guests
invited since 2007, 12 have been offerad
employment Head of HR Development
and Mission Handicap at M8, Sebastien
Fablet, beleves that “Beng disabled

RTL Radio in France backs
'‘Les pidces [aunes’

campaign tor sick kids Winners Thabea-Christin Schulz and shouldn't be a handicap Our success

presded over by former first Claas Relots recerve ther 2012 stones include Yannick, who filmed a re-

lady Bernadette Chirac Commit Award from Peter Kloeppet '

{centre) and supported by and Maria Bohmer port aired on 66 Minutes, before becom-

retired foolbalier Chnstian ing a full-time employee "
VRS ——

Karembeuy and singer Lone

W9 showed ther commitment to disa-
bled awareness too, anng season two of
J'en crois pas mes yeux, a short comedy
format dealing with pon-visible handi-
caps, and Mana la balfante, a
TV fim about paraplegics They also
showed clips by French performers such
as Florent Pagny, Grand Corps Malade
and Calogero, whose work deals with
handicaps, and presenters such as
Stephane Rotenberg recording clips in
sign language

STARS OUT IN FORCE
TO BACK
WORTHY CAUSES

For the past 27 years the Enfores, a
group of French arlisis and public fig-
ures, come together to sing and raise
money for Les Restos du Coeur, a char-
ity that distibutes food to the needy
In 2012, the concert was broadcast
Iwve from Lyon on RTL Radio and the
commercial TV channel TF1, as 12,000
people enoyed appearances from stars
including Jean-Lows  Aubert, Yanmick
Noah, Garou, Jean-Jacques Goldrman,
Kad Merad and Kanm Benzema Re-
cordings of the show went on sale the
following day, raising €74 millon, encugh
to prowde over 100 milion meals Be-
sides Les Restos du Ceeur, RTL Radio
also supported France’s other main food
ad orgamsations, with ther ‘Airfood
Project’ The chanty raises awareness of
the fact that EU politicians are consider-
Ing scrapping the prowision of wital food
ad to Europe’s most vuingrable

FremantleMedia UK
employees help
give Newham City
Farm a makeover

Singer Shakira i1s an RTL — Wir helfen Kindern
celebrity menter.
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RTL Group colleagues take part
in ‘Bike to Work’ on environMINDday

TELEVIE

Télévie has raised more than
€125 million for research
into cancer — particularly

child leukaemia — 1n Belgium
and Luxembourg since 1989

In 2012, through fundraising

events, donations and a
televised gala, RTL Belgium

and RTL Letzebuerg once

again joined together to
raise a record €8,402,651 RTL — Wir helfen Kindern

celebrity mentor and football
star Manuel Neuer

T ————

RTL Group's Bth Télévie
Challenge saw 400
participants add €55,000
to the teotal

Rockstars Klaus Meine and Rudolf Schenker from the band Scorpions
(second and fourth from left), Minister for Culture

Bernd Althusmann (pictured left) and Hannover 96 Head Coach Mirko

Slomka help Hit-Radio Antenne raise money for children in need
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Chef Grégory Cuilleron gives French
priscners a cookery lesson for Fondaktion M6

Comedian
RTL Belgium employees taking part in Televie fundraising Florence

at the Brussels-Charlerol airpont Forest: and

host Valene

Darmidot

R —— refurbished
a children’s

hospital on

MB s DRCO

FONDATION M6

Fondation M6 continued to
help improve prison life in

France, and prepare inmates RTL Nederland

to reintegrate back inteo employees
b d participated
society, by providing 1n the
aundiovisual and filmmaking charity
courses, cultural events and Spleren Run
football referee training. to raise
Inmates even made a money for
good causes

‘physical actavities in
prison’ film and attended
cookery workshcps.

Marie-Bose Armesto journalism
scholarship winners
RTL — Wir helfen Kindern mentor, German actress Simon Frangoss, Anne-Emidie Amault

Christine Neubauer and Loic Verheyen
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HELPING HAND FOR THE NEXT GENERATION
OF JOURNALISTS AND FILMMAKERS

The Marie-Rose Armesto Scholarship,
named after the sadly-missed journal-
1st, offers final year journalism students
the chance to work as part of the
RTL-TVi, Bet RTL or RTLinfo be team
for three months RTL. Belgium’s News
Director Laurent Haulotte says "We're
very pleased with the quality all these
candidates offered and we're delight-
ed to welcome them to the edtonal
department *

in Germany, the RTL Journalistenschule
(RTL School of Journalism) once again
welcomed new arrivals, this year with
an expanded selection process

Peter Kloeppel, Director of the
RTI. School of Journalism and editor-in-
chief of RTL Telewision, says “This new
class will again ensure competent new
talent in journalism * Over the years, the
school has established itseli as a suc-
cessful, accredited traming institution
with graduates finding employment ei-
ther at Mediengruppe RTL or with other
channels, or TV companies

As part of a course In cooperation with
Grundy UFA at the Film Academy in
Ludwigsburg, students got to produce
an episode of Gute Zeten, schiechte
Zeiten (Good Times - Bad Tunes)

Executive Producer Raner Ruppert
says '@ving film students an opportu-
nity to work under real-life conditions 15
an deal way for us to interact with the
next generation of filmmakers "

Now a tradition at France’s RTL Radio,
the Jean-Baptiste Bumas grant re-
wards the most promising students Iin
journalism each year, and a dozen bud-
ding Jjournalists reported on the French
Presidential electons First-prize win-
ner, Laura Maucel, receved a one-year
waork contract with RTL Radio

“Giving film students an opportunity to work under
real-life conditions is an ideal way for us to interact with
the next generation of filmmakers.”

RAINER RUPPERT, EXECUTIVE PRODUCER, GRUNDY UFA

RTL II Reportetr Sandra Thier
turned the spotlight on environmental
health in Ghana

S ————

environiiNDday
in Luxembourg
- employees got
to taste far
trade products

Journalist Jean-Michel Aphatie catches a nde
for RTL Radio s environMINDday
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4]



CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

Unhealthy diets and physical inactivity are two of the
biggest nsks to people’s health in the 21st century. Helping
employees stay fit and healthy keeps RTL Group fit and
healthy too, and that is the idea behind the Get Fit,

Be Healthy, Eat Right and Be Zen inthatives at RTL Group
headquarters in Luxembourg.

GET AT

Breaking up the day by leaving your
desk to get some exercise 1s a great
way to relieve stress and get the heart
pumping, so RTL Group offers a well-
equipped, on-site fithess centre, run-
mng regufar free fitness classes More
competitive colleagues enoy football,
while 38 collsagues took part in beach
volleyball at the fifth Luxembourg Busi-
ness Games

Another great way to mmprove your
physical health and mental wellbeing 18
running — maybe that's why the running
teams grow every year Around 30 run-
ners now enjoy traning on the cyclepaths
and wide-cpen spaces of the Kirchberg
headquarters site, and take part in races
all over Luxembourg All this running
training was a great help to the 41 Group
tnathletes who competed in the Gerard-
mer Discovery Tnathlon 2012

EAT RIGHT

Staying fit and healthy 1s not just about
exercise — the fusl we put into our bod-
ies Is vital to well-being too  Healty eat-
Ing 1s encouraged through the daily 'Eat
Right’ dish served at the company ras-
taurant To satsfy Iittle cravings, there 1s
also free frut every morning Vending
machines dispense only 100 per cent
organic and healthy products, and col-
leagues can have organic frut and veg-
etables delivered at work

BE HEALTHY

RTL Group was among the first compa-
nies to offer free cardiovascular screen-
ings, and 1t prowdes other regular
screening campagns and flu vaccina-
tions to promote and protect the health
of employees at work In November
2012, 145 colleagues took part in a body
mass assessment to help them mantain
a heafthy weght Company doctor
Thierry Gnmeée also helps by recognising
and tackiing work-related health 1ssues
Employees can make appointments at
work, receiva adwice on workplace ergo-
nomics, visual problems and stress in
our medical room, and can even be re-
ferred to a specialist

BE ZEN
Too much stress at work 1s counterpro-
ductive, so through a ‘Be Zen' initiative,
colleagues can refax and unwind In a
yoga class or pay for a shiatsu massage
on-site

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
Helping staff prepare for the challenges
of the future by keeping therr skills up-to-
date 15 wital to the company's success
Colleagues can discuss ther training
needs with supervisors at any tme
The 2012 Ready To Learn programme
offered six high-quality, talor-made,
n-house traming courses In addition,
colleaguss can also propose ther own
perscnal development project, with
RTL Group contnbuting up to €1,000 a
year towards the cost of therr traning

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPDRT 2012

FremantleMedia UK colleagues
enjoy volunteering
at Newhamn City Farm

Another Té&lévie
fundraising cheque 1s
prepared for
on-alr presentatien
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EWC’
EUROPEAN WORKS COUNGIL NEWS

In November 2012, having unanimously re-elected its
officers, Including its Chairman, Kar Brettmann, the
EWC met RTL Group's new sanior executive manage-
ment for ther iannual meeting Hers, the Voluntary

Agreement, which gives the EWGC certain nghts of
t:‘:::1‘31253’:‘:3:';:?:“:::"r:l‘:e:sk“an Information and consultaton on management issues,
RTL — Wir helfen Kindern mentor was extanded for another five years “The secunty of
having a dialogue 1s iImportant,” Kal Brettmann believes,
“Iit1s also a sign of trust, and so we are very happy "

According to Brettmann, the topic most discussed
was how RTL Group will implement digital transforma-
tion and mantan #s lead in European telewision, and
how free TV can compete with global media opera-
tors “Nobody knows what shape the TV industry will
be,” he paints out, but it's important to look ahead to
key issues refating to jobs and social standards ”

The EWC is always i discussion with the
management about any restructunng programmes
In the vanous profit centres and, whers there s

A choreographer in a wheelchair leads no works council representatron, such as in the UK,
the Rhythm Challenge for Mé Mission Handicap encouraging the Group to mantain the best social
practices when pecple have to leave the company
The other major talking point this year was to consider
the demographic changes in RTL Group “People
who started in commercial TV 30 years ago are
reaching pension age,” explains Ka Brettmann, "we
need to consider 1ssues of healthcare, motivation, and
young and old working together — what you invest
in wellbeing now will pay off a few years down the lne ”

Hit-Radio Antenne Playground SOS

open their 60th playground Eurcpean Works Council chairman

Kal Brettmann (standing, left) meets RTL Group
management to sign the new Voluntary Agreement
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RESPONSIBLE PROGRAMMING

In 2012, RTL Group programmes ex-
plored and heightened awareness of
a range of health and social 1ssues.

In France, W8 ared a new season of
reality show Relooking extréme Specral
Obesite (Extreme Makeover Weight Loss
Edition) where Chris Powell spent months
helping overweight women radically
change ther eating and exercise habis
and lose up to 50 kilos, while highlighting
the 1ssue of ohesrity In today's society
RTL Telewision's popular German senes
Gute Zeiten, schiechte Zetten (Good
Times — Bad Times) tackled another se-
nous social 1ssue, as tha character Lilly
struggled with bulimia “Qur young view-
ers look to a dally senes ke Gute Zeiten,
schiechte Zetten for onentation and role
models,” explans producer and chief
wniter Mare Heolker “That implies a great
deal of responsbility for us to teli the
stones in a responsible way™ They re-
ceived storyine adwice from Dick &
Dunn {Thick & Thin}, a chanty provding
counsellng and treatment for people
wath eating disorders

Another German series, Grundy UFAs
Verbotene Liebe explored dementia
through popular seres figure Armo
Brandner German Federal Health Minis-
ter Daruet Bahr says “l am pleased a TV
senes ke Verbotene Liebe 1s tackling

“l am pleased a TV
series like
Verbotene Liebe is
tackling this
iliness, so together
we can increase
awareness.”

DANIEL BAHR,
GERMAN FEDERAL HEALTH MINISTER

this iliness, so together we can Increase
awareness " The wntng team worked with
the German Alzhemer Society on the detail of
the disease, and how it affects patients and
familes Grundy UFA Chief Creative Officer
Gudo Remnhardt says “This disturbing story
shows once again that dally senes go beyond
mere entertainment to handle socially refevant
topics in a sensitive and responsible way "

In Belgum, RTL-TVI joined forces with the
Belgian Inshtute for Road Safety on Go for
2éro, informing wiewers about road regula-
tions and safety It bnngs together companies,
organisations, public authonies, meda and
the public to create safer traffic By signing
the 'Go for zero' charter, RTL Belgium prom-
1ses 1ts programmes will never trvalise
road offenses, or encourage people to com-
mit them

Algoholisrm among women and the young was
the subject of documentary investgations
by Les dossers de Téva, presented by Mari-
elle Fournier, on French channel Teva With
200,000 women wnt France alcohol-dependent
and 41 per cent of 15 year-olds saying they
have already been drunk, this major heatth
1ssue 15 often taboo

In Germany, RTL Telewsion's editor-in-chief
Peter Klosppe! presented a new documenta-
ry, Armes Deutschiand, reiches Deutschiand
- Peter Kloeppel unterwegs in einem Land der
Gegensatze (Poor Germany, Rich Germany -
Peter Kiceppel On The Road In A Country Of
Opposites} According to an OECD survey,
the gap between nch and poor I1s wadening
faster In Germany than in any other European
country Kloeppel investigated this by travel-
Ing across the country Other shows also
focused on the issue, Ingluding Punkt 6, Punkt
9, and Punkt 12, and the magazine and news
shows Explosyv and Exclusiv, RTL Aktuel],
Stern TV and RTL Nachtournal

Qutside Europe, German presenter Sandra
Thier and former footballer Hans Sarpel
turned the spotlight on environmental health
in Ghana, on RTL Il Each year tonnes of
mobiles, computers and other electnical
devices end up on Ghanaan dumps, where
hundreds of children breathe in carcinogenic
substances as they take them apart to make
a iving by extracting copper

a8

RTL GROGUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

On environMINDday,
Mediengruppe
RTL beutschland
locked at using
more bicycles




M6 broadcast the critically acclaimed Wall-E
a warning against over-consumptron and pollution

RTL Televizija s Ruza Vjetrova's
actress Manna Fernandez volunteers at
disabled kids’ charty Angels

RTL Klub presenter
and S0S Chaldren Ambassador
Eva Barabés

FremanileMedha UK
staff raising

maoney lor cancer
research at

Raca for Life

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Using pedal power to make apple julce
on environMINDday 1n Luxembourg
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ENVIRONMINDDAY

To secure a bright future for our planet
everyone must do therr bit On 5 June
2012, RTL Group marked World
Environment Day by orgamsing ther
fitth environMINDday in Luxembourg,
RTL Group asked colleagues to think
about how acting together could tackle
envronmental challenges While prewv-
ous environMINDdays have targeted
specific themes, such as food, transport,
or our carbon teotpnnt, this year's event
tfocused on the employses most dedi-
cated to the environmental cause

Based on the pnnciple ‘No one can do
everything, but everyone can do some-
thing,” the day began with volunteers
taking a break from using their cars, cy-
cling to work togsther for the 'Bike to
Work’ intiative On amival everyone had
an arganic breakfast, and lunch was an
organic, locally sourced meat Getting
employees involved 15 vital to developing
an environmental company approach, so
the envronMINDteam organised a
‘Lunch talk’ to recruit environmental
volunteers and discuss actions to take
cnsite “In two years, we reduced our
consumption of paper by 20 per cent
and wideo cassettes by 70 per cent,
while Increasing recycling by 57 per
cent,” says Tun Van Ryswick, Environ-
ment Chuef Officer at RTL Group “Yet d's
essential we keep up our efforts to fur-
ther reduce our environmental impact °

To make our company cars more envi-
ronmentally friendly, RTL Letzebuerg I1s
looking at introducing Renault Twizy
electnc cars to its flset All employees
got to test the vehicle, and from now on,
they can use them to travel Into the city
{for work purposes This test penod will
tell us if the vehicles meet the needs of
local teams

Leading up to World Environment Day,
the environMINDteam sponsored sever-
al workshops at the traditional RTL Group
Garden Party, where people tned ther
hand at gardening, using old plastc
bottles to make hanging herb and spice
gardens Children under 12 also entered
an environment-themead competitton to
make drawings and collages from patu-
ral matenals

All over Europe, RTL Group employees
embraced environMINDday In Germany,
RTL Radio Deutschland's intranet recom-
mended prudent use of natural resources,
and empioyees took part i actwibies or-
ganised by Bertelsmann in Berin, while
Medengruppe RTL Deutschland had a
day devoted to reducing paper consump-
tion In Belgium, the company’s cafetena
menu included only food from far-trade
sources, and a poster campagn pro-
moted everyday power-saving ideas At
RTL Nedertand the company restaurant
served organic meals, and computer
screens displayed environmental advice
RTL Radio in France introduced the first
public-sence electnc car-share scheme
In Pans, and a subscrption bke share
service for employees

ENVIRONMINDAWARD

In May 2012, members of RTL Group's
environMINDtearmn met in Brussels to dis-
cuss environmental 1ssues, and award a
prize to RTL Belgum RTL Belgium CEQ,
Philippe Delusinne said “In 2004, we
decided to buld new headquarters so all
RTL Belgium employees were under one
roof We took up this challenge integrat-
ing as many environmental features as
possible The cutcome 1s beyond our
expectations and I'm delighted this mitia-
tve I1s rewarded ioday Enwvironmental

matters are part of the daly Ife of
the company” In 2008, RTL Belgum
became the first RTL Group subsidiary
fully powered by renawable energy —
evidence of the company's commitrment
to sustanable growth and carefut use of
natural resources This also covers ener-
gy and waste reduction and transport,
for example, subsidising employees’
public transport costs and encouraging
using cleaner company cars They are
alse committed to broadeasting pro-
grammes raising public awareness of
environmental 1Issues

ENVIRONMENTAL
PROGRAMMING

After five years of shooting 1n 21 coun-
tnes, Earth took viewers on a spectacular
journey through the seasons This sequel
to Blue Planet was shown as part of the
What A Wonderful World senes on Pans
Premiere Presented by environmentahst
Alexandra Cousteau 1t showed off the
beauty of our world They also premiered
the documentary La Tarre vue du ciel
{Earth From Above) based on the book by
French photographer and ecologist Yann
Arthus-Bertand

First broadcast on French television in
2004, Rendez-vous en terre Inconnue
continues to introduce viewers to remote
people threatened by madern socisty
Far the 17th edition, also broadcast on
RTL-TVI, actress and duector Zabou
Brettman travelled to the lower Omo
Valiey in south-west Ethicpia On M6’s
Capital Terre, Thomas Sottoc explored
the environmental impact of the 30 mil-
lior new houses bult woridwide every
year They examined woecd houses In
the Vosges, co-housing in Denmark,
earthen fowers in Yemen, ecological
villas 1 Australia and high-nse buldings
In Singapore
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RTL Belgum’s Philippe Delusinne and
Stéphane Geerts (left and centre) accept the
environMINDaward from Chver Herrgesell

RTL — Wir helfen

Kindern mentor and

Radio Hamburg weather presenter Anke Lothes and Audi Hamburg comedlan,

boss Jurgen Deforth (right) hand over a chegue to special education Bulent Ceylan.
school Kielkamp director Stephan Berger (left)

DOING GOOD

Younger viewers learned about the erma-
ronment through Super BTLs campaign
‘Callou protects the environment!’,
based on ther popular pre-school pro-
gramme Calov  Children also posted
ther own tips online at Toggofine de and
over 10,000 kindergartens in Germany
received brochures full of fun environ-
mental facts New DVDs and audiobooks
Bulent Ceytan tnes out his goatkeeping skills also reinforced the message

with the kads out on the pitch Through the ‘Hazie Eco’ campaign in
Spain, Grupo Antena 3 and WWF re-
planted forests after 180,000 hectares
were destroyed by fire in 2012 They
raised money, got involved in the plant-
ing, and broadcast regular reports on TV
channgls Amtena 3, Neox, Nova and
Nitro, and radio stations Onda Cero and
Eurapa FM

RTL-TVI presenters Sophie Pendeville
and Antoine Guillaume promote
safer driving on show Go for zéro
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OPERATIONS

TELEVISION
FREE-TV DIGITAL PAY-TV NON-LINEAR TV
GERMANY RTL Television 100% | RTL Cnme 100% | RTL Now 100%
Vox 99 7% | RTL Lnving 100% | Vox Mow - -89 7%
ATL I 35 9% [ Passton - 100% | ATL Il Now 35 9%
Super RTL -50% Super RTL Now - _50%
N-TV 100% N-TV Now 100%
RTL Nitro 100% RTL Nitro Now 100%
FRANCE M6 48 6% | Pans Premidre _48 6% | M6 Replay . 48 8%
wg 48 6% | Teva - 45 6% | W9 Replay " 48 6%
6ter 48 6% | Séne Club 48 8% | Ster Replay 48 6%
RTL 9 35% | TF6 _48 6% | M6 YOD 48 6%
M6 Music Hits .48 6%
M6 Music Black 48 6%
MG Music Club 48 6%
Girondins TV 48 6%
NETHERLANDS RTL 4' 100% | RTL Lounge! 100% | RTL XL 100%
RTL 5! 100% ! ATL Cnme! 100%
RTLT 100% | ATL Talekids’ 100%
RTL 8! 100%
UNITED KINGDOM
BELGIUM RTL-TVI .66% RTL a 'infer -66%
Club RTL' 66%
Plug ATL! 66%
LUXEMBOURG RTL Tele Latzehuerg 100% RTL Replay 100%
Den 2 ATL 100%
CROATIA ATL Televizija 100% RTL Sada 100%
RTL 2 100%
SPAIN Antena 3 20 5%* | Gol TV 20 5%* | Antena 3 Modo Salon 20 5%:"
La Sexta 20 5%°
Neox 20 5%"
Nova 20 5%"
Nitro .20 5%*
Xplora 20 5%®
La Sextz 3 Todo Cine 20 5%
HUNGARY” RTL Klub 100% | ATL N 100% | RTL Most 100%
Cool 100%
Film Plusz . 100%
Film Plusz Two - 100%
Przma 100%
Sorozat Plusz 100%
Muzsika TV 100%
NORTH AMERICA
AUSTRALIA
ITALY
SCANDINAVIA
INDIA Big RTL Thnll 50%
ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPDRT 2012




OPERATIONS

This chart illustrates the structure of RTL Group's pnncipal businesses and undertakings as at 31 December 2012
The name of each company 1s followed by an indication of the percentage held directly or indirectly by RTL Group

RADIO GONTENT
TV SERVICES PRODUCTION? RIGHTS
cac 100% | 104 8 ATL Berins Hit-Radio 100% | UFA Fitm & TV Produkbon® __ 100% | Universum Film 100%
Info Network  100% [ 105.5 Spreeradio . 100% | Grundy LE* . 100% | UFA Sports 75 1%
RTL Radio - Grundy UFA? - 100%
Die besten Hits aller Zeiten' 100% | Phosmix Group? 51%
Hit-Radio Antenne .49 9% | Teamworx® 100%
Antenne Bayern 16% | UFA Cinema® 130%
Radio Hamburg 29 2% { UFA Entertainment? 100%
RTL' 100% | FremantieMedia France® 100% | SND® _486%
RTL 2 -100% | 123 Productions? 100%
Fun Radio 100% | TV Presse’ 100%
20h50 Telewision® 100%
Studio 89* 48 6%
RTL Lounge . 100% | Blue Curcle® 100% | FremanteMedia
Four One Medta® 100% | Oparations? 100%
Framantle Productions? 50%
FremantleMadia UK? 100% | FremantleMedia
Worldwide** 100%
Bel RTL 44 2% | FremantieMedia Belgium? 100%
Radio Contact 44 2%
BCE 100% | RTL Radio Létzebuerg . 100% CLT-UFA Intermnational* 100%
Enex 76 4% | Eldoradio 100%
Fremantie Produkcija® 100%
Onda Cero 20 5%° } La Competencia de
Europa FM 20 5%° | Producciones® - 100%
Magyar Grundy UFA? 100%
FremantlieMedia
North Amenca?® 100%
Onginal Productions® 75%
Radical Madia® 62 5%
Ludia® 80%
Fremantle Productions
Latin Amersica® 100%
FremantleMedia Australia® _100%
FremantieMedia itaha® 100%
Blu, Dermark?® 100%
Fremantie Entertanment,
Finland® 100%
Fremantie Sverige, Sweden? 100%
FremantleMad:a India
TV Productions? 100%

Pnncipal businesses — extendad Iist an pages 204 to 209 (1) Programenes broadcast by CLT-UFA under a Luxsmbourg licanse (2) Framantishadia has operations

n 22 countnas inciuding Brazif Canada China, indie indonesia Mexico Poland Portugal, Russia Switzeriand and Turkey (3) A FramantieMedia company (4) Global

(5} A Groupe ME company (6} After deduction of treasury sharas held by the entity (7) Cable channel Refiek

stopped broad

g ot 1 Janvary 2013

RTL GROUP

ANRUAL REPORT 2012
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Andreas Rudas

Cecile Frot-Coutaz

o me——

Anke Schaferkordt

Nicolas de Tavernost

Dirk Gerkens

% Gert Zmmer

Christopher Baldell

Alain Berwick

Johannes Zall
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Each RTL Group profit centre 1s led by its own CEOQ.
This allows each to be an entrepreneur, and act quickly
and flexibly m its local market. However, each profit
centre can draw on the understanding and expertise of
other RTL Group companies - to replicate successes,
pass on ideas, and fearn from mistakes The RTL Group
Corporate Centre in Luxembourg facilitates this collab-
oration

Indeeq, the central management sets the strategy for the
Group, and this was one of the main tasks of the Executive
Committee in 2012 This commiitee, newly reconstituted fol-
lowing the managemeant changa at the top of the Group, con-
sists of three Executwve Directors — that 1s, the two Co-CEOs
and the CFQ

“The Executive Committee this year conductad a comprehen-
sive review of our corporate straiegy,” says Elmar Heggen,
CFQ, We have many growth opportunities, and together with
the managemant teams in our operations, we have defined
three main iInvestment areas broadcast, content and digital *

“We are committed to
giving the Synergy
Committees an even higher
profile in our
network of companies.”

ELMAR HEGGEN, CFO OF RTL GROUP

RTL Group's Operations Management Commities (OMC) s
the principal forum for Group-wide discussion and decision-
making, attended by all the profit centre CEOs and senior
executives from the Corporate Centre Tha OMC identifies
specific areas for study by Synergy Committees (Sycos), the
next layer down in a classic pyramid structure

Throughout RTL Group's decentralised organisation, these
Sycos have become one of the major means for shanng infor-
mation and knowledge Executives and specialists from across
the Group meet regularly to discuss matters such as market
trends, new ideas and best practice in an atmosphere of trust
and open discussion Elmar Heggen confirms  “We are com-
mitted to gvming the Sycos an even higher profile in our net-
work of compares ”

The Sycos each generally meet twice a year, though some are
scheduled more frequently So useful are they that the number
of committees has grown over time, and now covers pro-
gramming, news, radio, advertising sales, new media, busi-
ness affars, marketing research and programme research,
with the faciity to convene a special Syco for a specialist topic
on request

AL GRS SYRERDY COMMTTELS

HOW WE WORK

OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE (OMC)

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

DAWN AIREY

CHRISTOPHER BALDELL)

ALAIN BERWICK

OLIVER FAHLBUSCH*

CECILE FROT-COUTAZ
PHILIPPE DELUSINNE
VINCENT DE DORLODOT
DIRK GERKENS

ALEXANDER GLATZ

BERT HABETS

ELMAR HEGGEN

ROMAIN MANNELLI

ANDREAS RUDAS

NIGOLAS DE TAVERNOST

GERT ZIMMER

EDUARDO ZULUETA

JOHANNES Z0LL

Co-Chief Executive Officer

RTL Group,

Chief Executive Officer,
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland

Co-Chief Exacutive Qfficer
RTL Group

President, CLT-UFA UK TV

Chief Executrve Officer,
RTL Radio (France)

Chief Executive Officer, RTL Letzebuerg
Senior Vice President,

Caorperate Communications & Marketing,
RTL Group

Chief Executive Qfficer, FremantleMedia
Chief Executive Officer, RTL Belgium
General Counsel, RTL Group

Chief Executive Officer, RTL Kiub

Executive Vice President,
Strategy & Controlling RTL Graup

Chief Executive Officer, RTLL Nederand

Chief Financial Officer,
Head of the Corporate Centre, RTL Group

Executive Vice President, HR, RTL Group
Executive Vice President, Regional
Operations & Business Development

CEE and Asia RTL Group

President du Directorre, Groupe M8

Chief Executive Officer,
RTL Radio Deutschland

Caonsultant, Managing Director,
Mabuat (Spain}

Chief Executive Officer, RTL Hrvatska

Parmanent guest
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ANKE SCHAFERKCROT

Co-Chref Executive Otficer
since 18 April 2012

Anke Schdferkordt, born in 1862,

has been CEQ of RTL Telewision

since September 2005 In November
2007, the German RTL farmily of
channels adopted the brand name
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland

In her capacity as CEQ of RTL Telewision,
Anke Schaferkordt 1s also CEQ

of Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland

After receving her degree in business
administration, Anke Schaferkordt
began her career at Bertelsmann AG in
1988 In 1991 she went to Cologne to
become an executive assistant for sales
controlling and strategic planning at
RTL Pius {now RTL Television), taking
over the controlling department the
following year From 1893 to 1995 she
was a Director in charge of the Corpo-
rate Planning and Controling dmsion
at RTL Telewision 1n 1995 she moved
to TV broadcaster Vox, serving as

CFO and, from 1997 onwards, alsc as
Programme Director From 1999

untii 2005 Anke Schaferkordt was CEOQ
of Vox tn February 2005 she was
appointed Chief Operating Officer and
Deputy CEO of RTL Television, respon-
sible far Finance, Technical Services,
Information and Media Policy as well as
the General Secretaniat, the advertising
sales unit [P Deutschland, the Vox
channel and RTL Group's holdings n
N-TV and Super RTL

Since 18 Aprl 2012, Anke Schaferkordt
has been Co-CEQ of RTL Group In this
capacity, she st retains her role as CEQ
of Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand

She also sits on the Executive Board of

Bertelsmann Management SE,

RTL Group's maonty shargholder

Mandates in listed companies Member of
the Superwsory Boards of BASF SE, Ludwigs-
hafen and of Seftware AG, Darmstadt

FIRST APFOINTED 18 APRIL 2012

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

Co-Chief Executive Officer
since 18 Apnl 2012

Guillaume de Posch, born in 1958,
started his career at the internatianal
energy and semices company Tractebel
(1985 to 1990) and then joined the
gtobal management consulting firm
McKinsey & Company {1990 to 1993)

Guillaume de Posch began his career in
the media industry at the Compagnie
Luxembourgeoise de Telediffusion (CLT}
as assistant to the Managing Director
(1993 to 1994) and then became

Head of CLT's TV operations in French-
speaking countries {1995 to 1997)
From 1997 to 2003, he was Deputy
General Manager and Programming
Director of the French pay-TV company
TPS, before joining the publicly listed
ProSiebenSat1 Media AG in August
2003, first as Chief Operating Officer
and then as Charman of the Executive
Board and CEQ {2004 to 2008}

Guiltaume de Posch was appointed
Chief Operating Officer and a new
mamber of the RTL Group Executive
Committee on 1 January 2012

With effect from 18 Apnl 2012,

Guillaume de Posch assumed the role
of Co-CEQ of RTL Group

FIRST APPOINTED 18 APRIL 2012




THE BOARD

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ELMAR HEGGEN
Chief Financial Officer
and Head of the Corporate Centre

Elmar Heggen, born in 1968, holds a
diploma in business adminmstration from
the European Business Schoal, and
graduated with a Master of Business
Administration {MBAJ In finance

In 1992, he started his career at the
Felx Schoeller Group, becoming Vice
President and General Manager of
Fehix Schoeller Digital Imaging in the
UK n 1999 Elmar Meggen first joined
the RTL Group Corporate Centre m
2000 as Vice President Mergers and
Acquisttions In January 2003, he was
promoted to Senior Vice President
Controling and investments From July
2003 untit December 2005 he was
Executive Vice President Strategy and
Controling

Since January 2006, Elmar Heggen

has served on the RTL Group

Executive Management team, and since
1 Qctober 2006 he has been CFO

and Head of the Corporate Centre of
R¥L Group

Mandates in histed companies
Member of the Board of
Directors of Regus PLC, Londan

FIRST APPQINTED 18 APRIL 2012

GERHARD ZEILER

Chuef Executive Officer
{until 18 Apnl 201 2)

Gerhard Zetler, born in 1955 in Vienna
(Austna), jomed RTL Group n November
1998 when he was appointed

Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

of RTL Telewision in Cologne In this
capacity, Zeller was responsible for
the German RTL famuly of channels
(RTL Telewision, Vox, RTL I, Super RTL,
N-TV) In March 2003 Gerhard Zeller
was additionally appointed CEQ

of RTL Group Hs handed over the
management af RTL Telewsion to
Anke Schaferkordt in September 2005
to fully cancentrate on RTL Group's
international entertainment network

In hrs function as CEO of RTL Group,
Gerhard Zeiller was a member of

the Supervisory Boards of Groupe M6
in France and RTL Telewsion in
Germany He was a member of the
Bertelsmann AG Executive Board
fromm October 2605 to Apni 2012

Gerhard Zeller began his career as a
freelance journalist and then became
press spokasman for the Austrian
Minister for Education and the Arts,

Dr Fred Sinowatz, whom he eventually
followed to the Federal Chancellor's
Office in 1983 Later he continued
working in the same capacity for
Federal Chancellor Or Franz Vranitzky
In 1986 he became Secretary-General
of the Austnan public broadcaster,
CRF, In Vienna After a two-year penod
as CEQ of Tele 5 and a further two-
year peniod as CEO of RTL H, he was
elected Chief Executive Officer of

ORF in 1994 and stayed n this position
untl November 1998

FIRST APPQINTED 4 MARCH 2003
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

THOMAS RABE

Chairman singe 18 Apnl 2012

Chawrman and CEQ,
Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA

Thomas Rabe, born in 1965, holds a
diploma and a doctorate in economics
from the University of Cologne (Germa-
ny) He started his career in 1989 at
the European Commission i Brussels
From 1990 to 1996 he held varous
senior positions at Forrester Norall &
Sutton (now White & Case) in Brusseis
as well as the state privabsation agency
Treuhandanstalt and a venture capital
fund n Berlin In 1996, he joined Cedel
International {Clearstream, following
the merger with Deutsche Borse
Cleanng) where he was appointed
Chief Financial Officer and member of
the Management Board in 1998

In 2000, Thomas Rabe became Chuef
Financial Cfficer and member of the
Executive Committee of RTL Group
In March 2003 he was also apponted
Head of the Corporate Centre with
responsibility for the Luxembourgish
activities of RTL Group He was Chief
Financial Officer and Head of the
Corporate Centre of Bertelsmann AG
from 1 January 2006 to 31 December
2011 Since 1 January 2012, Thomas
Rabe has been Charrman and CEO
of Bertelsmann AG, now Bertelsmann
SE & Co KGaA

Committee membership

Audit, Normination and Compensation
Mandates in ksted companies
Charman of the Supervisory Board of
Symitse AG, Holzminden

FRST APPOINTED 12 DECEMBER 2005
(EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2006)
RE-ELECTED 18 APRIL 2012

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

SIEGFRIED LUTHER
Chairman (until 18 Apnil 2012)

Siegfried Luther, born in 1944, was
Chiet Financial Officer {from 1980) and
Deputy Charman of the Executive
Board (from 2002) of Bertelsmann AG,
Gutersloh He retired at the end of 2005
Between 1974 and 1990 he held vanous
santor positions at Bertelsmann AG,

In taxes, group accounting and treasury,
and in corporate finance He graduated
as a doctor of law from the University

of Munster {Germany}

Commuttee membership

Audit, Normination and Compensation
Mandates in listed companies
MNon-executive member of the Board of
Directors of Compagnie Natonae a
Portefeulle SA Lovarval {untl Juns 2011)

FIRST APPOINTED 24 JULY 2000

MARTIN TAYLOR

Vice-Chatrman, Independent Director

Martin Tayler, born in 1852, began

hts carger as a financial journalist

with Reuters and the Financial Times
He then joined Courtaulds PLC,
becoming a director in 1987, then
Chief Executive of Courtaulds Textiles
PLC onts demerger n 1990 Ha
moved to Barclays PLC in 1993 as
Chief Executive, a post he held unti the
end of 1998 From 1999 to 2003 he
was Charman of WH Smith PLC, and
from 1999 to 2005, International Adwisor
to Goldman Sachs Currentiy he 1s
Chairman of the Board of Syngenta AG

He has worked on vanous projects for
the Bntish Government and served for
five years as a member of its Council
for Science and Technology Appointed
as independent, non-axecutive director
in July 2000 {when RTL Group was
created), he took over the responsibili-
ties of Vice-Chairman of the Board in
December 2004

Comrmittee membearship

Audit, Norminahon and Compensation
{Charrman)

Mandates in listed companies

Charman of the Board of Syngenta AG {CH)

FIRST APPOINTED 25 JULY 2000
RE-ELECTED 8 APRIL 2012




THE BOARD

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

THOMAS HESSE

Member of the Bertelsmann
Management SE Executive Board

Thomas Hesse, barm in 1966, holds a
doctorate in economics and began

fus career in 1991 as a consultant with
McKinsey & Company, lsaving in

1996 to join what 1s now RTL Group,
and subsequently taking on vanous
executive positions within Bertelsmann
until 2008

Following the 2004 merger of BMG and
Sony Music, Thomas Hesse served as
head of the worldwide digital busmess
and Chief Strategist at Sony BMG -
now Sony Music Entertainment, from
2005 to 2010 In this position he was
also responsible for US sales

In November 2011, Thomas Hesse
was appointed o the Bertelsmann AG
Executive Board His tasks are 1o
advance the group's business develop-
ment, bulld new businesses for
Bertelsmann, and facilitate the digital
transformation of the core businesses
In trus role ha 1s responsible for the
growth platforms Bertefsmann Crgital
Media Investments (BDMI) and
Bertelsmann Asia Investments (BAI},
for the Education business, and

for the holding in the BMG music nghts
company

FIRST APPOINTED 12 ODECEMBER 2011
(EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2012}
RE-ELECTED 18 APRIL 2012

BERND KUNDRUN

Investor

Bernd Kundrun, born in 1957, studied
business administration at the unversiies
of Munster and Innsbruck In 1984, he
started his career as Executive Assistant
at the Bertelsmann Club In 1993, he was
appainted Charman of the Board of
Management of the Bertetsmann Club

In 1994, Barnd Kundrun became
Managing Director of Premiere Medien in
Hamburg He was appointed a member
of the Executive Board of Gruner + Jahr
in August 1997 and was responsible

for the company s newspaper division
untl 31 October 2000

From Novernber 2000 to 6 January 2009,
Bernd Kundrun was Chairman of

Gruner + Jahr's Executive Board and the
company's CEQ Durnng this time, he was
also a member of the Executive Board

of Bertelsmann Since February 2009,
Bernd Kundrun has been partner of the
ankne donation platform Betterpiace org
and since 2010 he has been Charman

of the Supervisory Board of Gut org

At the end of 2009, Bernd Kundrun
founded the Start 2 Ventures
Betellgungsgesellschaft which provides
online startups with inttial capital Further-
more he 1s a member of the Board of
Directors of Neue Zurcher Zertung, and of
the Supervsory Board of CTS Eventim

FIRST APPOINTED 18 APRIL 2012

JACQUES SANTER
Chairman of the Board of CLT-UFA,
Independent Director

Before Jacques Santer, bernm 1937,
became Chairman of the Board of
CLI-UFAIn May 2004, tis distinguished
career covered a vanety of political rcles
including Member of the European
Parlament (1974 to 1979 and 1999 to
2004), Prime Minister of Luxembourg
(1984 to 1995) and President of the
European Commussion (1995 to 1999)

FIRST APPOINTED 9 DECEMBER 2004
AE-ELECTED 18 APRIL 2012
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THE BOARD

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ROLF SCHMIDT-HOLTZ

Business founder and investor

Rolf Schmidt-Holtz, born in 1948 1n
Martinsreuth, Germany, I1s an examined
lawyer and studied political science and
psychology Rolf Schmidt-Holtz has
been an independent business founder
and investor since Apnl 2011 He was
CEO of Sony Music Entertanment from
February 2006 {untl October 2008
Sony BMG Music Entertainment) to
March 2011 Pror ta this appointment,
he served the company as Charman

of the Board from August 2004

From January 2001 to August 2004, he
was Charrman and CEO of Bertelsmann
Music Group (BMG) At the same time,
Rolf Schimidt-Holtz was a member

of the Bertelsmann AG Executive Board
{from 2000) and headed the BMG divi-
sion, which consisted of the Sony BMG
Music Entertainment joint venture and
BMG Music Publishing He also served
the Bertelsmann Executive Board as
Cheef Creative Officer Schrrudt-Holtz
was also a member of the Supervisory
Boards of Gruner + Jahr and

RTL Group He s a member of the
Bertelsmann Stftung foundatiort's
Board of Trustees

Prior to running BMG, Schrmicit-Holtz
served as Chief Executive Officer of
CLT-UFA. He later oversaw the merger
of CLT-UFA with Pearson Television

to form RTL Group He 1s Co-Founder
and Chairman of Just Sofiware AG
and Co-Founder and Partner of Hanse
Ventures GmbH

Committee membership
Nominaticn and Compensation

FIRST APPOINTED 18 APRIL 2012
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JAMES SINGH

Independent Director

James Singh, born in 1946, joined
Nestle Canada as Financial Analyst in
1977 and served the company tn
vanous executive positions until

2000 when he was appointed Senior
Vice President, Acquisitions and
Business Development, in Nestlé SA's
headguarters in Vevey, Switzertand
James Singh was a member of

the Executive Board and Chief Financial
Officer of Nestlé SA from 2008 to 2012
He retired on 31 March 2012 after

a long and distinguished career of

35 years with Nestle

He serves as Charman of the
Finance Committee of the European
Round Table, as well as mermber of
the International Integrated Financial
Reporting Standard Committes

Committee membership
Audtt {Charman)

FIRST APPOINTED 18 APRIL 2012




EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

p

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

Co Cruef Executive Officer

In her capacity as Co-CEC of RTL Group, Anke Schaferkordt 1s responsible for
the Group’s largest profit centre, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland, for which she
also continues to serve as CEC

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

Co-Chief Executive Dfficer

In his capacity as Co-CEO of RTL Group, Guillaume de Posch 1s responsible
for the Group's broadcasting operations outside Germany, and the company’s
produchion business

ELMAR HEGGEN

Chiet Financial Officer
and Head of the Carparate Centre

In hss capacity as CFO and Head of the Corporate Centre of RTL Group,
Etrmar Heggen controls Fmance and Legal He &lso oversees the Group’s operations
in Luxernibourg and Span, and UFA Sports

ANDREAS RUDAS*
Executive Vice President,
Regional Operations & Business Develapment
CEE and Asia

Andreas Rudas, barn in 1953, worked with the Austran public broadcaster ORF

from 1986 to 1997, eventually as Secretary-General from 1994 to 1997 In this role, he
was responsible for business planring, media, marketing and satellite broadeasting
Starting in 2000, he held vanous positons at Magna International Europe, and was

a mamber of the Management Board from 2001 te 2005 Since Decemper 2005,
Andreas Rudas was Executive Director of WAZ Ost Holding {a subsidiary of WAZ
Media Group), responsible for Austna, South Eastern Europe and Vietnam

Andreas Rudas was appointed Executive Vice President Regional Operations &
Business Development CEE and Asia with effect from 1 January 2009 In this capacity,
he oversees RTL Group's operations in Croatia, Hungary, Russia, and Germany (radio),
and explores business opportunities in Central and Eastern Eurcpe, and in Asia

GERHARD ZEILER

Chief Executive Officer (unhil 18 Apni 2012)

In addition to his roles as Executive Director and CEQ of RTL Group, Gerhard Zeller
was in charge of programme and synergies throughout all cperations He oversaw
the operalions In Germany (television), France {telewvision) and FremantieMedia

RTL Group Corperate Commumications, Public Affars & Marketing also reported to
tm, as did Human Resources, which also reports to the CFQO

The Executive Committee keeps the Board of Directors informed on the results of the Group and its main profit
centres on a regular basis The compensation of the members of the Executive Commuittee 15 determined by
the Nomination and Compensation Cormmittee, and 1s composed of a fixed and a vanable part {see note 10 3. to

the consohidated financial statements)

RTL GROUP ANKUAL REPORT 2012

Permanant guest

101



Launched in 1890. Capital is an

award-winning economic
news magazine broadcast on M6.
Thomas Sotto (pictured) has
hested the magazine since August 2011
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

HIGHLIGHTS

The Directors are pleased to present their report to the shareholders, with details on the

businesses and the development of the Group, together with the consolidated financial statements

1 Adssted for the dsposal of rada
stahons 0 the Netherlands
the acquisition of cabla channels
m Hungary and other mmor
scope changes and at consiant
exchange rafes

2 LRITA {continuing operations}
represents earnings before interest
and taxes excluding imparment
of goodwil and of disposal group
and armortisation and smpaxtnant
of far value adustments on
acqusitions of subsidhanes and joint
ventures ¥mpaument of imvestment
n associaies re measurement of
eam aut arrangements and gain or
loss from sale of subsiaianes other
stvestiments and re-measurement
lp lar value of pra exsting interast
n acqured

for the year ended 31 December 2012 on pages 144 to 209.

Year to Year to
December December
2012 2011 Per cent
€m €m change
Revenue 5,908 9,765 +40Q
Underlymng revenue’ 5,872 5,704 +29
Reported EBITA? 1,078 1,134 {4 9)
Reported EBITA margin (%) 180 197
Reported EBITA 1,078 1,134
Impairment of investment in associates and amortisation and imparment
of fair value adjustrnents on acquisitions of subsidianes and joint ventures {92} (19}
Re-maasurement of earn-out arrangements 2 -
Gain/{Loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and
ra-measurement to fair value of pre-existing interest in acquiree (@ 107
EBIT 979 1,222 (19 9)
Net financial expense (11) 29)
Income tax expensa (277) (302)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 691 891
Loss for the year from discontinued operations {1 (96)
Profit for the year 690 795 {132
Attnibutable to
= Non-controlling mterasts 93 99
= RTL Group shareholders 597 696 (14 2
Basic EPS continuing operations (in €) 389 501
Basic EPS discontinued operations {in €) (001} (0 48)
Reported EPS {in €) 388 453
Proposed/paid total dvidend per share (in €} 10.50 5.10
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RTL Group headlines

m Reported Group revenue up 4 O per cent to €60
bilign, reflecting higher revenue from Medien-
gruppe RTL Deutschland and FremantlsMedia,
and exchange rate effects

u For the third consecutive year, RTL Group gener-
ated an EBITA of more than €1 billion, despite an
increasingly challenging econormic environment
m EBITA decreased 4 9 per cent to €1,078 million
as a significantty higher profit contribution from
the German TV operations was offset by lower
results from operations facing challenging market
conditions 1n other countres, higher investment
In programming, and portfolio effects such as the
disposal of the Dutch radio stations

= Reporied EBITA margin remains at a healthy level
of 18 0 per cent (2011 19 7 per cent)

a Net profit attributable to RTL Group sharehalders
down to €597 million {2011 €696 mdlion), mainly
dus to an imparment amounting to €72 milkon on

A more efficient capital structure, providing sufficient flexibility to invest

u0On 24 February 2013, RTL Group's Board of
Directors decided to distribute an intenm dividend,
comprising an ordinary dividend of €5 1 per share
and an extraordinary dvdend of €5 4 per share

w Tha total dwdend amounting ta €1 6 bilion wll
be funded by the Group’s net cash position and
by debt in the form of shareholder loans from
Bertelsmann provided at arm’s length terms and at
current market conditions The dmdends will be
paid on 7 March 2013

® As a result of this, RTL Group will have a 2012 net
debt to EBITDA ratio of around 05 times This
conservative level of gearing creates a more effi-
cient capital structure, in ing wath the industry, and
stil provides sufficient flexibility to invest

DIRECTORS' REPORT

RTL Group’s shareholding in the Sparnish broad-
caster Grupo Antena 3

u Net cash from operating activities was €925 mil-
lior, resulting 1n an operating cash conversion of
101 per cent and a net cash position of €1,051
mithon at the end of 2012

& Throughout 2012, European TV advertising mar-
kets clearty reflected local macro-economic devel-
opments while the German TV advertising market
was slghtly up, the French, Dutch and Belgian
markets were estimated to be down year-on-year,
with a significant slowdown aver the second half of
the year, markets in Span, Hungary and Croatia
continued to see a more pronounced decling

43 per cent of RTL Group’s revenua onginates
from a broad range of non-advertising actwities
such as content production, nghts trading, tele-
shopping, e-commerce, and merchandising

s The Board also approved a new dividend policy
gong forward, targeting a pay-out ratio of 50 to 75
per cent of the adjusted consolidated net profit
attnbutable to RTL Group shargholcers

& RTL Group notes that Bertelsmann s considenng
a reduction of its shareholdng wn RTL Group
through a capital market iransaction, while main-
taining a gualified majorrty of approximately 75 per
cent While the Supervisory Board of Bertelsmann
has in principle approved a potential reduction of
shares in RTL Group, no final decision has been
taken yet an whether or not Bertelsmann will offer
any part of s shareholding in RTL Group We ex-
pect Bertelsmann to release further information as
and when appropnate
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Profit centre highlights

n Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland achieved a com-
bined audierce share of 337 per cent among
young viewers aged 14 to 48, and remaned the
clear market leader, 5 8 percentage points ahead
of s man commercial competitor EBITA in-
creased by 9 B per cent to €581 milkon - the best
ever full-year operating profit for RTL Group's larg-
est profit centre

aIn France, M6 was agan the only major French
channel to Increase s total audience share year-
on-year As aresult, the combined total audience
share of Groupe M6 grew to 15 5 per cent EBITA
of Groupe M6 decreased t¢ €224 million as a re-
sult of lower advertising revenue and programming
investment related to the Euro 2012 football cham-
pionship

® BTL Nederland attracted a combined pnme time
audience share of 32 3 per cent in the commercial

iarget group, with a significant lead of i2 3 per-
centage points aver ts main commercial compet-
itor Following record resufts in 2011, EBITA
decreased to €97 millon due to a weaker TV
advertising market and scope changes resuliing
from the exit of the Dutch radio stations

» FremantieMedia, RTL Group's content production
arm, continued to produce number one pnme time
shows for the leading broadceasters in almost every
majer TV market In the world, the company's
revenue grew by 19 7 per cent, dnven by growthin
the US, UK, Germany and Asia-Pacific, exchange
rate effects, and recharges without margins to
third parties for certan production contracts,
EBITA decreased slightly to €138 milian

® RTL Belgium and the RTL radio family in France
remained clear market leaders and generated
stable profit contnbutions

RTL Group makes good progress in all strategic fields - broadcasting, content and digital

Broadcast s {n iotal, RTL Group launched five new TV channels
n 2012 - a sgnificant investment to further
strengthen the broadcasting business
® 1 Aprii 2012 launch of digital free-TV channel
RTL Nitro in Germany This rs the most success-
ful chanrel launch In recent years, with an audi-
ence share of 0 7 per cent amang young wiewers
in Decermber 2012

s 1 Septermber 2012 launch of digital chidren’s
channel RTL Telekids in the Netherlands

®» 1 QOctoher 2012 launch of family entertanment
cable channel RTL I in Hungary, 1n the penod
October to December 2012, RTL 1l attracted an
average audence share of 0 B per cent among
viewers aged 18 to 49

Content ® FremantleMedia’s key formats capture mass audi-
ences around the globe
» American Idol has been the number one enter-
tainment series in the US — the biggest TV mar-
ket worldwide - for the past nine years
= With an average total audience share of 40 8 per
cent, Britan's Got Talent was the highest rated
entertanment senes in the UK for 2012
& The local versions of The Farmer Wants A Wifa in
France, the Netherlands and Germany continued
to score excellent raings, with audience shares
of up to 43 7 per cent

= FremantieMedia’s new management team has put
a clear focus on fuelling 1ts creatve pipeling, devel-
oping new formats and building brands, across a
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85 November 2012 iaunch of action entertain-
ment channal Big RTL Thnil in India, RTL Group's
first broadcasting venture outside of Eurcpe, the
channel already reaches more than 25 millon
households

s 12 December 2012 launch of Gier in France,
Groupe MB's new general entertainment channel
for the whole family 6ter has quickly become the
audience leader among the six new DTT chan-
nels launched in France at that tme

broad range of genres, while maintaining market

leadership in its core business areas

= The new structure announced on 1 February
2013 will create a Digital & Branded Entertan-
ment division alongside a new global dmsion fo-
cused on disinbution and kids and family enter-
tanment Other commercial ancillary actmties
will be undertaken by the local production com-
panies

= The kids and family entertanment diviston has
signed a new five-year partnership with BBC
Children’s to develop and co-produce a continy-
ous sequence of new children’s programmes




Dugital

8 RTL Group’s online platforms and on-demand
offers across Eurcpe collectvely generated more
than 2 4 billion video views of professionally pro-
duced content in 2012 - up 25 per cent year-
cn-year

= Mobile wideo views increased by 58 per cent to
118 mulion in Germany and by 119 per cent to
70 5 milion n France

8 RTL Group's online network compnses mare than
200 websites, reaching an average 61 milion
unique users a month

= On 17 October 2012, RTL Nederland announced
the acquistion of Videostnp, the Netherand's
leading onfine wideo advertising network, which
generated 1 3 billen wideo views and delivered
392 milon ads in 2012

DIRECTORS" REPQRT

» FremantleMedia has become the highest-rated TV
producer on Youtube, with 101 channsls register-
ing 4 5 billon views in 2012
a The Youtube channels for the UK versions of X
Factor and Got Talent have generated well over a
bilion hits around the world

u |n addition $o 1ts established TV format brands,
FremantleMedia launched four Youtube-funded
channels 1n 2012 The move 1s part of the com-
pany's strategy 10 produce onginal, quality pro-
gramming for multipte media platferms
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3 Industry/IREP and RTL Group
estmates

4 Sowca GIK Target group. 14-49

5 Source Groupe MG estrate

6 Sourca Mediamétine. Targel group
housewves under 50 finchxdng
digital channeis}

7 Sourca SKO Target group 20-49
18-24hk

8 Source Augimétne Target group
shoppers 18-54, 17-23h

G Source Infoadex and
Grupo Antena 3 estinate

1Q Sourca TNS Sofres Targe! group
16-54 (ncludng digital channels,
bu! exchuding Le Sexta)

11 Source AGE Hungary Target group
#8-49 prme trme (inchuding cable
channels)

12 Sourca AGE Mefsen Media
Research Target group 18-49

13 EBITDA represents ESIT excluding
amortsaton and imparment of
nan current programme and other
nghis of goouwil! and dsposal
group, of other witangible assels
deprecialion and impasmnent
of property plant and ggupment
wnpairent of iNvesknas i
gssociales s measyrement of sam
out arrangements, and gean of 108y
Jrom sale of subsidanes olher
nvestmenis and re-messwement
to far value of pre exsing miarest
n scquree
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REVENUE

Througheout 2012, European TV advertising markets clearfy reflected local macro-economic
developments: while the German TV advertising market was shightly up, the French, Dutch and
Belgian markats were estimated to be down year-on-year, with a sigmificant slowdown over

the second half of the year The markets in Spam, Hungary and Croatia continued to see a more

pronounced decline

A summary of RTL Group's key markets is shown below, including astimates of net
advertising market growth rates and net advertising market shares, plus the audience share

of the main target audience group.

RTL Group RTL Group

2012 net TV RTL Group ATL Group audwence audisnce

advertising market adverlsing advertising share n main ghare in main

growth rate market share 2012 market share 2011 target group 2012 target group 2011

(in per cent) {in per cont} {in per cent) (in per cent) (in per cent

Germany +10°2 44 4 437 3374 3504
France (6 0)° 240 234 22 g8 2308
Netherlands (5 4)* 473 477 32 37 3527
Belgium (7 7) 715 710 36 3¢ 37 8¢
Spain {18 9)% 352 05 192" 1840
Hungary (14 7)2 540 479 ar 3n 407"
Croatia (a0 368 409 24 37 2557

Revenue increased by 4 0 per cent to €5,998 million
(2011 €5,765 miion) On a lke-for-lke basis
(adjusting for pertfobo changes and at constant
exchange rates) revenue was up 2 9 per cent, or
€168 millon, to €5,872 millton

EBITA

Reported EBITA decreased by 4 9 per cent to €1,078 million (2011 €1,134 miilion) Challenging
market conditions, higher investment in programiming and portfolio effects such as the disposal
of the Dutch radio stations offset a significantly improved leve! of profitability at Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschiand The Group's EBITDA" for continuing cperations was € 1,257 milfion (2011:

€ 1,306 milhon), resulting in an EBITDA margin of 21 0 per cent (2011 22.7 per cent)

Group operating expenses were up 5 9 per cent at
€4,992 milkon in 2012 compared to €4,715 million
in 2011 Excluding foreign exchange rate effects and
the recharges without margins to third parties at
FremantieMedia, costs were up €165 millon or 3 4
per cent
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REVIEW BY SEGMENTS
Yoar to Year to
December December Per cont
2012 2011 Per cent of total
Revenue €m €m change 212
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland 1,982 1,912 +37 331
Groupe MB 1,387 1,421 (2 4) 231
FremantleMedia 1,711 1,429 +197 285
RTL Nederland 421 491 (122) 72
RTL Belgium 210 216 (2 8) 35
French radio 180 184 {2 2) 30
Other segments 304 330 {7 9) 51
Elminations (207) (218) (50 (3 5)
Total revenue 5,998 5,765 +40 1000
Year to Year ta

December December Per cent
2012 2011 Per cent of total
EBITA €m €m changa 2012
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland 581 529 +98 539
Groupe M6 224 249 (100} 208
FremantleMedia 138 143 {35 128
RTL Nederland a7 134 (27 6) 90
RTL Belgum 45 46 22 41
French radio 30 30 - 28
Other segments {37) 3 na {3 4)
Reported EBITA 1,078 1,134 {4 9) 1000
Year to Yearto Percentage
Dacember Dacember pamt
2012 2011 change

EBITA margms per cent per cant
Medengruppe RTL Deutschland 29 3 277 +16
Groupe M6 161 175 (14
FremantleMedia 81 100 {19
RTL Nederland 225 273 48)
RTL Belgum 21 4 213 +01
French radio 167 163 +04
Other segments na 09 na
RTL Group 18.0 19.7 n
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Financial results

in 2012, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand coniinued to outperform

the German TV advertising market ~ which was estimated to be shghtly up,
by 1 0 per cent - and increased its combined net share (including RTL i}

to 44.4 per cent (2011 43.7 per cent}

Overall revenue of Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand grew by 3.7 per cent

to €1,982 million (2011. €1,912 mullion), mainly driven by higher TV advertising
revenue from the unit's two main channels, RTL Television and Vox. Due

to ocngoing cost control measures, EBITA increased strongly by 9.8 per cent
to €581 mullron (2011- €529 muifion) - the umit’s best ever full-year

operating profit. At 29 3 per cant, the profit margn also reached a new
record level (2011 27 7 per cent).

Year to Year to
December December
2012 2011 Per cent
€m €m change
Revenue 1,982 1,912 +37
EBITA 581 529 +9.8
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Audience ratings

In Germany, the 2012 ratings were \mpacted by
major sporting events, ncluding the Euro 2012 foot-
ball championship and the Summer Olympics, both
of which were ared on the publc broadcasters
ARD/Das Erste and ZDF 2012 also saw an acceler-
ated fragmentation of the TV landscape, with the
launch of new channels and the switch-off of ana-
logue satelite broadcasting, resulting m audwence
share losses for all of the three biggest commercial
TV channels At the same time, riche channels (with
an audience share below 2 0 per cent In the target
group) collectively increased their audience shares
by 2 3 percentage points

The combined average audience share of Medien-
gruppe RTL Deutschland in the key 14 to 49 target
group amounted to 33 7 per cent (2011 350 per
cent) — including the new channel RTL Nitro which
was launched in April The RTL family of channels
was clearly ahead of its man commercial competitor
ProSiebenSatt (27 8 per cent} and the public broad-
casters {22 7 per cent)

With an audience share of 15 9 per cent In the tar-
get group of viewers aged 14 to 49 1n 2012 (2011
18 4 per cent), RTL Telewtsion remaned viewers’
number-one choice for the 20™ consecutive year,
and by a large margn - 4 6 percentage pomnts
ahead of the second-hughest rated channel, Pro Sie-
ben In terms of total audience, RTL Telewision was
on a par with ARD/Das Erste (both 12 3 per cent)
and shghtly behwnd ZDF (12 6 per cent}




RTL Television

Source GK Target 14-43

TV audience share
2008-2012 (%)

159
184
181
169
157

RTL Telewision scored high ratings across all genres,
from entertainment shows, Iive sporting events and
daly scaps to factual entertanment and fiction
farmats Its big TV events continued to reach mass
audiences At the beginring of the year, the sixth
season of fch bir ein Star — Holt mich hier raus? I'm A
Celebnty  Get Me Qut Of Here!) attracted an aver-
age 6 69 millon viewers The average audience share
among viewers aged 14 1o 49 was 37 7 per cent

On Easter Sunday, the mowvie Avatar was watched
by an average 7 04 millon wewers, representing a
33 0 per cent audience share among young viewers
Live broadcasts of the Formula One races attracted
an average 34 0 per cent of the total audence in
2012 As many as 12 92 million viewers tuned in for
the Vitalt Kiitschko vs Dereck Chisora boxing match
In February, which atiracted 56 5 per cent of the to-
tal audience — making it the most-watched show on
RTL Telewision in 2012

An average 25 7 per cent of vewers aged 14 10 49
watched RTL Telewision's talent show Deutschiand
sucht den Superstar The sixth season of Rach, der
Restauranttester hit a new ratings high wath an aver-
age audience share of 22 7 per cent in the target
group of 14 to 49-year-old viewers

The dally senes Gute Zetten, Schlechte Zerten (Good
Times, Bad Times) celebratad its 5,000" episode n
May, attarsng an average audience share of 20 3
per cent ameng viewers aged 14 to 49 durnng the
reporiing penod

RTL Telewsion's main news programme, RTL Aktuell,
was watched by an average 17 9 per cent of view-
ers aged 14 to 49 It remained the most popular
news format among young audences, despite com-
petition from the public channels with audience
magnets such as the Olympic Games and the Euro-
pean football championships

Vox TV audience share
Source GX Tagel 14-43 2008- 2012 {%}

77
73
77
75
75

In 2012, Vox's audience share in the target group of
14 to 49-year-old vewers was 7 7 per cent (2011

“‘Fragment yourself before
the market does.’ With that rule
in mind we launched
a new free digital TV channel
in 2012, Less than a year
later, RTL Nitro is already a
success. So we keep developing
strong brands on the content
side while offering them
on all screens: in 2012
we generated more than 1 billion
online video views across all
of our platforms for the
first time. Again, having the
best content was key to another
record business year.”

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT,

CO-CEQ, RTL GROUP,
CEQ, MEGIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

RTL GROUP
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7 3 per cent} The channel registered a significant
ratngs increase In daytime audience Durng the
1300 to 17 00 slot on Mondays to Fndays, Vox at-
tracted an average 7 3 per cent of 14 to 49-year-old
viewers, representing a 66 per cent increase over
the previous year (2011 4 4 per cent) Especially
well received were the scnpted reality format Verkiag
mich doch!, with an average audience share of 97
per cent, and Shopping Queen, which reached an
average 7 5 per cent of viewers aged 14 to 49

The channel's Saturday documentanes continued
to achisve good ratings The four-hour special,
Thank You For The Music - 40 Years Of Abba, which
marked the annivarsary of the Swedish pop group
on 2 June, scored an audience share of 12 1 per
cent among viewers aged 14 to 49

In access pnme time, Das perfekte Dinner im Schiaf-
rock — the sleepover special of the cooking show
Come Dine With Me — attained its highest ratings
since going on ar, attracting 2 6 million wiewers on
30 January, and an average audience share of 10 3
per cent The daly edition of the celebnty magazine
Prominent!, ared at 20 00, proved s populanty
with a new ratings record since its launch, reaching
an average audience share of 8 5 per cent in the tar-
get group

The new US senes Rizzol & Isles has settled well nto
the channel's Wednesday cnme line-up Its average
audience share In the target group was 8 7 per cent

RTL I TV auchence share

Source GK Tarpet 14-43 2008~ 2012 (%)

6.4
56
60
62
61

RTL I significantly increased its audience share
amecng viewers aged 14 to 48 to 6 4 per cent (2011

5 6 per cent}, manly dnven by its access pnme time
lne up, which consists of Berfin — Tag & Nacht,

Privatdetektive im Einsatz and X Dianes  Also popu-
lar was the new daytime programming, with shows
such as Der Trodeltrupp and Family Stones In July,
RTL Il recorded a daytime audience share (8 00 to
20 00) of 8 4 per cent - the best figure in this times-
lot since the channel launched

RTL II's vaned programming during pame time also
resonated well with viewers, who enjayed Its innova-
tive event-scale transmission of Game Of Thrones —
Das Lied von Eis and Feuer on a single weekend
The fantasy senes scored an average audience
share of @ 7 per cent In the targst group, and gave
the channel its best Sunday prme time ratings
(20 15 to 23 15) since August 2010 and best Satur-
day prime tme ratings since January 2009

The channel's docu-soaps were also poputar dunng
prme tme For example, Die Geissens - Eine
schreckiich glamourose Famiie, which follows the
unusual dally life of a family of self-made millionares,
was watched by an average 9 9 per cent of vewers
aged 14 ta 49

TV audience share
2003-2012 %)

Super RTL
Source GAC Targe! 3-13(6-20 150

231
241
228
242
232

With an audience share of 23 1 per cent (2011 24 1
per cent) In the target group of 3 to 13-year-olds be-
tween 6 00 and 20 15, Super RTL remains well
ahead of its two compettors, Kinderkanat (22 1 per
cent) and Nickelodeon (11 6 per cent} The channel
has been the clear leader in the German children's
TV market for 15 consecutive years, and currently
reaches over 95 per cent of children aged 3 to 13
years In Germany, according to GfiK

Super RTL's pre-school strand, Toggoling, scored
high average audience shares in tha targst group,
with formats such as Mike der Ritter (46 O per cent)

TV audience share TV advertising share
Source G Tagat 14-49 20081012 (%) Source RTL Group satmatsa 2008-2012 (%)
46 4
444
437
41 4 408
2041 2002
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and Cleo und die Kunstprraten (36 0 per cent) In ac-
cess pnme {ime, live-action formats such as Disney
Jessie (21 0 per cent) performad well The new se-
nes Once Upon A Time - Es war einmal  was par-
ticutarty successful in pnme time, with an average
audience share of 4 1 per cent in the target group of
14 to 49-years-clds

N-TV attracted an average audience share of 11
per cent among viewers aged 14 to 49 durng the re-
porting penod (2011 1 2 per cent} The N-TV news
programmes attracted up to 11 0 per cent of viewers
aged 14 to 49 while the Telebdrse, which provides
dally information about developments on the finan-
cial markets and the stock market, attracted up to
9 4 per cent of the targst audence With the live
broadcast of the Red Bull Stratcs event on 14 Octo-
ber, N-TV recorded an average audience share of
11 9 per cent amaong viewers aged 14 {o 49 - the
channel's best ratings since 11 September 2001 and
the live broadcast of the bunal of Michael Jackson

With a monthly audience share of 07 per cent
among 14 to 49-year-olds i December 2012,
RTL Nitro, the latest addition to the Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland family of channels, ended the
year on a high note Its average ratings for 2012 -
dunng which the channel was only on ar for nine
months — were an encouraging O 4 per cent among
young viewers

National audience hreakdown
Source GfK Target 14-43 2012 (%)
- RTL Television 159
4 N Vox 17
RTL I 654
Super RTL 2.2
N N-TV 11
RTL Nitro 04
Pro7 113
Sat1 .99
ARD 70
ZDF 68
Kabel 1 56
Others 257

New media and diversification activities

RTL Interactive 1s responsible for dwersification
actvties within Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland,
including digrtal coritent and services

Dunng 2012, RTL Interactive completed the ‘Now'
family of catch-up TV services with the addition of
RTL Il Now, N-TV Now and RTL Nitro Now The
family — which consists of RTL Now, Vox Now, RTL I
Now, Super RTL Now, N-TV Now and RTL Nitro
Now — collectively registered €02 milion views
{2011 247 milion wideo views), representing more
than 50 per ceni of video vews for websites man-
aged by Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland

Combining these on-demand platforms with the clip
portal Ciipfish de, the newly launched Chpfish Music
HbbTV, and Medengruppe RTL Deutschland's
channel and thematic websites, the number of video
views of professionally produced content increased
by 52 per cent to 1 18 billon Around 10 per cent of
thase views wera generated on mobile devices

Including all mobile portals and applications of Medi-
engruppe RTL Deutschland's portfolto, mobile page
impressions were up 54 per cent to 4 84 billion,
while mobile wdeo views were up 58 per centto 118
million As part of these figures, apps from the news
channel N-TV — together with Mobil N-TV de - gen-
erated an average 195 @ millicn page impressions
per month {up 63 5 per cent year-on-year), and a to-
tal of 2 4 billon page impressions in 2012 With up
to 888,000 unique mobile users, according to AGOF
Mobile Facts 2012-[, N-TV's apps rank first among
German news apps

At the end of February 2012, RTL Interactive
launched the RTL Inside app, which had been
downloaded maore than 1 miflon tmes by 31 De-
cember 2012 RTL Inside 1s the first app by a Ger-
man broadcaster that synchronously inks additonal
information about the Inear TV programme with vid-
eo and social TV options across several media The
apphcation Iinks to sccial networks to support fans'
interaction as they watch TV

RTL Interactive also strengthened ts transacton-
based businesses dunng the reporting pencd In
January 2012, the company acquired Gutschemne de
which offers several thousand online discount
vouchers, promotions and local coupons — ong of
the largest selections on the German internet

With more than 2 5 millon fans on its Facebook
page. which 1s produced by RTL II's online editonal
team, Berlin — Tag & Nacht 1s Germany's most pop-
ular TV format in the social web

RTL GROUP
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GROUPE M6
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Financial resutts

in 2012, Groupe M6’s reported revenue was down by 2.4 per cent to €1,387
mullion (2011 €1,421 million) While the company’s diversification and audio-
visual nghls revenue remamed almost stable, Groupe M6’s total advertising
revenua decreased by 3.8 per cent 41 5 per cent of Groupe M6's consohdat-
ed revenue onginated from a broad range of non-advertising activitres, un-
derlining the company’s position as a leader in the field of diversification.

The French net TV advertising market was estimated to be down by 6.0 per
cent in the reporting period, due to a significant slowdown dunng the second
half of the year Groupe M6 again outperformed the market, increasing its
estimated net share to 24.0 per cent (2011 23.4 per cent).

Based on significantly lower profit contnibutions from its main channel Mg

- as a result of lower advertising revenue and higher programming costs for
the Euro 2012 football champronship - reported EBITA of Groupe M6 de-
creased by 10.0 per cent to €224 mullion (2011 €249 million).

Audience ratings
Yoar 1 veart Thanks to its complementary family of channels, the
‘Bar 1o
Decormber  December combined total audience share of Groupe M6 n-
2012 2011 Per t
o i :h ;’;‘a creased to 15 5 per cent over the penod (2011 152
per cent) In the man commercial target group of
Revenue 1387 1.421 2.4 housewives aged under 50, the combined audience
share remamned almost stable at 22 9 per cent
(2011 23 O per cent)

EBITA 224 249 (10.0}

M6 remained the second most popular channel In
France among housewives under 50, reporting an
audience share of 17 Q0 per cent (2011 17 2 per
cent), and continued to reduce the gap to the mar-
ket leader, TF1 Over the past ten years, this gap
has reduced from 16 6 to 8 5 percentage poinis In
terms of total audience share {11 2 per cent), M6
remained the third most popular channel, and was
again the only major channel to increase its ratings
year-on-year (2011 10 B per cent), In an environment
stll marked by ongoing audience fragmentation At
the end of 2012, six new free digital terrestnal TV
(D77} channels were launched in France

In June and July, M6 aired ten of the 31 matches of
the European foatball championship and scored
excellent ratngs The France vs Sweden match
was watched by 12 2 milion viewers, the channel’s
second-highest ratings ever M6 achieved a record
audence for the competiion In access prime time
for the Ukrane vs France match, with 10 5 million
viewers — the third best audience ever for M6 As a
conseguence, M6 broadcast two of the ten most-
watched shows an French TV in 2012
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M6 TV audience share
Source Mddiamdrne Targat housewives < 50 2008- 2012 {%)

170
17 2
165
172
175

M6 Increased its ratings in access pnme time, with
the factual entertainment show Un diner presque
parfat {Come Dine With Mg), the magazine 100%
Mag, the main news show Le 18 45 and the short
drama senes Scénes de meénages On average, Le
19 45 gained more than 500,000 viewers year-on-
year, making it the news show with the biggest audi-
ence Increase (average audience share among
housewrves aged under 50 26 6 per cent) With an
average audience share of 25 4 per cent in the com-
mercial target group and 17 4 per cent of the total
audience, Scénes de menages achigved the chan-
nel's best sver ratings m the 20 00 time slot ever
The series has become the most watched pro-
gramme In the 20 00 time slot ameng viewers aged
under 50, all channels included

MB's most popular pnme time format was the
seventh seasan of the romantic docu-soap L'amour
ast dans le pré (The Farmer Wants A Wife) which
achieved an average audience share of 37 & per
cent m the commercial target group The format
also made M6 the market leader among all target
groups on Mongay evenings Since its first season,
the format has consistently improved its ratings
The second highest-rated format was Top Chef,
which reached up to 55 million viewers with its
season finale, and increased 1ts average audience
by 500,000 wvewers dunng the third season
The talent show La France a un incroyable talent
(Got Talent) achieved Its best sgason ever, with an
average audience of 4 9 millon viewers (2011 4 3
millon viewers) Other established brands m prime
time include Pékin Express, factual entertainment
formats with a focus on lfestyle such as D&Co
and Maison & vendre (House For Sale), US senes
such as NCIS and Bones, and the long-running
information magazines Capital, Zone Interdite and
Enquéte Exclusive

Finally, M6 continued to nnovate in 2012, success-
fully launching programmes such as Le meilleur
patissier, Patron Incogrito and 80 secondes chrono,
which has become the most watched show among
viewers aged under 50 1n its timeslot

Groupe M6's main digital channel, W9, remamned
the most watched DTT channef n the key commer-
cial target group, with an almost stable average au-
dience share of 4 2 per cent among housewives
aged under 50 (2011 4 3 per cent) Underlining its
positioning as a ‘mini-generalist’ channef, W9
scored high ratings in vanous genres, including US
senes such as Glee and Spartacus, the magazine

“In 2012 Groupe M6’s audiences
rose for the second year in
succession, primarily thanks to
its investments in programmes.
This performance enabled us
to win market share and confirm
our status as a co-leader.”

NICOLAS DE TAVERNQST,
PRESIDENT DU DIRECTOIRE, GROUPE M6
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Enquéte d'Action, factual entertainmant formats,
mowvies and sports, with live broadcasts of Uefa Eu-
ropa League football matches and the Masters ATP
tennis world tour The reality format La beffe et ses
pnnces presque charmants gathered an average
audience of 12 milkon viewers, tc become the
highest-rated reality farmat among all OTT channels
in France Les Ch'tis débarguent & Mykonos scored
record ratings for a daytime TV reality show on W9,
with up to 10 millon viewers The year's most
watched programme on W9 was the US mowe
classic Pretty Woman, with 1 9 mullon viewers on
17 June 2012

In December 2012, six new free DTT channels were
launched in France From the outset, 6ter, Groupe
M6's new family channel, has become the most
watched of all new channels by a large margn
Shortly after s launch, the channel registered its
first success with the mowe Sister Act, watched by
372,000 viewers

In the pay-TV environment, Groupe ME's channels
confirmed thewr leading positions in therr key target
groups Among the 114 thematic channels in the
Mediametne survey Mediamat Thematik — which
measures TV audiences among French households
equipped with cable, satellite or IPTV - Panis Pre-
miere was the most-watched channel in the strate-
gic pnme time slot, 20 45 to 24 00, while Teva was
again the top choice of housewives aged under 50
{audience share 1 4 per cent)

National audience breakdown
Sourca Médismidtne Targel housswrves < 50 2012 {%)
T M6 170
é \ wo 42
TF1 255
France 2 110
v France 3 50
T™C 40
NT1 27
Canal Plus 26
France 4 286
D8 . .24
Others 230
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New media and diversification activities

The catch-up TV service, M6 Replay, registered
380 millon online video views in 2012, whie
W0 Replay reported 100 rmillior onling wideo views
Both services enable wiewers to re-watch the
channels’ flagship programmes, at no cost, for
seven to 15 days after ther inbial broadcast They
are avallable on both computer and television via
virtually all cable, IPTV and satellite packages in
France, increasing the number of iotal wdeo views
on all platforms to over 600 milllon in 2012 (2011
543 milion}

The M6 app for I-Pad and |-Phane offers the chan-
nel ve at no cost, plus catch-up TV services and
behingd-the-scenes videos By the end of 2012, it
had registered more than 4 3 millon downloads,
making It one of the top free apps avalable from the

App Stora

At the end of 2012, Groupe M6 launched a naw ver-
sion of Replay's mobile apps and services for the
channels M6 and WS This revamped catch-up TV
service not only offers social TV and continuous
viewing functions that are synchronised across all
media, but also affords access to a second screen
service, dubbed Devant ma TV {In Front Of My TV)
The new version of Replay allows users to comment
on and interact with a programme whenever they
want For example, they can make recommenda-
hons on sccial netwarks such as Facebook, Ist oth-
ers know what they’re up to, watch the wdeos most
fraquently wiewed Dy ther friends or even instanta-
neously share ther views on the periormance of a
contestant on La France a un Incroyable Talent {Got
Talent} and vote

Dunng the year, Mé Web reached an average audi-
ence of 12 2 miflon unique users per month across
Its network of 20 internet sies (2011 12 5 mithon})

The M6 Mobile by Orange service had reached
2 4 milhlon customers by the end of 2012, up 20
per cent year-on-year, despite the launch of the mo-
bile service ‘Free’ on the French market in January
2012, whils the M8-orandsd payment card had over
1 2 mulion customers {end of December 2011 14
million customers)

In the previous years, Groupe M8&'s audiowisual
nghts divsion benefited {rom the tremendous suc-
cesses of the Twiight movies, in terms of both box
office and DVD sales In 2012, M6 films registered
18 millon entnes, while SND gained 8 6 milion en-
tries with 12 mowvies

Groupe M8&'s mail-order and retail actvities ~ bun-
dled in the unit Ventadis - also had to operate n a
challenging emvironment, marked by strong compe-
tition
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Financial results

Revenue of FremantieMedia - RTL Group’s production and brand exploitation
arm - increased by 19 7 per cent to € 1,711 muthon (2011 € 1,429 miilion),
dnven by growth in the US, UK, Germany and Asia-Pactfic, exchange rate
sffects, and recharges without margins to third parties for certain production
contracts Despite this revenue growth, EBITA — which was impacted

by positive and negative one-off effects in 2012 — was shightly down

to €138 millton (2011 € 143 milhion}, mainly due to continued pressure from
broadcasters on margmns and voiumes

Yoar to Year to
December Deacembper
012 2011 Par cent
€m €m change
Revenue 1,711 1,429 +19.7
EBITA 138 143 {3 5)

“Despite difficult market
conditions, FremantleMedia's
core businesses continued
to perform strongly in 2012,
with good progress in
newer investment areas like
gaming and kids programming,
and a clear focus on
fuelling our creative pipeline
for future growth.”

CECILE FROT-COQUTAZ,
CED, FREMANTLEMEDIA

Production businesses

In 2012, FremantleMadia’s global network of pro-
duction companies was responsible for over 9,100
hours of TV programming acress 62 countnas The
company also distnbuted 20,000 hours of program-
rming to more than 150 countnes, making it one of
the largest creatars and distnbutors of award-win-
ning international programme brands in the world
RTL Group's content arm continued to produce the
highest-rated entertainment shows for broadcasters
in the biggest TV markets worldwida — including the
US, the UK, Germany, Australia, France and the
Netherlands — along with a strong stable of top-rat-
ed and long-running drama sernes
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FremantleMedia's entertainment formats continued
{0 travel well In 2012 Got Talent added another sev-
en terntenes in 2012, with the show now being suc-
cessfully produced In Belgum, Canada, Ecuador
and Nigena, among others, taking s total to 52 The
X Factor added six temtories to its roster, launching
In countnes such as Sweden, Indonesia and the
Philppines The show has now been produced in 35
terntones and sold to more than 40

In the US, the 11th season of American ldo! - co-
owned by FremantleMedia North America (FMNA}
and 19 Entertanment — was the country’s number-
one entertainment senes, winning an average audi-
ence of 17 4 milion viewers {15 2 per cent of the to-
tal audience) For the target demographic of adults
aged 18 to 49 Amencan Idof achieved an average
share of 14 7 per cent - over 120 per cent higher
than broadcaster Fox's prime time average — and
has been the number cne entertainment series I
the US for the past nine years

Returning for ts seventh season in May 2012,
Amenca’s Got Talent was the number one summer
senes in the United States, winning an average of
10 1 mullion viewers and a 9 O per cent total audi-
ence share America’s Got Tafent exceeded broad-
caster NBC’s pnme tme average by 61 per cent for
all viewers

The X Factor (co-produced with Syco) returned to
the Fox network to an average audience of 8 3 mil-
llon wiewers and an average share of 8 4 per cent
among adults aged 18 io 49

After 40 years on ar, The Price Is Right remained the
highest rated daytime entertainment show in the
United States, ganing an average audence of 4 &
milion viewers in 2012

Launched on 27 January 2012, Benng Sea Gold,
produced by FremantleMedia company Onginal
Productions, was the highest rated senes launch
ever an the Discovery Channel, with 3 7 million view-
ers tuning into the premiere episode The senes
achieved an average audience of 2 7 million wewers,
and a 2 6 per cent total audience share, more than
doubling the broadcaster's pnme time average

In Germany, the ninth senes of Deutschiand sucht
den Superstar {Idols) won an average audience of
5 1 rmillicn viewers and a 25 7 per cent market share
for the commercial target of viewers aged 14 to 49,

jor which it was the third-most watched entertain-
ment series of the year on RTL Television

Arred on RTL Telewision 1n auturnn 2012, senes six of
Das Supertalent (Got Talent) achieved an average
audeence of 5 0 miflion viewers and a 23 2 per cent
market share for the commercial targst group

Meanwhile, the eighth seres of Bauer sucht Frau
(The Farmer Wants A Wife) drew an average
audience of 8 9 milion viewers, and a 23 3 per cent
audience share in the 14 to 49 target group For the
fotal audience, it exceeded RTL Television's pnme
time average by 86 per cent, making 1t the channel's
highest rated entertainment senes of 2012

On arr since 1992, Gute Zeiten, schiechte Zeiten
{Good Times —~ Bad Times) was again the highest
rated daly drama senes in Germany, winning an
average audience of 3 4 millton viewers and a 20 3
per cent share for the commercial target, and con-
sistently ranking number one in its time slot

Event mowvies continued to prove popular in 2012
The Teamworx production Rommel was one of the
most talked-about TV mowies in 2012, creating sig-
nificant media coverage and winning an audience of
6 4 miflon wewers Ancther Teamworx groduction,
Der Turm, was the number two TV mowvie on public
broadcaster Das Erste, with an average audience of
7 0 milion viewsrs across its two parts Der Fall Ja-
kob von Metzer also received significant public and
med:a attention, and attracted 5 3 milion viewers on
public broadcaster ZDF

In spring, the sixth senes of Bntan’s Got Talent in
the UK won an average audience of 11 0 milion
viewers and a 40 B per cent total audience share,
making it the UK's highest rated entertanment se-
nes for 2012 With an average share of 48 9 per
cent for the commercial target of viewers aged 16 to
34, Britain’s Got Talent exceeded ITV1's prime time
average by 155 per cent

Returning for s ninth senes N the autumn, The X
Factor was 2012's highest rated entertanment se-
nes for young wiewers, with an average audience
share of 51 6 per cent

Ainng 1ts seventh and eighth series in 2012, Celeb-
ity Jurce continued to prove a success on TV 2
Attaining an average share of 27 2 per cent for the
commercial target {wewers aged 16 to 34) Celebrity

Number of hours

produced
Programmes 012 o

Breakdown of hours

produced by main markets
2012 2011

New - 2,379 H 2,269
Returning I 6,758 I 6,922
Total T 9,137 R 9,101
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Juice consistently ranks number ong In its tme
penod across all channels, outperforming the five
major UK broadcasters It continued to be the high-
est rated programme aver on ITV 2 and the number
cne entertanment show across all muttichannels
for 2012

Take Me Out was the number one dating show In
the UK in 2012 The third and fourth senes of the
show consistently ranked number one in the tme
slot for the commercial target (adults 16 to 34) with
an average share of 34 5 per cent

Arred from July to October, senes seven of L'amour
est dans le pre (The Farmer Wants A Wife) in France
was the most successful yet, becoming the fughest-
ranked entertainment senes on MG for 2012 with an
average share of 37 6 per cent for the commercial
target group of housewves under 50

The third senes of The X Factor in Australia was the
best-performing yet, attracting an average audience
of 1 6 milhon viewers -~ an increase of 7 per cent on
senes two and 33 per cent senes one Meanwhile,
Neighbours ganed an average share of 12 6 per
cent of viewers aged 16 to 39, exceeding Eleven's
prime time average by 148 per cent

Elsewhere, the Dutch version of The Farmer Wants
A Wifa continued to prove popular, captunng an av-
erage 43 7 per cent of the commercial target group
of adults aged 20 to 49, and in New Zealand Got
Talent was the country’s highest-rated programme
snce at least 1997 (excluding news and sports)
Meanwhile 1n Italy, the sixth senes of The X Factor
gained a massive 33 per cent more viewers than the
previous season

Digital

Al the end of 2012 FremantleMeda operated
101 Youtube channels across 18 terntores Four of
these are Youtube-funded channels for which ongi-
nal content 1s produced exclusively They are 'The
Pet Collective’, created and produced by Fremantle-
Media North Amenca and FremantleMedia Enter-
pnses, launched in May 2012, 'THNKR', created
and produced by FremantieMedia subsidiary Radical
Media, launched in July, and eNtR Berin’ and
‘“Tngger’, produced by FremantleMedia's German
subsiciary UFA, and launched in the last quarter
of 2012

FremantieMedia's remaning Youtube channels act
as an extension of the company's existing formats
The brand channels for Britain’s Got Talent and The
X Factor UK surpassed cne billon lifetime views
each, making them the highest rated channels for an
entertainment programme worldwids They are also
among Youtube's top-50 most wiewed channels of
all time In total, FremantieMedia 1s the world’s high-
est rated TV producer on Youtubs

Ludsa, already a top-50 games and apps developer
for mobile and Facebook, reached three million daily

active users and ten millon monthly active users in
2012 It offers more than 50 apps across the 1-03
{Apple), Google Play and Amazon app stores More
than 50 milion combined downloads were regis-
tered for its properties, with 12 of its games reaching
top-five spots in the I-OS app siore

FremantleMedia Enterpnses (FME)
FremantieMedia Enterpnses (FME) works wath
FremantleMedia’s own brands and those of third
parties to create additional revenue opportunities
through international content distribution, icensing,
new media and home entertainment

In July, FremantleMedia announced an exclusive
creative and strategic partnership with the US dwi-
sion of Random House, the world’s largest trade
book publishing company, owned by Bertelsmann
The companies agreed on a first-look deal as well
as a collaboration on developing onginal scnpted
television properties based on the works of Random
House authors

FME's Kids & Family Entertainment dwvision, one
of the leading independent producers and distn-
butors in the sector, with more than 15 titles in
production globally, signed several major develop-
ment and distnbytion deals Among them was a
landmark partnership with BBC Children's to co-
develop, co-produce and co-fund a continuous
sequence of new children’s programmes over the
next five years, extending on the success of titles
such as pre-school senies Tree Fu Tom, the highest
rated programme on CBeebies i 2012 for children
aged 4 to 6 {oy highest occurrence, excluding
special events) FME sold Tree Fu Tom to more than
50 terntories globally, inked a lucrative master toy
deal with Giochi Preziosy, and signed up 18 licensing
partners for further ancillary product development

Action-adventure CGl-anmated sernes Max Steel
sold to more than 100 territones, while Wizards vs
Aliens, from Doctor Who producer Russell T Davies,
launched as CBBC's number one new show of
2012 with an average share of 21 0 per cent for the
key targat demographic of children aged 6 to 12

Irs drama, & deal was finaksed to adapt bestseling
novel The Maud for telewision, prowding a new take
on the Joan of Arc legend, while award-winmng
writer/producer Marshall Herskowitz will oversee
development of an histonical TV drama senes inspired
by the popular non-fiction book Hitlerfand

FME signed several deals n the digital and
new platform field in 2012, announcing a new
digital hcensing agreement with Netflx to brng
115 hours of FME's catalogue to Netfix customers
in the UK and Ireland FME also signed a major
first-look deal for international distribution nghts to
the online video service Hulu's onginal commission
programming acress all platforms A similar deal
was announced with independent multplatform
studio Vuguru

ATL GROUP
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Financial resufts

The Dutch TV advertising markel™ was down by 5.4 per cent in 2012
Following an exceptional 2011, RTL Nederiand achieved an advertising
market share of 47 3 per cent in 2012 (2011. 47 7 per cent) The siightly lower
share was mainly due to the fact that the pubiic broadcasters presented
both the live matches of the Euro 2012 football championship and the
Clympic Summer Games in 2012,

Total revenue at RTL Nederland decreasad to €431 milhon (2011: €491 mul-
hron), mainly reflecting the deconsolidation of the Dutch radio stations Radio
538, Radio 10 Gold and Slam FM after the unwind of the transaction with
Talpa Media Holding closed in December 2011, With the shortfall of profit
contnbutions from its radio activities, and lower TV advertising revenue, the
EBITA of RTL Nederland decreased to €97 muillion (2011. € 134 million).

Audience ratings
RTL Nederdand's family of channels achieved a com-

n,:.:'b:: nec:::’b: hined prme tme audience share of 32 3 per cent In

brdia an F':,::n?; the main commercial target group of viewers aged

20 to 49, down from 2011 {35 2 per cent} — mostly

Rovere due to the broadcast of the Euro 2012 footbal

TV, oniine and other %31 230 702 championship and the Olympics on the public chan-

Radio ~ &1 — nels However, RTL Nederland mantained the large

Total 431 201 122 gap to its main commercial compatitor, SBS Group

{20 O per cent), and was also ahead of the pubilic-

EBITA service broadcasters {28 1 per cent)

TV, online and other 97 108 {(102)
Radio - 28 -

Total 87 134 (27 8) .:uTr:': :xo Targal. shoppers 20-49 (18-24%) v aumen::o-sz:?::

14 Spot and non spot revenue
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192
201
183
170
149

The family's flagship channel, RTL 4, scored an au-
dience share of 192 per cent in its man target
group of shoppers aged 20 to 40 (2011 201 per
cent) and was agan rmarket leader by a large mar-
gin, ahead of Nederland 1 {16 9 per cent} and SBS
6 (9 O per cent) In January 2012, RTL 4 recorded its
best January ratings since 1997, with a 21 4 per
cent shara in the target group

RTL 4 commands a very strong position with its Fn-
day talent shows The Voice Of Holtand (average au-
dience share among shoppers aged 20 to 4G 499
per cent), The Voice Kids (39 6 per cent} and Hof-
land's Got Talent (34 6 per cent} Ths channel's new



drama series, Moordvrouw - broadcast immediate-
ly after the talent shows — was very well received, as
were k Hou Van Holland, De TV Kantine and Van
der Vorst Zret Sterren Other new ntroduced prime
tme hit formats include Divorce, Ushi & The Family,
Ontvoerd, Myn Leven In Pum, Prodeo and Mannen
Van Een Zekere Leeftyd

RTL 4's access pnime time - with RTL Boulevard,
Goede Tiden, Slechte Tiden and RTL Nieuws - de-
livered strong ratings once agan Goede Tjden,
Slechte Tiden reached a new record with 2 3 million
viewers on 5 October 2012

The summer campaign, De Zomer van 4, premiered
dunng the Euro 2012 football championship wath the
episodes of W Orane Against the public-service
broadcaster, which attracted large audiences with
the live broadcasts of the matches, De Zomer van 4
VI Oranye attracted an average auvdience share of
21 1 per cent immediately afier the matches

RTL S

Sowcs SKO Targot 20-34(18-24N

TV audience share
2008-2012 (%)

70
94
g8
96
91

RTL 5 scored an audience share of 7 0 per cent
in the 20 to 34-year-old demographic {2011 94
per cent} This declne was caused by sporting
events being broadcast on the public channels, and
by underperforming reality shows such as Top Chef
Dutch produchons are the most popular shows on
RTL 5, including Expeditte Robmson, which was
watched by an average 27 0 per cent of young adult
viewers Also popular was Bambies Bruiloft and
Barbies Baby, which both attracted around 22
per cent of young viewers each week Echte
mexsies Op Zoek Naar Zichzelf and Bntt & Ymke
also did very well, drawing audience shares of
13 8 per cent and 10 2 per cent respectively On
Sundays, RTL 5 scored good ratings with The
Uttimate Dance Battle (average audience share
12 3 per cent)

RTL 7

Source SKO Target men 20- 4 (18- 240}

TV audience share
2008-2012 (%)

72
78
71
67
69

The men’s channel RTL 7 achieved an average au-
dience share of 7 2 per cent among men aged 20 to
49 (2011 7 8 per cent} Europa League footbal
games attracted more than 30 per cent of viewers in

“In 2012 we successfully
created a healthy basis for a
future in which the media
landscape will be in a constant
state of flux. We had the
courage to keep investing in
our channels, especially
during a year full of international
sporting events and the Dutch
elections. The result is a growing
loyalty among our viewers.
On top of that we are seeing
steady growth across
all our other activities, such
as digital, live entertainment, our
news organisation and
our ventures. Financially
we are in good shape, but above
all we remain ambitious and
dedicated when it comes to sat-
isfying our customers’ wishes.”

BERT HABETS,
CEOQ, RTL NEDERLAND

RTL GROUP
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the target group, and Formula Cne races 27 7 per
cent ATL 8 reported an audience share of 3 0 per
cent among female vewers aged 20 to 49 in 2012
(2011 3 3 per cent)

RTL 8 TV audience share
Source SKO Target women 20-43 {13- 24K 2008-2012 (%)

30
33
32
33
34

Digital pay channels RTL Lounge and RTL Crime
reached 76 millon and 49 millon viewers re-
spectively, among viewers aged 6 and above
RTL Lounge 15 the fourth mest popular digital chan-
nel Inits target group of female viewers aged 13 and
above, with a reach of 3 7 milon viewers in this
demographic Since 10 September 2012, the new
children's channel, RTL Telekids, has reached 2 0
million viewers aged 6 and older In the core target
group of children aged 3 to 8, RTL Telekids reached
407,000 viewers

Nationat audience breakdown
Source SKO. Target 20-43(18-240) 2012 %)
- RTL 4 185
4 \ RTL 5 .59
RTL. 7 56
RTL S .24
y Nederland 1 i74
SBS 6 92
Nedertand 3 78
Veronica 62
Net 5 47
Nederand 2 39
Others 184
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New media and diversification activities

RTL Nederand’s network of websites -~ including
the general portal ATL nl, the on-demand platform
RTLXL ni, the weather portal Buenradar nl, and a
vanety of websites ded:cated to popular formats —
ncreased Its average number of unique visitors per
maonth (based on unique browsers) by 13 per cent to
17 4 milien (2011 15 4 mithion)

The total number of ideo views grew by 19 per cent
to 465 millon in 2012 {including syndication, but
excluding Youtube, 2011 390 milion, including
syndication) The most popular formats were ep-
sodes of the soap Goede Tiden, Slechte Tiden, the
talent show The Voice Of Holland, and clips from
RTL Mieuws, RTL Boulevard and RTL Z Tha mobile
app for RTL XL generated 104 millon video views,
and the company increased the number of screens
on which RTL XL content 1s distnbuted by adding
apps for Windows 8 and Xbox 360

The Buenradar, RTL XL and RTL Nieuws 365 apps
all ranked among Apple's st of the best Dutch apps
for 2012 Buenradar ranked fourth, RTL XL ranked
third and RTL Niguws 365 appeared in ninth place

in February, the onlne restaurant reservation portal
Couverts nf launched an app that makes reserving a
table even easier Meanwhile, during the surmmer,
RTL Nederand Jaunched an nnovative app with an
exclusive storyline to bridge the summer break when
new episodes of Goede Tiden, Slechte Tiden are
not being ared Withun a week of its launch, the app
was downloaded 120,000 tmes, making it the high-
est ranking free download available from the App
Store In total, the app was downloaded 280,000
times and had 215,000 active players

In September, RTL Nederdand launched the new
dgital channel RTL Telekids In cooperation with
Bol com, RTL Telekids developed an Android tablet
especially for kids that has an advanced parental
contral function Tha channel also has its own app

Irt October, RTL Nederland acquired Videostnp — the
Netherland's leading online wideo advertising net-
work — thus strengthening the company's position in
the digital advertising market

RTL Ventures is RTL Nederland's central division for
new business activities in new consumer markets In
earty 2012, the dwision entered into a partnership
with the internet entrepreneur Laurens Groenendyk
and the Scandinavian fashion company Munto The
Dutch jont venture s part of the international roll-out
of the Munto concept, and was launched in August
2012 In terms of connected stores {165 in 2012),
Muntg nls the market leading sales platform opera-
tor for local boutiques in the Dutch market

In September, RTL Nederdand announced that the
company would not only be engaging in telsvision,
digital and new business but would also be pooling its
Ive entertanment actvities in a separate business unit
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Financial results

The net TV advertising market in French-speaking Belgium was estimated to
be down 7.7 per cent, with RTL Belgium broadly performing in line with the
market. Total ravenue of the profit centre decreased by 2.8 per cent to €210
million (2011. €216 mullion) as higher radio revenue partly compensated for
lower TV advertising revenue Total EBITA of RTL Belgium was almost stable
at €45 million {2011 €46 nullion), despite lower TV advertising revenue

Year to Year to
December December
2012 2011 Per cent
€m €m change
Revenue
TV, online and other 157 165 (4 8)
Radic 53 51 +39
Total 210 216 (2.8)
EBITA
TV, online and other 22 25 (120
Radio 23 21 +95
Total 45 46 2.2)

“Despite a sluggish

TV advertising market and

an increase in programme

investments RTL Belgium
maintained its profitability in

2012, thanks to improved
operational efficiency and the
strength of its radio business.”

PHILIPPE DELUSINNE,
CEO, RTL BELGIUM

Audience ratings

Though combined prnme tme audience share of the
RTL farmily of TV channels in the target group (shop-
pers aged 18 to 54} decreased to 36 3 per cent
{2011 37 8 per cent) its lead over the public broad-
casters remamned high, at 17 7 percentage points
Despte the competing public channels’ popular
broadcasts of the Summer Olympics and the Euro
2012 football championship, RTL Belgium achteved
76 ot the top 100 programmes in French-speaking
Belgium
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ATL-T™VI TV audience share Club RTL TV audience share
Source Audmidtne Target shoppers 18-54 {17-238) 2008~ 2012 [%) Source Aucamdtna Target men 18-54 (17- 230 20082012 {%)
273 64
296 55
300 55
289 71
26 3 72

After 25 years on ar, RTL-TVI has mantaned
its strong market-leadership postion in French-
speaking Belgium with an average pnme time audi-
ence share of 27 3 per cent in the target group
of shoppers aged 18 to 54 (2011 29 6 per cent),
10 0 percentage points ahead of the second tughest
rated channel, the French commercial broadcaster
TF1, and 14 6 percentage ponts ahead of the
Belgian public broadcaster RTBF 1

RTL-TV 1s the lsading news source for French-
speaking Belgians, covenng such events as the
tragic school-bus incident of Sierre in March 2012,
and the local electtons in Belgium in October 2012
with special broadcasts It is also the go-to channel
for pohtical coverage, with Le Grand Direct attracting
an average total audience share of 26 1 per cent
For the US presidential elections, RTL-TV created
cross-media thematic programming spanning the
news, RTL Magaznes, documentanes, radic and
the internet, thus reaching audiences across a mul-
tiude of screens and platforms

The award-wnming Fnday news magazine Reporter
enjoyed 1its best season to date, with an average of
403,000 viewers, translatng Into 27 2 per cent of
the total audience Newcomer personality magazine
Les Orages de ia Vie proved nstantly popular, at-
tracting an average 552,000 viewers in 2012

RTL-TV also offers its audience a strang ling-up of
international senes Audence favounte Dr House
fimshed its eight-season run with an average share
of 36 7 per cent amaong shoppers aged 18 to 54
NCIS remained the channel's top sernes, with an
average audience share of 34 8 per cent

In 2012, RTL-TVI pursued s strategy of increasing
the number of pnme time entertainment formats
RTL-TV and M6 in France were successfut at pre-
senting the third season of Top Chef to an average
audience of 36 8 per cent among shoppers aged 18
to 54, as well as the new formai Le Meilleur Patissier
(average audience share among shoppers aged 18
to 54 317 per cent} Local Belgian adaptations of
successful FremantleMedia formats outperformed
the competiton In 2012 Season 4 of L'amour est
dans le pre {The Farmer Wants A Wife) won an aver-
age 37 3 per cent in the main commercial target
group of shoppers aged 18 to 54 Belgum's
Got Talent was the number one entertainment show
i French-speaking Belgum, averaging 671,000
viewers and 38 7 per cent in the main commercial
target greup Local comedy shows - such as the
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monthty Les Gens d’en Bas — were brg audence
draws In 2012

In 2012, Club RTL strengthened its positoning
as a male-criented channel, increasing Its average
audtence share in the target group {men aged 18 o
54) to 64 per cent {2011 55 per cent) Football
15 one of the channel’s flagship formats, and will con-
tnue to be so for the next thres years as Club
RTL has secured the nghts to Tuesday and Wednes-
day Champtons League nights and the Europa
League, startng wm September 2012 National
maiches also proved popular in 2012, with 751,300
viewers following September's Belgum vs Croatia
match The audience share among men aged 18
to 54 was 552 per cent The successfully re-
vamped Monday film right gained a sold 2 2 per-
centage points year-on-year, with an average 84
per cent among men aged 18 to 54 1n 2012 (2011
& 2 per cent)

In March 2012, all chidren’s programmes were
combined under the Kidz RTL umbrella brand,
broadcast on Club RTL in the mornings

TV audience share
2008~ 2012 (%)

Plug RTL

Source Auchmétne Target 15-34(17-230

38
34
38
48
44

Plug RTL, the youth and lifesiyte channel that com-
plements the Belgian TV famuly, reported a pnme
tme audience share among young wewers aged 15
to 34 of 3 8 per cent (2011 3 4 per cent) In 2012,
the channel mtroduced French scripted reality into
access pnme tme with Les Anges de la Tele Réalité
{averaging 7 2 per cent among viewers aged 15 to
34} and Les Ch'tis {4 6 per cent)

in pnma time, Plug RTL offers a mix of fiction and
French entertanment shaws such as Pékin Express
(8 7 per cent among viewers aged 15 to 34) and
Nouvelfe Star {Idols), which captured 18 7 per cent
in its man target group for the three episodes broad-
castin 2012

The Red Bull Stratos jump drew huge numbers
for the channel The ten minutes of the actual jJump
attracted 708,000 wvewers, which translated into
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Bel RTL Radio audience share
Source CIM Radio (Spring Wava) Target 12+ 20082012 %}

166
166
188
17 2
195

Radio Contact Radio audience share
Source CIM Radho (Spring Wava) Target 12+ 2000- 2017 (%)

151
156
168
179
151

an audience share of 49 0 per cent among young
viewers, and a total auchence share of 35 5 per cent

According to the CIM audience survey covenng Apnl
to June 2012, Bel RTL remaned the general-inter-
est leader In French-speaking Belgum (winning 16 6
per cent of all listeners aged 12 and older, un-
changed to 2011}, ahead of Radio Contact (aud-
ence share 15 1 per cent, 2011 15 6 per cent}, the
leading music station and the number two French-
language radio station

Bel RTLs all-news morning show Is the leading one
in French-speaking Belgian radio It creates synergies
with RTL-TVI by shanng on-ar persanalities and car-
ryng top TV shows over into the arwaves

Radio Contact extends beyond is FM distnbution
through the web and Radio Contact Vision, a digital
video version of the radio pregramme These new
platforms increase the net reach of the music station
by rmore than 10 per cent every day

French-speaking
Belgium audience breakdown

Source Audimatne Target shoppars 10-54 {17-234) 2012 (%)
- RTL-TVI 273
/ \\ Club RTL a7
Plug RTL .33

TF1 173

0 La Une 127
La Deux 58

France 2 52

AB 3 46

France 3 29

Others 152

New media and diversification activities

Dunng the year after its launch, the RTL be website
became the leading news website In Southern Bel-
gium, with 1 6 millon urvque wisitors each month,
according to CIM Metrweb

Video remains a cornerstone of RTLs onling servic-
es in Belgium In 2012, 73 millon ontine videos were
watched across all digital platforms, almost doubling
2011's 37 millon views By the end of 2012, the app
version of RTL be had been downloaded 300,000
times 16 per cent of RTL be's traffic came from mo-
bile dewices The second screen app for tablets and
smartphones, launched in Apnl 2012, registered al-
mest 100,000 downloads within six months
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‘ Financial results
in a net radio advertising market estimated to be down 1 2 per cent, the

French radio profit centre reported revenue of € 180 milhon (2011 € 184 mil-
fron) The net advertising share of the RTL radio famiy decreased shghtly

to 26.1 per cent (2011. 26.4 per cent) Despite difficult market conditions, the
reported EBITA of the French radio profit centre was stable at €30 milion,
heiped by voluntary cost reduction and the dynamic development of the

unit’s diversification activities

Year to Year to
Decembaer December
2012 201 Pear cent
€m €m change
Revenue 180 184 (22)
EBITA 30 30 -
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Audience ratings

The French RTL radio family maintained its market
leadership In 2012 With a combined average audi-
ence share of 18 3 per cent (2011 19 2 per cent),
the unit's three stations - RTL, RTL 2 and Fun Radio
— contnued to lead aver thew main commercial
competitors, the radio famites of NRJ (14 8 per
cent, up 0 3 percentage points on 2011) and La-
gardére (12 6 per cent, stable on 2011}

RTL Radio Radio audtence share
Source Médametne Farget 13+ 2008-2012 {%)

116
121
124
124
130

In an environment that remains competitive,
RTL Radio was the number cne station in France
for the tenth consecutive year The station reinvigo-
rated its news programmes in all tme slots — morn-
tng, noon and evening — starting in September 2012
This helped the fiagship station to lead on all key rat-
ngs criteria, delivering an average cumulated audi-
ence of 6 3 milkon daily Isteners {down 0 1 million
on 2011) and an average daly time spent listening of
141 minutes (stable on 2011) With an average audi-
ence share of 11 6 per cent {2011 12 1 per cent)
RTL Radicled its closest competitor by 1 5 percent-
age paints

Entertainment programmes also expenenced an in-
crease in hsteners While A la bonine heure increased
its audience share by 8 perceniage poﬁﬂs, Les
grosses tétas — which celebrated 35 years on the arr
In 2012 — achieved a 9 percentage point increase
Both entertanment pragrammes were number one
in their respective tme slots

Fun Radio achieved an audience share of 3 8 per
centin 2012 (down O 4 percentage points on 2011,
and in line with the French music radio segment),

Fun Radio Radio audience share
Source Medimidite Target 13+ 2008-2012 %)

38
42
41
38
38




confirming its status as the number three French
music station The popular morning show Bruno
dans la Radio wakes 17 million listeners every
morning The station also proved popular on the so-
cial networks, gathenng a combined 1 6 million Fa-
cebook fans for the Fun Radio, and Bruno dans la
Radio pages, and 800,000 Twitter followers for Bru-
no dans la Radic alane

RTL 2 Radio audience share
Source Médamdine Tapet 13+ 2008= 2017 {%)

29
29
28
29
30

In 2012, RTL 2 mantained its 2011 audience share
of 2 9 per cent and gathered an average 2 6 milkon
hsteners a day (up @ 1 miflon on 2011) Ustened to
by an average 1 2 milhon people each morning, Le
Grand Morring - the station’s morning show driven
by hosts Chnstophe Nicolas and Agathe Lecaron —
reached its highest ratings ever for the sixth consec-
utive season

National audience breakdown
Source Mediamelne Tagel 13+ 2012 %)

. \ General-nterest radio networks

RTL 116

France Inter 101

Eurcpe 1 74

v Music radho networks

targeting adults

RTL 2 29

Nostalgie 38

RFM 31

Chene FM 27

Music radio networks

targetmyg young histeners

Fun Radio 38
* NRJ 69

Skyrock 41

Other formats 436

New media and diversification activities

In 2012, RTL Net, the profit centre’s digital subsid-
1ary, gathered on average almaost 4 milion unique
wisits per month and achieved an ncrease of 7 O per
cent In cumulated audience compared to 2011

RTL Radio's website, RTL fr, reinforced 1ts position
as the main player in the general-nterest radio mar-
ket, with almost 2 8 millon unigue visitors per month
{up 0 2 milion on 2011) RTL podcast downloads
increased over the year to 4 4 milion and mamn-
tained the number two position In *Catch-Up Radig’

“Radio has two major
advantages: it is equipped for
the digital age, and it is the
advertisers’ preferred media in
times of crisis. Therefore,
even in a changing environment,
RTL Radio delivers
a steady performance.”

CHRISTOPHER BALDELLN, CEQ RTL RADID {FRANCE)

in 2012, according to Médiametre RTL's services
accounted for 20 per cent of radio podcasts down-
loaded in France in 2012 RTL has aiso been proac-
tive 1N terms of cnline video, generating over 12 mil-
lion video wiews durning the year

Two new websites were successfully launched Fun-
racho fr for the October 2012 Starfioor Iive dance
event, with a strong interactive and social dmension
through Facebook connectvity, and RTLAuto fr
for the Pans Motor Show in September 2012 This
was the sixth thematc website from RTL Radio in
France, this time fully dedicated to automahile news

Thanks to RTL Net’s aim of being universally aval-
able, the company's mobile app became the first ra-
dic app to launch on Windows 8 in 2012

RTL Special Marketing, the diversification branch
of the French RTL radio farmily, launched the fourth
edktion of the sell-out Iive dance event, Starfloor, n
Parns, which was attended by 17,000 people Ared
successfully on Groupe MB's channel W9 and on ra-
dio stations in France, Belgium and Spain, Starfloor
provided a record numibber of connections on digital
platforms, social networks and mobile apphcations
Funradio frin particular scored high usage figures that
day, with 223,000 visits and 730,000 page views

While the music market in France was estimated by
SNEP to be down 7 8 per cent in September 2012,
RTL Special Marketing continued to act as a major
player in the music compilation market, selling a to-
tat of 446,500 music albums last year (up 2 7 per
cent on 2011)

RTL GROUP

DIRECTORS® REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

127



DIRECTORS' REPORT

OTHER SEGMENTS
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This segment comprises the fully consohdated businesses

RTL Klub (Hungary), RTL Hrvatska (Croata), RTL Group’s Luxembourgish
activiies, the German radio business, UFA Sports, and the associate
Grupo Antena 3 (Spain).

128 RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

RTL Klub :n Hungary In 2012, the Hunganan net
TV advertrsing market continued to dechne signifi-
cantly, by an estimated 14 7 per cent This difficult
economic environment, combined with the ongeing
fragmentation of the highly competitive Hunganan
TV market, underines the rationale of RTL Group's
acquisition of seven cable channels in 2041 to buld
a complementary family of channels and maintain
market leadership in Hungary

RTL Klub TV audience share
Sowrce AGH Hungary Targel 18-43 (pnme kme) 2008-2012 {%)

247
208
201
307
326

The combined TV advertising market share of the
main channel, RTL Klub, and the newly acquirred
RTL cable channels was 54 0 per cent This com-
pares to RTL Klub's advertising share of 47 9 per
centin 2011

Total consohdated revenue of the profit centre was
€101 millon (2011 €98 million) as revenue from the
cable channels compensated for the significant de-
crease of RTL Klub's advertising sales Total EBITA
was €9 millon (2011 €15 million), helped by profit
contnbutions from the RTL cable channels

The combined prime tme audience share of the
new RTL family of channels in the key demographic
of 18 to 49-year-old viewers was 37 3 per cent
{2011 407 per cant) For ten consecutive years,
RTL Klub has been the most watched channel in
Hungary = both among the country’s total audience
and in the key demographic of 18 to 49-year-old
viewers Followsng a very strong performance In
2011, the pnme tme audience share of RTL Klub
decreased to 24 7 per cent {2011 29 8 per cent}
among viewers aged 18 to 49 The decline was
largely due to the highty competitive Hunganan mar-
ket, with more than 100 TV channels avalable in
Hunganan language In addition, the public broad-
caster ared the Euro 2012 football championship
and the Olympic Games ODespite this decreass,
RTL Klub was 68 percentage points ahead of its
main commercial competitor TV2Z in prme time
{2011 10 5 percentage points)

The channet broadcasts audience favourites such as
the talent shows X Faktor (average audience share




46 2 per cent) and Csilag sztiletik (average audience
share 37 1 per cent), the daily soap Baratok kézt
{Between Friends), the game show Egy perc €s ny-
ersz (Minute to Win It), the quiz show A kod (Cash
My Memary) and RTL Klub’s news and information
programmes RTL Klub also introduced n 2012 a
new genre of scnpted reahty to the Hunganan telew-
sion market, A gyanu driyekdban (Cases Cf Doubts,
average audience share 31 0 per cent) RTL Klub
was the most-watched channel In the target group
on 299 out of 365 evenings, and arred 81 of the 100
most-watched TV programmes of the year — the first
17 of which ware X Faktor episodes

With an average pnme time audience share of 6 0
per cent among viewers aged 18 10 49, Cool was
the country's most-watched cable channel With an
audience share of 4 7 per cent in the same target
group, Film Plusz was the leading Hunganan mowve
channel

Launched in Octaber, RTL Il got off to a pronusing
start, attracting an average audience share of 08
per cent among viewers aged 18 to 49 between Oc-
tober and Decernber 2012 In prims time, the chan-
nel’s audience share was 0 5 per cent Ameng the
55 channels that sell commercial airtime in Hungary,
RTL Il ranked 17th by the end of 2012

RTL's entire family of cable channels n Hungary
{Cool, Flm Plusz, RTL li, Fim Plusz Two, Pnzma,
Sorozat Plusz, Muzsika TV, and Refiektor TV)
achieved a combined pnme time audwence share of
126 per cent This represents an increase of 17
percentage points compared to 2011 RTL's cable
channels are the country’s most-watched group of
cable channels

The channel’s catch-up TV service, RTL Most, gen-
erated 50 milien long-form wideo views in 2012,
{2011 66 8 miion), while other online videc views
declined to 33 millton (2011 113 million), mainty due
to the fact that the popular daly reality show Valo
Vildg was on arr for just two months in 2012 — and
the format had been one of the key dnvers for online
video views in 2011

Natignal audience breakdown
Sowre AGE Hungary Targat 18-48 ([pama timal 2012 (%}

-~ RTL Klub 247
4 \ Cool 60
Film Plusz 47

Tva2 178

’ MTV 1 .63
Viasat .56

Cthers 349

“2012 has been a crucial year
due to our cable portfolio
acquisition which has enabled us
to build the market’s strongest
family of channels, thus allowing
us to strengthen our total TV of-
fer as well as entering the
subscription market as a second
strategic source of revenue. By
operating a total of eight
channels, we are now strongly
positioned for the challenges
of a fragmented market heading
towards fulf digitisation.”

DIRK GERKENS,
CEO, RTL KLUB
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“RTL Hrvatska

for innovation by

(The Magnificent

again
demonstrated
its potential

bringing

the series

Sulejman
velicanstveni

Century)
to Croatia.”

JOHANNES Z0LL,
CED, RTL HRVATSKA

130
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RTL Hrvatska In a TV advertising market that fell
by an estimated @ 0 per cent in 2012, RTL Hrvats-
ka's revenue dropped to €31 millon (2011 €37 rmil-
lon} The profit centre's net TV advertising market
share decreased to 36 8 per cent {2011 409 per
cent), while EBITA was down to minus €9 millon
(2011 €0 milion) The profit centre’s cperating free
cash flow was €0 millon (2011 €2 mithon)

RTL Telewizija TV audience share
Saurcas AGH Nralsen Mecka Research Targatl 18-49 20002012 {%}

194
206
245
262
264

RTL Hrvatska gperates two free-to-ar channels —
RTL Telewzya and RTL 2 The combined audience
share of the two chanrels in the key commercial tar-
get group of viewers aged 18 to 49 was 24 3 per
cent (2011 25 5 per cent) The profit centre's flag-
ship channel, RTL Televizya, achieved an average
audience share of 19 4 per cent among young view-
ers, down from 20 6 per centin 2011 This decrease
was due to further fragmentation of the market with
the launch of new national channels In prime time —
the most iImpertant tmeslot - the RTL. family report-
ed a stable combined audience share of 27 5 per
cent, despiie 2012 having been a strong sports
year In this timeslot, RTL 2 remained the country’s
most popular second-generation channel, with an
average audience share of 56 per cent In its key
target group (201t 4 2 per cent)

The Turkish scap Sulgiman velidanstvers (The Mag-
nificent Century}, broadcast daly in pnme time,
scored an average audience share of 31 2 per cent
and became the biggest TV phenomenon of 2012
n Ceoatia, achieving peak shares of mare than 40
per cent The series has sparked new trends and
became a mayor topic of conversation at famity and
office gathenngs

Local programmes continued to be a wital part of
RTL Televzja's programming schedule The third

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

season of the docu scap Lubav je na selu (The
Farmer Wants A Wife), produced by FremantleMedia
and broadcast on RTL Televizya, was one of the
most popular shows on Croatian TV, with an aver-
age audience share of 38 2 per cent of the tar-
get audence The first season of Ruza Vietrova,
RTL Hrvatska's local dally drama series, scored an
average audience share of 25 5 per cent in the most
compethitive slot (n prme time

The first documentary produced entrely by
RTL Telewizja — entitled Missing Smile Antoria Bliic,
about the tragic death of a missing 17-year-old - be-
came the most watched show in autumn on Croatian
telewision, with an audence share of 42 0 per cent

RTL Telewziia’s main news programme, RTL Danas,
broadcast dally at 18 30, continued to draw large
audiences, with an average share of 29 9 per cent
among young viewers |n autumn, the celebnty mag-
azine Exkluziv Tabioid increased its average audi-
ence share by 11 0 per cent, to 25 1 per cent In the
target group Krv nye voda (Family Affars), the
scnpted reality format produced by Constantin En-
tertanement, contnued to draw large audiences
American series such as the CS! franchise and The
Mentahst also remained very popular

In July 2012, RTL 2 scored its best ratings since its
launch in January 2011 The channel attracted an
average of 7 1 per cent of viewers in pnme time
American sitcoms such as Modern Family, The Big
Bang Theory and Two And A Half Men proved par-
ticularty popular with Croatian viewers i prime time

The profit centre's websrtes callectively generated
15 millkon online videc views dunng the reporting pe-
rned, including over 5 millon video views through its
catch-up TV platform, RTL Sada (RTL Now} The
service provides the opportunity for tme-shifted
viewing of formats brodcast on RTL Telewizja and
RTL 2 Since May 2012, RTL Sada has been availa-
ble on TV screens tharks to cooperation with IPTV
operator H1 Telekom In 2012, the RTL app was
downloaded over 150,000 umes, making it one of
the most popular news apps In Croatia

National audience breakdown
Sowce AGE Nwisen Mecis Rasearch Tagal 18-49 2012 (%)
N RTL Televizija 194
RTL 2 49
Nova 223
HTV 1 14 4
V HTV 2 104
Doma 51
Qthers 235




In 2012, RTL remained the number one media brand
In the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg Combining its
TV, radi0 and internet activities, the RTL Letzebuerg
media family achieved a daily reach of 82 4 per cent
of all Luxembourgers aged 12 and over

When 1t comes to news and entertanment,
RTL Radio Letzebuerg continues to be the station
inhabitants twn to, with 185,300 Iisteners each
weekday Meanwhile, RTL Tele Letzebuerg attracts
131,700 wiewers a day, representing & pnme tme
audience share of 49 2 per cent {Luxembourgish
viewers aged 12 and over, Monday to Friday, 19 Q0
to 20 00)

RTL Telé Letzebuerg broadcasts its entire content in
HD and has ennched its news services, with a new-
ly launched 10-minute Investigative magazine, Top
Thema Magazn, anng weekdays at 1900 In ac-
cess pnme tme, 20vir Spezial covers leisure, recre-
ation, gastronomy, and lifestyle The channel also
broadcasts popular sports programmes, and Its live
coverage of national and nternational sporting
events has expanded over the past few years

RTL Letzebuerg's onkne portal, RTL fu, 1s the coun-
iry's most wsited website, with a dailly reach of 237
per cent among Luxembourgers aged 12 and over
RTL launched several free apps for the I-Phone,
|-Pad and Android devices dunng the year, featur-
Ing news, cultural calendars, catch-up TV services
and live radio They have recorded over 250,000
downloads, making them among the most popular
applications in Luxembourg

RTL Letzebuerg
Sourcs TWS ILRes Plunmaedss 2011 Targe! Luxsmbourgers 12+

Daily reach
wizint

RTL Radio Létz. | ] 56 1
RTL Téle Létz." | 403
I 237

Incluomg Dan 2 ATL

“The RTL media family
in Luxembourg reaches
82.4 per cent of all
Luxembourgers every day.”

ALAIN BERWICK,
CE0, RTL LETZ2EBUERG

In 2012, BCE, RTL Group's technical-senaces pro-
vider, launched the HD broadcastng platform of
public French-German kroadcaster Arte, in Stras-
bourg The company also finished the multmedia in-
stallation of the European Conterence Centre in Lux-
embourg, started a studio installation for 'Equipe 21
In France, and upgraded the playout technology for
RTL Telewvizja in Croatia BCE started the digihsation
of 20,000 music wdeo clips for M6 In France and the
wvideo archives of the Council of Europe in Brussels

RTL Nederlznd and BCE launched the new channel
RTL Telelads, and BCE launched the new French-
speaking martial-arts channel Kombat Sport A new
teteport infrastructure was introduced to improve the
exchange of data between its customers via satellite

A Google Widevine-certified mplementation pariner
for both wideo-on-demand and streaming, BCE now
works on vanous IT projects, such as the hosting of
TV5 Monde’s connected-TV applications, and, in No-
vember 2012, installed and supported the launch of
integrated television servces for Big RTL Thnllin India

RTL GRQUP
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“2012 was a challenging year
for us. Despite ongoing
fragmentation, our radio stations
once again significantly
outperformed the German radio
market. They enjoy the highest
regard among listeners
and do well in the competition
between different media.
The strategy paid off with
a record EBITA for our company.”

GERT ZIMMER,
CED, RTL RADID DEUTSCHLAND

In 2012, RTL Radio Deutschland, RTL Group's
German radio holding company, achieved record
EBITA of €12 milion (2011 €11 milton) Revenue
remained stable at €52 million

While commercial radio in general grew s average
hourly reach by 1 5 per cent year-on-year among lis-
teners aged 10 and older, RTL Radio Deutschland's
portfolio sigrificantly outperformed the market with
an increase of 8 8 per cent

In Berlin, Germany's most competitive radio market
with more than 30 FM stations, 104 6 RTL remained
the market leader The staton increased its audi-
ence share from 11 8 per cent to 13 4 per cent
among listeners aged 10 and older

ATL Radio Center Berlin's second station, 1055
Spreeradio, recorded an audience share of 7 3 per
cent among hsteners aged 10 and older, and 15 the
fourth most listened-to radio station n Berlin {2011
9 5 per cent)

In Bavana, Antenne Bayern was the first station in
the history of German radio 10 beat the threshold of
1 3 millon listeners per hour By achiewing this his-
toric high, Antenne Bayern leads the ranking in Ba-
vana, and also the natonwide radio ranking ahead
of all other radio stations {audience share among lis-
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teners agad 10 and older 27 7 per cent, 2011 194
per cent)

In Saxony-Anhalt, the two radic stations of the
Funkhaus Halle broadcasting centre, 89 0 RTL and
Radio Brocken, ncreased therr combined audience
share among listeners aged 10 and older by 89
percentage points to 27 5 per cent In Northern
Germany, Radio Hamburg had more listeners than
ever before in ds 25 year history With a 24 6 per
cent audience share, the station 1s the undisputed
market leader n Hamburg (2011 23 1 per cent)

Also in 2012, 11 large German commergial radio
stations pooled ther resources to become the offi-
cially hcensed radio stations of the Ueta Euro - coor-
dinated by RTL Radio Center Berlin Together, they
provided live coverage of all football matches and
the German national team's path in Poland and
Ukraine This put the stations in a position to treat
listeners 1o special expenences dunng one of the
world's biggest sporting events, and gave advertis-
ers an attractive environment

At the end of the year, RTL Group's Germnan racic
portfolla encompassed participations in 19 stations,
most of which are minority holdings because of re-
stnctions on media ownership in Germany The sta-
tions in the portfolio collectively reach a total of 27 8
million listeners per day (2011 27 2 millon}, and
have a combined averagse audience of nearly six mil-
lion listeners per hour

In 2012, UFA Sports continued to expand its port-
folo, founding a Corporate Hospitality unit, sigming
an exclusive cooperation agreemant with travel op-
erater Dertour, and enhancing ts cooperation with
the Royal Spanish Football Federation This partner-
ship now encompasses the marketing of the inter-
national media nghts for the national team and
Spain’s premier club cup tournament, the Copa del
Rey, in ten countnes across Asia and Europe In
Apnl 2012, the Polish Olympic Committee (PKOI)
and UFA Sports Peland signed a long-term partner-
ship deal, making UFA Sports Poland the PKOl's ex-
clusive marketing partner until at least 2016

In September 2012, UFA Sports and the NBA ex-
tended ther partnership, which sees UFA Sports as
the marketer of media nghts for the NBA in Sub-Sa-
haran Afnca In October, UFA Sports signed a con-
tract for marketing the advertising nghts of the Men's
World Handball Championship 2013 in Spain for all
matches of the German and Polish national teams




Antena 3 TV audience share

The profit share of RTL Group (EBITA contnbution)
was €6 millon (2011 €20 milion}

Sowrce TNS Sofres Targal 16=54 2006~ 2012 {%)
125
117 National audience breakdown
11 8 Sowvte TNS Sofres Target 16-54 2012 {%}
154
16 8 Ve \ Antena 3 - 125
i Grupo Antena 3
Grupo Antena 3 in Span In December 2011, digital channels 67
La Sexta .9.8
Grupo Antena 3 and La Sexta signed an agreement
La Sexta
for the merger of the two broadcasting companies W digrtal channels 31
This was approved by the companies’ Boards and Telecinco . 133
Shareholders’ Meetings, and following final regulato- TVE(TVE1 +La2) 120
ry approval La Sexta was absorbed into Grupo An- Cuatro 76
tena 3 in October 2012 Forta 67
Others 323

La Sexta's shareholders received 7 per cent of the
share capital of the new Grupo Antena 3, In ex-
change for the assignment of all assets and kabilities
in the company To enable this transaction, Grupo
Antena 3 first increased its capital by means of a
new share 1ssue The agreement also includes the
allocation of an additicnal stake of up to 7 per cent
to the shareholders of La Sexta in a graduated man-
ner and subject to the achievernent of a senes of
targets inked to the results of the new group during
the pertod 2012 to 2016

By incorperating La Sexta’s TV channels, the new
Grupo Antena 3 has augmented its strong presence
in cther markets — such as radio, advertising and
cinerna — with a leading proposal In the TV business
A family of eight channels {Antena 3, La Sexta, Ne-
ox, Nova, Nitra, Xplora, La Sexta 3 Todo Cine and
Gol TV - the latter on a lease basis) provides a com-
plementary and vaned offer to meet the needs of
both viewers and advertisers RTL Group owns a
stake of 20 5 per cent in the new Grupo Antena 3 15

Though the Spanish TV advertising market declined
by an estimated 18 9 per cent In 2012, Grupo Ante-
na 3 clearly outperformed the market, with TV ad-
vertising sales decreasing by Just 5 0 per cent Asa
result, the company’s net share of the Spanish TV
advertising marxet increased significantly to 35 2 per
cent (2011 30 5 per ceny

The main channel, Antena 3, increased its audience
share in the commercial target group of viewers aged
16 to 54 to 12 5 per cent (2011 11 7 per cent) In-
cluding the digital channels Neox, Nova and Nitro,
the Grupo Antena 3 family grew its combined audi-
ence share to 19 2 per cent in the target group {2011
18 4 per cent) Including the channels of La Sexta for
the last quarter of 2012, Grupo Antena 3's combined
audience share for 2012 was 21 8 per cent

On a 100 per cent basis, consolidated revenue of
Grupo Antena 3 dropped to €741 milion (2011
€805 million), while operating profit (EBITDA) de-
creased to €39 5 million (2011 €124 milon} and
net profit fell to €32 millon {2011 €93 million)

RTL Group has applied for a building permit at its
Luxembourg headguarters which will involve the
construclion of a new bulding to host RTL Group's
Corporate Centre and its Luxembourgish activities
Based upon a provisional timing the first phase of the
construction coutd start dunng the first half of 2013

ATL GROUP
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Main portfolio changes

On 2 January 2012, RTL Group completed the ac-
quisition of a 100 per cent stake in Gutscheine de
HE5 GmbH which cperates online couponing sites
The acquisition strengthens RTL Group's position in
Germany within the online market

On 20 February 2012, RTL Group completed the full
disposal of the shares held \n Alpha Media Group
(AMG) to Demco, a non-contraling shareholder At
31 December 2011, AMG was classified as a dispos-
al group and qualified as a discontinued operation

On 1 Octcber 2012, Grupo Antena 3 completed the
absorption of Gestora de inverstones Audiovisuales
La Sexta SA {La Sexta)

On 11 October 2012, RTL Group completed the
acquisition of a 100 per cent stake in Videostnp BY,
the largest onling wideo advertising network In the
Netherlands

Share of resulis of associates

Year to Year to
Oocember December

2012 2011 Per cent

€m £€m change

- Grupo Antena 3 (66) 20 na
- RTLI 13 13 -
Others - 5 na
Total (53) as n.a

The total contribution of the associated companies
decreased to a loss amounting to €53 million {2011
€28 millon) The main reason for this was the im-
parment against the Group’s carrying value of
Grupo Antena 3, for an amount of €72 million, and a
€10 milion impairment against the Group's camying
value of Ad Soctety, which s fully impaired

Interest Income/(expense) and financial results
aother than nterest

Net interest expense amounted to €10 million
{2011 expense of €2 millon) and 15 pnmarnly stem-
ming from lower overall interest income, due to the
low interest rate environment

The financial results other than interest nclude the
re-measurement of put options at year-end, move-
ments in avalable-for-sale nvestments, and chang-
8s In farr value on other financial assets

Amortisation and impairment of fair value
adjustments on acquisitions of subsidiaries
and joint ventures

This heading includes the costs related to the amor-
tisation of farr valus adustments (manly Groupe Mg}

Impairment of investment in asscciates

An imparment loss amounting to €82 millon was
recorded (2011 €6 mdllion relating to a Group pro-
duction company}, due to an iImparment aganst the
Group's camying value of Grupo Antena 3, for an
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amount of €72 millon, and a € 1@ milkon rmpairment
aganst the Group’s carrying value of Ad Society,
which 1s fully imparred

Gain/(Loss) from sale of subsidianes, other
investments and re-measurement to fair value
of pre-existing tnterest In acquiree

A loss of €8 milion from the sale of subsidianes,
other investments and re-measurement to far value
of pre-existing interest in acquiree was recogrised in
2012 (2011 non-cash gan of €107 million) This
loss mainly relates to the ditution in the Group's
shareholding in Grupo Antena 3 following the acqui-
sition by Grupo Antena 3 of La Sexta

Income tax expense
In 2012, the tax expense was €277 mulion (2011
expense of €302 milton)

Following the PLP agreement {see heading “Related
party transactions”), which was approved by the
Boarg on 26 June 2008, a commission income of
€69 milhion, representing 50 per cent of the tax ben-
efit generated at the level of Bertalsmann, has been
recorded In tax for the year {2011 €69 million}

Loss from discontinued operations

The loss from discontinued operations for the year
of €1 million relates solely to Alpha Media Group
{2011 loss of €86 million relating marnly to Alpha
Media Group)

Profit for the year attnbutable to RTL Group
sharehelders

The profit for the year attrbutable to RTL Group
shareholders was €597 millon (2011 €696 milton)

Earnings per share

Reported earnings per share, based upon
153,618,853 shares, was €3 88 (2011 €4 53 per
share}

Net cash position

The consolidated net cash position at 31 December
2012 was €1,051 millon (31 December 2011
€1,238 milion} The Group continues to generate
significant operating cash flow with an EBITA to
cash conversion rato of 101 per cent (2011 104
per cent)

As at 31 As at 31
Decamber December

2012 2014

€m €m
Gross balance sheet debt {29) (53}
Gross financial debt (29) (53)
Add cash and cash equivalants 650 701
Add cash deposit and others 430 590
Net cash position 1,051t 1,238




Own shares

RTL Group has an issued share capital of
€191,900,551 dwvided into 154,787,554 fully paid
up shares with no defined nominal value

RTL Group drectly and indirectly holds O 76 per
cent (2011 0 76 per cent) of RTL Group's shares

Related party transactions

Financing

As at 3t December 2012 RTL Group had vanous
deposits (overnight and up to three manths)
amounting to €426 rmillion (2011 €589 millton) with
Bertelsmann These deposits bear an interest rate of
either EONIA or EURIBOR plus 10 basis points de-
pending on the duration of the depest The over-
night deposit has subsequently been rolled over
The total Interest Income on these deposits for the
penod ending 31 December 2012 amounted to €3
millon (2011 €8 million)

Bertelsmann granted to RTL Group pledges on all
shares of its wholly owned French subsidiary Media
Commurication SAS and of its wholly owned Span-
1sh subsidiary Media Finance Holding SL as security
for all payments due by Bertelsmann

In Cctober 2008, Bertelsmann granted to RTL Group
a further pledge covenng all the shares of its 73 4
per cent owned German subsidiary Gruner + Jahr
AG & Co KG as secunty for all payments due by
Berelsmann

In November 2008, Bertelsmann granted to
RTL Group a further pledge covenng all the shares
of s wholly owned UK subsidiary, Bertelsmann
UK bLimited, as secunty for all payments due by
Bertelsmann

In December 2011, RTL Group Deutschland GmbH
— a Group company — and Bertelsmann entered into
an agreement related to the deposit of surplus cash
by RTL Group Deutschland GmbH wath Bertelsmann
Bertelsmann pledged to RTL Group Deutschiand
GmbH its aggregate current partnership interest in
Gruner + Jaty AG & Co KG as well as afl additional
partnershup interests in Gruner + Jahr it may create
or acqure as secunty for all payments due by
Bertelsmann As at 3t December 2012 the three-
monih depesit of RTL Group Deutschiand GmbH
with Bertelsmann amounted to €75 milicn (2011
€50 miflion)

Tax

On 26 June 2008, the Board of Directors of
RTL Group agreed to proceed with the tax pooling
of 1its indirect subsidiary RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH ("RGD") into Bertelsmann Capital Holding
GmbH ("BCH?), a direct subsidiary of Bertelsmann

To that effect, RTL Group, through RGD, entered in-
to a Profit and Loss Pooling Agreement {"PLP
Agresment”) with BCH for a six-year period starting

1 January 2008 Simultaneously, Bertelsmann en-
tered into a Compensation Agreement ("Compensa-
tian Agreement”) with CLT-UFA, a direct subsidiary
of RTL Group, providing for the payment to CET-UFA
of an ameount compensating the above profit trans-
fer and an additional commission {“Commission”}
amounting to 50 per cent of the tax saving based
upon the taxable profit of RGD

Through these agreements, as from 1 January 2008,
Bertelsmann and the RGD sub-group of RTL Group
are treated as a single entity for German income tax
purposes

As the PLP Agreement does not give any authonty
to BCH to instruct or control RGO, 1t affects reither
RTL Group nor RGD’s ability to manage their busi-
ness, including thesr responsibility to optimise therr
tax structures as they deern fit After six years, both
PLP and Compensation Agreernents are renewable
on a yearly basts RGD and GLT-UFA have the night
to request the early termination of the PLP and Com-
pensation Agreements under certain conditions

In the absence of specfic guidance In {FRS,
RTL Group has elected to recognise current Income
taxes related to the RGD sub-group based on the
amounts payable to Bertelsmann AG and BCH as a
result of the PLP and Compensation Agreemants
described above Deferred mcome taxes continue 10
be recognised, based upon the enacted tax ratg, in
the consolidated financial statements based on the
amounts expected to be utiised by the Group in the
future The Commission, being economically and
contractually closely related to the Compensation, 15
accounted for as a reduction of the tax due under
the Agreements

These Agreements increase the Group's net profit
As at 31 December 2012, the balance payable to
BCH amounts to €191 milion {2011 €278 million)
and the balance recewvable from Bertelsmann
amounts to €122 mullion (2011 €209 millon)

The Commission recognised by CLT-UFA, a direct

subsidiary of RTL Group, n 2012 amounts to €69
millkon {2011 €69 milion)

RTL GROUP
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Sigmficant htigations

RTL Group Is party to legal proceedings in the nor-
mat course of its business, both as defendant and
clamant

Mast of these clams involve complex 1ssues and the
probability of loss and an estimation of damages are
difficult to ascertain A provision 1s recognised when
the nsk of a loss becomes likely and when it 1s pos-
sible to make a reasonable estimate of the expected
financial effect of a proceeding The publication of
this Information on a case-by-case basis, however,
would senously prejudice the company’s position in
the ongoing legal proceedings or In any related set-
tlement discussions

The main legal proceedings to which RTL Group s a
party are disclosed below

Several subsidianes of the Group are being sued by
smaller broadeasters in Germany seeking disclosure
The proceedings succeed the mposition of a fine
by the German Federal Cartel Office with regard to
discount scheme agreements { share deals”) P
Deutschland GmbH and SevenOne Media GmbH
granted to media agencies in 2007 The German
Federal Cartel Office argued that these discounts
would create a pull of advertising clients towards
the larger broadcasters of RTL Greup and Pro-
SiebenSat1 and would toreclose the advertising
market for smaller, less powerful broadcasters
IP Deutschland GmbH, RTL Telewision GmbH, Vox
Television GmbH, RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH &
Co KG and N-TV Nachrichten GmbH are baing
sued in this respect by RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH &
Co KG and El Cartel Media GmbH & Co KG before
the regianal court of Dusseldorf, Germany and by
MTV Networks Germany GmbM as well as Tele-
Munchen-TV GmbH before the regional court In Mu-
nich, Germany The claimants demand disclosure of
the advertising bookings in the past in order to de-
termine and substantuate a possidle clam for dam-
ages TeleMunchen-TV GmbH was unsuccessful In
the first instance Its appeal was turned down by the
higher regional court of Munich, Germany

At the end of 2012, RTL settled two proceedings
with the German Federal Cartel Office {FCO)} The
FCO issued these decisions on 27 December 2012
tn the first decision, the FCO imposed fines totaling
approximately €55 milion on ProSiebenSatt and
RTL Television GmbH as well as two indwviduals with
regard to anticompetitive concerted practices re-
garding the encryption of digital free TV programimes
and signal protection measures in 2005/2006 In the
second decision, ProSiebenSat1 and RTL Telewsion
GmbH, RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG and
RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG bindingly
committed to the FCO to broadcast therr main chan-
nels in SD-Qualty unencrypted wa cable, satellite
and IPTV (except for IPTV platforms operated (} by
companies that don't have therr own network or (i}
by companies that have ther own network and
operate IPTV platforrms outside such network) for
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ten years starting from the later of 1 January 2013 or
the commencement of unencrypted SD distnbution
by the relevant natwork operators They further
committed that to the extent SD signals are encrypt-
ed on IPTV platforms to not restnct recording, for-
warding and skipping functonalities Encryption of
HC channels on all distribution channels remaing
possible and 1s not affected by the decision The
parties agreed 1o setlle the case in accordance with
section 32b of the German Act Against Restraints of
Competition

The FCO's second decision was appealed by Kabael
Deutschland (KDG) before the Court of Appeal In
Dusseldorf on 25 January 2013 KDG had argued in
the FCO proceedings (to which It was a party) that
the commutments accepted by the FCO do not
address the allegedly antrcompetitive practices In
relation to the HD channels but rather implement
new anticompetitive agreements for SD broadcast-
ing, and that they impose the obligation of an ineffi-
cient SD/HD-Simulcast and interfere with the entre-
preneunal freedom of network operators These
abjections were dismissed by the FCO in the com-
mitments decision and based thereon RTL Group 1s
confident that the FCO's decision will be upheld by
the court If the appeal were successful, the Court ¢f
Appeal would remand the proceedings to the FCO

Brand Cochran { BC"} was employed as a model
on the television senes The Pnce Is Frght from July
2002 until February 2010 and s claiming wrongful
termination and other allegations due to her gender
and pregnancy Her clam was brought aganst
FremantteMedia The court allowed BC to proceed
to tnal

The court entered judgement on 17 January 2013
and awarded damages in the amount of $8,536,384
(compensatory damages of $766,944 and punitve
damages of $7,769,440, subject to interest at the
rate of 10 per cent per annum untl paid) plus attor-
ney’s fees Fremantie Media 1s appealing the verdict

Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties are disclosed in
note 3 to the censolidated financial statements for
the financial nsks (pages 160 to 167} and in the sec-
tion ‘Corporate Governance” on the RTLGroup com
website for the external and market nsks



Corporate governance statement

The RTL Group Board of Directors 1s committed to
high standards of corporate governance RTL Group
has applied the principles of good governance for
years, even before The Ten Pnnciples of Corporate
Governance were implemented by the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange — principles that RTL Group 15 In
line with and subrnitted to

More information on this topic can be found In
the “About us” section of the Companys website
(RTLGroup com} It contains our corporate govern-
ance charter, and regularty updated information,
such as the latest version of the Company’s govern-
ance documents (articles of iIncorporation, statutory
accounts, minutes of shareholders’ meetings, etc),
and information on the composition and mission of
the RTL Board and its Committees The “Investors”
section also contans the financial calendar and
other information that may be of interest to share-
holders

Shareholders

The shara capital of the Company i1s set at
€191,800,551, which 1s divided into 154,787,554
fully paid up shares with no par value

Excluding O 76 per cent held collectively as treasury
stock by RTL Group and one of its subsidianes, as
at Decermrber 2012, Bertetsmann held 82 3 per cent
of RTL Group shares The remawing 7 7 per cent
were publicty traded

General Meetings ¢f Shareholders will be held at the
registered office or any other place in Luxembourg
indicated in the convening notice A General Meet-
ing of Sharehotders must be convened upon re-
quest of one or more sharehciders who together
represent at least one tenth of the Company's capi-
tal, and the Annual General Maeting of Sharehofders
15 held on the third Wecdnesday of Apnl at 1500 If
this day is a public hotiday, the meeting will be held
on the next business day at the same time

Resolutions will be adopted by the simple majonty of
vald votes, excluding abstentions Any resclulion
amending the Articles of Incorporation will be adopt-
ed by a majonty of two thirds of the votes of all the
shares present or represented

The Annual General Meeting will examine the reports
of the Board of Directors and the auditor and, If
thought fit, will approve the annual accounts The
meeting widl alsc determing the allocation of profit,
and decide on the discharge of the directors and the
auditor from any duties

On 18 Apnl 2012, the by-laws of the Company were
amended dunng an Extraordinary Meeting of Share-
holders in order 1o endorse the provisions of the law
adopted by the Luxembourg Parlament on 24 May
2011 - which implements Directive 2007/36/EC of
the Eurocpean Parlament and of the Council of 11
July 2007 on the exercise of certan nghis of share-

holders of listed companies, the so-called “Share-
holders’ Rights Directive”

Board and management

Board of Directors

On 31 December 2012 the Board of RTL Group had
ten members three executive directors, and seven
non-executive directors The exacutive and non-ex-
ecutive drectors elected at the General Meeting of
Shareholders on 18 April 2012 were apponted for
three years The biographucal details of the directors
are set out on pages 96 to 100 Three of the non-
executive directors — Jacgues Santer, James Singh
and Martin Taylor — are indepsndent of management
and other outside interasts that might interfers with
therr ndependent judgement

Martin Taylor was appointed under the critena of
independence of the London Stock Exchange, be-
fore RTL Group adopted The Ten Principles of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, though he meets the
cntera of the latter Jacques Santer and James
Singh are independent directors, and both meet the
current cntena of Independence of The Ten Princi-
ples of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

The Beard of Directors has to review, with expert help
if requested, that any transaction between RTL Group
or any of s subsidianes on the one hand and any of
the shareholders or any of their respective subsicdiar-
1es on the other hand is on arm's length terms

The responsibility for day-to-day management of the
Company Is delegated to the Chief Executive Offic-
ers {"CEQs") The Board has a number of responsi-
bilities, which include approwng the annual Group's
budget, overseeing significant acquisitions and dis-
posals, and managing the Group’'s financial state-
ments The Board of Directors met five times in
2012 — with an average attendance rate of 100 per
cent — and adopted some dacisions by circular res-
olution An evaluation process of the Board of Direc-
tors' activiies — and the actvities of its committees -
was carned out n 2011, and in the future waill
continue to be performed on a regular basis

The Executive Committes updates the Board on the
group’s actvites and financial situation At each
meeting, representatives of the Executve Commit-
tee brief the Board on ongoing matters, and on pos-
sible upcoming investment or divestment decisions

In 2012, atotal of €0 53 milion {2011 €0 53 milion}
was allocated in the form of attendance fees to the
non-executive members of the Board of Directors
and the Committess that emanate from it (see note
10 4 to the consolidated financial staterments)

Neither options nor loans have been granted to
Directors

RTL GROUP
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Appropriate measures wers taken by the Company to
ensure compkance with the provisions of the Luxem-
bourg law on market abuse, and with the Circulars of
the Commission de Survellance du Secteur Financier
(CSSF) concerning the applcation of this legistation

The followsng Board Committees are established
Nomination and Compensation Committee
The Nomination and Compensation Committee com-
pnises three non-executive directors, one of whom s
an independent director (who also charrs the meet-
ings), and meets at least twice a year The Nomination
and Compensation Committes met five times in 2012,
with an average attendance rate of 100 per cent

The Nemination and Compensation Commuttes con-
sults with the CEQs cn the appomntment and removal
of executive directors and senior management, and
determines the Group's compensation policy

Audit Commmuttee

The Audit Commuittee 1s made up of three non-exec-
utrve directors — two of whom are independent -
and meets at least four times a year

The Committee’s plenary meetings are attended by
the CECs, the Cheef Financial Officer (“CFO"), the
Head of Internal Audit, the external auditors and oth-
er sentor Group finance representatives The Audit
Committee met three times In 2012, with an average
attendance rate of 100 per cent

The Committee reviews the nsk management and
control environment, financial reporiing and stand-
ards of business conduct

The Head of Internal Audit and the external auditors
have direct access to the Charman of the Audit
Committeg, who 1s an independent director

CEOs

Responsibility for day-to-day management of the
company rests with the CEQs, who — on a regular
basis and upon request of the Board - mform the
Board of Directors about the status and develop-
ment of the Company

The CEQs are responsible for proposing the annual
budget, to be approved by the Board of Directors
They are also responsible for determining the ords-
nary coursa af the business

Executive Committee

On 18 Apnl 2012, the Board of Directors {re)set up
the Executive Committee which consists of the three
executive directors, 1 @ the two CEQs and the CFO
The Executive Vice President Regional Operations &
Business Development CEE and Asia 1s iInvited to at-
tend the meetings on a permanent basis The Exec-
utive Committee 1s vested with internal management
authonty Biographical details of the members of the
Executive Committee can be found on page 101
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External auditor

In accordance with the Luxembourg law on com-
mercial companies, the Company’s annual and
consclidated accounts are certified by an external
auditor, appointed at the Annual General Meeting of
Sharehotders On 18 Apnl 2012, the shareholders
appointed Pncewaterhouse Caopers S & rl (PwC)
for a year PwC's mandate will exprre at the Annual
General Meeting on 17 Aprit 2013

Dealing n shares

The Company's shares are listed on Euronext Brus-
sels, and on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange Ap-
plicable Belgian and Luxembourg instder dealing
and rmarket maripulation laws prevent anyone with
matena! non-pubhc information about a company
from dealing in 1ts shares and from commutting rmar-
ket manipulations

A detalled Dealing in Shares Code contains restric-
tians on dealings by directors and certain employ-
ees of RTL Group and s subsidianes, or associated
companies

Restnictions apply to

1 Members of the Board of Directors,

m All employees of RTL Group SA, and directors and
employees of any subsidiary or affllated company
of RTL Group who, because of their posttion or ac-
tvities, may have access to unpublished pnce-
sensitive information

Internal controls over financial reporting
internal controls over financial reperting am to
provide reasonable assurance on the relaloility of
external and internal financial reporting, and ther
conformity with the applicable laws and regulations
They help to ensure that financial reporting presents
a true and far picture of the Group's net assets,
financial position and operational resutts

Tone at the top

Basic guidelines for RTL Group's daily actmties and
decision-making processes are governed by its
Code of Conduct, which requires that financial re-
porting ts prepared on the basis of integnty and
transparency The Group has a training programme
In place to ensure that new starters across our oper-
atons are fully aware of the Code

Standards and rules

The nules governing the Group's financial reporting
environment and cntical accounting policies are
set out In the Group’s Financial Accounting Manual
(FAM) The FAM, which is regularly updated, 1s creu-
lated to the members of the Group's finance com-
munity, and published on our intranet Standards of
a minnmum control framework for key accounting
processes at the level of our fully consolidated
reporting units are formalised In a set of expected
key controls Qur centralised ireasury and corporate
finance actvities are governed by dedicated policies
and procedures Hedging of exposure in non-Eurg




currencies 1s governed by a sinct policy All internat
and external financial reporting processes are organ-
1zed through a centrally managed reporting calendar

Systems and related controls

Local {"ERP") systems are largely centrally mor-
tored wia common system platforms to ensure a
consistent set-up of system-embedded controls
Segregation of duties 1s regularly reviewed by the
Corporate Centre using dedicated software for all
reportng units whose ERP 1s centrally mantained
Internal and external financial reperting 15 up-
streamed by a centrally managed integrated finance
system - from budgeiing and trend year analysis,
menthly internal management reperting, and fore-
casting of financial and operational KPls, to con-
solidation and external financial reporting, and finalty
nsk management reporting {see section "How we
manage nsks"”) Specific system-embedded controls
support the consolidation process, Including the
reconciiaton of intercompany transactions IT Gen-
eral Controls (“ITGCs"} are regularly assessed by
external experts or by internal audt Controls ob-
jectives are defined for the RTL Group central appli-
cations (“Refarenced Applications™ and their related
IT infrastructure The objectives and the effective-
ness of these controls are subject to an annual
SOC1 ISAE3402 certification The Group's consol-
dation scope I1s constantly updated, both at the level
of financial interests captured in the cons#clidation
system, and at the level of legal informaticn through
a dedicated legal scope system

Analytics and reporting

All internal and external local financial and consoli-
dated reporting 1s systematically reviewed by local
finance staff or by finance teams within the Corpo-
rate Centre Typical analyses include comparisons
to previous year, budget and forecast, financial and
operatonal KPls, flows of key captions on the in-
come statement, statement of the financial position,
changes In equity, and cash flow statement Regular
communication between our operations and the
Corporate Centre’s finance department ensures any
issue that could affect tha Group's financial reporting
1s iImmediately flagged and resolved Quarterly re-
porting to the financial market rs reviewed and ap-
proved by the Audit Committee

Transparency

Business unit-level finance committees ensure any
issuas that could significantly affect the financiat
staterments are quickly brought to the attention of
management Our incident reparting policy requires
business units to iImmed:ately report fraud incidenis
to the Group Identified control weaknesses that
could impact the relablity of financial reporting — re-
ported by either external or internal audit — are
brought to the attention of management and the Au-
dit Committes, and are part of a follow-up process
Each year, the business units self-assess the matu-
niy level of therr local internal controls over financial
reporting Results of this self-assessment are report-
ad to the Audit Committee At each meeting the Au-
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dit Commttee 1s updated on the key accounting, tax
and legal 1ssues within the Group

The Corporate Centre constantly promotes the im-
portance of soundly designed interral controls - not
only over financial reporting, but also for operational
pracesses - through dedicated warkshops with our
husiness units, and the work of the Internal Audit
department

How we manage nsks

By ther nature, media businesses are exposed
to nsk Telewision and radio channels can lose aud-
ences rapidly as new compettive threats emerge,
with consequent loss of revenue Broadcasters and
producers are exposed o legal nsks, such as fiti-
gation by aggneved indmiduals or organisations,
and medta businesses are more exposed than most
tc economic cycles - advertising 1s usually one
of the first casualties in an economic downturn
RTL Group’s international presence exposes It to
further nsks, such as adverse currency maovements
and debtors' default

The Board of Directors maintains responsibiity for
ensuring RTL Group mantans a sound system of
internal controls, inctuding financizl, operational and
complance nsks

RTL Group has robust nsk management processes
In place, designed to ensure that risks are identi-
fied, monitored and controlled Qur nsk manage-
ment system 15 based on a specific poicy and a
clear set of procedures Policies and procedures are
reviewed on a regular basis by the Internal Audit
Department and/or external consulting companies
Risk management reporting 1s coordinated by the
Treasury Department, then reviewed by the Internal
Audit Department

The internal control system process is designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achieve-
ment of objectives In the {ollowing categories

= Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and the
optimal use of the Group’s resources

® |ntegrity and reliability of financial and operational
information

» Reliabilty of financial reporting

m Proper 1dentfication, assessment, mitigation and
reporting of matenal nsks

» Compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
standards and contracts

Internal controls cannot provide an absolute guaran-
tee that nsks of misstatement, losses or human error
have been totalty ekminated

Definition of nsk

RTL Group defines a nsk as the danger of a negative
development that could endanger the solvency or
existence of a business unit, or have a negatve im-
pact on the Group's Income statement
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Risk reporting framework
We have developed a framework for the reporting of
nsks, In ine with good corporate practice

Thus framework 1s based on a number of key
pnnciples

® Cornprehensive scope of nsk assessment nsks are
assessed within a framework of defined key nisk
categories Regular nsk assessmeants includs a de-
scripton of the nsk, an indication of the potential fi-
nancial Impact, and steps taken to mittgate the nsk
These steps are performed throughout RTL Group,
consolidated by the Treasury Department, reviewed
by the Internal Audit Department, and ultimately de-
scnbed in a dedicated Risk Management Report
Results are presented to the Audit Committee
= Regular reporting RTL Group's system of internal
contrgls ensures that nsks are addressed, repart-
ed and mitigated when they anse All significant
nsks are comprehensively assessed wathin the nisk
reporting framework, and reporiad to RTL Group
management on a bi-annual basis This ensures
the necessary actions are undertaken to manage,
mitigate or offset nsks within the Group
m Bottom-up appreach we assess nsks where they
arise — in our cperatons  All business units have to
assess themselves according to the three parts of
the Risk Management Report
= Part A Risk assessment and quantification of re-
sidual nsks «f applicable
aPart B Health-check (self-assessment on inter-
nal controls on processes in place)
8 Part C Self-assessment questionnaire on nsk
managernent

The three parts are reviewed by both the Treasury
and the Internal Audit depantments, as mentoned
abave

= Consistent reporung our gperations report on
their nsk assessment using 2 common GRC (Gov-
ernance, Risk and Compliance) reporting toct to
ensure consistency in scope and approach
s Consolidated Group matnx we gam a compre-
hensive view of significant nsks for the Group by
consohdating local nsk assessments A Risk Man-
agement Committee — chaved by the CFO and
compnsing senior Group managemant - preparss
and reviews this consolidated Group nsk matrix
The committee also
= Advises on the control and reporting process for
any maor nsks, and recommends mitigation
strategies to the Group CFO
& Menitors follow-up of risks and ensures mitiga-
tion measures have been taken
® Increases nsk awareness within the Group
u [dentifies potential optmisatron opportunities in
Processes
= Audit approach both the process of local nsk as-
sessments and the consolidated Group nsk matn-
ces are regularty reviewed by the internal audit
function
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Going forward

RTL Group's nsk management framework 1s con-
stantly challenged — at both operations and Group
lavel - through the Risk Management Committes,
to ensure it reflects the nsk profile of the Group at
all times

To ensure Qur nsk management process and report-
Ing requirements are consistently implemented
throughaout the Group, we hold regular workshops
to update staff and to introduce new tools avallable
to assess nsk



Profit appropriation (RTL Group SA)'7

The statutory accounts of RTL Group SA show a net
profit for the financial year 2012 of €1,854,247,717
{2011 €170,055,129) Takng nto account the
share premium of €4,691,802,190 and the result for
the year of €1,854,247,717, the amount avalable
for distnbution is €4,922,600,240, net of an intenm
dividend of €1,623,449,667 {€10 50 per share, of
which €5 40 extraordinary dvidend} as decided by
the Board of Directors of RTL Group SA on 24 Feb-
ruary 2013 and which will be paid on 7 March 2013

Luxemboury Law on Takeover Bids

The following disclosures are made in accordance
with article 11 of the Luxembourg Law on Takeover
Bids of 19 May 2006

a} Share capial structure

RTL Group SA has 1ssued one class of shares which
1s admitted to trading on Eurenext Brussels and the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange No other securties
have been issued The issued share capital as at 31
December 2012 amounts to €191,900,551 repre-
sented by 154,787,554 shares with no par value,
each fully paid-up

b} Transter restrictions

At the date of this report, ail RTL Group SA shares
are freely transferable but shall be subject to the pro-
wvisions of the applicable Belgian and Luxembourg
insider dealing and market maripulation laws, which
prevent anyone who has rmatenal non-public nfor-
mahon about a company from dealing in 11s shares
and from committing market maniputations A de-
talled Dealng in Shares Code contains restrnctions
on dealings by directars and certan employees of
RTL Group SA and its subsidianes

¢) Major shareholding

The shareholding structure of RTL Group SA as at
31 December 2012, excluding Q 76 per cent which
15 held collectively as treasury stock by RTL Group
SA and one of its subsidianes, 1s as follows Bertels-
mann Capital Holding GmbH, 92 3 per cent, and the
remaining 7 7 per cent is publicly traded

d) Special contral nights

All the 1ssued and outstanding shares of RTL Group
SA have equal voting nghts and there are no special
control nghts attached to them

&) Control system in employee share scheme

RTL Group SA's Board of Directors 15 not aware
of any 1ssue regarding section e) of article t1 of the
Luxemnbourg Law on Takeover Bids of 19 May 2006

f) Voting nghts

Each share 1ssued and outstanding in RTL Group
SA represents one vote The Articles of Association
do not provide for any voting restrichons In accord-
ance with the Articles of Association, a record date
for the admission to a general meeting Is set and
certficates for the shareholaings and proxies shall
be recawed by RTL Group SA the 14th day before

the relevant at 24 hours {Luxembourg tme} Addi-
tional provisions may apply under Luxembourg law

g) Shareholders’ agreement with

transfer restnctions
RTL Group SA's Board of Directors has no informa-
tion about any agreements between shareholders
which may result in restrictions on the transfer of se-
curities or voting nghts

h} Appointment of Board rmembers,
amendments of articles of association

The appointment and replacement of Board members
and the amendments of the Articles of Association
are governed by Luxembourg Law and the Articles
of Association The Articles of Association are pub-
lished under the ‘About Us’” Corporate Governance
Section on RTLGroup com

I} Powars of the Board of Directors

The Beard of Directors 1S vested with the broadest
powers to manage the business of RTL Group SA 1t
may take all acts of administration and of disposal in
the interest of RTL Group SA The Board of Direc-
tors has set up several commitiees whose members
are Directors The responsibilities and the functon-
alities of the Board of Directors and its committees
are described in the Articles of Association and
the Corparate Governance Charter, published under
the ‘About Us’' Corporate Governance Section on
RTLGroup com The Board of Directors 1s not en-
titled to buy back treasury shares

1} Significant agreements or essenaal

business contracts
The Board of Directors 1s not aware of any sigruficant
agreements to which RTL Group SA s party and
which take effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of controf of RTL Group SA following a takeover bid

k) Agreements with Directors and smployees
Executive Commitiee memnbers are entitled to ¢on-
tractual severance payments in case of disrmssal,
except In the case of dismissat far senous reasons

RTL GROUP
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Subsequent events

On 1 February 2013, FremantieMedia announced
that 1t 15 reviewing its FremantleMedia Enterpnses
(FME) arm with a plan to create one new, stand-
alone, global dwision focused on distnbution and
kids and famiy entertainment All remaining digital,
licensing, sponsorship and other ancillary actnities
previously undertaken by FME will be housed within
FremantleMedia’s regional production operations In
addition, a new Diwgrtat & Branded Entertainment
division will be created to focus on the company's
global digital and branded entertanment actwties
The proposed comparny structure will significantly
strengthen FremantleMedia's core business activi-
ties while also better positioring the company 1o
capitalise on growth oppoertunities for the future

The Board of Drrectors meeting on 24 February
2013 decided on the following

® The distribution of an interm dividend amounting
to €1 6 bilhlon funded by the Group's net cash po-
siion and by debt in the form of shareholder loans
from Bertelsmann provided at am’s length terms
and at current market conditions The dwvidends
will be paud on 7 March 2013,

w A change in the Group's dividend policy, resutting
In a pay-out ratio of between 50 and 75 per cent of
the adjusted consolidated net profit attnbutable to
RTL Group shareholders within the Imit of the
Company’s distnbutable reserves

ANNUAL REPQRT 2012

Cutlook

Advertising market conditions in January and Febru-
ary 2013 continued to be challenging, with negative
growth in some of RTL Group’s cora markets If this
continues, it 1s uncertain whether the profit will be at
the same level as In 2012 Facing this environment,
RTL Group bas a clear focus on mantaining its
leadership positions and delivering financially while
pursuing opporunies In broadcast, content and
digital, which will develop the business further In
future years

24 February 2013
The Board of Directors




Management Responsibility Statement

We, Ankg Schaferkordt and Guillaume de Posch, Co-Chisf Executive Officers, and Elmar Heggen, Chief
Financial Cfficer, confirm, to the best of our knowledge, that the consolidated financiat statements which have
been prepared in accerdance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union, give a true and farr view of tha assets, labilities, financial pesition and profit or loss of RTL Group
and the undertakings included In the consolidation taken as a whole, and that the Directors’ report includes a
far review of the development and performance of the business and the position of RTL Group and the
undartakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a descnption of the principal risks
and uncertainties that they face

Luxembourg, 24 February 2013

(}QS%/(,,,W V %%(

Anke Schiferkordt and Guillaume de Posch Elmar Heggen
Co-Chief Executive Officers Chief Financial Officer

RTL GROUP
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CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 20t

Notes €m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue [ 5.] 5,998 5,765
Other operating income 45 40
Consumption of current programme nights {2,015) (1,791)
Depreciation, amortisation and imparment {187) (178)
Other operating expenses (2,790) (2,746
Amortisation and impairment of fair value adjustments on acquisitions of subsidiaries and joint ventures {10) (13)
Gain/(loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and re-measurement
to far value of pre-existing interest in acquires 7. 3. {9) 107
Profit from operating activies 1,032 1,184
Share of results of associates (53} 38
Earnings before interest and taxes {(“EBIT") 979 1,222
Interest income 11 23
Interest expense {21) {25)
Financtal results other than interest (1) {27
Profit before taxes 968 1,193
Income tax expense {277} {302)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 591 891
Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued cperations | 4] 1) (96}
Profit for the year 690 795
Attributable to
RTL Group sharsholders 597 696
Non-controlling interests 93 99
Profit for the year 690 795
EBITA* {continuing operations) 1,078 1,134
Impairment of Investments In associates 2ER {82) (6)
Amortisation and mparment of fair value adjustrments on acquisitions of subsidianes and joint ventures {(10) (13}
Re-measurement of earn-out arrangements 2 -
Gain/(loss) from sale of subsidianes, other investments and re-measurement
to far value of pre-existing interest in acquiree {9) 107
Earnings before interest and taxes {(“EBIT™) 979 1,222
Earnings per share from continuing operations {(in €)
— Basic 3.89 501
- Diluted 389 501
Earnings per share from discontinued operations (in €)
—Basic 001) {0 48)
- Diluted (001} {0 48)
Earnings per share (in €)
—Basic 3.88 453
- Diluted 3.88 453

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

EBIIA represents sarmngs before interes! and taxes axcluding enparment of goodwill gnd of dispesal group  and gmoriisation and enpaemient of fair valye adjustments on scquisiions of subsidiares
and jount veniures smpasmnent of ¥ s n ra t of sam-out amangerments and gar or loss from sake of subeigianes other vestments and rg Measurement Lo fax value of
pre exishing interest 1 acquiree
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m €m
Profit for the year 690 795
Other comprehensive iIncome
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuanal losses on post employment benefit obligations 8 13. (33) (1)
Income tax 3. 6] 6 -
27) (1)
Hems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency translatton differences 8 (3)
Share of other comprehensive iIncome of associates - 1
Effective portion of changes in far value of cash flow hedges (20} 54
Income tax 8. 6] 6 {15)
{14) 39
Change In fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to profit or loss 8. 14 4 (26} (9)
Income tax [ 8. 5] 8 3
(18) {6)
Far value gains/(losses) on avalable-for-sale financial assets 14 {1)
Income tax 8. 6] {1} (12)
13 {13}
(11) 18
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net of mcome tax (38) 17
Total comprehensive income for the year 652 812
Attributable to
RTL Group shareholders 568 706
Non-controlling interests 84 106
Total comprehensive income for the year 652 812

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

RTL GROUP
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m €m
Non-current assets
Programme and other rights 124 119
Goodwil! 2,679 2,662
Other intangible assets 202 201
Property, plant and squipment 346 358
Investments \n associates 251 356
Loans and other financial assets 8. 8] 239 312
Deferred tax assets 8. 5] 377 361
4,218 4,369
Current assets
Programme nghts 006 927
Other inventories 30 34
Income tax receivable 86 57
Accounts receivable and other financial assets 3. 8] 2,005 2,068
Cash and cash equivalents [8. 9] 650 701
3,677 3,787
Assets classified as heid for sale [ 4] 3 3
Current habilities
Loans and bank overdrafts 16 42
Income tax payable 79 100
Accounts payable 2,156 2,154
Provisions 8 12 221 240
2,472 2,536
Liabilities directly associated with non-cumrent assets classified as held for sale [ 4.] - 57
Net current assets 1,208 1,225
Non-current lhabilittes
Loans 13 iR
Accounts payable 319 319
Pravisions 174 114
Deferred tax habilities 62 57
568 501
Net assets 4,858 5,093
Equity attnbutable to RTL Group sharehclders 4,366 4,598
Equity attnbutable to non-controlling interests 492 497
Equity 8. 14, 4,858 5,093

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Rg presented (seg note 12 1)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity
attnbutable Equity
to attnbutable
Currency ATL Group to non-
Share Share  Treasury translaton  Hadging Revaluation  Retaned share- controfing Total
capitat  premiumn shares reserver reserve reserve eamings holders nteresis equity
Notes €m €m €m €m £m €m €m €m €m €m
Balance at 1 January 2011 192 6,454 (44)  {148) 19 96 (1,556) 5,013 584 5,507
Total comprehensive ncome
Profit for the year - - - - - - 696 696 99 795
Foreign currency translation differences §-NRERECH - - - (2) - - - (2 - (2)
Eftective portion of changes in fair
value of cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - 39 - - 39 - 39
Change n far value of cash flow hedges
transferred to profit and loss, net of tax - - - ~- (6) - - (6) - (6)
Farr value gains/{losses) on available-
for-sale financial assets, net of tax - - - - - (20) - {(20) 7 (13)
Defined benefit plan actuarial losses,
net of tax - - - - - — (1) (1 — (1)
- - - {2) 33 (20) 695 706 106 812
Capstal transactions with owners
Dividends - - - - - - {769 __(7e9)  (128)  (897)
Equity-settled transactions net of tax - - - - - - 3 3 4 7
Transactions on non-controling
interests without a change in control 8. 14. 8. - - - - - - (354} (354) (38) (392)
Transactions on non-controlling
interests with a change in control 8 4. 8. - - - - - - - - (30) {30)
Derivatives on equity instruments LARENEA - - - - — — (1) (1) (1) (2}
Transactions on treasury shares
of associates - - - - - - &) (2 - 2
- - - - - - (1,123) (1,123)  (193) (1,316)
Balance at 31 December 2011 192 6,454 {44) {150) 52 76 (1,984) 4,596 497 5,093
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - - 597 597 93 690
Foreign currency translation differences - - - 8 - - - 8 - 8
Eftective portien of changes in far
value of cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - (13) - - {13) m {14)
Change in farr value of cash flow hedges
transferred to profit and loss, net of tax - - - - {18) - - (18) - (18)
Fair value gains/{losses) on available-
for-sale financial assets, net of tax - - - - - 20 - 20 7 13
Defined benefit plan actuanal losses,
net of tax - - - - - - (26) (26) (1) (27)
- - - B (31) 20 571 568 84 652
Capital transactions with owners
Dwedends - - - - - - (783)  (783) (@5}  (878)
Equity-settled transactions net of tax - - - - - - 2 2 3 5
Transactions on non-controlling
interests without a change in control - - - - - - (16) {16} {1) {17
Transactions on non-controling
interests with a change in control 8. id. 8. - - - - - - - - 1 1
Derivatives on equity Instruments 8. 14. 9. - - - - - - 2 2 3 5
Transactions on treasury shares
of associates - - - - - - 3 3) - (3
- - - - - - (798) (798) (89} (887)
Balance at 31 December 2012 192 6,454 (44) {142) 21 86 (2,211) 4,366 492 4,858

The accempanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Notes €m €m

Cash flows from operating activities {including discontinued operations)
Profit before taxes from continuing operations 268 1,193
Loss before taxes from discontinued operations (1) {99)
067 1,094

Adjustments for

— Depreciation and amonisation 185 175
- Value adjustments, imparrment and provisions 200 232
— Equity-settied share-based payments expanses 5 7
- Gain on disposal of assets {33) (116)
- Financial results including net interest expense and share of results of associates 82 19
Use of provisions 8 12 {113} (79)
Working capital changes (44) (1)
income taxes pad {325) {287)
Net cash from operating activities 925 1,044
- thereof from discontinued operations Five Group | 4.] - 3
— thereof used in discontinued operations Alpha J!_! 3) 20}

L4
Cash flows from mvesting activities (including discontinued operations)
Acquistions of
- Programme and other rights {103) (79)

- Subsidiaries and joint ventures net of cash acquired {8) (134)
— Other intangible and tangible assets {80) (120}
- Other investments and financial assets (48) (38)
Current deposit with shareholder [8. 8. 10. 1] {25) (50)
{(274) {421)
Proceeds from the sale of intangible and tangible assets 27 22
Disposal of
- Discontinued operations, net of cash disposed of [ 4.] (2) (1)
- Other subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of cash disposed of 6. 6.] - ()]
Proceeds from the sale of associates, other investments and financial assets 33 29
Current deposit with shareholder 8. 5] 0. 1. 187 256
Interest received 13 18
258 319
Net cash used in nvesting achvrties {16) {102
- thereof used in discontinued cperations Five Group [ 4.] - {1
- thereof used i discontmued operations Alpha Q 2 {2
Cash flows from financing actvities (including discontinued operations)
Interest paid {19) {15)
Transactions on non-controlling interests {13) (111}
Proceeds from loans 7 54
Repayment of loans {60) (102)
Divndends paid (880) (902)
Net cash used in financing activities (965)  (1,076)
- thereof used in discontinued operations Alpha g {20) {44}
Net decrease i cash and cash equivalents {56) (134)
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of year 8. 9] 700 838
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash held 1 -
Effect of cash in disposal group held for sale [4.] - )
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year 8. 9] 645 700

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

RTL Group SA (the "Company”) I1s a company
domiciled in Luxembourg The consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2012 compnse the Company and 1ts
subsicdianes (together referred to as "RTL Group” or
‘the Group”) and the Group’s Interest In associates
and jointly controlled entities RTL. Group SA 1s the
parent company of a multinational television, radio
and production Group holding, directly or indirecthy, in-
vestments in 525 companies The Group mainly oper-
ates telewviston ¢channels and radio stations in Europe
and produces television content such as game snaws
and soaps The bst of the pnncipal Group under-
{akangs at 31 December 201215 set out n note 13
L]

The Company is isted on the Brussels and Luxern-
bourg Stock Exchanges Statutory accounts can be
obtained at its registered office established at 45,
boutevard Pierre Frieden, L-1543 Luxembourg

The ulimate parent company of RTL Group SA pre-
parng consohdated financial statements, Bertelsmann
SE & Co KGaA, includes in s consolidated financial
statements those of RTL Group SA Bertelsmann SE
& Co KGaA 1s a company incorporated under Ger-
man law whose registered office 1s established at
Carl-Bertelsmann-Strafle 270, D-33311 Gutersloh,
Germany Consolidated financial statements for
Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA can be oblaned at
therr registered office

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
were authorised for 1ssue by the Board of Directors
on 24 February 2013

Statement of comphance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the Euro-
pean Union

Basis of preparation

Consolidated financial statements

The consobdated financial statements are presented
in millions of Euro, which 1 the Company's function-
al and Group preseniation currency, and have been
prepared under the histoncal cost convention except
for the following matenal items in the statement of
financial position

® Denvative financial instruments are measured at
fair value,

= Non-denvatve financial instrurnents at far value
through profit or loss are measured at far value,

» Availlable-for-sale financial assets are rmeasured at
fair vatue,

m L iabiities {or cash-settled share-based payment
arrangements are measured at far value, and

a The defined benefit assets and liabilites are meas-
ured In accordance with I1AS 19

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS as adopted by the European Union requires
management {0 make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of palicies
and reported amounts of assets and labiities, income
and expenses the estmates and associated
assumptions are based on histoncal expenence and
vanous other factors that are believed to be reason-
able under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and labiities that are not
readiy apparent from cther sources Actual results
may differ from these estimates

The estimates and undsriying assumptions are re-
wviewed on an ongoing basts Rewvisions to accounting
estmates are recognised in the penod in which
the estmate 15 revised If the rewision affects only
that penod, or in the perod of the revision and future
penods if the revision affects both current and
future penods

Judgements made by management in the applica-
tion of IFRS that have a significant effect cn the
financtal staterments and estimates with a significant
nsk of matenal adjustment in the next years are
discussed in note 2

Certain comparatve amounts in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive mcome and conso-
Idated statement of financial position have been
reclassified to conform wath the cument years
prasentation

In addition, following the completion of the purchase
price allocation dunng the first half year 2012 for
the Hunganan language cable channels, compara-
tive information In the consclidated statement of
financial positon at 31 December 2011 has been
re-presented for mtangible assets and deferred tax
labilities (see note 6 2)

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012 148




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

(1} These standartls and mierpretstions
have nol yel been endorsed by the

European Unon
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Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
The accounting policies have been consistently ap-
pled by the Group entities and are consistent with
those used In the previous year, except as follows

1 New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

The Group has earty adopted the following amended
IFRS as of 1 January 2012, which has affected the
presentation of the consclidated financial statements

® |AS 1, “Financial Statement presentation” regarding
other comprehensive Income (amendments pub-
hshed in June 2011) - effective from 1 July 2012,

The following amendments to standards, new inter-
pretations and amendments to interpretations are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year be-
gnning 1 January 2012, but are not currently rele-
vant or have no or very imited impact for the Group
® |FRS 7 (amandments), “Amendments to IFRS 7 FI-
nancial Instruments  disclosures™ - effective for an-
nual period beginning an or after 1 July 2011,
® |FRS 1 (amendments), “Severe hypennflation and
removal of fixed dates for first-tme adopters” ~ ef-
fective from 1 July 2011,

2 Standards and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group

The following new standard has been published but
15 not efiective for the Group's accounting year be-
ginning on 1 January 2012

u |FRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the clas-
sification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and financial kabities IFRS 9 was issued in
November 2009 and October 2010 U replaces the
paris of [AS 39 that relate to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments IFRS 9 re-
quires financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categores those measured as at far
value and those measured at amortised cost The
determinabon 1s made at initial recognmition The clas-
sification depends on the entity’s business moedel for
managing its financial nstruments and the contrac-
tual cash flow charactenstics of the instrument For
financial hakihities, the standard retains most of the
IAS 38 requirements The main change Is that, In
cases where the far value option is taken for finan-
cial habikities, the part of a farr value change due to
an entity’s own credit nsk is recorded in other com-
prehensive income rather than the iIncome state-
ment, unless this creates an accounting mismatch
The Group Is yet to assess IFRS 8's full impact and
intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the accounting
penod beginning on or after 1 January 2015 (1}

The following new standards and amendments to
standards have been published but are not effective
for the Group’s accounting year beginning on 1 Jan-
uary 2012 and are expected to have no or very im-
ted impact for the Group
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®|AS 19, “Employse benefits” {amendments pub-
ished in June 2011) — effective from 1 January
2013,

8 |FRS 10, “Consokdated financial statements™ -
effective from 1 January 2014,

®|FRS 11, “Jont arrangements” - effectve from
1 January 2014,

®IFRS 12, “Disclosures of interests in other entities”
- effective from 1 January 2014,

® [FRS 13, “Far value maeasurement” - effective from
1 January 2013,

e |AS 27, “Separate financiat statements” (revised
2011} - effective from 1 January 2014,

wiAS 28, Associates and joint ventures” {revised
2011) - effective from 1 January 2014,

8 |AS 12 (amendment), “Deferred tax recovery of
underlying assets” - effective from 1 January 2013,

u|FRS 7 (amendments), “Financial instruments
disclosures” on offsetting financial assets and
financial labilittes — effective from 1 January 2013,

s|AS 32 {amendments), “Financial instruments
presentation” on offsetting financiat assets and
financial habilites - effective from 1 January 2014,

® [FRIC 20, “Stripping costs in the production phase
of a surface ming” - effective from 1 January 2013,

#improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 - effective
from 1 January 2013 (1)

Principles of consolidation

Subsidianes

Subsidiaries are those undertakings controlled by
the Company Control exists when the Company
has the power or ability {“de facto control”), directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
polices of an undertaking so as to obtain benefits
from its actmbies The existence and effect of poten-
tial voting nghts that are presently exercisable or
presently convertible are considered when assess-
ing whether the Company controls another entity
Directly or indirectly hald subsidiaries ars consolidat-
ed from the date on which control 15 transferred to
the Company, and are no longer consolidated from
the date that control ceases

The full consolidation method 1s used, whereby the
assets, habiities, income and expenses are fully in-
corporated The proportion of the net assets and net
income attributable to non-controling interests 1s
presented separatsly as non-controling interests in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
In the consohdated ncome statement

Accounting for business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which
15 the date on which control I1s transferred to the
Group

For acquisitions on or after 1 January 2010, the
Group measures goodwill at the acquisiion date as



a the farr value of the consideration transferred, plus

sthe recognised amount of any non-controling
nterests N the acquiree, plus, If the business
combination I1s achieved in stages, the farr value of
the existing equity Interest N the acquiree, less

uthe net recognised amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilies assumed

When the excess Is negative, a bargain purchase
gan s recogrised wnmediately in profit or loss

The constderation transferred for the acguisition of a
subsidiary 1s the farr value of the assets transferred,
the labilties incurred and the equity interests 1ssued
by the Group The consideration transferred includes
the far value of any asset or liability resuling from a
contingent consideration arrangement

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those
associated with the issue of debt or equity secunties,
that the Group incurs in connechon with a business
combination are expensed as incurred

Any contingent consideration payable is recogrised
at far value at the acquisttion date

It the contingent consideration is classified as equity
it 15 not re-measured and settlement 1s accounted
for within equity Otherwise, subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recogmsed In profit or loss

0On an acquistion-by-acquisition basis the Group rec-
ognises any non-controling interasts in the acguiree
either at farr value or at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the acquiree s net assets

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contin-
gent habilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at therr fair value at the acqus-
siton date

Accounting for transactions

with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group For acquisitions from nan-controlling inter-
ests, the difference between any consideration pad
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of the net assets of the subsidiary 15 recorded In
equity Gains or losses on disposals of non-control-
ling Interests are also recorded N equity

Loss of control

When the Group ceases to have contral, any
retained interest In the entity 1s re-measured to 1ts
far value at the date when control 15 lost, wath the
change 1n carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss The far value subsequently becomes the nitial
carrying amount for the purposes of accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset In addiion, any amounts previously
recognised In other comprehgnsive wncome in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
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Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
kabilites This may mean that amounts previousty
recognised 1N other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss

Joint ventures
A joint venture is an enity where the control of
economic activity 1s contractually shared with one or
more parties whereby ne party on its own exercises
effective control

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to
account for the acquisiion of joint ventures by the
Group

Joint ventures are accounted for using proportionate
consolidation Under this method the Group includes
its proportionate share of the joint venture’s income
and expenses, assets and liabilites and cash flows
in the relevant components ot the consolidated
financial staterments, on a ine-by-line basis

Assoclates

Associates are defined as those Investments, not
classified as ether subsidianes or joint ventures,
where the Group s able to exercise a significant
influence Such nvestments are recorded In the
consolidated statemert of financial position using
the equity method of accounting and are nitially
recogmsed at cost Under this method the Group’s
share of the post-acquisiion profits or losses of
associates 1s recognmised n the Income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements In
reserves 1S recognised In reserves The cumulative
post-acguisition movements are adjusted aganst
“Investments N associates”

The Group has decided not to reverse any imparr-
ment loss recogmsed and allocated to goodwill on
associates pror to 1 January 2009 This cumulated
impaiment loss amounts to €291 million

When the Group's share of losses In an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the assocate,
including any other unsecured recenvables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has in-
curred cbligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its assoctates are elminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the associates Unrealised
lossas are also eiminated unless the transaction
prowvdes evidence of an mparment of the asset
fransferred Accounting policies of associates have
heen changed where necessary to ensurs consist-
ency with the policies adopted by the Group

Transactions ehimmnated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions and any un-
realised gains ansing from intra-group transactions
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are ehminated in prepanng the censolidated financial
statements Unrealtsed gaing ansing from transac-
tions with assaciates and joint ventures are elim:nated
1o the extent of the Group’s Interest in the undertak-
ing Unrealised gains resutting from transactions with
associates are elminated against the investment in
the associates Unrealised losses are eiminated in
the same way as unrealised gans except that they
are anly elminated to the extent that there 1s no evi-
dence of mparment

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency translatiens and balances
Transactions in foresgn currencies are transiated to
the respective functional currencies of Group entities
at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and labihties denomi-
nated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that
date Foreign exchange differences arising on trans-
lation are recognised in the iIncome statement Non-
monetary assets and habilites that are measured in
terms of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction Non-monetary assets and habilities de-
nominated in foreign currencies that are stated at far
value are translated to Euro at foreign exchange
rates ruling at the date the far value was deterrined

Financial statements of foreign operations

The asseis and labities of foreign operations,
Including goodwill, except for goadwill ansing from
acquisitions before 1 January 2004, and farr valus
adjustments ansing on consolidation, are translated
to Euro using the foreign exchange rate pravaling at
the reporting date Income and expenses are trans-
lated at the average exchange rate for the year
under review The foraign currency translation ditfer-
ences resulting from this treatment and those result-
ing from the translation of the foreign operations’
opening net asset values at year-end rates are rec-
ognised directly in a separate component of equity

Exchange differences ansing from the transtation of
the net Investment in a foreign operation, ar associat-
ed undertaking and financial instruments, which are
designated and gualfied as hedges of such invest-
ments, are recognised directly in a separate compo-
nent of equity On disposal or partial disposal of a
foreign operation, such exchange differences or pro-
porticn of exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

Derivative financial enstruments
and hedging activities

Fair value
Denvative financial iInstruments are smtially recognised
at far value in the statement of financial pasition at
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the date a denvative contraci 1s entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at far value

The farr value of foreign currency forward contracis
1S determined by using forward exchange market
rates at the reporting date

Cash flow hedging

For qualifying hedge relationships, the Group docu-
ments at the inception of the transaction the relation-
ship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its nsk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge This procass in-
cludes Iinking all denvatives designated as hedges to
specific assets and habilities or to specific firm com-
mitments or forecast transactions The Group also
documents, both at the hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, its assessment of whether the hedg-
Ing denvatives are effective m offsetting changes in
farr values ar cash flows of the hedged tems

The accounting treatment applied to cash flow
hedges in respect of off-balance sheet assets and k-
abilities can be summarnsed as folfows

= For qualfying hedges, the effective component of
far value changes cn the hedging nstrument
(mostty foreign currency forward contracts or cash
balances in foreign currencies} 15 deferred In
“Hedging reserve”,

s Amounts deferred In “Hedging reserve” are subse-
quently released to the income statement in the
penods in which the hedged item impacts the in-
come statement or are used to adjust the carrying
value of assets purchased (basis adjustment)
When hedging forecast purchases of programme
nghts In foreign currency, releases from equity via a
basis adustment occurs when the programme
nght s recogrised on-balance sheet in accord-
ance with the Group's policy,

® The ineffective component of the farr value chang-
es on the hedging instrument 1s recorded directly
in the Income statement

When a hedging instrument expires or s sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge
accounting under IAS 38, any cumulative gan or
lcss included in the Hedging reserve” 1s deferred
untll the commutted or forecast transactton ultimate-
ly impacts the iIncome staterment However, If a com-
mitted or forecast transaction 1s no longer expected
to ocour, then the cumulative gan or lass that was
reported In equity 13 Immedately transferred to the
Income statement

Current/non-current distinction

Current assets are assets expected to be realised or
consumed in the normal course of the Group's oper-
atng cycle (normally within one year) Al other as-
sets are classified as non-current assets

Current habilities are labiities expected to be settled
by usea of cash generated In the normal course of




the Group's operating cycle {normally within one
year) or habilities due within one year from the re-
porting date All other habilities are classified as non-
current habilsties

Intangible assets

Non-current programme and other nghts
Non-current programme and other nghts are intially
recognised at acquisition cost or production cost
which includes staff costs and an appropnate por-
tion of relevant overheads, when the Group controls,
In substance, the respective assets and the nsks
and rewards attached to them

Non-current programme and other nights include
{co-lproductions, audiovisual and other nghts
acquired with the pnimary intention to broadcast,
distnbute or trade them as part of the Group’s long-
term gperations Non-current programme and other
nghts are amortised based on expected revenue
The amortisation charge 1s based on the ratio of net
revenue for the penod over total estmated net
revenue The {co-Jproduction shares and flat fees
of distributors are amortised over the applicable
product ifecycle based upon the ratio of the current
period’s revenue to the estmated remaning total
rever:iue {Ultimate revenue) for each {co-Jproduction

Estimates of total net revenue are reviewed penodi-
cally and additional impairment losses are recog-
nised If approprate

Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisiion method as at the acquisitton date Good-
will ansing from apphang this method 1s measured at
initial recogrvtion as detaled innote 1 3 1

Goodwill on acquisiions of subsidianes and joint
ventures 1s recognised as an intangible asset Good-
will 1s tested annually for impairment and camed at
cost less accumulated imparment losses Goodwill
Is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of smparment testing Each of the cash-gengrating
units represents the Group's investment in a geo-
graphical area of operatron by business segment,
except for the content business, which 1s a world-
wide operation

Ne geodwill 1s recagnised on the acqusition of non-
controling interests

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with a definte useful life,
which are acquired by the Group, are stated at cost
less accurmulated amortisaticn and imparment loss-
es They compnse iicences {other than {co-}produc-
tion, audiovisual and other nghts), trademarks and
sirmilar nghts as well as EDP software They are am-
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ortised on a straight-lne basis over thar estmated
useful ife as follows

m Licences seven to 20 years,
m Software maximum three years

Other intangible assets with a definite useful e
also include capitalised costs asscciated with the
acquisitron of sports club players These costs are
amortised on a straight-ine basis over the penod of
the respective contracts The term cf these con-
tracts may vary but it generally ranges from one to
five years

Brands, unless an indefinite useful ife can be just-
fied, and customer relationships acquired through
business combinations are amortised on a straight-
line basis over therr estimated useful Iife

Other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
are tested annually for imparment and whenever
there is an indication that the mtangible asset may
be Impaired

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and imparment
losses Depreciation 1s recogrised on a straight-hne
basis over the estimated useful lves of the assets as
follows

uland ni,

= Buldings ten to 25 years,

= Technical equipment four to ten years,

» Cther fixtures and fittings, tools and eguipment
three to ten years

Where an item of property, plant and equpment com-
pnses major components having different useful ives,
they are accounted for as separate items of property,
plant and equipment Gains and losses on disposals
are determinad by cornparing proceeds with the car-
rying amount and are included in operatng profit

Depreciation methods and useful lives, as well as re-
sidual values, are reassessed annually

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group assumes substantially all the benefits and
nsks of ownership are classified as finance leases
Assets held under finance leases and the related ob-
ligations are recognised on the statement of financial
positton at the lower of their farr value and the present
value of mnmum lease payments at the inception
of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and
imparment losses Such assets are depreciated on
the same basis as owned assets (see note 181}
or lease term If no evidence of lessee wil cbtan
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ownership Each lease payment 1s allocated between
the labdity and finance charge so as to achieve a
constant rate on the outstanding finance balance
The corresponding iease obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in loans payable The interest
element of the finance charge 1s charged to the in-
come statement ovar the lease penod

Leases where all the nisks and benefits of ownership
are effectively retaned by the lessor are classified as
operating leases Payments made under operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the les-
sor, are charged to the income statement on a
straight-ine basis over the penod of the lease

Subsequent expenditure

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an
itemn of property, plant and equipment, that 1s sepa-
rately accounted for, 1s capitalsed, with the carryng
amount of the component that is to be replaced be-
ing wntten off Other subsequent expenditure Is cap-
tahsed only when 1t Increases the future economic
benefits that will be derved from the item of proper-
ty, plant and equipment Al other expenditure Is ex-
pensed as incurred

Loans and other financial assets

Loans are recognised intially at far value plus
transacton costs In subsequent penods, loans are
stated at amortised cost using the effective yeld
method, less any valuation allowance for credit nsk
Any difference between nominal value, net of trans-
action costs, and redemption value 1s recognised
using the effective interest methed in the income
statement over the period of the lcan

Non-current and current Investments compnse
avalable-for-sala assets and other financial assets at
fair value throtgh profit or loss

Investments intended to De hetd for an indefinite pe-
ned of time, which may be sold in response to needs
for hquichty or changes in interest rates, are classfied
as avallable-for-sale and are included in non-current
assets unless management has the express intention
of holding the investment for less than 12 months
from the reporting date or unless they will need to be
sold to raise operating caprtal, in which case they
are included in current assets Management deter-
mines the appropnate classification of s investments
at the nme of the purchase and re-evaluates such
designation on a regular basis Avalable-for-sale
investments are milially recognised at far value plus
transaction costs and are subsequently camed at
far value Unrealsed gains and losses ansing from
changes in the fair value of avallable-for-sale invest-
ments are included, net of deferred iIncome tax, in
other comprehensive Income (revaluation reserve) In
the pertod in which they anse

Financial instruments are designated at {ar value
through profit or loss if they contain one or more
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embedded dervatives wiich cannot be measured
separately, or when they are managed and their per-
formance 1s evaluated on a farr value basis They are
imtially recognised at far value, and transaction costs
are expensed n the ncome statement Changes in
far value are recognised in the income staterment

All purchases and sales of non-current and current
Investmants are recognised on the trade date, which
15 the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset

The fair value of publicly traded investments 1s based
on quoted market pnces at the reporting date The
far value of non-publicly traded investments 15
based con the esttmated discounted value of future
cash flows

Current programme nghts

Current programme nghts are intially recognised at
acquisition cost or Group production cost when the
Group contrals, In substance, the respective assats
and the nsks and rewards attached 1o them

Current programme nghts include programmes In
progress, {co-Jproductions and nghts acquired with
the primary intention to broadeast or sell them in the
normal course of the Group's operating cycle
Current programme nights include an appropnate
portion of overheads and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value The net reahsable
value assessment 15 based on the advertising reve-
nue expected to be generated when broadcast and
on estimated net sales Weak avdience shares or
changes from a pnme time t¢ a late-night slot con-
stitute iIndicators that a valuation allowance may be
recarded They are consumed based on either the
expected number of transmissions or expected
revenua In order to match the costs of consumption
with the benefits received The rates of consumption
apphed for broadcasting nghts are as follows

®Free television thematc channels programme
nghts are consumed ¢n a straght iine basis over a
maximum of six runs,

® Free television cther channels

® Blockbusters (films with high cinema ticket sales),
mini-series {pnmanly own productions with a
large budget), other films, senes, TV mowves and
{co-Jpraductions are mainty consumed over a
maximum of two transmissions as follows at
least 67 per cent upon the first transrmission, with
the remainder upon the second transmission,

® Soaps, in-house productions, guz and game
shows, sports and other events, doccumentanes
and music shows are fully consumad upon the
first transmission,

= Children's programmes and cartoons are con-
sumed over a maximum of two transmissions as
follows at least 50 per cent upon the first trans-
mission, wath the remander upon the second
transmission




Accounts recewvable

Trage accounts receivable anse from the sale of
goods and services related to the Group's operating
actmties Other accounts recevable include, in add-
tion to deposits and ameunts related to Profit and
Loss Pooling (“PLP"} and Compensation agreements
with RTL Group's controlling shareholder, VAT recov-
erable, and prepad expenses Trade and other ac-
counts receivable are measured at amortised cost
Imparment losses on trade and other accounts re-
cewable are recognised when there 1s objective ew-
dence that the Group will not be abls to collect all
amounts due according to the onginal term of recev-
ables Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankrupicy or fi-
nancial rearganisation, and default or delinguency in
payments {more than 30 days overdue) are consid-
ered indicators that the trads receivable is impaired
The amount of the prowision 1s the difference be-
tween the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the orginal effective nterest rate The camying
amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the foss 1s
recogrused in the iIncome statement within depreci-
ation, amortisation and imparment When a trade
recevable 1s uncollectible, it 1s wntten off aganst the
allowance account for trade accounts recewvable
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously wnt-
ten off are credited aganst depreciation, amortisa-
tion and imparment in the income statement

Accrued income 15 stated at the amounts expected
to be receved

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash consists of cash in hand and at bank

Cash equivalents are assets that are readily con-
vertible into cash, such as shert-term highly figuid
invesiments, commercial paper, bank dspesits and
marketable secunties — all of which mature within
three months from the date of purchase - and
money market funds that qualify as cash and cash
equivalents under IAS 7 (see note 31 2)

Bank overdrafts are included wathin current liabiities

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful Iife are not sub-
lect to amartisation and are tested annually for im-
parrment Assets that are subject 1o amortisation
are reviewed for imparrment whenever events or
changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable An imparmant
loss 1s recogrised for the amount by which the as-
set's camung amount exceeds 1ts recoverable
amount For the purposes of assessing Impairmant,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identfiable cash flows (cash-
generating units)
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The recoverable ameunt is the tigher of an asset's
fair vatlue less costs to sell and value in use In as-
sessing value In use, and farr value less costs to sell
where applicable, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to ther present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assess-
ments of the time value of money and the nsks spe-
cific to the asset

In respect of assets cther than goodwili, an impair-
ment loss 1s reversed when there 1s an indication that
the conditions that caused the impaurnent loss may
no longer exist, and there has been a change In the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
The carrying value after the reversal of the impairment
less cannot exceed the carmyng amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation and amor-
tisation, If no impairment loss had been recognised

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there 15 olyjecive evidence that a financial asset, ora
group of financial assets, 15 impared

Ewvidence of imparment of avalable-for-sale financia
assets Is assessed on the basis of two gualtative
cntena

8 A gignificant drop of the farr value, considered as a
decline exceeding cne quarter of the acquisition
cost, while giving consideration to all market con-
ditions and crreumstances, or

= The observation of an unrealised loss over two
consecutive years

If any such ewidence exists for avalable-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss = measured as
the difference between the acquisitton cost and the
current far value, less any imparment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement — 15 removed from equity and recogrised
in the Income staterment Impatrment losses recog-
nised in the Income statement on equity Instruments
are not reversed through the wicome statement
{"Financial results other than interest”) Impatrment
testing of trade accounts recewable 1s described in
note 1 11

1. 15.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classi-
fied as assets held for sale when ther carrying
amount 15 to be recovered pnncipally through a sale
transaction and a sale 1s considered highly probable
They are stated at the lower of carnang amount and
far value less costs 1o sell if ther carnypng amount 1s
racovered principally through a sale {ransaction rath-
er than through continuing use

1. 18.
Accounts payable
Trade accounts payable anse from the purchase of
assets, goods and servicas relating to the Group's
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operating activities Other accounts payable com-
pnse, n acgdition to amounts related to the Profit and
Loss Pooling Agreement (“PLP") with RTL Group's
controling shareholder, VAT payable, far vatue of
denvative habilities, accrued expenses and accounts
payable on capital expenditure Trade and other
accounts payable are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except dervative
llabihbes which are measured at farr value

Loans payable

Interest-beanng current and non-current labilities
are recogrised inhally at far value less transaction
costs Subsequsnt to intial recognition, interest-
beanng current and non-current labxlities are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between cost
and redemption value being recognised i the in-
come slatement over the pernod of the barrowings
using the effective interest method

Provisions

Provisions are recogrised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obhgation to transfer
economic bengfits as a result of past events The
amounts recognised represent management's best
estimate of the expenditures that will be required to
settle the obligation as of the reporting date Prowi-
sions are measured by discounting the expected fu-
ure cash flows to settle the obhgation at a pre-tax
nsk-free rate that reflects current market assess-
ments of the time vatue of monegy and, where appro-
priate, the nsks specific to the obligation

A provision for restructuring is recogrused when the
Group has approved a detalled and formal restructur-
Ing plan and the restructunng has either commenced
or has been anncunced publicly Costs relating to the
ongoing activities of the Group are not prowided for

Prowisions for onerous contracts relate to unavoidable
costs for ndwidual programme nights, the perform-
ance of which 15 assessed as clearly below that
ongnally planned when the contract was agreed
Such stuations mainly anse in case of executory
obligations to purchase programmes which will not
be ared due to lack of audience capacity or to a
mismatch with the current editoriat policy In additon,
an expected or actual fall in audience can be
evidenced by several indicators such as the under-
performance of a previous season, the withdrawal of
the programme’s main advertisers or a decline in the
populanty or success of sport stars Long-term
sourcing agreements aim to secure the supply n
programmes of broadcasters They are mainly output
deals, production agreements given the Eurcpean
guota obligations, and arrangements with sport
organisatons  The provision 1s measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terrmmnating the contract and the expected net cost
of continuing wsth the contract Before a provision 1s
established, the Group recognises any impairment
loss on the assets associated with that coniract
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1. 19.
Employee benefits

Pension benefits

The Group operates or participates in both defined
contnbution and defined benefit plans, according to
the nationat laws and regulations of the countries in
which It operates The assets of the plans are gener-
ally held in separate trustee-administered funds, and
some of the plans are operated through pension
funds that are legally independent from the Group
The penston plans are generally funded by pay-
ments from employees and by the relevant Group
companies, taking into account the recommenda-
tions of ndependant qualified actuanes

Pension costs and obhigatons relatng to defined
benefit plans are recegnised based on the projected
unit credit method The Group recognises actuanal
gamns and losses In other comprehensive Income

Pension costs relating to defined contnbution plans
{including deferred compensation plans that are de-
fined contnbution plans N nature) are recogrused
when an employee has rendered service In ex-
change for the contributions due by the employer

Other benefits

Many Group companies provide death In semrvice
benefits, and spouses and chuldren’s benefits The
costs associated with these benefits are recognised
when an employee has rendered service In ex-
change for the contributions due by the employer

Share-based transactions

Share options are granied to certain directors and
senior employees The options are granted at the
market pnce on the date of the grant and are exer-
cisable at that price

When a share option Is granted, the far value of
options granted 15 recognised as an empioyee
expense with a corresponding ncrease in equity
The far value 1s measured at grant date and spread
over the perod dunng which the employees become
uncenditionally entitied to the cptions The far value
of the options granted 1s measured using a binomial
model, taking nto account the terms and conditrons
upon which the options were granted The amount
recogrused as an expense 1s adusted to reflact the
actual number of share options that vest, except
where forfeiture 15 only due to share pnces not
achieving the threshold for vesting

Share capital

Equity transaction costs
Incremental external costs directly attnbutable to
the i1ssue of new shares, other than in connection



with a business combination, are deducted, net of
the related income taxes, against the gross proceeds
recorded In equity Share i1ssue costs ncurred In
connection with a business combmnation are included
in the cost of acquisition

Treasury shares
Where the Company or its subs:dianies purchase the
Company's own eguity, the consideration paid, in-
cluding any attnbutable transaction costs net of In-
come taxes, 15 shown in deducton of equity as
“Treasury shares”

Dividends

Dvidends on ordinary shares are recorded in the con-
soldated financial statements in the pencd In which
they are approved by the Company's shargholders

Revenue presentation and recogmition
Revenue includes sales of nghis and licence ncome,
{co-)productions, advertising revenue and other sales,
net of sales deductions such as cash rebates, credit
notes, discounts, refunds and VAT Revenue com-
pnses the far value of consideration receved or re-
ceivable for the sals of services in the ordinary courss
of the Group’s actvities Agency commissions are
presented as a deduction from advertising revenue

Revenue 1s recognised when the Group has trans-
ferred the significant nsks and rewards of owner-
ship, and the control over the goods solkd and the
amount of revenue can be measured rehably Specif-
ically, advertising sales are recogrised when the
related advertisement or commercial is broadcast,
and sales of programme rights under licences are
recognised when the programme maternal has been
accepied by the licensee as being in accordance
with the conditions of the icence agreement

Barter revenue I1s recogrised If goods or services in
a barter transaction are of a dissimilar nature and if
revenue has economic substance and can be rela-
bly measured Revenue fram barter transactions is
recognised at the farr value of the goods or servic-
es received, adusted for any cash involved in the
transaction

Government grants

Grants from government and inter-governmental
agencies are recogrised at ther far value where
there 1s a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
recewved and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions

Government grants related to assets are inhially pre-
sented as a deduction in arrving at the carmyng
amount of the asset

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses in-
curred are recognised In profit or loss on a sysism-
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atic basis i the same penod In which the expenses
are recogrised

Interest Income fexpense
Interest Income/expense I1s recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method

Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year compns-
es current and deferred tax Income tax 1s recog-
nised In the iIncome statement except {o the extent
that i relates to tems recognised directly to equity
or other comprehansive Income

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxa-
ble incomae for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantally enacted n the countres where the
Group's subsidianes, joint ventures and associates
operate and generate taxable income at the report-
ing date and any adjustment to tax payable i re-
spect of previous years

Deferred taxes are recognised according to the bal-
ance sheet kability method on any temporary differ-
ence between the carrying amount for cansolidatiaon
purposes and the tax base of the Group's assets
and labilities Temporary differences are not prowvid-
ed jor when the initial recognition of assets or abili-
ties affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and
when differences relate {o investments i subsidiar-
ies to the extent that they wll probably riot reverse
In the foreseeable fulure Nc temporary dfferences
are recognised on the intial recogniticn of goodwill
Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at
the tax rates that ars expected tc apply to the perod
when the asset Is realised or the llability 1s settled,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or sub-
stantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent that
it1s probable that future taxable profits will be availa-
ble aganst which the temporary differences and
losses carned forward can be utilised

Deferred tax assets and labiittes are offset when
there 15 a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax
assets aganst current tax liabiities and when the de-
ferred Income taxes refate to the same tax authonty

Discontinued cperations

A discontinued operation s @ compenent of the
Group's business that represents a separate major
line of business or a geographical area of operations
that has been disposed of or 1s held for sale or dis-
tribution, or 1s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale

Classification as a discontinued operation oceurs up-
on dispasal or when the operation meets the critena
to be classified as held for sale, if eadier When an
operaiion 1s classified as a discontinued operation
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the comparative Income statement 1s re-presentad
as If the operation had been discontinued from the
start of the comparatve year

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing
the net profit attnbutable to shareholders by the
waighted average number of ordinary shares in 1s-
sue dunng the year, excluding ordinary shares pur-
chased by the Group and held as treasury shares

The diluted earnings per share s calculated by ad-
justing the weighied average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilu-
tve potential ordinary shares The only category of
dilutive potential ordinary shares is share options

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported N a manner con-
sistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker The chief operating
decision-maker, who Is responsiole for allocating re-
sources and assessing performance of the operat-
Ing segments, has been identified as the Executive
Cormmittee that makes strategic decisions

An cperating segment I1s a component of the Group
that engages in business activities from which it may

A ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on histoncal expenence and other fac-
tors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

The Graup makes estmates and assumptions con-
cerning the future The resulting accounting est-
mates will, by definiticn, seldom egqual the related
actual results The estimates and assumpiions that
have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjust-
ment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities
within the next financial year are discussed below

Programme and other rights

(assets and provisions for onerous contracts)
Tne Group's accounting for non-current programme
nghts requires management judgement as it refates
to estimates made of total net revenue used In the
determination of the amortisation charge and impar-
ment loss for the year

In addron, management judgement will need to
take into acceount factors such as the future pro-
gramme gnd, the realised/expected audience of the
pragramme, the current programme nights that are
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garn revenua and incur expenses, Including revenue
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Group's other components

All operating segments' operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Group's Executive Committee to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial Information 1s avallable

The invested capital 1s disclosed for each reportable
segment as reported to the Executive Committee

The segment assets include the following terms

® The non-current assets, except the ncrementat far
value of the avallable-for-sale investments, the sur-
plus of the defined benefit plans and the deferred
tax assets,

® The current assets, except the income tax receiva-
ble, the far value of denvative assets, the current
deposit with the sharehoider, the account recetva-
ble from the sharehalder n relation to the PLP and
Compensation agreements, the accounts receiva-
ble related to dvidend income, the fixed term de-
posits, and cash and cash equivalents

The segment assets and habdties are consistently
measured with those of the statement of financial
positich

not likely to be broadcast, and the related valuation
allowance

Provisions for onerous contracts related to pro-
gramme and other rights are also recognised when
the Group has constructive obligatrons and itis prob-
able that unavoidable costs exceed the economic
benefits onginally planned These prowisions have
been determined by discounting the expected future
cash inflows for which the amount and timing are de-
pendent on future events, notably sports events

Estimated imparment of goodwill and
investments in assoclates

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suf-
fered any impairment, in accordance with the ac-
counting policy statedinnote 17 2

The Group tests annually whether investments in
associates have suffered any mparment, and If any
imparment should be reversed

The Group has used a combination of long-term
trends, industry forecasts and in-house knowledge,
with greater emphasis on recent experence, in



forming the assumptions about the development of
the vanous advertising markets in which the Group
operates Thig is an area highly exposed to the gen-
eral economic congditions

The state of the advertising market 1s just one of the
key operational drvers which the Group uses when
assessing individual business models Other key
dnvers include audience shares, advertising market
shares, the EBITA margin and cash conversion rates

All of these different elements are varable, inter-re-
latad and difficult to solate as the main driver of the
vanous business models and respective valuations

The Group performs sensitvity anatysis on the cash-
generating units, especially on those where the
headroom between the recaverable amount and the
carnng value 1s low

Fatr value of contingent censideration
Contingent consideration, resulting from business
combinations, 1s valued at far value at the acquisition
date as part of the business combination, and sub-
sequently re-measured to far vaiue at each reporting
date The determination of the far value 1s based on
discounted cash flow and takes into account the
probability of meeting each performance target

Fair value of avasllable-for-sale

investments and financial assets/habilities

at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has used discounted cash flow analysis
for vanous avalable-for-sale investments and finan-
cial assetsMiabilities at far value through profit or loss
that were not traded In active markets

The carrying ameount of avalable-for-sale invest-
ments would be an estimated €4 million lower or
higher were the discount rates used in the discount-
ed cash flows analysis to differ by 10 per cent from
management’s estimates

Provisions for itigations

Most clams involve complex 1ssues, and the proba-
bility of loss and an estimation of damages ars diffi-
cult to ascertain A provision 1s recognised when the
nsk of a loss becomes mere likely than not and
when it 13 possible to make a reasonable estimate of
the expected financial effect

Income and deferred taxes

The Group s subject to Income taxes N numercus
Junsdictions There are transactions and calculations
for which the utimate tax deterrmnation 1s uncerian
dunng the ordinary course of business

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it s probable that future taxable profits will be avala-
ble aganst which the temporary differences and
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lossas camed forward can be uthsed Management
Judgement ts required to assess probable future tax-
able profits In 2012, deferred tax assets on losses
carry-forwards {manty m Germany, €33 million,
2011 €39 milion} and on temporary differences
{mainty In Germany, €313 millon, 2011 €287 mi-
lion} have been reassessed on the basis of currently
implemented tax strategies

Post-employment benefits
The Group has adopted the following approaches
for the pension assumptions

= The discount rate 1s determined by reference to
market yields at the closing on high quality corpo-
rate bonds,

® The expected return on plan assets 18 based on
market expectations at the beginning of the pencd,

® Estmate of {uture salary increases mainly takes
account of inflation, semonty, promotion and sup-
ply and demand in the employment market

Disposal groups

The determination of the fair value less costs to sale
requires management judgement as it relates to es-
timates of proceeds of the disposal, restdual obliga-
tions and direct disposal costs

Contingent habilities

Contingent liabilties are disclosed unless manage-
ment consider that the likellhood of an outflow of
economic benefits 1s remote
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EA FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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Financial nsk factors

The Group's actmvlies expose it to a vanety of finan-
cial nsks market risk (ncluding currency, farr value
interest rate, cash flow interest rate and pnce nsks),
credit nsk and igquidity nsk The Group 15 exposed In
particular to nsks from movements in foreign ex-
change rates as it engages In long-term purchase
contracts for programme nghts {output deals) de-
nominated in foreign currency

Risk management 1s camed out by the Group Treas-
ury department under the supervision of the Chief
Financial Officer under polices approved by the
Board of Directors Group Treasury ident/fies, evalu-
ates and hedges risks n close cooperation with the
Group’s operating units The Group's overall nsk
management pragramme focuses on the unpredict-
ability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance The Board of Directors has 1ssued
wntten prnciples for overall sk management as well
as written policies covenng specific areas, such as
market nsk, credit nsk, kquicity nsk, use cf denva-
tives and investment of excess liquidity

The Group seeks to minimise the potential adverse
effects of changing financial markets on s perform-
ance through the use of denvative financial instru-
ments such as foreign exchange forward contracts
Dervatives are not used for speculative purposes
Risks are hedged to the extent that they influence
the Group's cash flows { e translationat nsk linked
to the conversion of net Investments i foreign oper-
ations 15 not hedged)

Market nsk
Foreign exchange nsk

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group operates internationally and 15 exposed
to forergn exchange nsk ansing from vanous curren-
cy exposures, prmarnly In respect of USD and GBP
Forexgn exchange nsk anses from recognised assets
and labilities, future commercial transactions and
net investments N foreign operations

For the Group as a whole, cash flows, net income
and net worth are optrmised by reference to the €
However, foreign exchange nisks faced by indvidual
Group companmies are managed or hedged aganst
the functional currency of the relevant entity (as
these entities generalty generate their revenue In lo-
cal currancies) Hence the Group manages a vanety
of currencies due to the numerous functional curren-
ces of the companies constituting the Group

In add:ition, market praciices in the television busi-
ness Imply a significant forward exposure 1o USD as
programme nghts are usually denominated in USD
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and not paid up-front For this reason, the main cff-
balance sheet exposure of the Group 1s towards the
USD in respect of future purchases and sales of
programme nghts, output deals {commitments for
future cash flows) and highly probable forecast
transactions (USD & millon as at 31 December
2012, USD 166 millon as at 31 Decernber 2011}

Management of the foreign exchange exposure
Management has set up a policy to require Group
companies to manage therr foreign exchange nsk
against their functional currency Group companies
are required to hedge their entire foreign currency
exchange nsk exposure with the Group Treasury in
accordance with the Group Treasury polices Al for-
&gn currency exchange exposures, including signed
and forecast output deals and programme nghts
in foreign currency are centralised mn an intranet-
based database To manage ther {oreign exchange
nsk ansing from recognised assets and labilities
and future commercial transactions, entites in the
Group use forward contracts transacted with Group
Treasury Group Treasury 1s then responsible for
hedging, most of the time on a one-to-one basis,
the exposure against the functional currency of the
respective entity

The Group Treasury policy is to hedge up to 100 per
cent of the recognised monetary forexgn currency
exposures arnsing from cash, accounts receivable,
accounis payable, loans recevable and borrowings
dencminated in currencies other than the functional
currency The Group policy 15 to hedge between 80
per cent and 100 per cent of short-term cash flow
forecasts and between 20 per cent and 80 per cent
of longer term {between two and five years) cash
flow forecasts Approximately 72 per cant (2011 72
per cent} of anticipated cash flows constitute firm
commitments or highly probable forecast transac-
tions for hedge accounting purposes

In order to monitor the compliance of the manage-
menit of the foraign exchange exposure with the
Group's polcy, 2 monthly report I1s produced and an-
alysed by management This report shows for each
subsidiary its exposure to currencies other than therr
functional currency, detalling the nature {g g trade
accounts, royalties, intercompany accounts) of on-
balance sheet items, and the underlying deals and
matunties of off-balance sheet items, as well as the
corresponding hedging ratos A specific report
showing the global USD, GBP and AUD exposures
{representing the main exposures} 15 prowded to
RTL Group management on a monthly basis

Accounting

For recognised foreign currency monetary assets
and labilties there 15 a natural offset of gains and
lossas in the income statement between the revalu-
ation of the denvative and the exposure Therefore,
hedge accounting as defined under IAS 39 15 not
appled




Tha spiit by matunties of
notional amounts of for-
ward exchange contracis
at 31 December 2012 s,
for the mam foreign
currencles, as follows:

The spit by maturities of
notional amounts of for-
ward exchange contracts
at 31 December 2011 1s,
for the main foreign
currencies, as follows-

The foretgn currency cash flow hedge accounting
model defined under IAS 39 1s apphed by those
companies which account for the majonty of the
Group's foraign currency exposure, when

= Hedged foreign currency exposures relate to pro-
gramme nghts transactions which have not yet
been recogrised on the statement of financiat po-
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2012, the amount of ineffectveness (see note 7 5)
that has been recognised In the iIncome statement i1s
€(8) mition (E(5) milton in 2011}

Foreign exchange denvative contracts
The impact of forward foreign exchange contracts 1s
detaled as follows

2012 2011
sition {such as forecast or firm purchases of pro- €m €m
gramme nghts for which the licence pened has not
yet begun), and Net far value of foreign

® Amounts are sufficiently matenat to justify the need exchange derivative assets

(ses notes 88 and 8 11) 23 80
for hedge accounting

Operating foreign exchange

gains/(losses) {1 9

When hedge accounting 15 applied, the effective Cash flow hedges neffectiveness

portion of the changes in the far value of the hedg- losses [see note 7 5) (8) {5)

Ing instrument 1s recognised net of deferred tax n

the hedging reserve as presented in the ‘Cansoli- 2013 2011

dated statement of changes in equity” {see note €m €m

814 4} It s released to the carrying value of the

hedged item when such an item 1s recogrised in the Less than 3 months (n 9

statement of financial positon  The neffective por- Less than 1 year 7 21

tion of the change n farr value of the hedging instru- Less than 5 years 17 50

ment including swap points} 1s recognised directty In Net tarr value of denvative assets

profit or loss For the year ended 31 December | Seanotes88 and811) 23 50

2013 2014 2015 2016 >2016 Total
£m £€m £m £m £m £m

Buy 166 40 15 a 1 225

Sell (234) (27) 7 (1) 1] (270)

Total {68) 13 8 2 - {45)

2013 2014 2015 2016 >2016 Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m

Buy 903 264 190 136 98 1,591

Sell (261) {41) (26) {6) (2) (336)

Total 642 223 164 130 96 1,255

2012 013 2014 2015 >2005 Total
£m £€m £m £m £m £m

Buy 172 21 18 - 2 213

Sell (264) (1] (8) 2 - (291)

Total (02) 4 10 {2} 2 (78)

2012 2013 2014 2015 >2015 Total
Sm $m &m $m $m &m

Buy 830 286 199 127 106 1,548

Sell {201) {20} {13} - (5) (239)

Total 629 266 186 127 101 1,309
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Sensttivity analysis to foreign exchange rates
Management estimates that

s |f the USD had been 10 per cent stronger com-
pared to the € (respectively weaker), with all other
variables held constant, this would have had no
matenal impact far the Group (2011 no matenal
impact}, and in an additional pre-tax € 75 milhon in-
come {respectively expense} (2011 €81 million)
recognised in eguity,

= |f the GBP had been 10 per cent stronger com-
pared to the € (respectively weaker), with all other
varables held constant, this would have had no
matenal impact for the Group (2011 no matenal
impact), and in an additional pre-tax €0 2 milkon
expense (respectively income) (2011 €2 mullian}
recognised In equity,

w |f other currencies had peen 10 par cent stronger
compared to € {respectively weaker), with all other
vanables held constant, this would have had no
material impact on profit or loss and equity (2011
no matenal impact)

This sensitivity analysis does not include the impact
of translation into € of foreign cperations

Interest rate risk

The Group interast rate nsk anses pnmanly from
cash and cash equivalents and from current and
term deposits The management of interest rate
nsk Is centralised at the level of Group Treasury
The cbjective of the interest rate risk management
policy 18 to minmise the interest rate funding cost
over the long-term and to maximise the excess
cash refurn

In order to achieve this objective, cross border cash
pooling has been set up for most of the entities of
the Group The interest rate strategy defined by
RTL Group depends on the net cash position of

each company Although the Group has currently no
significant barrowing or overdraft, management has
defined a targeted fixed versus floating rate ratic { e
20 per cent fixed/80 per cent floating) when the
Group needs to borrow This percentage can be re-
viewed at the discretion of the Treasury Committes
untt the optimum mix between fixed and fioating
rates has been achieved The Group considers if the
predominance of floating rate debt 1s appropnate in
view of the overall state of the ecanomy, shart-term
interest rates and the Group's results

When RTL Group has excess cash, the Treasury
Gommittee defines the appropriate average tenor of
the short-term placements based on business sea-
sonakity and regularly reviewed cash flow forecasts
Interest ncome depends on the evolution of floating
interest rates and can patentially, in a low interest
rate environment, generate a shortfall of income
agamnst interest expense

Group Treasury uses various Indicators to monitor
interest rate nsk, such as a targeted net fixed/float-
ing rate debt ratio, duration, basis point value (in-
crease In interest rate costs resulting from a basis
point Increase In interest rate) and interest cover ra-
to (i @ adjusted EBITA over nat interest expense as
defined by rating agencies)

If the interest rates achieved had been lower (respec-
tivaly higher) by 100 basis ponts, and assuming the
current amount of floating net cash available remamns
constant, the interest Income at 31 December 2012
would have been decreased {raspectively increased)
by €11 milon (€12 millon in 2011)

The following table ndicates the effective interest
rate of interest-earning financial assets and interest-
beaning financial labhties at 31 December and the
periods in which they re-price

Effective Totak 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 Qver §

interest rate amount (1) or less months yaars yoars years

Notes % €m €m €m em €m €m

Other loans - fixed rate 33 6 - 1 3 2 -
Other loans - floating rate 15 26 23 3 - - -
Current deposit with shareholder — floating rate 8. 8] 03 426 426 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - earning assets 09 631 631 - - - -
Bank loans — floating rata B 85 (3} 2) 1) - - -
Bank overdrafts 20 {5) (5) ~ - - -
Leasing labilities — fixed rate 49 {7) () v {2 {2) -
Loans payable - floating rate 8. 10 19 {12) [i2)] 3 - - -
At 31 December 2012 1,062 1,063 {2 1 - -
Other loans - floating rate 07 7 3 4 - - -
Current deposit with shareholder — floating rate m 14 588 588 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - earning assets 11 658 658 - - - -
Bank loans - floating rate 47 (8) (8} - - - -
Bank overdrafts 20 (1) (1 - - - -
Leasing labilities — fixed rate 8. 10. 36 )] - {1) )] (1) -
Loans payable - floating rate 13 (35) (34) (1) - - -
At 31 December 2011 1,206 1,206 2 (1) 1) -

(1) Exciuding accrued mierests
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Ageing of financial assets
{excluding avaiabie-for-
sale and faw value through
profit or loss investments
for respectively €116
mulhor and €136 million)
at 31 December 2012

Ageing of financial assels
{excluding available-for-
sale and fair value through
profit or loss investments
for respectively €106
rmulfion and €132 mufion)
at 31 December 2011.

(1) At 31 December 2012 cumylated
valuaton afiowances amount 1o €94
mdton of wiwch €5 miion on
coliective bass  The latter are not
takery it accounl i the (able above

{2) At 31 December 2011 cumulated
vatiahon alowences amount (o €64
rmihon of which €6 rmillion on
coliectiva basis The latter are nol
taken inlo account n the lable above

Credit nisk

RTL Group's exposure to credit sk pnmarly anses
through sales made to customers (trade receiva-
bles), investments in money market funds classified
in cash and cash equivalents, and deposits made
with banks and the shareholder

Credtt nsk 1s managed on a Group basis, except far
credit nsk relating to accounts recevable balances,
which are managed by indvidual subsidiaries

The Group's television and radic operations incur
exposure 1o credit nsk when making transactions
with advertising agencies or direct customers In
2012, the combined telewsion and radio advertising
revenue contnbuted 57 per cent of the Group's rev-
enue (2011 60 per cent) Due to its business mod-
gl, RTL Group's exposure to credit risk 15 directly
Iinked to the final client However the nsks are con-
sidered as weak due to the size of the indvidual
companies or agency groups

RTL Group produces programmes that are sold or
licensed to state-owned and commercial television
channels In 2012, these acivities contnbuted 30
per cent of the Group's revenue (2011 26 per cent)
Given the lmited number of tefevision broadcasters
n different countries, there 1s 4 high degree of con-
centration of credit nsk However, given the long-
standing relationships between content providers
ang broadcasters, and the fact that the customers

Neither
impared
nor past
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are large businesses with solid financial positions,
the level of credit nsk 15 significantly mitgated

RTL Group also has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products and services are made to custormn-
ers with an appropriate credit history

According to the banking pohcy of the Group, denv-
ative instruments and cash transactions {nctuding
bank deposits and invesiments in money market
funds) are operated only with high credit quality fi-
nancial institutions so as to mitigate counterparty
nsk (only independently rated parties with a mini-
mum ratng of ‘A’ are accepted for bank deposits}
The Group’s bank refabonship policy sets forth strin-
gent critena for the selection of banking partners
and money market funds (such as applicable super-
visory authorities, investment pelicy, maximum vola-
tiity, track record, rating, cash and cash equivalents
status under IAS 7) In order to mitigate settlerment
nsk, the Group has policies that Imit the amount of
credit exposure 1o any one financial institution on
any single day Statistics (such as the percentage of
the business allocated to each bank over the year
compared io a targst defined by management, cr
such as the summary of the highest intraday expo-
sures by bank and by matunty date) are computed
and used on a daily bas!s so as to ensure credit nsk
15 mitigated in practice at any time

The carrying amount of financial assets represents
their maximum credit exposure

Not impaired as of the reperting data and past dua oy

Gross  due on the Gross
carying  reparting <=1 2-3 3-6 5-t2 Over amount
amount (1 2} date month months manths manths 1year impared
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m £m
Loans and other
non-current financtal assets 58 31 - - - - - 27
Trade accounts recevable 1,164 821 181 60 22 11 9 60
Accounts receivable
from associates 22 22 - - - - - -
Current deposit with shareholder 426 426 - - - - - -
Other accounts recervable and
current financial assets 289 274 5 3 - - - 7
Gash and cash equivalents 650 650 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2012 2,609 2,224 186 63 22 1 ] 94
Loans and other
non-current financial assets 10 6 - - - - - 4
Trade accounts receivable 1,062 751 118 71 17 19 27 59
Accounts recelvable
from associates 22 22 - - - - - -
Current deposit with shareholder 589 589 - - - - - -
Cther accounts recevable and
current financial assets 410 401 2 2 - - - 5
Cash and cash equivalents 701 701 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2011 2,794 2,470 120 73 17 19 27 68

The top ten trade accounts recevable represent
€135 million (2011 €99 million) while the top 50
trade accounts recevable represent €325 millicn
(2011 €266 million)
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{1} Accounts payabie excludo
ampioyce benefit kabites defcrred
meame sociad sacundy and
other taxes payable and advance
payments

164 RTL GROUP

The top ten ccunterparties for cash and cash equiv-
alents represent €364 million (2011 €411 mifltlon}

The Group has a significant concentration of credit
nsk due to its relationship with Bertelsmann Never-
theless, creait nsk ansing from transactions with
shareholders is significantly mitigated (see note 10 1)

Liquidity nsk

Prudent kquidity nsk management implies maintain-
Ing sufficient cash, the avalability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit faciities
and the ability to close out market positions Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying business, man-
agement am to mantan flexibiity in funding by
keeping committed credit ines avallable despite the
total net cash situation Cash flow forecasting Is per-
farmed in the cperating entities of the Group and
aggregated by Group Treasury Group Treasury
monitors rolling {forecasts on the Group’s iquidity re-
quirements {0 ensure it has sufficient headroom to
meet operational needs Management monitors, on
a monthly basis, the level of the “Liguidty Head
Room” {total committed facilites minus current utili-
sation through bank loans and guarantees)

Under 1 1-5 Owers
yaar yoars years
2012 €m €m €m €m
Credit facdities - banks
Committed facilities 288 268 20 -
Headroom 119 100 19 -
2011
Credit facilities - banks
Committed faciities 285 215 70 -
Headroom 120 60 60 -

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and
above balances required for working capital man-
agement I1s transferred to Group Treasury Group
Treasury iInvests surplus cash Iin interest-bearing cur-
rent accounts, time deposits, money market funds
or deposits with Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA (see
note 10 1) choasing nstruments with appropnate
maturities or sufficient iquidity to prowde sufficient
headroom as determined by the above-mentioned
forecasts

The tatle below analyses the Group's financial habili-
ties into relevant matunty groupings based on the re-
maining penod at the closing date to the contractual
matunty date The armounts disclosed in the table
below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

Undaer 1 year 1=5years Qver 5years Total
€m €m €m £€m
Non-derwvative financial habihties
Loans and bank averdrafts 16 8 6 30
Accounts payable (1) 1,690 87 25 1,802
At 31 December 2012 1,706 |+ 1 fe3 ] 1,832
Derivative financial habilities
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
- Qutflow 702 198 - 900
- Inflow (689) {192) - {881)
At 31 December 2012 13 6 - 19
Under 1 year 1-5years  Over § years Total
€m €m €m tm
Non-denvative financial habiliies
Loans and bank overdrafts 43 11 1 55
Accounts payable (1) 1,665 132 26 1,823
At 31 December 2011 1,708 143 27 1,878
Derwvative financial habilittes
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
- Qutflow 444 53 - 497
- Inflow {430) (51) - (481)
At 31 December 2011 14 2 - 16
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Capital nsk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a go-
ing concern and to provide returns for shareholders
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Accounting classifications and
fair value hierarchy

Financial mstruments by category
The fair value of each class of financial assets and
liabities are eguivalent to therr carying amount

Assats at
far value Dervativas Loans and Avalable-
through profit used for accounts for-sale
or Joss {1} hedging receivabls  Invesiments Total
Notes €m €m €m €m £m
Assels
Loans and other financial assets (surplus
of the defined bensfit plans excluded) 57 - 29 116 202
Accounts recevable and other
financial assets (2) 8. 8] 79 42 1,794 - 1,915
{1} includies Natonel Mode Groun Cash and cash equivalents 8. 9] - - 650 - 650
p:epa:c:; ?xpensa and other taxes At 31 December 2012 136 42 2,473 116 2,767
recevabio
Liabilimes
at far value Denvatives Other
through used for finanesal
profit or loss hedging  habibities (1) Total
Notes €m €m €m €m
4 Liabilities
g i:ﬂ';f;,;;iﬁ - Loans and bank overdrafts - - 29 29
employes benehts habity, defarrod Accounts payable (2) m - 19 1,773 1,782
mcome socal securtly and
other taxes payable and advance At 31 December 2012 - 19 1,802 1,821
payments
Assets at
far value Denvatives Loans and Avalable~
through profit used for actounts for-salo
o loss (1} nedging receivable  investments Total
Notes €m €m €m €m €m
Assets
Loans and other financal
assets {surplus of the defined
benefit plans excluded) 132 - ] 106 244
Accounts recewvable and other
financial assets (2) [ 8. 8] - 96 1,927 - 2,023
Cash and cash equivalents - - 701 - 701
At 31 December 2011 132 96 2,634 106 2,968

(1) As par? of an agroemant signed on 10.June 2071 with tho current sharaholders of National Mediz Group | NMG) RTL Group swapped ds 30 por
cant shareholding in the Nussan TV channe! Ren TV for a 7 5 pes cont sharcn’mfdmg n NMG NMG holds intorests in three major Russian TV chan
nels (First Channal Ren TV and TRK Petersburg) the day 143 and the radwo stalion Russian Nows Scrvice Mut and call option
agroements hava beoen concluded with nghts exercisabio n 2013 The non cash transaction rosulted m
- the disposal of Ren TV which was classiied in 2010 o nancial assels at far value through profit of loss withaut rocogmtion of any capital gain
and

- thg recogmton of tha nvastment in NMG in accordanca with IAS 39 for an amount of €76 mihon at 31 December 2011
NMG has been designatod ar fay valuo thvough profit or loss as ds performanca & managed on a faw valuo basis
This fnancial asset s presentod inlevel 3 according la the IFRST gudance

{21 Accounts rocervable exclude Drepard expensg and other taxes recervabic

Labilities
at fair value Dervatives COther
thraugh used for financial
profit or loss hedging  babilities {1) Total
Notes €m €m €m €m
{1) Ar amontmed cost Labilities
{2} Accounts payable axchde Loans and bank overdrafts m - - 53 53
am)y a benalit lablines daferred
mf,"m";" social secunty and Accounts payable (2} 3 1. - 16 1,795 1,811
ather o payable and advance At 31 December 2011 - 16 1,848 1,864
paymants
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Fair value hierarchy

The followang table presents the Group's financial
assets and habiliies measured at far value at 31 De-
cember by valuation method The different levels
have been defined as follows

s evel 1 quoted pnces (unadjusted) In active mar-
kets for identical assets (or habilities},

® Level 2 Inputs other than guoted prices (included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or -
ability, either directly (e prices} or indrrectly (i e
derived from prices}, and

| evel 3 inputs for the asset or the lability that are
not based an observable market data (unobserva-
ble Inputs}

Total tevell Levei2 Leveld

€m €m €m €m
Asgsets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 136 - 57 79
Avallable-for-sale investments 116 16 43 57
Derrvatives used for hedging 42 - 42 -

At 31 December 2012

204 16 142 136

Liabiities

Dervatives used for hedging 19 - 19 -
At 31 December 2012 19 - 19 -
Assets

Financial assets at far value through profit or loss 132 - 56 76
Avalable-for-sale investments 106 6 50 50
Dervatives used for hedging 86 - 96 -

At 31 December 2011

334 6 202 126

Liabilities
Derwvatives used for hedging 16 - 16 _
At 31 December 2011 16 - 16 -
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The fair value of financial instruments traded in ac-
tive markets are based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date A market 1s regarded as ac-
tve If quoted pnces are readily and regularly availa-
ble from an exchange, dealer, broker, mndustry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those pric-
es represent actual and regularly occurnng market
transactions on an arm’s length basis These instru-
ments are included i level 1 The gquoted market
prnce used for financial assets by the Group 1s the
current bid pnce

The far value of financial instruments that are not
traded i an active market are determuned by using
valuation lechniques These valuation techriques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it 1s avallable, and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates If all significant inputs required to
farr value an instrument are observable, the instru-
ment 15 included in level 2

[f one or more of the significant inputs 1s not based
on observable market date, the instrument 1s includ-
ed inlevel 3



The following table presents
the change In level 3
instruments for the year
ended 31 December 2012

The following table presents
the change i fevel 3
instruments for the year
ended 31 Dacember 20114

(1} Summit avadabie for sake
nvesimen! prasentad in level T m
2010 has been transferred to
lavel 2 following the acquistion on
13 Jarnwary 2012 of Summit
by t rons Gate Frtertanment

{2} A loss of €1 mathon related to an
avasahle lor sake mvestment
was recognsed it disconbinued
operations (see nole 4)
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Specific valuation technigues used to valus financial
instruments inciude

» Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
Instruments,

m The farr value ct forward foreign exchange con-
tracts are determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting
value discounted back to prasent value,

m QOther techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysts, are used to determine far value for the re-
maning financial Instruments

Financial
assets at far Avalable-
valus through for-sale
profitorloss  investments Total
€m €m €m
Batance at 1 January 76 50 126
Disposal (1} - {1
Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive Income - 13 13
Gans and losses recogrised in profit or loss
{"Financial results other than interest”, see note 7 5) 4 (6) 2)
Balance at 31 December 79 57 136
Total gans/{losses) for the periad included in profit or loss
for assets held at the end of the reporting period 4 {6) (2}
Financal
assets at far Avalable-
value through for-sale
prafit orloss  investments Total
€m €m €m
Balance at 1 January 72 69 141
Purchase 72 2 74
Disposal (72) - (72)
Transfer into level 2 (1) - (11) 11)
Gains and lpsses recognised in other comprehensive income - 9) (9)
Gans and losses recognised In profit or loss
{“Financial result other than interest”, see note 7 5) (2} 4 (1) 3
Balance at 31 December 76 S0 126
Total gains/{losses) for the penod included in profit or loss
for assets held at the end of the reporting period 4 (1) 3
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X DISGONTINUED OPERATIONS

Alpha

Following the decrsion of the Board of Directors of
RTL Group SA in December 2011 1o fully dispose of
the shares held n Alpha Meda Group Lid,
RTL Group concluded an agreement with the non-
controling shareholder of Alpha The transaction
was subject to approval by the Greek Competition
Commission at 31 December 2011 The transaction
was completed an 20 February 2012, once the
competition clearance was obtained on © February
2012

The terms of the share purchase agreement stipulat-
ad that, pnor to the disposal, RTL Group will recapi-
takse and fund Alpha, enabling it to fully remburse
the loans and facilities to third parties and to cover

working capital requirements for December 2011
and January 2012 In this respect, RTL Group unilat-
erally contnbuted €53 milhion and € 16 millon in De-
cember 2011 and v January 2012, respectively,
through capital Increases 1N an Alpha group compa-
ny Alpha continues to benefit from a loan of €22 5
miliors owed to RTL Group after its exit with a nil far
value at 31 Decernber 2012

The loss from discontinued operations related to Al-
pha of € 1 million {2011 €98 milion) 1s attrbutable to
the owners of the Group for € nil milion (2011 €76
miflion)

The: results of Alpha are presented below

2012 2011

€m €m

Revenue 4 49
Qther operating Income 1 5
Consumption of current programme nghts 1 {16)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment - (6)
Other operating expenses 4] (55)

Impairment of disposal group and amarttsation and impairment
of farr value adjustments on acquisitions of subsidiaries and joint ventures - (72)

Gain/(loss) from sale of subsidianes, other investments and re-measurement

to far value of pre-existing interest 1n acquiree 2 -
Loss from operating activities 1) {95)
Earmngs before interest and taxes (“EBIT”) (1) {95)
Net interest expense - {4)
Financial results other than interest - 1
Loss hefore taxes (1) (98)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations {1) (98)
EBITA {(discontmued operatons) (3) (23)
Impairment of subsidianes and joint ventures and of disposal group - {B64)
Amortisation and impairment of farr value adjustments on acquisitions of subsidiaries

and joint ventures - (8)
Gain/(loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and re-measurement

ta far value of pre-existing interest in acquiree 2 -
Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT") (1) (95}
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Other comprehensive income of Alpha disposal
group relating to actuanal gans on defined benefit
plans amounts to € mil miflon at 31 December 2012
(2011 €0 4 milon)




Cash outflow on disposal
of discontinued
operations 1s as follows*

{1) At dsposal date

Non-current assets
classtfied as held for sale,
disposal group-

{1) including /mpairment of non current
asseals for €(19) mihan of which
smpaurnent of faw valug adjustments
ovt acquisitions of subsidianes
and jomt variures for €(7) midhan

Liabiities directly
assoclated with
non-current assets
classified as held for sale:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012
€m
Assets classified as held for sale (1) (29}
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale (1) 35
Nan-controlling interests {1)
Accumulated other comprehensive income recognised in the Income statement -
Net assets disposed of 5
Direct cost associated with the disposal of Alpha (3)
Less
Payments on previous year on disposal of Alpha 1
Cash outflow on disposal of discontinued operations 2
2011
€m
Non-current assets
— Other intangible assets 8
- Property, plant and equipment 11
Current assets
- Programme rights 20
- Income tax recevable 4
- Accounts recewvable and other financial assets 55
— Cash and cash equivalents 4
Impairment of disposal group (1) (71)
3
2011
€m
Current habilities
Loans and bank overdrafts 20
Income tax payable 1
Accounts payable 23
Non-current habilities
Accounts payable 8
Provisions 5
57
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Five Group

On 23 July 2010, RTL Group disposed of Five
Group to Northern & Shell, a company owned by
British pubhsher Richard Desmond

The terms of the agreement included a net cash
payment of €118 millon The total cash considera-
tion payable to RTL Group for its 100 per cent
shareholding in Five Group amounted to €124 mil-
hon before adjustment related to a cash pooling
mechanism (minus €6 milkon} The regulatory nsk
was taken by the purchaser (see note 9 1)

The results of Five Group are presented below

201

€m
Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and re-measurement
to farr value of pre-existing interest in acquires (1)
Loss from operating activittes (1)
Earmings before interest and taxes (“EBIT"} (1
Loss before taxes (1)
Income tax income 3
Profit/ (lass) far the year from discontinued operations 2

EBITA (discontinued operations)

Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other iInvestments and re-measurement
to fair value of pre-existing interest in acquiree

{1

Earnings before interest and taxes {“EBIT”)

{1)
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The loss from discontinued operations of €1 milkon
{2011 €96 millon} and related to Alpha and Five 1s
attnbutable to the owners of the Group for € ril mil-
ion (2011 €74 milion) Of the profit from continuing
operations of €691 million (2011 €891 mullon),
€587 milion 15 attnbutable to the owners of the
Group (2011 €770 millon)



B2 SEGMENT REPORTING

The determination of the Group’s operating segments
15 based on the operational and management-
related entities for which information 1s reported to
the Executive Committee

The Group has 15 business urits, each oneled by a
CEQ They manage cperations n telewiston, radio
and diversfication businesses In ten countries, N
which the Group owns interests in 53 TV channels
and 28 radio stations, of which eight TV channels
and two radio stations held by Grupo Antena 3 as-
sociate, FremantleMedia and UFA Sporis operate an
internationzl network in the content business

All the reported segments meet the quantitative
thresholds required by IFRS 8

» Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland this segment en-
compasses all of the Group's German television
actvities These include the leading commercial
channel RTL Telewiston, free-to-arr channels Vox,
Super RTL, RTL Nitro and N-TV, thematic pay
channels RTL Cnme, RTL Living and Passicn, and
an equity participation in free-to-air channel RTL Il
This segment also Includes an array of dversifica-
tion actmties such as new media and content,

a Groupe M6 prmarnly composed of the commer-
cial television channel M6 This segment also in-
cludes two other free-io-ar telewision channels,
W9 and the newly launched 6ter, and a number of
smaller thematic pay chanrels This segment also
includes significant other actvites such as home
shopping, direct-to-consumer marketing, nghis
distnbution and a football club,

» FremantleMedia principally a worldwide produc-
tion business but other actwities include a
significant distnbution and licensing business Its
main busingss unis are based In the United
States, the United Kingdom, Germany and Aus-
traha FremantleMedia segment includes Radical
Media, a leading TV commercials production com-
pany in the United States with offices in Australia,
China and Germany,

s RTL Nederland this segment covers both tele-
viston and radic actmties The Group's telewision
channels cover RTL 4, RTL 5, RTL 7, RTL 8,
RTL Lounge, RTL Cnme and RTL Telekids, and are
the leading family of channels in the Netherlands,

8 RTL Belgum this segment includes both television
and radio actwiies pnmanty focused in the French-
speaking {southem) part of Belgum The telewision
actmties are the leading family of channels and in-
clude RTL-TW, Plug RTL and Club RTL, whilg the
radio activities are made up of the number one and
number two stations, Bel RTL and Radio Contact,

»French radio this 18 the leading radio family
in France and manly ncludes the stations RTL
Radio, RTL 2 and Fun Radio

The revenue of “Other segments” mainly relates to
RTL Kluty {Hungary, €101 millon) and RTL Hrvatska

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Croatia, €31 millon) Group headquarters provides
services, Intiates development projects and I1s also
reported n “Other segments™

RTL Group's Executve Committee assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on
EBITA Interest income, Interest expense, financial
results other than interest and income tax are not al-
located to segments, as these are centrally driven
Inter-segment pricing s determined on an arm's
length basis

The Executive Committee also reviews, on a regular
basis, the amount of the invested capital of each
profit centre Only the assets and habilities directly
managed by the profit centres are considered Re-
portable segment assets and labilities ars recon-
clled to total assets and liabilties, respectively

All management financial information reported to
RTL Group’s Executive Committee is fully compliant
and consistent with the Group’s accounting policies
and pnmary statements
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Medsengruppe

Segment information ;T,Lzmm;&d-. 20?2"“” MZUH
€m £€m €m €m
Revenue from external customers 1,879 1,909 1,378 1,414
Inter-segment revenue 3 3 9 7
Total revenue 1,982 1,912 1,387 1,421
Profit/ (Joss) from operating activities 561 508 217 238
Share of results of associates il 21 - -
EBIT 582 529 07 238
EBITA {continuing operations) 581 529 224 249
Impairment of iInvestments in associates - - - -
Amortisation and impairment of farr value adjustments on acquisitions of subsidiaries and joint ventures {1) - {7 (11)
Re-measurement of earn-out arrangements 2 - - -
Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other iInvestments
and re-measurement to farr value of pre-existing interest in acquiree - - - -
EBIT 582 529 217 238
Interest mcome
Interest expense
Financial results other than interest
Income tax expense
Profit for the year from continuing operations
Segment assets (assets classified as held for sale and associates excluded) 1,476 1,458 1,476 1,486
Investments in assoclates 60 60 - -
Assets classified as held for sale and assets related to discontinued cperations - - - -
Segment assets 1,536 1,518 1,476 1,486
Segment habilties (habilities directly associated with non-current assets
classified as held for sale excluded) 849 776 618 656
Liabilities directly associated wrth non-current assets classified as held for sale
and habilities related to discontinued operations - - - -
Segment hatnlities 849 776 618 656
Invested capital 687 742 858 830
Segment assets
Deferred tax assets
Income tax recervable
Other assets
Cash and cash egquivalents
Total assets
Segment habilities
Deterred tax habilities
Income tax payable
Other llabilities
Total hiabiltties
Capital expenditure (1) (2) 16 26 117 a3
Depreciatton and amortisation (3) {19) (20) {107) (87)
impairment losses excluding goodwill - - - n
Impairment of goodwill of subsidianes and joint ventures and of disposal group - - - -
Ro prosented {see Note 6 2 Hungaran fanguage cable channals and M RTL)
(1} Capntal expenditure includes addibions m “Programme and other nghts” “Other mtangbie assels” and “Property plant and equiprment”
now goodwill following acqustions of subsidianes and pourit ventures and incremental far vaiue on dentitabie assofs folowing purchasa accounting
(2} Inclsd ng capral expenditure refated to dscontinued operations for € nd maion (2611 € 1 miion)
{3} Inched ng depreciation and amortsaton relaled to dsconlinued operations for € ri madon (2011 €4 milion)
Germany France
2012 2011 2012 20M
€m €m €m €m
Geographical information Geographical areas are based on where customers Ravenue from external
{revenue) and the Group's non-current assets are customers 2,110 2,012 1,551 1,611
located Goodwll has been allocated to a geograph- Non-current assets 1,019 1,012 939 933
ical area based on whether the Group's nsks and Assets classified as
returns are affected predominantly by the products | held for sale 3 - - -
and services t produces Capital expenditure 42 57 120 a9
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RTL RTL French Other
FremantioMedia Nederiand Belgum radie sagments Elrminations. Total Group

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201% 2012 201
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m £m €m
1,954 1,263 431 491 209 215 178 182 269 291 - - 5,008 5,765
157 166 - - 1 1 2 2 35 39 {207) (218) - -
1,711 1,429 431 491 210 216 180 184 304 330 (207) {218) 5,998 5,765
137 143 97 240 45 46 30 30 (55) (21) - - 1,032 1,184
(10} @) - - - - - - (64) 24 - - (53) 38
127 136 97 240 45 46 30 30 {119) 3 - - 979 1,222
138 143 97 134 45 46 30 30 {37 3 - - 1078 1,134
(o) @ - - - - - - 1 - - 6)
- - - ) - - - - @ {1 - )
- - - - - - - - - - - - 2 —

) - - 107 - - - - {8) - - - {9) 107
127 136 97 240 45 46 30 30 (119) 3 - - 979 1,222
11 23

{21} (25)

{1) (27)

(277} (302)

691 891

1,763 1,680 361 342 172 172 179 179 558 548  (123) (141) 5862 5724
- 9 - - - - - - 191 287 - - 251 356

- - - - - - - - - 23 - - - 23
1,763 1,689 361 342 172 172 179 179 749 858 {123) (i41) 6,113 6,103
550 488 120 123 104 117 73 76 287 283 {123} (142) 2,478 2,377
- - - - - - - - - 33 - - - 33
550 488 120 123 104 117 73 76 287 316 {123} {142) 2,478 2,410
1,213 1,201 241 219 68 55 106 103 462 542 - 1 3,635 3,693
6,113 6,103

377 361

86 57

672 969

650 701

7,898 8,187

2478 2,410

62 57

79 100

421 527

3,040 3,094

30 53 13 51 4 6 2 5 20 107 - - 202 341
22 (2 M 00 B (5) @) @ @ @ - (88 (179
@ @ () - - - - - - & - - @ (4
- - - - - - - - - 72) - - - (72)

UsA Netherlands Belgium UK Other regions. Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 012 201 2012 201 2012 20m 202 201
€m €m £m €m €m £€m €m €m €m €m €m €m

The revenue generated in Luxembourg amounts
640 496 448 502 238 235 219 206 792 703 5998 5755 to €55 milion (2011 €54 mdlion} The total of non-

A41 442 287 285 50 51 411 417 204 200 3,351 3,340 current assets other than financial instruments,

deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit

- - - - - - - - - 3 A assets located in Luxembourg amounts to €27 mil-
3

14 14 51 4 6 4 5 15 108 202 3 lion (2011 €26 millon)
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3 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

174

RTL GROUP

Acquisitions and Increases

in interests held in subsidianes

Cetalls of man acqussitions in the year ended 31 De-
cember 2012 are set oul N note 62 Acquisitions
have been consoldated using the purchase method
of accounting with goodwill being recognised as an
asset Al acquisitions have been included In the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control was transtferred to the Group

In aggregate, the acqurred businesses contnbuted
reveniue of €2 millon and profit attnbutable to
RTL Group shareholders of € mil milton for the post
acquisihon penod to 31 December 2012 Had the
business combmations been at the begnning of the
year, the revenue and the profit attnbutable to
RTL Group shareholders would not have changed

Details of main acquisitions and disposals,
increases In interests held in subsidiaries

2012

Thera were no major acquIsiions in the year ended
31 December 2012 The Group incurred insignificant
acquisition-related costs

Other acquisitions and disposals, increases in
interest held in subsidiaries

& On 2 January 2012, RTL Group acgured 100 per
cent of Gutscheine de HSS GmbH which operates
online couporing sites in Germany The acquisition
strengthens RTL Group’s position in the German
onhne market The transaction qualfied as a busi-
ness combination since RTL Group ganed the
control of Gutscheine de The purchase accounting
did not lead to recognition of additionat identifiable
assets and abilies The purchase consideration,
net of cash acqured, amcounted to €3 million
resulting n the recognition of a goodwill of €2 8
millcn An amount of €25 milllon was already
cashed-out in 2011 At 31 December 2012, the
contingent consideratron based on a variabie per-
formance component includes an earn-out mech-
anism assessed for an amount of €0 5 mullion,

s 0n 2 August 2012, the Group acquired 25 per
cent of Apareo Holding GrbH which comes in ad-
dition to the 50 per cent previousty held The busi-
ness was launched i 2012 and 1s based on the
development of system solutions for spont organi-
sations, clubs and associations in order to mone-
tise the attractiveness of their brand from an online
virtual market place The transaction gualified as a
business combination since RTL Group gained the
control of Apareo The purchase congideration, net
of cash acaquired, amounted to €2 3 million result-
Ing in the recogniton of a goodwili of €2 milion In
addwtion to a capital Increase of €0 3 milhon, an
amount of €1 1 millon was already cashed-out
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in 2011 At 31 December 2012, the contingant
consideration based on a vanable performance
compenent Includes an earn-gut mechanism fully
recogrused for an amount of €0 & rmillon,

a On 11 October 2012, RTL Group acquired 100 per
cent of Videostrp BV, the largest online wideo
advertizing network in the Netherlands The trans-
action fits the Group's strategy to invest in digital
advertising and content-delivery technologies The
transaction qualfied as a business comhination
since RTL Group gained the contral of Videostnp
The purchase accounting led to no recognition of
additicnal farr values directly attnbutable to the net
assets acquired The purchase consideration, net
of cash acquired, amounted to €3 5 million result-
ing 1N the recognition of a goodwill of €3 4 million
The earn-out mechanism for an amount of €3 mil-
hon has not been recognised,

u (On 31 October 2012, RTL Group acqured Tom s
Games internet sites (JeuxvideoPC com and
Jeuxvideo-flash com) The transaction contriputes
{0 extend the creative capabilities of the Group
The transaction qualfied as a business combina-
tion since RTL Group gained the control of Tom’s
Games The purchase consideration, net of cash
acquired, amounted to €3 1 millon resulting in
the recognition of a provisional goodwill of €3 1
miffion At 31 December 2012, the contingent
consideration based on a vanable performance
component Includes the first earn-ocut mechanism
fully recogrused for an amount of €0 5 mition




2011

Hungarnan language cable channels

and M-RTL

On 28 July 2011, RTL Group signed with IKO and
certain other entiies an agreement for acquinng its
stake of 31 per cent in M-RTL and the full contro! of
a portfolio of seven Hunganan language cable chan-
nels The transactions were completed on 20 De-
cember 2011 cnce the approval of the Hunganan
Competition Office was receved

The finat purchase price was contingent on working
capital adjustments In addition, the acguistion
agreement provided for certain warranties and in-
dermnities in favour of RTL Group

On 31 August 2011, RTL Group paid €6 mithon for
100 per cent of KOS Beteifigungs- und Verwaltungs-
geselischaft mbH (“KOS") holding a 2 per cent
economic ownership and 20 per cent voting nghts in
M-RTL

The acquisitions of KOS and of the 31 per cent
stake in M-RTL from IKO was accounted for as eg-
uity transactions (see note 8 14 8) The related con-
sideration amounted to €64 millon In this context,
RTL Group also reimbursed a loan payable for an
amount of €6 millon The excess of consideration
recognised in the equity attnbutable 1o RTL Group
shareholders amounted to €(42) miton

The transactions related to the seven cable channels
qualfied as a business combination At 3t December
2011, the related purchase consideration, net of cash
acquired, amounted tc €91 milion, resuthing in the
recognition of a provisional goodwil of €87 million

The acquisitions provided the opportunity for
KRTL Group to bulg a family of channels in the very

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAKCIAL STATEMENTS

fragmented Hunganan market and to develop syner-
gies for reducing the cost base

The acquistion-related costs of €0 6 milicn, mainty
consisting of legal fees and due diligence costs,
were recogrused in ' Other operating expenses”

As the gan of control of the cable channels oc-
curred at the end of the year, the revenue and profit
inctuded for the acquired operations in the consoli-
dated income staterment of STL Group for the pen-
od 2011 was not significant

Had the business combination occurred on 1 Janu-
ary 2011, the contnbution to the consolidated rave-
nue and to the Group's consolidated result would
have been €17 rmillon and €2 million, respectively

In 2012, the purchase consideration was reduced
by €1 million (to €89 million), following working cap-
ital adiustments agreed between the seller and
RTL Group in May 2012 The purchase accounting,
determined on a provisional basis in 2011 and com-
pleted during the first half of 2012 resulted In a
goodwill of €78 miflion

The following identifiable assets and habilities have

been recognised

# The brand names "Coaol”, “F+", "Rim2”, “Muzsika”,
“Prizma’”, “Reflektor” and “Sorozat+” for an amount
of €2 milkan,

a The customer relatonships for an amount of €7
milhon,

m A related deferred tax hability for an amount of €1
milion

Goodwill will not be tax deductible in connection
with this transaction

Carrymng amount Fair vatue

Hungarnian language cable channels and M-RTL gam :: :m Immm gamn :: m‘,
201 €m £€m €m
Cash and cash equivalents {1} - (1}
Other intangible assets 3 9 12
Current programme nghts 4 - 4
Accounts receivable and other financial assets 4 - 4
Accounts payable 14) - (M
Deferred tax habiities - 1)) (1
Net assels acquired 3 8 1
Goodwill 78
Total purchase consideration 89
Purchase price adjustment 1
Cash and cash equivalents in operations acquired 1
Cash outflow on acquisition 21
RTL EROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012 175




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

176 RTL GROUP

Dutch radios and RTL Nederland

On 28 July 2011, RTL Group exercised its put op-
tion towards Talpa Media Nederand to get back
Talpa Media's 26 3 per cent non-controling share-
holding in RTL Nederland (manly Dutch TV opera-
tions) in exchange for its interests held in the Dutch
radios Radio 5638, Radio 10 Gold and Slam/FM The
exchange of the respective shareholdings was initial-
ly set to {ake place in 2012

RTL Group and Talpa Media agreed on 1 Septen-
per 2011 to accelerate the transfer of shares be-
fore 31 December 2011 On 29 December 2011,
RTL Group and Talpa Media agreed on the final com-
pletion of the asset swap and the related payments

The acquisition of the remaining nan-controlling inter-
est In RTL Nederland was accounted for as an equity
transaction {ses note 8 14 8} The far value of the
26 3 per cent of RTL Nederland amounted o €290
millon The valuation was based on a discounted
cash-flow approach and an analysis of comparable
trading and transactions multiples The equity trans-
action resulted 1 a decrease In equity of €273 millicn

RTL Group recognised a capitel gain on the dispos-
al of the Dutch radios for an amount of € 107 millon
denved from the measurement at far value of 26 3
per cent of RTL Nederland included in the consider-
ation received

The terms of the agreement included the payment
to Talpa of the put option cash settlement amount,
net of representations and warranties receved by
Talpa (€(7) mulion), the reimbursement to Talpa Me-
dia of its contnbution paid in 2007 {€(74} million), the
reimbursement to RTL Group of the loan granted in
2007 (€74 milion), and the payment to RTL Group
of the purchase price following the acquisition of
Radio 10 Gold and Slam!FM (€7 millon) The dis-
posal resulted therefore in an outflow, net of cash
held by the Dutch radios disposed of, amounting to
€(5) milon

In 2011, the Dutch radios contnbuted €61 millon
and €13 milion to the revenue and the profit atink-
utable to the owners of Group, respectively

Dutch radios and RTL Nederland 221-::
Cash and cash equivalents (79}
Goodwill (164)
Other intangible assets (34)
Property, plant and equipment {1)
Net deferred tax assats (36)
Accounts recervable and other financial assets {13)
Accounts payable 65
Interest-bearing loans payable and borrowings 55
Non-controlling mterests 24
Net assets disposed of (183}
Total disposal proceeds 297
Less

Transactions with non-controlling interests (290)
Cash settlement amount (N
Remmbursement to RTL Group of the loan granted 74
Cash and cash equivalents in operations disposed of {r9)
Cash outflow on disposals of continuing operations (see note 6 2.) {5)
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Assets and habilities
acquired

Details of the net assels
acquired and goodwiil are
as follows*

QOther acquisitions and disposals, increases
in interest held in subsidianes

= On 1 April 2011, RTL Group acquired 100 per cent
of the leading Dutch internet site Buienradar, which
provides real-time weather information The trans-
acton qualified as a business combination since
RTL Greup ganed the control of Buienradar BV
The purchase accounting led to no recagnition of
additional far values drrectly atinbutable to the net
assets acquired The purchase consideration, net
of cash acquired, amounted to € 15 rmillon result-
ing in the recognition of a goadwill of €11 million,

= On 19 Aprl 2011, the Group acquired the reman-
Ing 50 per cent of the shares of the company TCM
Droits Audiovisuels SNC {“TCM™), previously pro-
porionate consoldated The transaction gualfied
as a business combination since RTL Group
gained the conirol of TCM The re-measurement to
far value of the Group's existing 50 per cent
(amcunting to €04 millon) was recognised In
"Gain/loss) from sale of subsidianes, other invest-
ments and re-measurement to far value of pre-ex-
1sting interest in acquiree” (see note 7 3) The pur-
chase accounting led to the recognition of a far
value of €1 7 million on the nghts acquired subse-
quently fully impaired,

= On 28 Apnl 2011, the Group acquired 50 per cent
ih Panorabanque SAS (“Pancrabanque™ through a
capital increase and 34 per cent in Quicksign SAS
{ses note 8 4 ), a technological platform devoted to
financial services and implemented by Panora-
bangue Jointly controlled, Panorabangue 1s pro-
portionate consolidated The purchase accounting
led to no recognition of additional farr values direct-
ly attributable to the net assets acquired A good-
will of €0 7 milion was recognised,

8 On 5 May 2011, the Group acquired 100 per cent
of Les Films de la Suane Sarl {*Les Films de 1a
Suane"), a company that owns a catalogue of
seven feature films The transaction qualified as a
business combination since the Group ganed the
control of Les Fims de la Suane The purchase
accounting led to the recognition of a farr value of
€2 mullion on deferred tax assets related to losses
carned forward and on the catalogue of nghts
acqurred, net of related deferred tax liability,
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8 On 1 June 2011, RTL Group acquired 100 per cant
of the Dutch radio station Slam!FM BV (*Slam!Fh™}
The transaction qualfied as a business combina-
tion since RTL Group ganed the control of
SlamIFM The purchase accounting led to no rec-
ognition of additional faw values directly attnbutable
to the net assets acquired The purchase consider-
ation, net of cash acquired, amounted to €6 millon
resulting In the recogrition of a goodwall of €4 mil-
lion 1t was agreed that in case RTL Group would
exercise 1ts put option on Talpa, the shares in
SlamiFM will be transferred to Talpa on the same
terms and conditions as at the date of acquisition
{see note “Dutch radios and RTL Nederland”),

= 0n 5 August 2011, the Group acquired 100 per
cent of Netzathleten nat Media GmbH (‘Netz-
athleten”) and its 100 per cent controlled subsidi-
ary Delta Advertising GmbH Netzathleten 1s the
leading operator of vertical content networks in the
German-speaking market The transaction quali-
fied as a business combination since RTL Group
gained the control of Netzathleten The purchase
accounting led to the recognition of a far value of
€3 milion on the customer relationships and to a
related ceferred tax habity of €1 millen The trans-
action resulted in the recognition of a goodwill of
€12 millon The purchase consideration, net of
cash acquired, amounted in 2011 to €7 milkon At
31 December 2011, the deferred consideration
pavable based on a vanable performance-refated
companent amounted to €6 million
In 2012, an agreement related to ong part of the
performance-related component was signed, and
resulted In a lump sum payment of €3 million and
n a re-measurement of € 1 million At 31 December
2012, the deferred consideration payable based
on the remaning vanable performance-related
cormponent amounts to €1 million,

® An acdditonal far value of the deferred consid-
eration was recognised in 2011 due 1o the out-
performance of Cnginal Productrons The geodwill
was accordingly increased for an amount of
€12 million to €63 milion

2012 2011
€m €m
Purchase consideration
- Cash paid 8 132
— Payments on priar years' acquisitions (3} (12)
- Contingent cansideration 2 6
= Prior years' payments on acquisitions -
- Purchase price adjustment 1 (1)
Total purchase consideration 12 125
Less
Fair value of net assets acquired (1) (20)
Fair value of equity interest held before business combinations - 1
Goodwill (see note 6 2.) 11 106

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012 177




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash outflow on
acquisitions

The net assets and
frabilities ansing
from the acquisitions
are as follows

Re presenied (se6 note 6.2}

Assets and habilities
dispased of

Detatls of net assets
disposed of and gain on
disposal are as follows:

Cash outflow on
disposals of continuing
operations

2012 2011
Farr value Farr value
€m €m
Cash and cash equivalents - (2)
Non-current programme and other nghts - 4
Other tntangible assets 1 15
Current pregramme rights - 4
Accounts receivable and other financial assets 1 7
Accounts payable {1) (12)
Cther provision - (1)
Interest-bearing loans payable and borrowings - (1)
Nan-controlling interests - 6
Net assets acquired 1 20
Farr value of equity interest held before business combinations - {1}
Goodwill 11 106
Total purchase consideration 12 125
Less
Contingent consideration {2) (6}
Payments on prior years® acquisitions 3 12
Purchase price adjustment {1) 1
Prior years' payments on acquisitions {4} ~
Cash and cash equivalents in gperattons acquired - 2
Cash outflow on acquisitions {see note 6 2. 8 134
2011
€m
Fair value of consideration receved 297
Payment associated (7}
Net assets disposed of (183}
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries (see note 62 ) 107
2011
€m
Cash and cash equivalents (79)
Goodwili (164)
Other intangible assets (34)
Property, plant and equipment (1)
Net deferred tax assets (36)
Accounts recewable and other financial assets (13)
Accounts payable 65
Interest-bearing loans payable and borrowings 55
Non-controlling interests 24
Net assets disposed of (183)
Total disposal proceeds 297
Less
Transaction with non-controlling interests {290)
Cash settlement amount (4]
Reimbursement to RTL Group of the loan granted 74
Cash and cash eguivalents in operations disposed of (79)

Cash outflow on disposals of continuing operations {see note 6 2 )

(5)
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DETAILS ON CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Other operating expenses

{1} Fees related to
PricewatarhouseCoapers (PwG)
the Group s audidor and thesr
affiates regarding tha contnung
operations are sat aul below

Employee benefits
expenses

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

2012 20m
€m % €m %
Spot advertising sales 3,146 53 3,207 56
Bartenng advertising revenue 53 1 53 1
Other advertising sales 198 3 199 3
Advertising sales, net of agency commissions 3,397 57 3,459 60
Net films, programmes and other nghts = sold or licensed 1,774 30 1,491 26
Sales of merchandise and consumer services 555 9 564 10
Protessional services 272 4 251 4
5,998 100 5,765 100
2012 2011
Notes €m £€m
Employee benefits expenses 7.2 1. 858 914
External cost of live programmes 289 242
Intellectual property expenses 335 333
Expenses for subcontract production 177 177
Consumption of other inventories 283 270
External cost of transmitting 126 142
QOther marketing, promation and public relations costs i1 126
Rental costs 83 98
Qperating taxes T4 79
Audn, consutung and fegal fees (1) 56 56
Marketing and promotion costs — barter 50 50
Repairs and maintenance 55 46
Other distnbution expenses 36 a4
Commussions on sales 15 19
Administration and sundry expenses 122 160
2,780 2,746
2012 2011
€m €m
PwC PwC
Audit services pursuant to legislation 24 24
Other aught-related sarvices 10 07
Other services relating to taxation 01 02
Other services 03 05
a8 38

The PwC fees related to the discontinued operations
amounted to €nil millton N 2012 {2011 €0 1 milion)

2012 2011
€m €m

Wages and salanes 712 694
Termination benefits 28 16
Social secunty costs 155 149
Share options granted to employees 5 7
Pensign costs 16 14
Cther employee expenses 42 34
958 914

Of which restructunng costs 7 -

The amounts set out above exclude personnel costs
of €242 million (2011 €194 milkon), that are capital-
1sed and that represent costs of employees directly
allocated to the production of assets

In addition to other short-term bonus schemes,
RTL Group has mplemented for its senior manage-
ment a long-term incentive plan (“LTIP"} which runs
for the term 2011 to 2013 The LTIP aims to reward
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An analysis of the
average number of
employees for under-
takings held by the
Group is set out opposite
(1) Dscontinued operations (see nofe 4 )

Gain/(loss) from sale

of subsidianes, other
investments and
re-measurement to

fawr value of pre-existing
Interest in acquiree

Net interest
income/{expense)

{1) Of which (see note 8 13.)
— Expecied return on plan assels
€4 mulkan (2011 €4 mikkory
~ Unwind of discount on defined
benefit obigations €(5) mihon
(2071 €18) mdhon)

7. 5.
Financial results other
than interest

(1} This amoun! includes the
rg measurement of put options at
fawr value at year end and change in
far valug on other financial assels
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RTL Group’s senior management for entrepreneunal
performance and to encourage ther long-term com-
mitment to the Group The performance targsts and
beneficianes of the LTIP have been approved by the
Nominaton and Cecmpensaton Committee  of
RTL Group These performance targets are based
upon the RTL Group's Value Added ("RVA") The
RVA corresponds to the EBITA net of tax after de-
duction of the cost of invested capital As at 31 De-
cember 2012, the habtiity related to this LTIP has

been assessed on the basis of the achievement of
performance targets and amecunts to €30 milion
(2011 €11 millon) Groupe MB operates a specific
long-term incentive plan based on stock option and
free shares plans

Pension costs relate to defined contributions for €9
millon (2011 €7 milion) and defined benefit plans
for €7 milion {2011 €7 million) (see note 8 13 )

2012 2011

Employees of fully consolidated undertakings 9,502 9,538
Employees of joint ventures 88 83
9,580 9,621

Employees of Alpha (1) 78 482

“Gan/loss) from sale of subsidanes, other invest-
ments and re-measurement to farr value of pre-exist-
Ing interest in acquiree” mainly retates to the following

2012
u | oss on parttal disposal in Grupo Antena 3
(seanote 8 4) €(8) milkon

“Employees of joint ventures” reflects the number of
employees based on the Group's ownership in these
jont ventures

2011

® Gain on disposal of Dutch radios (see note 6 2)
€107 milion

® Gain on re-measurement of far value of the
Group’s existing 50 per cent in TCM Droits
Audiovisuels SNC (seenote 6 2 ) €0 4 millon

2012 2011

' €m €m

Interest Income on loans and accounts receivable 1 23
Interest ncome 11 23
Interest expense on financial habilities {9) {11
Tax-related interest expense (2) (6}
Interest on defined benefit obligation (1) (5) &
Interest expense on other employee benefit habilities (5) {4}
Interest expense (21) (25)
Net interest expense {10) 2)

“Interest iIncome on loans and accounts recevable”
includes an amount of €3 million {2011 €8 mullon)
In respect of deposits to Bertelsmann SE & Co
KGaA (see note 10 1}

2012 2011

€&m €m
Net gain/{loss) on disposal and imparment on available-for-sale investments 1 -
Cash flow hedges ineffectiveness {see note 3} {8) (5)
Net gamn on other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (1} [] (20)
QOther financial results - 2
{1) (27)
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Income tax expense

The income tax on

the Group profit before
tax differs from the
theoretical amount that
would anse using

the Luxembourg lax rate
as follows-

Earnings per share

NKOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 2011
€m €m
Current tax expense {271) (288)
Deferred tax expense (6) (14)
{277) (302)
202 2011
£m % €m %
Profit before taxes {continuing operations) 968 1,193
Income tax rate applicable in Luxembbourg 28.80 28 80
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate applicable
to profits in Luxembourg 279 343
Effacts of tax rate in foreign junsdictions and German trade tax 63 56
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate applicable to profits
n the respective countnes 342 3530 399 3340
Change in tax regulation and status - (10)
Non deductible expenses 40 17
Tax exempt revenue (40) (40)
Commussion received 1n relation to the Compensation
Agreement (see note 10 1) (69) (69)
Tax incentives not recognised in the Income statement {10} (11)
Effect of tax losses for which no deferred
tax assets are recognised 14 1
Tax expense before adjustments on prior years 277 28 60 287 2410
Current tax adjustments on pror years 4 23
Daferred tax adjustments on prior years 4) (8)
Income tax expense 277 28 60 302 2530

In 2012, non deductible expenses mainly relate to
impairment losses on goodwill of Grupo Antena 3
(see note 8 4 ) (€22 milhon)

“Tax exempt revenue” manly relates to capital gains
and fawr value changes for €25 milion {(2C11 €27
mithon} and to the share of results of associates for
€8 millon {2011 €13 millon}

The calculation of basic earmings per share 1s based
on the profit attrbutable to RTL Greup shareholders
of €597 milhon (2011 €696 millien) and a weighted

In 2011, the effect of the change N Income tax rates
In Germany resulted In an increase in deferred tax
amounting to €10 milion

Tax incentives not recognised in the income state-
ment relate to a permanent difference generated by
the amortisation of tax goodwill in Germany

In 2011, the tax adjustments ¢n priar years mainly
resuited from final tax assessments n Germany

average number of ordinary shares outstanding dur-
ing the year of 153,618,853 (2011 153,618,853},
calculated as follows

Contimung Discontmued Continuing Discontinued

operations operations 2012 oparations operations 2011
Profit/{loss) attributable to RTL Group
sharehotders {in € million) 598 (1) 597 770 (74) 696
Waighted average number of ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January {note 8 14 1) 154,787,554 154,787,554 154,787,554 154,787,554 154,787,554 154,787,554
Effect of treasury shares held (note 8 14 2) 1,168,701} {1,168,701) (1,168,701) (1,168,701) {1,168,701) (1,168,701)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 153,618,853 153,618,853 153,618,853 153,618,853 153,618,853 153,518,853
Basic earnings per share (in €) 389 001) 388 501 {0 48) 453
Diluted earnings per share {in €) 3.89 (o 01) 388 501 (0 48) 453
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IEA DETAILS ON CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Advance

Distnbution payments Total
and and {co-}  programme Cther
{Co-) broadcastng productions and ather ntangible
productions nghts  in progress nghis Goodwill assets
€m €m €m £€m €m €m
Programme and other
rights, goodwill and other Cost
Intangtble assets Balance at 1 January 2011 598 1,002 36 1,636 5,137 448
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 7 2 - 9 3 (3
Additions 12 34 ar 83 - 56
Disposals - {41) - 41 - {29)
Subsidiaries and jont
ventures acquired (3) 1 3 - 4 106 15
Subsidiaries and joint
ventures disposed of (1) - - - - (164) {68}
Transfer to assets classified
as held for sale (4} - - - - {114) {16)
Transfers and other changes (2) 7 26 (42) {9) 9 (1)
Balance at 31 December 2011* 625 1,026 31 1,682 4,977 402
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {4) (1) - {5) 6 a
Additions 9 30 62 101 - 25
Disposals (1) (63) - {64) - (29}
Subsidiaries and joint
ventures acquired (3) - - - - 11 1
Transiers and other changes 13 33 {46} - - 3
Balance at 31 December 2012 642 1,025 47 1,714 4,994 405
Amortisation and imparrment losses
Balance at 1 January 2011 {578} (934) - {1,519 (2,420) {232}
Effects of movements in foreign exchange {7} {2) — (9} - 2
Amartisation charge for the year (16) (60) - (78} - (31)
Impairment losses
recognised for the year {3} (2) (4) (9) - (6)
Reversal of mpairment - 2 - 2 - -
Disposals - 41 - 41 - 24
Subsidianes and joint ventures
disposed of (1) - - - - - 34
Transfer to assets classified
as held for sale {4) - - - - 114 8
Balance at 31 December 2011 {604) {855) 4  (1,563) (2,315) (201
Effects of movements in foreign exchange 4 1 - 5 - (1)
Amortisation charge for the year (19) (74) - (93) - (26}
Impairment losses
recognised for the year {2) (1} - {3) - (1
He presented (sea note & 2) Reversal of impairrment - 1 - 1 — _
(1) Sea nole 4 and .2 Disposals 1 63 - 64 - 29
(2) “Iransfers and other changes Transfers and other changes (1) - - {1) - {3
B il o o Balance at 31 December 2012 {621) {965) {4  (1,500) (2,315} (203)
and Radicel Meia
{3) Sew note 6 2 and 63
(4) The assets recogmsed al fax valse Carrying amount:
A s o At 31 December 2011 21 71 27 119 2,662 201
reclassified fo disposal group at At 31 December 2012 21 60 43 124 2,679 202

31 December 2011 (see note 4]

Other intangible assets include manly Mistergood-
deal, M6 and Hunganan language cable channel
prands for an amount of €126 mullion (2011 €125
milion), Groups M6, Netzathleten net, M-RTL and
Hunganan language cable channels customer refa-
tionships for an amount of €16 milion {2011 €14
million)
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Re presented {see nota 6 2}

No imparrment loss has been recognised sn 2012 re-
garding intangible assets recognised at far value at
the tme of the gain of control by RTL Group

The M6 brand I1s considered to have an indefinte
useful fe and was recognised for an amount of €120
millon At 31 December 2012, an ynparment lest
was performed and did not lead to any imparment

In determuining that the M6 brand has an indefinite
usefut ife, Group Management has considered van-
ous factors such as the past and expected longewv-
ty of the brand, the impact of possible changes in
broadcasting technologies, the impact of possible
evolutions of the regulatory environment 1n the
French telewvision industry, the current and expected
audience share of the M6 channe! and M6 rmanage-
ment strategy to maintan and strengthen the trade-
mark “MB” Based on the analysis of these factors,
management has determined and confirmed at
31 December 2012 that there 1s no foreseeable im-
It to the penod of time over which the brand M6 1s
expected to generate cash inflows far the Group

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwillis allocated to the Group's cash-generating
units on the basis of the business units (see note 5 )
and at the level at which cash flows are generated

All busingss units and cash-generating unts mainly
operate In one country, except FremantleMeda,
Radical Media and UFA Sports which are worldwide
operations

2012 2011

€m €m

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland 884 B81
Groupe M6 419 416
FremantleMedia 1,003 1,000
Radical Media 37 39
RTL Nederland 138 135
RTL Belgum k]l 31
French radio 85 65
Cther segments
- Hunganan language

cable channels and M-RTL 83 78
— German radic 17 17
- UFA Sparts 2 -
Total goodwll
on cash-generating units 2,679 2,662

Goodwill 1s tested for imparment annually, as of
31 December or whenever changes t Circum-
stances indicate that the camying amount may not
be recoverable

The recoverable amount of a cash-gensrating urut
{"CGU"} has been determined on the basis of the
higher of its value N use and 1its far value less costs
lo sell

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m The value In use 15 determined on the basis of cash
flows excluding estimated future cash inflows or
outfiows expected to anse from future restructur-
ings and from improving or enhancing the CGU's
performance unless the cash-generating unit 1s
committed at year end to the restructunng, and re-
lated prowisions have been made Furthermore,
the discount rate I1s closely inked to Group param-
eters (manly credit premium, gearng ratio and
specific nsk),

= Far vatue less costs to sell 1s the amount obtaina-
ble from the sale of a CGU i an arm’s length trans-
action between knowledgeable, willing parties, less
the costs of disposal The hierarchy of sources for
determining a ‘far value less costs to sell” 1s
® A binding arm’s length sales agreement,
= An active trading market for the CGU, or
= Best information avalable

The Group supports its farr values less costs to sell
on the basis of a discounted cash flow (“DCF")
model to the extent that it would refiect the value
that “any market participant™ would be ready to pay
n an arm’s length transaction Differently from the
“value in use” approach, which reflects the perspec-
tive of the Group for a long-term use of the CGU, a
“far value less costs to sell” medel would include
future cash flows expected to anse from restructur-
Ing plans and future investments, as all ratonal
market participants would be expecied to undertake
these restructunngs and nvestments n order to
extract the best value from the acquisiton Further-
mere, the disgount rate In a ‘farr value less costs
to sell” model 1s calculated based on a market
approach and most of the parameters used are
denved from market sources The latter approach
applied was not used by the Group In determining
the recoverable amount of cash-generating units at
31 December 2012

Cash flow projections are based on financial budgets
approved by management covenng a three-year-
penod Cash flows beyond the three-year-penod for
up to ten years are prepared using the estmated
growth rates and other key drivers including audience
and advertising market shares, the EBITA margm,
and cash caonversion rates based on past perform-
ance and expectations of market development
Cash flows beyond the ten-year penod are extra-
polated using the estmated perpetual growth rates
and the discount rates stated below

The perpetual growth rates used are consistent wath
the forecasts included in industry reports The dis-
count rates have been determined, CGU by CGU, in
order to reflect, where appropnate, the following
factors

u Country nsk,

= Specific firm premium,

& Credit spread due to the financial situation, and

& Geanng rato of the CGU
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2012 2011
Perpotual Perpetual
growth Discount growth Discount
rate rate rate rate
% a yoar % % a year %
Cash-generating units
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland 2.0 76 20 79
Groupe M6 25 83 25 86
FremantleMedia 3.0 78 30 78
Radical Media 20 8.0 20 79
RTL Nederand 20 8.3 25 86
RTL Belgum 20 83 25and2(i) B86and65(1)
French radio 20 6.4 20 65
Other segments
= German radio 20 6.5 20 65
- Hunganan language cable channels and M-RTL 20 126 20 131
(1) For telawision and racio respechvely - UFA Sports 20 78 20 78

Management consider that, at 31 December 2012,
no reasonably possible change in the market shares,
margin and cash conversion rates would reduce
the headroom between the recoverable amounis
and the camying values of the cash-generating units,
Hunganan language cable channels and M-RTL
excepted

For Hunganan language cable channsis and M-RTL,
if, for 2013 and each of the following years, the est-
mated revenue growth and the EBITA margin had
been reduced by 1 per cent and the discount rate
had been increased by 1 per cent, this would have
resulted in an imparment loss aganst goodwill of
€15 milion

No imparment loss on goodwill was recorded in
2012

2011

No imparment loss on goodwill was recorded In
2011
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3. 3.
Praperty, plant
and equipment

{1) See nota 4 and 6 2

{2) See note 4

3 A building owned in London was dis
posert of in 2012 for €21 millnn net
of transachon costs The related
capral gam amounted to € 14 mifion
{ Other operating ncoma”)

Investments
In assoclates

NOTES TO THE COKSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Land buldings Techmcal
and improvements. squipment Othar Total
€m €m €m €m

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2011 365 294 208 867
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - (1} - (1
Additions 15 20 41 76
Disposals {3) (6} {(16) {25)
Subsidianes and joint ventures acquired (1} {1) (2} (3) (6)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (2) {18) (19} {6) {43)
Transfers and other changes (17 3 (6) (20)
Balance at 31 December 2011 3 289 218 848
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 1 1 - 2
Additions 17 20 28 65
Disposals (3) (15) (15} {23) (53)
Transfers and other changes 29 7 (35) 1
Balance at 31 December 2012 373 302 188 863
Depreciation and impawrment losses
Balance at 1 January 2011 {160) (202) (132) {a94)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year (18) (30) (22) (68)
Impairment losses recognised for the year (1) - - [}
Disposals 1 6 16 23
Subsidianes and joint ventures disposed of (1) 1 2 2 5
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (2} 11 16 5 32
Transfers and other changes 1 1 1 13
Balance at 31 December 2011 (153) (207) {130) {400)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - (1) - (1)
Depreciation charge for the year {16) {29} (22) 67)
Impairment losses recognised for the year - - - -
Disposals {3) 5 15 22 42
Transfers and other changes (2) (1} 2 (1)
Balance at 31 December 2012 {166) {223) {128) {517)
Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2011 188 B2 88 358
At 31 December 2012 207 79 60 346

Net tangible assets held under finance leases at
31 December 2012 amount to €3 million {2011 €3
million}

2012 2013

€m £€m

Balance at 1 January 356 358
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - 1
Share of results of associates (53) 38
Dwnidend distribution (38) {40)
Change in ownership interest and other changes (1) {n
Transters to assets classified as held for sale {3) -
Balance at 31 December 251 356

Investments in associates include Grupo Antena 3
and RTL I

In December 2011, Grupo Antena 3 and La Sexta
signed an agreement for the merger ¢f the two
broadcasting companies This was approved by the
companies’ Boards and Shareholders” Mestings
and, following final regulatory approval, La Sexta
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Share of results
of associates

186 RTL GROUP

was absorbed into Grupo Antena 3 in Qctober
2012 The transaction qualified as a business com-
bination since Grupo Antena 3 gained the control of
La Sexta La Sexta's shareholders receved 7 per
cent of the share capital of Grupo Antena 3, In ex-
change for ali assets and labiites of La Sexta The
stock price of Grupo Antena 3 on the Madnd stock
exchnange at the date of the formal approval of the
transaction was €3 37 In consideration for this
transaction, Grupo Antena 3 dekvered 1,181,296
treasury shares and 1ssued 14,620,000 new shares
(€49 million), of which 1,181,296 shares are without
nght to divdends during a pernod of two years

La Sexta sharehalders will receive an additonal 7
per cent of Grupo Antera 3 in a graduated manner
and at the latest in June 2017 through the delivery

by Grupo Antena 3 of a fixed number of treasury
shares {15,818,704) held by Grupo Antena 3 at
31 Decemiber 2012 Should the target of garrings
before taxes dunng the period 2012 to 2018 not,
or partially not, be reached by Grupo Antena 3,
La Sexta shareholders separately agreed that they
would have to pay all or part of these treasury
sharas to Grupo Antena 3 at the closing price of
30 June 2017

The transaction resuited in a dilution of RTL Group’s
interest generating a capital loss of €8 milkon (see
note 7 3)

Investments in associates are tested for imparrment
according to the same methodclogy applied for the
impairment test of goodwill (see note 8 2)

2012 201

Perpetual Perpetual
growth Discount growth Oiscount
rate rate rate rate
% a ywar % 9% a year %

Main associates

Grupo Antena 3 2.0 107 25 101
RTL I 2.5 8.3 20 86

The recoverabls amount of Grupo Antena 3 has
been determined on the basis of the far value less
costs to sell at 31 December 2012 RATL Group
managsment censequently recorded an impairment
loss amounting to €72 millon against the carrying
value of Grupo Antena 3 reduced to € 167 million

The recoverable amount of RTL Il has been deter-
mined on the basis of its value In use

The investment in the associate Ad Scciety has
been fully mpaired at 31 December 2012 generating
a loss of €10 miion on the hasis of the current
performance and of the refusal of shareholders
to provide addticnal funding unless the financial
performance will be /mproved An imparment ioss
had already been recognised in 2011 for an amount
of €8 milon

2012 2011

£m £m

Share of result after tax 29 44
Impairment of investments in associates (82) (8)
(53) 38
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Grupo Antena 3 and RTL Il manly contnbuted in
2012 to the "Share of results of associates” for €{66)
and € 13 millon, respectively (2011 €20 and €13
milkon, respectively)

Some associates of the German radio business unit
holding 16 per cent In Radio Regenbogen have
been classified as assets held for sale (€3 million)



The summansed
financial information on
tha man associates of
the Group, on a 100 per
cent basrs, 1s as follows.

Loans and other
financial assets

The movements

ih available-for-sale
thvestments

are as follows

Deferred tax assets
and habiities

1) Cfwhich
- €03} mibon (20171 €1 mBon)
related ta denvairves on equly
nstruments
~ €1 mdhon {2011 €3 milbon)

relaled tc share oplions granted (o

empicyees

= €6 mion (2011 £(15} mdbor) re
iated (o effechve porton of changes
m fax valua of cash fiow hedges

~ €8 mabon {2011 €3 milon related
& change i far vale of cash fiow
hadqges transferred lo profit or loss

- €6 milbon (2011 €l rdion)
related lo defined benelit plan
actuaral gansfflosses) and

- €(1) miton (2011 €(12) mabon)
refated to change i far value
of availabla for sale rvestments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit for Interest

Country of Assets Liatikties Equity Revenue the year held

2012 ncorporation €m €m €m €m £€m %
Grupo Antena 3 Spain 1,174 838 336 741 32 205
RTL 2 GmbH & Co KG Germany 109 60 49 285 37 58
Profit for Intevest

Caountry of Assets Liabilities Equity Revenua the year held

2011 ncerporation €m €m £€m £€m €m 9%
Grupo Antena 3 Spain 783 489 294 805 a3 217
RTL 2 GmbH & Co KG Germany 108 62 46 280 36 358

Based on the pubfished share price at 31 December
2012, the market capitalisation of 100 per cent of
Grupo Antena 3 amounts to €880 million, 1e €39
per share (2011 €982 milhon, 1e €4 65 per share)

2012 2011
€m Em

Available-for-sale investments (see note 8 14 5) 116 106
Surplus of the defined benefit plans {(sea nota 8 13) ] 5
Loans and other financial assets 86 138
208 249

On 13 January 2012, Groupe M6 disposed of its 9 1
per cent interest N Summit Entertainment following
the sale of the studio to Lions Gate RTL Group
has reccgrused a capital gain from the disposal of
€20 million presented in  Financial results other than
interest” (see note 7 5) and recewved a 0 4 per cent
interest in Lions Gate This avalable-for-sale nvest-
ment s isted on the New York Stock Exchange and
presented in level 1 according to the IFRS? guidance

“Loans and other financial assets” include €20 mil-
lion placed dunng the {irst half of 2012 under an es-
crow account by the Foothall Club des Girondins de
Bordeaux for the benefit of the city of Bordeaux
This amount bears interest of 1 6 per cent per an-
num up untii the delivery of the new stadium, which
15 expected It 2015 At that time the amount will be
pad to the pariners in charge of the construction

A reversal of mpairment loss has been recorded in
2012 for an amount of €1 milfion {2011 € nit milion)

2042 201

€m €m

Balance at 1 January 106 111
Net acquisiions and disposals 7 4

Change in fair value 14 (1)

Impairment losses and other changes (11) (8)

Balance at 31 December 116 106
2012 2011

£€m £€m

Deferred tax assets 377 361

Deferred tax habilties (62) {57)
315 304

2012 2011

€m €m

Balance at 1 January 304 373
Income tax expense {continuing operations) {6} {14)
Income tax income/{expense) (discontinued operatigns) - 2
Income tax credited/{charged) to equity (1) 17 (20)
Change in consolidation scope - (37)
Balance at 31 December 315 304

Ry prosunted (see nole 6 2)
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The movement in
deferred tax assels and
habihities dunng

the yvear s as follows

188 RTL GROUP

The Group has deducible temporary difierences
onginating from an intra-group {ransaction which waill
mainly reverse dunng the next seven years

Unrecognised deferred tax assets amount to € 1,557
milior at 31 December 2012 (2011 €1,523 million)
Deferred tax assets are recognised on tax losses

carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the re-
fated tax benefit through the future taxable profits
are probable The Group has unrecognised tax loss-
s of €5,370 million (2011 €5,297 million} to carry
forward against future taxable income which relate
to Hungary and Luxembourg (2011 Luxembourg
only) and have no expiry date

{Charged)/
Balance at credited to Charged Transfers Baiance st
1 January ncome to ang other 31 Docember
2012 staternent equity changes 012
Deferred tax assets £€m €m €m €m €m
Intangible assets 159 {20) - - 139
Programme nghts 132 20 - - 152
Property, plant and equipment 1 1 - - 2
Provisions 75 4 B8 - 85
Tax losses (see note 7 6) 44 (5) - - 39
Others 19 (8) 25 - 38
Set off of tax (69) - - (9) (78)
361 {6) 3 (9) ar7
{Charged)/

Balancs at credited to Charged Transfers Baiance at
1 January Income 1o and other 31 December
2012 statement equity changes 2012
Deferred tax habilibos €m €m €m £€m €m
Intangible assets (70) (1 - - 71
Property, plant and equipment un 2 - (4] (16)
Provisions ) (1) - - (8)
Others (32) - (14) 1 {45)
Set off of tax 69 - - 9 78
(57 - {14) 9 (62)

{Charged)/
Balance at cradited 1o Charged Change in Transters Batance at
1 January INCome to consoldation and other 31 December
2011 staternent equity scope changes 2011
Deferred tax assets £m €m €m €m €m €m
Intangible assets 217 (24) - (35) 1 159
Programme rights 118 13 - - 1 132
Property, plant and equipment 1 - - - - 1
Provisions 70 1 - - 6 75
Tax losses (seenota 7 6 ) 52 {7) - (2) 1 44
QOthers 22 18 17} 1 (5) 19
Set off of tax {65) - - - {4) {69)
415 {1) {17) {36) - 361

[Charged)/
Balance at crodited to Charged GChange in Transfers  Balance at
1 January ncome to consclidaton and other 31 December
201 statement equity scope changes 201
Doferrad tax habilties €m €m €m €m €m €m
Intangible assets (68) (1) - - (1) (70)
Property, plant and equipment (18) 1 - - - (17
Provisions (6) - - - ) 4]
Qthars (15) (11} {3) (1 @ (32}
Set off of tax 65 - - - 4 69
{42) {11) {3} {1) - {57)

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset against
each other if they relate to the same tax authonty
and maeet the cntena of offsetting Tha term of the

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

deferred taxes on temporary differences s mostly
expected to be recovered or settled more than
12 months from the balance sheet date




Current
pragramme rights

8. 8.
Accounts receivable and
other financial assets

Re presented (see note 6 2)
(1) including accrued nterests

Cash and cash
equivalents

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 2011
WValuation Valuation
Gross value allowance Mot value  Gross value allowance Net value
€m €m €m €m €m €m
{Co-Jproductions 354 {314} 40 344 (313) a1
TV programmes 54 - 54 55 - 55
Other distribution and
broadcasting nghts 813 {251} 562 793 (223) 570
Sub-total programme rights 1,221 {565) 656 1,192 (536) 656
{Co-)productions and programmes
In progress 142 {9 133 154 (6) 148
Advance, payments on {co-Jpraductions,
pragrammes and nights 118 (1) 117 123 - 123
Sub-total programme
rights In progress 260 {10) 250 277 (6) 271
1,481 {575) 206 1,469 (542) 927
Addtions and reversals of valuation allowance have
been recorded for €107} millon and €60 million re-
spectively n 2012 (2011 €(80) milion and €64 mil-
lion respectively)
2012 2011
Under QOver Under LOvar
1 year 1year Total 1 year 1 year Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Trade accounts receivable 1,102 5 1,107 1,002 5] 1,008
Accounts receivable from associates 22 - 22 22 - 22
Prepaid expenses a8 - 98 79 2 81
Farr value of derivative assets 20 22 42 44 52 96
Current deposit with shareholder (1}
(see note 10 1) 426 - 426 589 - 589
Other current financial assets
(seenotea 331) 82 - 82 2 - 2
Account recewvable from sharehaolder in
retation with PLP agreement
(seenote 101) 122 - 122 209 - 209
Other accounts receivable 133 137 121 3 124
2,005 31 2,036 2,068 63 2,131

Additions and reversals of valuation allowance have
been recorded for €(32) millon and €22 million re-
spectively In 2012 (2011 €(30) milion and €21 mil-
liors respectively)

2 2011

€m €m
Cash in hand and at bank 204 133
Fixed term deposits (under three months) 225 175
Other cash equivalents 221 393
Cash and cash equivalents {ex¢luding bank overdrafts) 650 701
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank overdrafts) 650 701
Bank overdrafts (see note 8 10} 5) (1)
Cash and cash eguivalents 645 700

“Other cash eguivalents” include maney market
funds for €221 milllon {2011 €293 million}

The current deposit with the shareholder is present-
ad in accounts recawvable (see note 88 )
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Loans and
bank overdrafts

Term and debt
repayment schedule

Accounts payable

2012 20m 2012 2011
Current habilities €m €m Non-current habiities £€m €m
Bank overdrafts 5 1 Leasing labilties 5 2
Bank loans payable 3 8 Other non-current loans payable 8 9
Leasing habilities 2 1 13 11

Other current loans payable 6 32

16 42
Total
Under 1-5 Over EFTYING
1 year years 5 years amount
2012 €m €m €m €m
Bank overdraft 5 - - 5
Bank loans payable 3 - - 3
Leasing habilittes 2 5 - 7
Other loans payable 6 3 5 14
16 8 5 29

2011
Bank overdraft 1 - - 1
Bank loans payable 8 - - 8
Leasing habiities 2 1 - 3
Other loans payable 31 9 1 a1
42 10 1 53
2012 2011
Curront accounts payable €m €m
Trade accounts payable 1,271 1,165
Amounts due to associates 3 2
Employee benefits lability 141 159
Deferred iIncome 121 106
Social secunty and other taxes payable 75 87
Farr value of derivative habilities 13 14
Account payable to shareholder in relatton with PLP agreement (see note 101} 191 278
Other accounts payable 341 363
2,156 2,154
2012 201
1-5 Qver 1-5 Over 5

years Syears Total years years Total
Non-curment accounts payable €m €m €m €m €m €m
Trade accounts payable 43 6 54 46 8 54
Employee benefits habilty a2 180 212 1 162 163
Deferred income 2 1 3 6 2 8
Fair value of derivative lrabilities 6 - 6 2 - 2
Other accounts payable 28 16 44 79 13 92
116 203 19 134 185 319
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Provisions

Provisions other
than post-employment
benefits

Post-employment
benefits

(1} Of which definad contributions plan
for €9 milion (2011 €7 milior)

NOTES TO THE GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Onerous Other
Restructunng Liigations contracts provisians Totat
€m €m £€m €m £m
Balance at 1 January 2012 4 121 108 22 255
Provisions charged/(credited)
to the income statement
- Additions 4 41 73 8 126
- Reversals - (16) (10 (3} (29)
Prowvisions used durning the year (3) {35} (50) {3) (91)
Other changes - 2 1 (2) 1
Balance at 31 December 2012 5 113 122 22 262

The prowisions mainly relate to the following

® Pravisions for htigations correspond to the Group's
best estimate of the expected future cash outflow
related to disputes ansing from the Group's actvi-
ties No further information 1s disclosed as it may
harm the Group’s position,

= “Onerous contracts™ mainly comprise provisions
made by Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland for €76
millon (2011 €46 millon) and €39 millon by
Groupe M6 (2011 €55 million) In relation to the
supply of programmes, most of which are sports

programmes Qut of €73 milllon of provisions re-
corded dunng the year, €31 millon were charged
to profit or loss as a result of the significant decline
in the advertising market over the life of several
sports nghts contracts The single most significant
charge of €17 milion relates to the Formula 1 con-
tract for the German territory which runs until the
end of 2015 Should the expected downturn in ad-
vertising income not materialise to the extent as-
sessed by the management, the balance of the
onerous contracts provisions in the next financial
year mught be adjusted

2012 2011

€m €m

Currant 219 238

MNan-current 43 17

262 255

2012 2011

€m €m

Balance at 1 January 89 94

Provisions charged/(credited) to the income statement

- Additions (1) 21 19

- Reversals (1) -

Provisions used during the year (1) {17 {15)

Actuanal losses directly recognised in equity 30 -
Transfer to habiities directly assoctated with non-current assets

classified as held for sale - (3)

Other changes 1 4

Balance at 31 December 133 a9

Post-employment benefits” compnse provision for
defined benefit obligations (see note 8 13 ) for €129
mifion {2011 €95 millon) and provision for ather
employee benefits for €4 million (2011 €4 milhon)

2012 2m

€m €m

Current 2 2
Non-current 131 97
133 99
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Post-employment benefits

RTL Group operates or participates In a number of
defined benefit and defined contnbution plans
throughout Europe These plans have been set up
and are operated in accordance with national laws
and regulations A description of the principal de-
fined benefit plans of the Group s given below

Belgrum

Employees of RTL Belgium participate i a defined
benefit plan insured with the insurance company
AXA, which prowides pension benefits to members
and ther dependants on retirement and death The
assets of the insurance contract are not segregated
but mutualised within the global assets of the insur-
ance company {‘Branche 21") A guaranteed inter-
est rate 1 provided by AXA

France

Groupe M6, Edradio, ID and IP France operate
retrement indemnity plans, which by law, provide
lump sums to employees on retrement The lump
sums are based on service and salary at date of
tarmination of employment in accordance with
the applicable ccllective agreement The Ediradio, ID
ratirement indemnity plan 1s partly funded by an
insurance contract with AXA Edradic also partici-
pates in a defined benefit plan which prowdes
pension benefits to members on retrement This
plan s partly funded by an insurance coniract with
AXA The assets of the nsurance contract are not
segregated but mutualised within the global assets
of the msurance company A guaranteed interest
rate is provided by AXA

Germany

Employees of UFA Berlin Group (ncluding UFA Fern-
sehproduktion, UFA Entertanment, UFA Film & TV
Produktion), Universum Filrn, Grundy tight Enter-
tanment, Teamworx Television & Film, AVE Horfunk-
beteiigung, UFA Film & Fernsehen and RTL Group
Deutschland participate in an unfunded common
group retirement plan which 1s defined benefit In na-
ture The company Grundy UFA TV Produktions has
a partly funded plan Each employer which partici-
pates in this plan has separately identfiable habilities

RTL Telewision and IP Deutschland operate ther
own retrement arrangements [P Deutschland spon-
sors individual plans for five former employees, pro-
viding defined pension benefits to each employes at
retirement

RTL Telewision sponsors indmidual plans for two
employees and two former employees. providing
defined pension benefits to each employee at retire-
ment In addition, a number of employees participate
In a suppoert fund providing pension benefits ta mem-
bers and ther dependants on retrement and death

The plan of RTL Telewsion 1s partly funded by a Ife
insurance cantract with AXA The assets of the in-
surance contract are not segregated but mutualised
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within the global assets of the Insurance company A
guaranteed interest rate 1s provided by AXA

Luxembourg

Employees of CLT-UFA, RTL Group and Broadcast-
ing Center Europe participate in a defined benefit
plan, which provides penston benefits to members
and ther depsndants on retirement, death and disa-
bility CLT-UFA, RTL Group and BCE set up & provi-
sion for the unfunded retirement benefit plan Death
and disability are insured with Cardif Lux Vi

United Kingdom

FremantleMedia Group Limited 1s the principal em-
ployer of the Fremantle Group Pension Plan {“the
Fremantle Plan"}, which was established on 29 De-
cemper 2000 and was, pnor to 1 September 2005,
known as the RTL Group UK Pension Plan The Fre-
mantle Plan prowvides both defined benefit and de-
fined contribution benefits Plan assets are held for
both sections of the plan and are mainly composed
of equity instruments



The amounts recogmsed
in the statement of
financial posstion are
determmed as follows

The movement in
the present value of
funded /unfunded
defined benefit
obhigation over the
year is as follows

The movement in the
fair value of plan assets
of the year is as follows

Plan assels are
compnsed as follows-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 201
€m £m
Present value of funded obligations 132 105
Farr value of plan assets (101) {85)
N 20
Present value of unfunded obligations 92 70
Net iability 123 90
Assets (see note 85 ) 6 5
Provisions (see note 8 12 2) 129 g5
Expenence adjustments on assets gains/(losses) 3 2)
Experience adjustments on provisions (gains)/losses 1 1
2012 2011
tm €m
Batance at 1 January 175 168
Current sarvice cost 7 7
Interest cost (seenote 7 4 ) 9 8
Actuanal gains/{losses) as {1)
Employee contributions 1 1
Benefits pad by ermployer {4) {4)
Benefits paid out of the plan assets (2) {2)
Foreign exchange differences 3 1
Transfer to labilites directly associated with non-current assets
classified as held for sale - (3
Balance at 31 December 224 175
2012 2011
€m €m
Balance at 1 January 85 80
Expected return on plan assets (see note 7 4} 4 4
Actuanal gains/{losses) 2 (2)
Employer contributions 9 5
Employee contnbutions 1 1
Benefits paid out of the plan assets 2) {2)
Settlements - {2)
Foreign exchange differences 2 1
Balance at 31 December 101 a5
2012 2011
€m £€m
Equnty instruments 59 48
Debt instruments 37 32
Praoperty 2 2
Other 3 3
Fair value of plan assets 101 85

The actual return on plan assets was €6 million
(2011 €2 milhon)

Expected contnbutions to post-employment benefit
plans for the year ending 31 December 2013 are €7
million
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The amounts recognised
in the income statement
are as follows.

The pnncipal actuanal
assumptions used were
as follows
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202 2011

€m €m

Current service cost 7 7
Total included in employee benefits expenses (see note 7 2,1) 7 7
2012 2011

£m €m

Interest cost 9 8
Expected return on plan assets (4) (4)
Total included in net interest expense (see note 7.4) 5 4

The cumylated ameunt of the actuartal losses rec-
ognised In equity at 31 December 2012 1s €{47) mil-
lion (2011 €{14) milicn)

2012 201

% a year % a year
Discount rate 280-470 475-510
Expected return on plan assets 280-470 3 50-4 50
Long-term inflation rate 180-230 180-2 50
Future salary increases 215-450 2 25-4 50
Future pension increases 1.80-2 85 180-305

Equety

Share capital

At 31 December 2012, the subscnbed capital
amounts to €192 milion (2011 €192 milkon) and 1s
represented by 154,787,554 (2011 154,787,554)
fully paid-up ordinary shares, without nominal value
All shares have the same nghts and entitlements

Treasury shares

The reserve for the Company's own shares compns-
es the cost of the Company’s shares held by the
Group At 31 December 2012, the Group holds
1,168,701 own shares (2011 1,168,701) at a cost
of €44 miion (2011 €44 mifion}

Currency translation reserve

The currency transiatron reserve compnses all for-
eign exchange differances ansing from the transla-
tion of the financial statements of foreign operations,
reserves on assoclates for foreign exchange transla-
tion differences and cash flow hedging, as well as
loans designated to form part of the Group's net in-
vesiment in specific undertakings as repayment of
those loans 1s not anticipated within the foreseeabla
future

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve (equity attnbutable to non-con-
troling interests included) compnses the sffective
portion of the cumulative net change n the far value
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of cash flow hedging instruments refated to hedged
transactions that have not yet occurred

Between 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2012, the hedging reserve decreased by €46 million
befare tax effect This consists of

a Decrease by €12 millon due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2011 year end and which
were still hedging off-balance sheet commitments
at 31 December 2012,

u Decrease by €26 millon due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2011 year end but which
warsg incorperated in the cost of the hedged item
and subsequently consumed and released in 2012
from the hedging reserve to income statement,

® Decrease by €8 millon due to foraign exchange
contracts hedgng new off-balance sheet commut-
rents

Between 31 December 2010 and 31 December
2011, the hedging reserve increased by €45 milon
before tax effect This consists of

® |ncrease by €13 mithon due to fereign exchange
contracts that existed at 2010 year end and which
were siill hedging off-balance sheet commitments
at 31 December 2011,

® Dacrease by €9 millon due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2010 year end but which
were (ncorporated in the cost of the hedged item
and subsequently consurmned and released in 2011
from the hedging reserve to ncome statement,

mincrease by €41 milllon due to foreign exchange
contracts hedging new off-balance sheet commit-
ments




The terms and conditions
of the grants are

as follows, whereby all
options are settled

by physical delivery of
shares

1} Contractual e of options corre
sponds to the vesting perod {1 g
four years) phis three years fwhich
reprasents the tme frame dunng
which tha options can be exercised

{2} Tha maxmum number of frea shares
granted i the performance
conditions are sgnficantly axceedad
Such number could be reduced lo
i if pbjectives are nolt met

8. 14. 5.
Revaluation reserve
The revaluaton reserve includes

® The cumulative change net of tax in the far value
of available-for-sale investments {see note 8 5) un-
tl the investment 1s derecogmised or impaired for
€41 million (2011 €21 million),

® The cumulative increase in the fair value of the In-
tangible assets and property, plant and equipment
following the gains of control of Groupe M6 and M-
RTL and the acquisition of associates achieved in
stages (2012 €54 milion, 2011 €54 milhon}

Dividends
The dwidends in respect of 2011 amounted to €5 1
per share, or €789 milon

On 24 February 2013, the Board of Directors of
RTL Group SA decided to distnbute an intenim divi-
dend, compnsing an ordinary dividend of €5 1 per
share and an extracrdinary dividend of €54 per
share

NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of 24 February 2013 also approved a new
dvidend policy going forward, targeting a pay-out
ratio of 50 to 75 per cent of the adjusted consolidat-
ed net profit attnbutable to RTL Group shareholders
within the Imit of the Company's distributable
reserves

At the Annual General Meeting of RTL Group SA on
17 Apnl 2013, a dwdend in respect of 2012 of
€10 5 per share (of which €5 4 as extracrdinary div-
idend) 1s to be proposed These financial statements
do not reflect the final proposed dwvidend payable,
which will be accounted for as an appropnation of
retained earnings in 2012

Share options

Groupe M6 Share Qption Plan

Groupe MB has established employee share gption
plans open to directors and certain employees with-
in the group The number of options granted to par-
ticipants s approved by the Superwsory Board of
Métropole Téléwision SA In accordance with the au-
thonsaticn given by the General Meeting of Share-
holders

Number of

opbons imtally Rermaining Contractual it
grantad oplions of optons
Grantdate  (in thousands) {n thousandsh Vesting conditions 1)
Stock options plans
06-2005 635 50 = 4 years of service 7 years
06-2006 73675 395 25 4 years of service 7 years
05-2007 827 50 519 50 4 years of service 7 years
05-2008 883 83 639 36 4 years of service 7 years
Total 3,08358 1,554 11
Maximum
nymper of
fres shares Remaning
granted {r optians
Grantdate thousands){2) (in thgusands) Vesting candiions
Free shares plans
03-201Q 22 Q0 - 2 years of service
2 years of service +
07-2010 37778 - performance conditions
2 years of service +
12-2010 48 00 - performance conditions
2 years of service +
07-2011 367 82 318 98 performance conditions
2 years of service +
12-2011 37 50 3350 performance conditions
2 years of service +
07-2012 487 75 487 75 performance conditions
Total 1,340 85 840.23
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Movements in the
number of share options
are as follows.

Shares options
outstanding

{in thousands) at the
end of the year have
the following terms
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The Free Shares Plans are subject to performance
conditions except the plan at 25 March 201¢ A de-
scnption by plans 1s given below

wThe plans at 27 July 2010, 26 July 2011 and 27
July 2012 are subject to Groupe M6 achieving its
target growth in net consolidated result over the
perniods 2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively,

® The plans at 22 December 2010 and 2011 are
subject to the Ventadis area achiewing 1ts target

growth In operating result over the pencds 2010,
2011 and 2012 respectively

The pnce to be paid to exercise gach of the remain-
Ing options I1s the average value of shares in
Metropole Telewisicn on the Pans Stock Exchange
over the 20 trading days preceding the date of grant
with the exception of the management free share al-
location plan

Average Average

EXercise price eXErQISe pnoe
In thousands of aptions in € per share 2012 i € per share 2011
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 21 2,083 22 2,722
Options exsrcised during the year - - 15 (3}
Options expired dunng the year 21 {539) 24 (626)
Options outstanding at the end of the year 21 1,554 21 2,093

Approximately 840,000 free shares are still exercisa-
ble at the end of the year against 824,000 at the be-
ginning of the year which have been reduced by
16,000 due to the performance 488,000 free shares
were granted dunng the ysar wath 391,000 being ex-
ercised and 65,000 being forfeited

Exercise Number Number of
pnce of optrons optlions
Expery date ne€ 2012 201
Stock options plans
2012 19 94 - 369
2012 24 60 395 446
2014 27 52 520 576
2015 1473 639 702

1,554 2,083

Free shares plans

2012 - 427

2013 352 397

2014 488 -

B840 824

Total 2,394 2,917
Out of which axercisable 1,341 1,859
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The market pnce of Métropole Telewision shares on
the Pang Stock Exchange was €11 82 at 31 De-
cember 2012 (€11 53 at 31 December 2011}

The far value of services receved in return for share
options granted 1s measured by reference to the farr
value of the share options granted The estimate of
far value of the services recenved 18 measured based
on a binomial model Free shares are valued at the
share pnce at the date they are granted less the dis-
counted dwidends that employees cannot receve
dunng the vasting period
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Histoncal Fusk-frae Expected Employee sxpense
Share pnce Stnka pnce wolatibity {3) nterest rate return 2012 2011
Grant date € n € % % a year % a year Option ife €m €m
Stock options plans
06/06/2006 24 63 24 60 431 402 38 7 years - -
02/05/2007 2655 27 52 378 4 40 398 7 years - 02
06/05/2008 1522 1473 400 439 630 7 years - D6
00 08
Free shares plans
28/07/2009 1300 na na 249 490 2 years - 13
23/12/2009 1802 na na 142 401 2 years - 04
25/03/2010 18 84 na na 1400 504 2 years - 02
27/07/2010 17 66 na na 100 5138 2 years 15 26
22/12/2010 18 22 na na 113 549 2 years 02 03
26/07/2011 1575 na na 156 635 2 years 22 10
2271272011 1140 na na 102 960 2 years 02 -
27/07/2012 1151 na na 024 950 2 years 0.7 -
4.8 58
Total 48 66
(3} Hrstoncal valatidy relaned was
detemninad on the basts of 3 penod
equal o the matunty of each plan

Transactions on non-controlling interests
These transactions mamnly relate to

2012

Transactions on non-controling interests without a

change In control

u|n 2011, Groupe M6 entered nto a share buyback
programme  Approval was given to the company
to buy back shares on the open market over a
24-month penod up to a maximum of 5 per cent of
the subscnbed capital Groupe M6 has acqured
own shares for its free share allocation plan and In
respect of the liquidity programme  For the penod
ended 31 December 20112, 1,006 thousand shares
have been acqured {of which 480 thousand from
Bayard d Antin SA) and 500 thousand cancelled
The related outflows amount for the Group 1o €12
million

Transactions on non-centroling interests with a
change in control
= Alpha (see note 4}

201

Transactions on nen-cantroling interests without a

change in control

u On 25 duly 2011, RTL Group acquired the remain-
ing 26 per cent of the share capital of RTL Croatia
from the nan-controltng shareholders for an
amount of €15 3 millon The transaciion resulted
in a cash-out N 2011 of €12 6 milhon and impact
on equity attributable to RTL sharehaolders of €13
million,

min December 2011, RTL Group unilaterally n-
creased the capital of Alpha Media Group Ltd (see
note 4),

= M-RTL (see note 6 2,

® RTL Nederland (sea note 6 2 ),

wFollowing the approval to enter into a share
buyback programme, Groupe M& acquired and
cancelled 2,577 thousand shares (of which 960
thcusand from Bayard d’Antin SA} for the period
ended 31 December 2011 Groupe MB acquired
own shares for 1ts free share altocation plan and in
respect of the hquidity programme The related
outflows amounted for the Group to €20 milion

Transactions on non-controling Iinterests with a
change in control

= Buienradar (see note 6 2 ),

= Slam'FM (see Dutch Radios, note 6 2 )

8. 14, 9,
Denvatives on equity instruments
Denvative instruments relate to forward transactions
by Groupe M6 on Metropole Television SA shares
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EX COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating [eases
Non-cancelilable
operating lease rentals
are as folfows.

193 ATL GROUP

2012 2011

£€m €m
Guarantees and endorsements given 43 123
Contracts for purchasing nghts, (co-Jproductions and programmes 2,039 2,171
Operating leases 498 527
Purchase obhgations in respect of transmission and distnbution 215 199
Other long-term contracts and commitments 148 208
Of which discontinued operations Alpha - 18

The Group has Investmants in unimited labdity enti-
ties In the event these entities make losses, the
Group may have to participate to the entre amount
of losses, even If these entities are not wholly owned

Certain UK companies in the FremantieMedia group
have elected to make usse of new audt exemplon
regufations for non-dormant subsidianes introduced
at the end of 2012 In order to fulfil the conditions
set out in the regulations, the Company has given a
statutory guarantee of all outstanding liabilities to
which the subsidiaries are subject at the end of the
financial year to 31 December 2012 A full st of the
companies who have made use of the audit exemp-
tion 1s presented in note 13

Guarantees and endorsements given

On 23 July 2010, Five Group was sold to Northern &
Shell, a group domiciled 1n the United Kingdom The
term of the sale agreement stipulated that RTL Group
continues to prowde guarantees to third parties on
behalf of Five Group Northern & Shell has prowided
back-to-back guarantees to RTL Group The related
amounts stand at €23 milion at 31 December 2012
{2011 €59 million) (see note 4 }

2012 2011
Under 1 1-5 Qver Under 1-5 Over
year years S years Total 1 year years Syears Total
Lesass payments €m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m
Leasing of sateliite transponders 1 B85 38 94 19 38 11 68
Other operating leases 63 176 165 404 71 192 196 459
64 231 203 498 a0 230 207 527
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“Other operating leases” mainly relates to the rental
of offices, buldings and egupment in Germany,
France and the United Kingdom
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Purchase cbligations in respect

of transmission and distribution

These obligations result from agreements with pro-
widers of senaces related to the terrestrial and cable
transmussion and distribution ¢f the analogical and
digital signafs of the RTL Group TV channels and ra-
dio stations

Other long-term contracts and comrmmutments
The Group has "Other long-iterm contracis and
commitments” amounting to € 148 milion at 31 De-
cember 2012 (2011 €208 million)

LLang-term contracts include centracts for services,
agreements to purchase assets or goods, and com-
mitments to acquire licences other than audiowvisual
nghts and television programming that are enforcea-
ble and legally binding and that specify all significant
terms Other commitmenis relate to sale and lease
back transactions it respect of FremantleMedia

FremantleMedia has arrangements for a remaining
penod of five years in refation to sale and lease back
transactions for an amount of €45 milion {2011 €58
milhon) Under these arrangements, FremantleMedia
has sold programme nghts to a special purpose
vehicle and simultaneously leased back the assets
under a finance lease arrangement The cash
receved 15 placed In a “restncted bank account” at
A-rated banks in order to satisfy the lease payments,
and 15 not considered as an asset In accordance
with SIC 27 Income receved by FremantleMedia
was recagnised in the income statement when en-
tering into these arrangements

Licence agreement

In tha course of therr actvities, several Group com-
panies benefit from licence frequency agresments,
which commit the Group In vanous ways depending
upon the legal regulation in force in the countres
concerned
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K[ RELATED PARTIES
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Identity of related partes

At 31 December 2012, the pnncipal sharsholder of
the Group 15 Bertelsmann Capital Holding GrmbH
{“BCH™ {92 3 per cent) The remainder of the Group’s
shares are publcly lsted on the Brussels and
Luxembourg stock exchanges The Group also has a
related party relationship with 1its associates, jont
ventures and with its drrectors and executive officars

Transactions with shareholders

Sales and purchases of goods and services
Dunng the year the Group made sales of goods and
services, purchases of goods and services to Ber-
telsmann Group amounting to €7 milkon (2011 €7
million) and €21 milion {2011 €20 million}, respec-
tvely At the year-end, the Group had trade accounts
recevable and payable due from/to Bertelsmann
Group amounting to €6 mifton (2011 €6 million}
and €5 milion {2011 €5 million}, respectively

Deposits Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA

With the view to investing its cash surplus, RTL Group
SA entered in 2006 with Bertelsmann SE & Co
KGaA (previously Bertelsmann AG) into a Deposit
Agreement, the main terms of which are

u nterest rates are based on an overnight basis on
EONIA plus 10 basis ponts, or on a one to
six month basis, EURIBOR plus 10 basis paints,
» Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA granis to RTL Group
as secunty for all payments due by Bertelsmann
SE & Co KGaA a pledge on
» All shares of iis wholly owned French subsidiary
Media Communication SAS,

= Al shares of its wholly owned Spanish subsidiary
Media Finance Holding SL,

= All its interests in the German brmited lability part-
nership Gruner + Jahr AG & Co KG (73 4 per
cent stake),

» Al shares of its wholly owned English subsidiary
Bertelsmann UK Ltd

The tnterests In Gruner + Jahr AG & Co KG and
shares of Bertelsmann UK Ltd have also been grant-
ed as pledge by Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA to
CLT-UFA SA, a subsidiary of RTL Group, in connec-
tion with the accounts recewvable related to PLP and
Compensation Agreemenis as defined below

At 31 December 2012, the amount — pnncipal de-
posited amounts to €51 miflion (2011 €113 milion)
on an gvernght basis and €300 millon {2011 €425
millon} on a five-month basis (2011 three-month
pasis) The interest income for the year amounts to
€2 5 milion (2011 €8 milkon)

On 22 December 2011, RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH, a Group company, and Bertelsmann SE &
Co KGaA entered into an agreement related to the
deposit of surplus cash by RTL Group Deutschland
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GmbH with the shareholder To secure the deposit,
Bertelsmann pledged to RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH its aggregate current partnership interest in
Gruner + Jahr AG & Co KG as well as all addtional
partnership interests in Gruner + Jahr it may create
or acquire At 31 December 2012, the four-month
deposit of RTL Group Deutschland GmbH with Ber-
telsmann amounted to €75 millon (2011 €50 mi-
hon) The interest income for the year amounts to
€05 million (2011 € nil}

RTL Group SA has additionally entered into a Treas-
ury Agreement in North Amenca with Bertelsmann
Inc Interest rates are based on US Libor plus 10 ba-
51 points At 31 December 2012, the balance of the
cash pooling payabie amounts to € mil million {2011
cash pooling payable for €0 4 milion} The interest
income/expense for the year s below €1 milion
(2011 below €1 millon)

Tax

On 26 June 2008, the Board of Directors of
RTL Group agreed to procesd with the tax pochng
of 1ts indwect subsidiary RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH (“RGD™ into BCH, a direct subsidiary of Ber-
telsmann SE & Co KGaA.

To that effect, RGD entered into a Profit and Loss
Pooling Agreement {*PLP Agreement”} with BCH for
a six-year penod starting 1 January 2008 Simulta-
neously, Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA entered into a
Compensation Agreement with CLT-UFA, a direct
subsidiary of RTL Group, providing for the payment
to CLT-UFA of an amount compensating the above
profit transfer and an additional commission {"Com-
mission”) amounting to 50 per cent of the tax saving
tased upen the taxable profit of RGD

Through these agreements, as from 1 January 2008,
Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA and the RGD sub-
group of RTL Group are treated as a single entity for
German Income 1ax purposes

As the PLP Agreement does not give any authority
to BCH to instruct ar centrol RGD, it affects neither
RTL Group nor RGD's ability to manage ther bus:-
ness, nctuding ther responsibiity to optimise ther
tax structures as they deem fit After six years, both
PLP and Compensation Agreements are renewable
on a ysarty basis RGD and CLT-UFA have the nght
to request the early termination of the PLP and Com-
pensation Agreements under certan conditions

In the absence of specfic guidance in IFRS,
RTL Group has elected to recognise current income
taxes related to the RGD sub-group based on the
amounts payable to Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA
and BCH as a result of the PLP and Compensation
Agreements described above Deferred income
taxes coniinue to be recognised, based upon the
enacted tax rate, in the consolidated financial state-
ments basad on the amounts expected to be settled




by the Group in the future The Commission, being
econcmically and contractually closely related to the
Compensation, 1s accounted far as a reduction of
the tax due under the Agreements

At 31 December 2012, the balance payable to BCH
amounis to €191 millon {2011 €278 milion) and
the balance recenvable from Bertelsmann SE & Co
KGaA amounts to € 122 miflion (2011 €209 milion)

For the year endad 31 December 2012, the German
income tax in relation to the tax pooling with Bertels-
mann SE & Co KGaA amounts to €140 millon
(2011 €142 miion} The Comrmigsion amounts to
€69 milion (2011 €69 million}

The UK Group relief of Five Group (n 2011 only) and
FremantieMedia Group to Bertelsmann Group result-
ed In a tax income of €7 milion (2011 €7 milion)

Transactions with associates and

joint ventures

The following transactions were carned out
with associates and joint ventures:

2012 2011

€m €m
Sales of goods and services to
Associates 25 38
Joint ventures 25 23
50 61
Purchase of goods and services from
Associates 4 3
Joint ventures 9 9
13 12

Sales and purchases to and from associates and
[ont ventures were camed out on commercial terms
and conditions and at market prnces

Year-end balances ansing from sales and pur-
chases of goods and services are as follows

a2 2011
€m €m

Trade accounts recevabla from
Associates 20 20
3

Joint ventures 4
23 24

Trade accounts payable to
Associates 3 2
3 2

RTL ll ts a party In legal proceedings with a subsidi-
ary of RTL Group

NOTES TO THE CORSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Transactions with key management personnel
In addition to therr salanes, the Group also provides
non-cash benefits to its key management personnel
{members of the Executive Committee), and contrip-
utes to a post-employment defined benefit plan on
its behatf

The key management personnel compensation 18
as follows and reflects benefits for the penod for
which the ndwduals held the Executive Committee
position

012 2041

€m £€m

Short-term benefits 71 63
Long-term benefits 25 12
86 75

Directors’ fees

In 2012, & total of €05 mithon {2011 €0 5 million)
was allocated in the form of attendance fees to the
non-executive members of the Board of Directors of
RTL Group SA and the commitiees that emanate
from t, with respect to ther functions within
R7L Group SA and other Group companes
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The main jomnt ventures

are as follows RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG

Country of Consolidation rate
ncorporation m %
012 2011
Germany 50 00 50 00

Included in the consclidated financial statements are
the following tems that represent the Group's inter-
ests In the assats and labilities, iIncome and expens-
es of the joint ventures

2012 2011
€m €m
Non-current assets 8 4
Current assets 50 50
Current habilittes (33} {33)
Net assets 25 21
2012 2011
£m €m
Income 9 90
Expenses (71) (72)
Included n the consolidated financial statements are
the following items that represent the Group’s inter-

ests In the commitments of the joint ventures
2012 201
€m €m
Contracts for purchasing rnghts, (co-}productions and programmes 7 2
Operating leases 1 -
Other long-term contracts and commitments 17 9
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KB} SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 1 February 2013, FremantieMedia announced
that it 1s reviewing its FremantleMedia Enterprises
(FME} arm with a plan to create one new, stand-
alone, global division focused on distribution and
kids and family entertainment All remaining digital,
lcensing, spensorship and other ancillary actmties
previously undertaken by FME will be housed withun
FremantieMedia’s regional production operations In
addition, a new Digital & Branded Entertainment di-
vision will be created to focus on the company’s glo-
bal digital and branded entertainment actviies The
proposed company structure will  significantly
strengthen FremantieMedia's core business actw-
ties while also better positioning It to capitaiise on
growth opportunities for the future

The Board of Directors meeting on 24 February
2013 decided on the following

» The distnbution of an intenm dwvidend amounting
to €1 6 billon (see note 8 14 6} funded by the
Group’s net cash position and by debt in the form
of shareholder loans from Bertelsmann prowded at
arm'’s length terms and at current market condi-
tions The dwvidends will be paid on 7 March 2013,

u A change In the Group's dwvidend policy, resulting
In a pay-out ratio of between 50 and 75 per cent of
the adjusted consoldated net profit attnbutable to
RTL Group shareholders within the mit of the
Company's distributable reserves

NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EER GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

GROUP'S CONSOL- GROUPS CONSOLK GROUP'S CONSOLI- GROUP'S CONSOL-
OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER DATED
NOTE mtz-m"!) Mm{(’ﬁ NOTE Wtz*qu) MHH?S BROADCASTING TV NOTE mwtz-?li MBH[()S NOTE w(z'u'l") MEMI)B
LUXEMBOURG* AUSTRIA*
RATL Group SA M M 1PA Plus {Osterreich) Verm lr
- - - Fernsehwerpung GmbH 49.8 F 498 F
BELGIUM*
Home Shapping Service Belgique SA 2) 243 F {2 572 F
RiL Belgum SA 65.8 FM 55 E; F
Sociite Europeenne de Televente i i ’
Belgique GIE {2 48.5 F (2 485 F
Unite 15 Belgique SA i {2) 4&5- F- 2) 48 .‘; F
CROATIA
AT Hrvatskad oo 297 F 937 F
CYPRUS*
Alpha Media Group Limited {14) - NG (15} 697 F
FRANCE*
33 FM SAS 2} 481 F & 461 F
C Productions SA i 2 45.8“ F @& 486 F
Edit TV/W3 S5AS ] 48.6 l-: (2 48 G- F
Football Club des Girondina ) ’ ’
de Bordeaux SASP [:] 48.5 F @ 435 F
Gironding Expressions SASU 2 458 I; @ 486 F
Gironding Honzans SASU 2} 48.6 l-: 4] 48 (; F
GM5 SAS @ 354 F e
Home Shopping Serace SA ) (2} 485 F—: (2) 485 F
Immobilkére 46D SAS (2 48.5“ F- @ 48 é };
Immobikére ME SA @ 486 F o 436 F
Les Fidms de ta Suane Sart 2 ‘&8‘ ‘r': {2 488 F
Livs Stage SAS @ 488 F b 486 F
M6 Bordeaux SAS (2} 48.8- F- {2} 46 6- F
. M6 Boutaue la Chaine SNC T ua < NG 3 486 F
Mé Communication SAS {2) 43.6 F- {2) 48 6 F
M8 Creations SAS @ «88 F @ 486 r
M8 Développement SASU T aas £ o@ 486 F
M6 Drttusians SA @ s F i 486 F
ME Divertissement SAS o 48 F [ 436 F
M6 Ediions SA ) {2 e F {2 4896 F
M6 Evenemants SA 1] 43.6 E 2} : u48 E- F.
MG Films SA @ s F @ 486 £
M8 Foot SAS i @ 488 F @ 486 F
M6 Generation/ 67er SAS @ 48 F @ 486 F
ME Interactions SAS ’ 2) ey F 2 a6 F
M6 Publicte SASU~ T @ 4es F @ ags F
M6 Recréative SAS @ 488 F @ 488 I3
M6 Shop SAS " @ 4as F - NG
M6 Stucio SAS T @ ass F o 488 £
M5 Thématique SA [¥i] 4&6 F- 2} 48 {'; F
M6 Toulouse SAS ) 2) 48 F 2) 48 f: F
M5 Web SAS i @ 488 F @ 486 F
Métropole Production SA {2} 4&£ F- 2) 43{; £
Metropole Tetévisign — M6 SA ) 2) 48.8- -F- 2) 43 8- F
Mistergooddaal SA ) 2 ey F 2 486 F
Monalburmphoto SAS @ 41 F @ 461 F
Panorabanqus SAS {2} 24 !; . i; {2) 24 .'; P
Pzns Premiere SAS {2 48.6 F @ 48 6 F
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

BROUP'S CONSOLI GROUPS GONSOU- GROUP'S CONSOUI GADUP S CONSOLK
OWNER-  DAIED OWNER DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED
BROADCASTING TV wore e o ) % BROADCASTING TV ot NTE e
GERMANY*
Quicksign SAS "(2) 185 E @ 168 £ Ad Audience GmbH i i () - Nc; 249 E
$C du 107 @ 488 F @ 486 F arvato systems S4M GmbH ) i ) )
SEDHTV/ Tava SAS ) 48.6- £ @ 486- E {formar $4M Solutions For Media GrmbM} 19.8 En 19 Bn E_
Sere Club SA - @ 2‘3' P' (@ 24 ‘," p CBGC Cologne Broadeasting Center GmbH 991_ F_ [] 7_ li
SND Fims LLG @ 48.6“ F' - N C. Chpfish GmbH Co KG 997_ F 99'{ l-:
SNDA SAS @ 48.6- F N NE Delta Agvertsing GmbH 87 F 997 F
Societé Nouvelle de Cinematographie SA i ’ ’ Bl Gartol Media GmbH & Ca KG :’5‘8_ E_ 35 B_ E_
{former DIEM 2 SA} {2} 48.6 F (& 488 F Gute Zesten - Schlechte Zeiten
Sociate Nouvelle de Cmén:a;ngraphle SAS  (13) - NC- 2 48 E_ F Vermarktungsgeselischaft mbH 997_ F 987 F"
Socreta Nouvelle de Distnbution SA 2 4&6 F {2 48{"; F Gutschene da HSS GmbH WT_ - - N NC_
Studio 89 Productions SAS @ 43-8_ F_ 2 48 EE F :ﬁ:’:ﬁm :;:Ec;:;dmbH %7 F 997 E
TGM Draits Audigwsuels SNC ) 4as F @ e F Infenetwork GrabH ) £ 297 E
Téldvonte Promation SA _ha T NCo@ g F 1P Doutschiand GmbH 9.7 F 297 F
TF6 Gestion SA {2 243 p_ {2) 24 3_ [ Medizscors Geselischaft fr Medisn- und - -
TF6 5CS @ 243 P 243 P Kommunikationsforschung mbH 9 1: F a9 7:
Unité 15 France SA @ 485 F @ 485 F Netzathleten net GmbH w7 F 997 F
) ) ) Norddaich TV ’ i
Produktionsgeselschatt mbH 997 F 48 F
n-tv Nachnchtanfarngehen GmbH 99 'n: F- 4997 F
Passion GmbH 99 '; J; a9 J: l-:
RTL Craation GmbH ] 7_ F 997 I;
RTL Disney Femsehen GmbH & Ca KG 98 P 198 P
ATL Group Cable & Satelite Gmbh 97 3 997 F
ATL Group Deutschland i ) . )
Markenverwaltungs GmbH g9 7 F 897 F
RTL Hessan GmbH g97 F 897 F
RTL Hessen Programmfenster GmbH ) 59.8“ f; 59 5 F
RTL Interactive GmbH 997 F 99 '; F‘
ATL Nord GmbH 99'; F 99 '; F
ATL Telewision GmbH 997 F 99 ?- l;
RTL WEST GmbH 74.8- F 748 F
RTL2 Fernsahen GeschaftsfOhrung GmbH 358 E_ 35 B_ E
ATL2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG 358 13 a5s E
Universum Film GmbH DBT- FL 99 '.; F
Vox Holding GmbH sa7 F 997 F
VOX Jelewision GmbH ’ 99 4“ E 99 4“ F
Wer Kennt-Wen do GmbH 9|7 F 99 7- IE
f* } Change in method dug G a diution effec—t . )
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NOTES TO THE GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUPS CONSOL- GROUP S CONSOLK EROUP'S CONSOL- GROUP'S GONSOLK
OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DAVED OWNER-  DATED
BROADCASTING TV wor e nore e ' BROADCASTING TV e -
GREECE” SPAIN*
Alpha Daryfonki Tileoras: SA {14} - NC (15 697 F Antena 3 Cananas SLU 14 - NC {6} M7 E
i ’ i Antena 3 de Telewsion Colombia SA © 113 E 6 118 E
HUNGARY Antena 3 da Telowisian, 54 ©® 205 E ®@ =07 £
Home Shopping Service Hongne SA 2r 485 F @ 485 F Antena 3 Drecto SAU 04 - Noow® a7 E
Kiub Interakty Kit (13 - NG & 997 F Antena 3 Eventos SL . 208 E 6 =217 E
La Paz Madia Hoking Zrt 0% - NG @ 887 F  Amena3FimsSLU ® 5 E @ =27 €
Magyar RTL Telewzié Zartkonsen ) i Antena 3 Juegos SAU ® 205 E ® 217 3
Mukadd Reszvénytarsasag 5 » 1. F“ © 99 7_ F Antena 3 Multmedia StU 1] 20.5— E- {8 21 7T E-
Keretmauiom Ky e 5 e97 F & 997 g AmenadNotcias SLU ® 205 E T N
A-Time Kit CIE F® s F Onpre Toratve g Canangs 8A ® 205 E ® 27 E
RTL Kabehetewzio Ki B %1 F & 997 F Atres Advertising SLU 6 205 E W =17 E
Canal 3 Television de Golombia SA e 49 E" {8) 5 2- E-
INDIA Canal Med:a Racio Galicsa SLU T @ 2208 E & 217 E
Big ATL Broadcast Pt Ltd s0¢ P - N Ganal Madia Racia SAU & 206 E ® 217 E
Cordina Planet SL (6} 1[1.:; E & 10 9- E-
LUXEMBOURG" Estaciones Radiofonicas de Aragon SaU h (6} ZU.EN £ {8 21 ?n E
Broadcasting Center Europe SA ,|7 F_ 897 F Geston Audiovisual de Cananas SL {14} - NC (6} 4 3. E
RATLS SA g E e E Guadiana Producciones A | & 205 E® =27 E
FTLS SA 8 Cie SECS M8 E 348 g Hola TV Amenca SL ® 103 E (6 109 E
t3 Telawizon St ) (6} 10.3_ E_ (6) 100 E
NETHERLANDS® tpar Onda SAU & 208 E® =27 £
Couverts Reserveren BV w7 F 997 F LaSexta Edtonal Muscal SLU ® 25 E S
RTL Nededand BY 97 F 997 F Mawvierecard Cine SAU : N4 - NG (B 17 £
RTL Nederland Holding BV 07 F 897 F Musica Aparte SAU ® 205 E B 217 £
RTL Nederand Interactief BV ¢ F 997 F Onda Cero SAU ) ) 20.5 E (6 21 7. £
RTL Nederland Ventures 1 BY o1 F 097 F Orgamzaciones Deportvas y ) ) )
RTL Nederand Venturas 3 BY 99.,' F_ 997 F Culturales Urepublic SA } ) {6} 10.5- E~ (6} 1 1~ £
RTL Nederland Ventures BY 9.7 F. 99 7' F Publisers Imtiativas Publiciarias SAU (6} 20.5~ £ - NC.
Wentrk Events BV 57 F 97 F UnprexSAU . @ =5 £ @® 27 €
" " " - Uniprex Telewision Dhital Terrestre
de Andalusia SLU @ 152 E (8 161 E
ROMARIA® Uriprex Telavision SLU (6) 20 5- E (8 21 T_ E
Cabie Channels SA ” 1" FW 93 t F Uniprex Valencia Tetevision SLUY ) {6} 2CL5- fg (6} 21 'l: é
Unipublic SA 6 105 E ® 11 3
Videoreport Cananas SA {14) D NC ®  8s E
VNews Agencia de Noticias SLU i {14} - NC- (3] 217 é
SWITZERLAND*
Goldbach Media (Switzerland} AG 220 £ 229 E
usa®
SND USA Inc 22 eas F (2 486 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP'S CONSOU GROUP S CONSCU GROUP’S CONSOL- GROUP'S CONSOL-
OWMER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED
SHIP 2012 METHOD SHIP 2011 METHOR SHIP 2012 METHOD SHIP 2011 METHGD
CONTENT NOTE (=) ) NOTE (- ) CONTENT NOTE () 1) NOTE () )
ANTIGUA" GERMANY"
Grundy International Operations Lid 100.0 F 1000 F Deutsche Synchron Filmgeselischatt mbH &
- - - Co Kaihemnz Brunnemann Produkions KG (7} 0.8 F in S0 8 F
AUSTRALIA® Fremante Licensing Germany GmbH 97 F_ 997 F
Grundy Light Entertainment GmbH 1000 3 1000 F
Forum 5 Pty Ltd 100.0 F 1000 F - - -
g - Y Gruncy Light Entertainment/White
FremantleMecha Austraha Heldings Pty Lid — {11) 1000 F {11} 1000 F Balance GmbH GBR (14} - NC 508 F
FramantieMed:a Australia Pty Ltd {13 100.0 F (1) 1600 F Grundy UFA TV Produktions GmbH <) en7 3 go7 F
Grundy Organization Pty Ltd {11} 100.0 F (11) 1000 F Objektrv Film GmbH 13 - NC.- (4} 99 7 p.
Radical Media Pty Ltd {17 100.0 F On 1000 F Phoenix Film Karheinz Brunnemann i
- - - GmbH & Co Produktions KG {7 50.8 F 508 F
BELGIUM™ Phonix Geschaﬁsiﬂhn:lngs GmbH } {7) 50 a_ F_ N L] E F
Fremantle Preductions Belgium NV 100.0 F 1000 F Radkcal Media GmbH 07 1000 F_ on 1eo ° F
- - RTL Group Licensing Asia GmbH 897 F 997 F
BRAZIL" RTL Group Senices GmbH 99 -{ E. 09 7- E
Stargate Germany GenbH 43) 488 P - NG
FrermantieMedia Brazl Produgo targats i - d
de Televisc Lida 100.0 F 100 0 F Teamworx Telewision & Film GmbH 897 F aa7 F
Trebwisch Produktion Helding GrmbH {13) - NC (4 897 F
CANADA" Trabutsch Praduktion Helding
GmH & Co KG k] - NG {4) 997 F
FremantiaMedia Canada Holdings Inc 100.0 F 000 F N -
- - - UFA — Fernsehproduktion GmbH {3) g7 F 3 997 F
Luda LLC 1000 F 10900 F -
- - - UFA — Filmproduktion GmbH i3} 997 F 3 a97 F
UFA Brand Communication GmiH 3} 997 F @ 897 F
CHINA" - -
UFA Cinema GmbH 9a.7 F 997 F
AdSociety Daye Advertising Co Lid 333 £ 330 E - -
- UFA Ginama Verleh GmbH o587 F 897 F
Radical Media Go Lid {17} 1000 F 7 1000 F - - -
- - - - UFA Entertainment GmbH {3) gs7 F 3 997 F
UFA Film & TV Produicion GmbH (3} 997 F @ 997 F
CROATLA - - -
UFA Sports GmbH 0a7r F 997 F
Fremantte Pradukcyja d c o 100.0 F 1000 F -
GREECE"
DENMARX"
Fremantie Productions SA 100 0 F 100 0 F
Blu A/S 1000 F 1000 F - - -
- - - - - Plus Productans SA {14} - NG {15 837 F
FINLAND®
HONG KONG*
Fremantle Finland Qy 100.0 F 10090 F
- - - - Fremantle Productions Asia Lid 1000 F 1000 F
FRANCE*
HUKGARY"
1 2 3 Productons SAS
(former 20h50 Telavision SAS) 100.0 F 1000 F Magyar Grundy UFA Kit 887 F 837 F
Fremantle Franca SAS 100.0 [ 1000 F
TV Presse Productions SAS 100.0 F 1000 F INDLA”
Fremantle India TV Productions Pvt Ltd 1000 F 1000 F
INDONESIA®
PT Durua Vistama 1009 F 1000 F
ITALY*
FremantieMedia jtaha Spa 1000 F 1000 F
JAPAN*
FremantleMadia Japar KK (14) - NC 1000 F
LUXEMBOURG"
Ouchy Digrtal SA 097 997 F
FremantieMedia SA 100 0 100 0 F
MEXICO"
Grundy Productions SA de CV 1000 F 1000 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EROUPS CONSOLI- GROUPS CONSOUI GROUP’'S GONSOL- GROUP'S CONSOL-
OWNER-  DATED OWNER DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED
CONTENT Wi Nore e ) CONTENT - T T T
NETHERLANDS® UK
Benelux film Investments BV 498 P 498 P Asbie Production Ltd (190 1000 F 1060 F
Blue Circle BY 103-6 F— 100 6 F Frernanﬂ; UK} Productions Lid {18} 1W-I; F- 100 U- F
Four Qna Media BY 1000 F- 100 (; F FremantdeMedia Lto {18 100 I; F- 100 l'; F.
FremantieMedia Operatons BV (o) 100 6 F- {190 100 (; F FremantleMecia Group Ltd {18} ‘IDD.IJM F- 100 (!- F
FremantleMedia Overseas Heldngs BV 100 6 F_ 100 6 F FremantleMedia Overseas Ltd (18 100 l; E 100 d F.
Grundy Endemol Productions VOF 50 0. I; 50 6 P FremantleMedia Services Lid (18} 1M.I; g 100 (; F
Grundy International Haldings (1) BY 100 ﬂ- F- 100 6 F ATL Group Support Servces Ltd“ ) 100.(; F' ]00 0- F-
RTL Nederland Film Venture BV sa7 F. 99 -I; F Select TV Ltd 100.6 FM 1000 F.
RTL Nederland Productes BV 99'; F— - 997T F Talkback (LUK} Productions Ltg 1006 F- . 1060. F:
i Talklback Productions Ltd (12 w00 l; (12 00 6 F
POLAND® Talkioack Thames Ltd tz2 1000 F G2 1000 F
FremantieMsdia Polska Sp Zo o 1000 F 1000 F Thames Telewsion Holdings Ltd u8 1000 F 1000 F
) ) - ) Thames Telewsion Ltd 1000 F 1000 F
PORTUGAL* ’ ’ i
FremantieMeda Portugal SA 100.0 F 1000 F usa*
) All Amencan Music Group @ 1000 F o 1000 F
RUSSIAN FEDERATION* Allied Communications Inc 100.0 I; 1000 F:
Fremantle Productians LLG 100 0 F 1000 F Amygdala LLC (e 1000 F (8 1000 F
Fremantle Goodson Inc 9y 1000 F {9 1000 F
SINGAPDRE® Fremantle Produchons Inc i 100.0- f': @ 100 C; F
Fremantle Productions Asia Ple Ltd 100.0 100 0 E Fremantle Productions Latin Amenca Ine 1DO.C! F. 1DOCE F
UFA Sparts Asia Pte Lig 75.1‘ o - 7% 1' F Fremnantle Productions Music Ine {9} 100.(! F_ )] 100q F
Fremante Productions North Amenca Ing {9 1000 F (@ 1000 F
SLOVAKIA® FremantdeMedia Licensing ing : {8} 100.0 F_ @ 100 D- F
UFA Slovakia .10 658 £ 65 8 F FremantieMedia North America Inc {9 100.(; F: (9 100 EE ﬁ
- - T Good Games Live Inc {9 1000 F (8 1900 F
- LES Communications Inc @ 100 0: FL 9 100 li F.
Fremantle de Espana SL 8t -] F @ 950 F Leroy & M_orton Productians LEG a7 100(! F— o 1000_ F—
La Competenc:a Producciones SA 1000 F 1000 F Max Post LLC e 100 q F (e 100 0— F:
- - Media Pia LLG (17 1000 F (7)) 1000 F
N MuscBox Librarytnc @ 100 F @ w00 F
Nowlle LLC {168 1000 F (16) 3000 F
FremanileMadia Svengs AB 1000 F 1900 F - - - -
- - QO Merch LLC 6 1000 F (18 1000 F
Op Services LLG e 1000 F g 1000 F
SWITZERLAND" - - - -
Onginal Fremantle LLC 16} 100.0 F {16} 1000 F
Grundy Schweiz AG 650 F &0 F Onginal Prad (ona LLC te 1000 F (18 1000 F
Outpost Digitad LG n 1000 F un 1000 F
TURKEY Radical Media LLC un  tono F um  1co0 F
FremantieMedia TV Film Yapim {14) - NC,_ o IOOD_ F Pieg Grundy Productions Holdings Inc © 1m6 ,; @ 1006 E
Studio Production Services Inc (@ 100 t; E (9} uth; F
The Baywatch Productions Gompany @ 100.0 F (@ 1000 F
Thumbdance LLC i 100 0— F- ) F.
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NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROWPS CONSOL GROUP'S CONSOL- GROUPS CONSOLI- GROUWP 5 CONSOL-
OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED
SHIP 2012 METHDD SHIP 2011 METHOD SHIP 2012 METHOD SHIP 2011 METHOD
BROADCASTING RADIO NOTE (=) () NOTE (= it OTHERS NOTE () ) NOTE (=) b
BELGIUM* AUSTRIA*
Cobelfra SA “1 F 44t F RTL Group Austna GmbH 97 F 997 F
Contaci Viaanderen NV 421 P 42 1 P
Inadi SA 441 F 441 F BELGIUM*
IP Plunmedda SA 55-8_ F_ 658 F Audiomedia Investments Bruxefles SA 100.0 F 1000 F
Joker FM SA (13) - NC 441 F ) ) :
New Contact SA 49.8 P 498 P FRANGCE*
Radio Belgium Holding Sa 441 F 441 F 1P Netwaork SA 297 £ a7
Sociétd Immobihiére Bayard d Antin SA 987 F 957
FRANCE* -
Ediracso SA 9.7 £ 937 F GERMANY"
1D (information et Diffusion) San 99.7 F 997 F Apareo Deutschland GmbH Y48 3 - NG
IP France SA L 0.7 F 97 F Apareo Holging GmbH 74.8 F Sone
IP Régions SA 887 F 987 F Kos Beteirgungs- und ) ) ) ) )
RTL Fun Developpement Sarl 997 E a7 E Verwaltungsgessilschaft mbH 95 'n: Ii 997 l-:
RTL Net SAS g7 F 997 F RTL Group Central & Eastern Europe GmbH 897 F w7 F
SCP Sarl ) ) 597 F 997 F RATL Group Deutschland GmbH 99.7 F 87 F
SERC SA s07 F 997 F RTL Graup Vermigensverwattungs GmbH 100.0 F 1000 F
Sodara SA 807 F 97 F UFA Film und Fernseh GmiH 7 F 97 F
GERMANY® LUXEMBOURG*
Antenna Niedersachsen GmbH & Co KG 574 F 87 F B LCE SA 97 F 887 F
AVE Gasellschatt CLT-UFA SA 97 F 997 F
fur Hérfunkbeteihgungen GmbH 887 F 897 F 1P Luxembaurg Sarl 807 E 087 E
AVE | Vermogensverwallungsgeselischatt IP Network International SA 897 F 87 F
mbH & Co KG 487 E 437 E - . - -
- - - Messino SA (14) - NC { ) - F
AVE Il Vermbgensverwaltungsgesellschatt
mbH & Ca KG 88.7 F 897 F Medha properties Sard h: -l F ag7 F
AVE V Vermogensverwzitungsgesellschatt RTL Group Central & Eastern Europe SA 97 F 897 F
7 F - -
mok 99.1_ F_ 99 - RTL Group Germany SA : g F @7 F
AVE VI Ve sverwaltungsgesellschat
mbH & corm;gm v ungsgeselsc 497 £ 497 € { ) Consoldated as a Specai Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
BCS Breadeast Sachsen GmbH & Co KG 472 E 472 E
Funkhaus Halle GmbH & Go KG 812 F 570 3 NETHERLANDS®
HITRADIO RTL Sachsen GmbH 85.8 F 858 F Buienradar BY 887 F 997 F
Madsack Hortunk GmbH 80.7 F - NC RTL Group Beheer BV 1000 F 000 F
Madisngesalischaft Mitteistand Videostnp BV 997 F - NC
Niedersachsen GmbH 230 £ - NC
Neue Spreeratho Horfunkgesellschatt mbH 99.7 F 997 F uKk*
Radio Center Barlin GmbH 807 F 997 F CLT-UFA UK Radio Ltd 997 3 997 3
Radie Hamburg GmbH & Co KG 2091 E 291 E CLT-UFA UK Telewision Ltd 99 T_ F— 59 i‘- E
ATL Rad:o Berln GmbH 297 F g97 F - b b : -
ATL Rado Deutschland GmbH e87 F 897 F
ATL Radwovermarktung GmbH & Co KG I F 837 F
Rundtunk Beteligungs- und
Betnepsgeselischatt Blauen mbH 43.0 E 430 E
UFA Radig-Programmgesallschaft
n Bayern mbH w7 87 F ~ -
Country of yicorporaton (13) Company absorbed by a company
X RG* of the Group
LUXEMBOURG (1) A parent company (14) Company ok or ucated
Luxracio Sart 748 F - NC F Il conscidaton (15) Alpha Media Group
- - - - - P proporhonaiz consoidaton (18) Ongmal Productions
E equity dccounting (77} Radical Madia
NETHERLANDS* NG nat conso idated (18) Company has eiected 1o maks use of
{2} Groupe M6 ("de facto” control the sudit axempilion 1 accordance
RTLFM BV 99.7 F 997 3 (3} UFA Bartn Group with sections 479 C of UK Comparves

(4) Trebsch Group

{5} M AL Group

{6} Grupo Antena 3

(7} Phonwx Group

{8) Fremantla Licensing Group

{9) FremantieMed,a North Amerca Group
{10} FremantiaMedia Productions

Netherends Group

{11) Grundy Qrgansation {Hokdings) Group
{12) Takback Productons Group

ATL GROWP

Act 2006 Other companes wheh
have elected the exemption are not
reported w1 the hsi above {1936 Lid
Fremantle Group Pension Trustea L td
and Screenpop Lid}

{ ) The Group s ownership 1S based on
iha total number of shares after
deduchon of ireasury shares held by
the company as per 31 December
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RTL GROUP S.A.

REPORT GN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCEIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of RTL Group S A and its subsidianes {the "Group”} which compnse the
consclidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consalidated statements of comprehensive Income, changes In
eguity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of signif-
icant accounting polictes and other explanatory information as set out on
pages 144 to 209

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Board of Directers 1s responsibie for the preparation and far presen-
tation of these consoldated financial staterments in accordance with Inter-
natonal Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Unicn, and for such internal contrel as the Board of Directors determines
1S necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from matenal risstatement, whether due to fraud or emor

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE “REVISEUR D’ENTREPRISES AGREE”

QOur respensibility 1s to express an opinicn on these consclidated finan-
cial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in accor-
dance with International Standards on Auditing as adopted for Luxem-
bourg by the "Caommission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perfarm the audit o obtain reascnable assurance whether the consol-
dated financial statements are free from matenal misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtan audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consclidated financial statements
The procedures sefected depend on the judgment of the "Rew-
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AUDITORAS REPORT

seur d'entrepnses agree” including the assessment of the nsks of mate-
nal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error In making those nsk assessments, the “Réwseur
d'entrepnses agree™ considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consobidated financial statements
In order to design audit procedures that are appropnate in the circum-
stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec-
tiveness of the entity's internal contrel An audit also includes evaluating
the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors, as well as eval-
uatng the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit endence we have obtained 1s sufiicient and ap-
proprate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

OPINION
In our opimion, the consolidated financial statements set out on pages
144 tc 209 give a true and farr view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as of 31 December 2012, and of its consoligated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows {or the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopt-
ed by the European Union

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
The consohdated Director’s report, including the corporate governance
statement, which 1s the responsibility of the Board of Directors, 1s con-
sistent wath the consckdated financal staterents and includes the infor-
mation required by the law with respect to the Gorperate Governance

Statement
Luxembourg, 24 February 2013
PrcewaterhouseCaopers, Societe cooperative
Represented by
Pascal Rakovsky Marc Minet

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012 21t




212 RTL GROWP

RTL GROUP

With 53 television channels and 28 radio stations in ten
countnes, RTL Group is the leading European entertainment
network The Luxembourg-based company has interests in TV
channels and radio stations in Germany, France, Belgum, the
Netherdands, Luxembourg, Spain, Hungary, Croatia, and India
It 1s one of the world's leading producers of television content,
such as talent and game shows, drama, daly soaps and
telenovelas, including /dols, Got Talent, The X Factor, Good
Times - Bad Times and Family Feud

The roots of the company date back to 1924, when Radio
Luxembourg first went on ar Compagnie Luxembourgeaise de
Radiodiffusion (CLR) was founded in 1831 As a European
proneer, the company breadeast a unique programme In several
languages using the same frequency

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

RTL Group itself was created in spnng 2000 following the
merger of Luxembaourg-based CLT-UFA and the British content
production company Pearson TV, owned by UK media group
Pearson PLC CLT-UFA itself was created in 1997 when the
shareholders of UFA (Bertelsmann) and the histonc Compagrie
Luxembourgeoise de Télediffusion — CLT {Audiofina) merged
ther TV, radio and TV production businesses

Bertelsmann has been the majonty shareholder of RTL Group
since July 2001 The shares of RTL Group are publicly traded
on the Brussels and Luxembourg stock exchanges



TELEVISION

Each day, rmillions of viewers all over Europe waich RTL Group's
television channels, which include the famiies of chanrels
clustered around the flagships RTL Telewision in Germany, M6 in
France, RTL 4 in the Netherdands and RTL-TVI in Belgum The
company also has broadcastng operations In Hungary
(RTL Klub, RTL Il plus six cable channels), Croatia (RTL Televizia,
RTL 2) and has interests n Grupo Antena 3 In Spain and Nationa
Media Group InRussia In November 2012, RTL Group launched
its first TV channet outside of Europe, Big RTL Thnll in india

CONTENT

RTL Group's content production arm, FremantieMedia, 1s one of
the largest internationat producers outside the US Each year it
produces over 9,100 hours of award-winning pnme time pro-
gramming across 62 countnes RTL Group I1s also one of the
world’s leading independent distnbutors outside the US, seling
nghts to mare than 20,000 hours of programming in 150 coun-
tnes worldwide

RADID
RTL Group's radio stations reach milhions of steners each day
The company’s flagship radic station s RTL in France, and it
also owns or has interssts In stations n Germany (104 6 RTL,
Antenne Bayern), Belgum {Bel RTL, Radio Contact), Spain
(Onda Cero, Europa FM) and Luxembourg (RTL Radio
Letzehuerg, Eldcradio)

Company overview:
Best-in-class European entertainment company

ia) (re v o |
& oo VX G
HIL*™V1 KT e rtliounge [ ROTN
2 e vt e T
g

In 1924, a sole radio transmitter broadcast from Luxembourg Teday, RTL Group has
aportfabio of 53 TV channels n ten countries RTL Group's worldwide production

arm —which adopted the company name FremantleMediz in 2001 - grew Its revenues
by 128 per cent to €1 7 bllion since its inception

BROADCAST

(D

C

Strong #1 or #2 in attractive key countries

CONTENT

Globat leader in TV entertainment produchon,
exploitation and distribution

G

DIGITAL

At the forefront of the digital and non-binear transition

RTL”

with an integrated approach

Highly expenenced international management team

RESULTS

Strong track record of delivering financial results
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

2012 2011 2010° 2009* 2008
£m €m €m €m €m

Revenue 5,998 5,765 5,532 5,156 5,774
- of which net advertising sales 3,397 3,459 3,362 3,062 3,656
Other operating income 45 40 51 43 37
Consumption of current programme nghts {2,015} (1,791) (1,711) (1,673) {2,095)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (187) (178) (192) (179) {161)
Other operating expenses (2,790} (2,748) {2,591) (2,577) (2.685)
Impairment of goodwill and fair value adjustments
and amortisation of fair value adjustments
on acquisitions of subsidiaries and joint ventures {10) {13) (10) (88) (395)
Gain/(loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and
re-measurement to far value of pre-existing interest in acquiree {9) 107 (7) - (9)
Profit from operating activities 1,032 1,184 1,072 682 466
Share of results of associates (53) 38 40 25 34
Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT") 979 1,222 1,112 707 500
Net interest income/(expense) (10} {2) 12 4 21
Financial results other than interest (1} (27) 4 23 7
Profit before taxes 968 1,193 1,128 734 528
Income tax expense (277) {302) (263) (234) (232)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 691 891 865 500 296
Loss from discontinued operations (1} {96) {135} (202} -
Profit for the year 690 795 730 298 296
Attnbutable to
RTL Group shareholders 597 696 611 205 194
Non-controlling interests 93 99 119 93 102
Profit for the year 630 795 730 298 296
EBITA 1,078 1,134 1,132 796 916
Amartisation and impairment of fair value adjustments
on acguisitions of subsidiaries and joint ventures (10) (13} {10) (88) (3985)
Impairment of investments in associates (82) {6) {3) (1) (12)
Re-measurement of earn-cut arrangements 2 - - - -
Gain/({loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and
re-measurement to farr value of pre-existing interest in acquiree (9 107 (7 - Q)
Earnings before interest and taxes {“EBIT"} 979 1,222 1,112 707 500
Basic earnings per share (in € 388 453 398 133 126
Ordinary dvidend per share (in €) 510" 510 500 350 140
Extraordinary dnidend per share (in €) 540™ - - - 210
Dividends paid (€ mithan) 1,623 789 773 541 541
Average number of full-time equivalent employees 9,590 9,621 9,286 9,608 9,191
Net assets (€million) 4,858 5,083 5,597 5,530 5,871
Net cash (€ million} 1,051 1,238 1,456 789 876

Re presented foflowing the apphcation of IFAS 5 ta Alpha Media Group (discontinued operations)

Re presented following the apphcation of tFRS 5 to Five {drscontinued operattons)
“intenm dnadend




FULLY
CONSOLIDATED

PROFIT CENTRES

AT A GLANCE

2012 2011 2010 2008 2008

MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND €m €m €m €m €m
Revenue 1,982 1,912 1,892 1,732 2,020
EBITA 5a1 529 551 366 414
1 2010 2008 B

GROUPE M6 e “em em em “em
Revenue 1,387 1421 1,459 1,377 1,354
EBITA 224 248 245 195 196
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

FREMANTLEMEDIA €m €m €m €m €m
Revenue 1,711 1,429 1,272 1,183 1,203
EBITA 138 143 140 155 155




2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
RTL NEDERLAND €m €m €m €m £m
Revenue 431 491 429 371 436
EBITA a7 134 110 72 70

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
RTL BELGIUM €m €m €m £m €m
Revenue 210 216 219 203 216
EBITA 45 46 45 36 39

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
RTL RADIO (FRANCE) €m €m €m €m €m
Revenue 180 184 182 174 189
EBITA 30 30 24 15 32

2012 2011 2010 2009* 2008
RTL KLUB €m €m €m €m €m
Revenue 101 99 105 83 -
EBITA g9 15 19 18 10"

RTi Kiub has been fully ronsohdated from Aprd 2069 Group confribution

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
RTL HRVATSKA €m €m €m €m €m
Revenue 3 37 38 41 50
EBITA (@) 0 3) (3) 2
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Outburst of joy

Erland Galjaard, Director of Pragramming at
RTL Nedarland and presenter Wandy van Dijk
celebrate al the "Telavizier Awards’ — the

Dutch TV industry's most prestigious honours.
RTL 4's The VYoice OFf Holland won the *2012
Gouden Televizier-Ring’ for Best TV Programme

Popularity and trust

In 2012, Peter Kloeppel cefebrated 20 years of
presenting ATL Akiuell. He is the longest-serving
anchotman on German TV — and one of the public
figures Germans trus! the most




